

THE

46824

# British Medical Journal

THE JOURNAL OF THE BRITISH MEDICAL ASSOCIATION.

INCLUDING

AN EPITOME OF CURRENT MEDICAL LITERATURE.

EDITED FOR THE ASSOCIATION BY

ERNEST HART.

VOLUME I FOR 1894.

JANUARY TO JUNE.

London :

PRINTED AND PUBLISHED BY THE BRITISH MEDICAL ASSOCIATION, AT THEIR OFFICE, 429, STRAND.

MDCCCXCIV.

## INDEX TO VOLUME I FOR 1894.

- A.**  
**Abdomen**, valvular opening in wall of, 21; surgery of the, 124; laceration of wall of, 240; case of gunshot wound of, 759; the surgery of the, 862; incised wound of, recovery, 910; sarcoma infiltrating wall of, 1189  
**Abdominal section**, for acute intestinal obstruction, 65; for tubal gestation, 67; for ectopic gestation, *ib.*; two cases of, 523; successful for ruptured gastric ulcer, 576; feeding after, 595; the After-Treatment of Cases of, Mr. C. Martini, *rev.*, 970  
**Abercarn colliery**, the workmen of and their doctor, 171  
**Aberdeen Medical Staff Corps** in camp, 1335  
**Aberdeenshire**, bread and water, 1379  
**Aberystwyth**, the guardians of and the medical officer of their union, 1338  
**Abortion**, acute peritonitis following attempts to procure, 20; due to an incarcerated ante-flexed uterus, 408; habitual, 1024  
**Abraham, Dr. P.**, diseases of the skin treated with thyroid gland, 66  
**Abscess**, in the lung, 69; gangrenous in the lung, *ib.*; large intra-abdominal from a foreign body which had perforated the bowel, 241; cerebral, 577; amebic of the liver, 676; tropical of liver, is dysentery the invariable precursor of? 678, 1333, 1390; of the liver, 682; tropical of the liver, 774; intracranial, causation of, 857; of spleen, with secondary abscesses in the liver, 859; intracranial arising from caries of the phenoidal cells, 1023  
**Abstinence**, the life-saving value of, 1376  
**Abuse**, a gigantic medical, 41, 102, 158, 217, 270, 327, 381, 882; out-patient hospital, 604, 658, 716, 771, 825, 840, 932, 939, 1276, 1332, 1391  
**Abuses**, existing in medical practice, a suggested remedy for, 977, 983; of the Poor-law, 984; alleged in hospitals, 1043, 1096  
**Academy of Medicine**, the French, officers of, 100; prizes at, 116; and mineral waters, 770, 1042  
     — **Royal, of Medicine in Ireland**, Section of Anatomy, meeting of, 356; exhibits, 1245; collective investigation reports, *ib.*; complete transposition of the viscera, *ib.*; anatomy of the ear muscles, *ib.*; single and double monstrosities, *ib.*  
     — **Royal, of Medicine in Ireland**, Section of Obstetrics, meeting of, 803; ovary and tube removed for recurrent salpingitis, 915; myomatous uteri and ovaries and appendages removed for recurrent peritonitis, *ib.*; an encephalic monster, *ib.*; ruptured tubal pregnancy, *ib.*; exhibits, 1244; the etiology, prevention, and treatment of puerperal septicaemia, 1245  
     — **Royal, of Medicine in Ireland**, Section of Pathology, locomotor ataxy with specimen of Charcot's disease, 191; stricture of the colon, 192; mediastinal tumour (columnar-celled cancer), 467; specimens, 1025; head injury, *ib.*; tertiary syphilis of the larynx, *ib.*; renal tuberculosis, 1128; tuberculous pericarditis, *ib.*; spleno-medullary leukaemia, *ib.*; perforating wound of pharynx, *ib.*  
     — **Royal, of Medicine in Ireland**, Section of State Medicine, meeting of, 526  
     — **Royal, of Medicine in Ireland**, Section of Surgery, fibrous stricture of the oesophagus treated by gastrotomy and dilatation from below, 243; some interesting cases of gunshot wounds, 244; nephrectomy and nephrorrhaphy, 526; lacerated wound of the upper third of the thigh, 861; popliteal aneurysm, 862; naso-pharyngeal fibroma, 1192; hydroceles of the neck, 1192  
**Acanthosis nigricans**, a case of, 1305  
**Accidents**, disabling, liability of medical men to, 139  
**Acetanilide** as a dressing, 69  
**Acheson, Dr. A. W.**, presentation to, 175  
**Acland, Dr. H. W.**, The Oxford Museum, *rev.*, 245  
**Acromegaly**, a case of, 4; in a giantess, 21  
**Act**, the new Factory, proposals for, 1136  
     — **the French Free Medical Assistance**, 259  
     — **Infectious Diseases (Notification)**, duties of medical officer of health under, 279, 372, 424; prosecution under, 443; defect in, 551, 607  
     — **Local Government**, 1890, royal assent to, 537; A Practical Guide to, Parish Councils and Parish Meetings, Messrs. J. H. Stone and J. G. Pearse, *rev.*, 1417  
     — **Lunacy**, 1890, prosecution under, 97  
     — **Sale of Food and Drugs in the City**, 539  
**Actinomyces**, the prognosis and treatment of, 61; in the human subject, 128  
**Acts**, the Contagious Diseases, 1115  
     — **the Margarine**, deputation to Local Government Board on, 984  
     — **Medical**, amendment of, 107, 217, 272, 382, 608, 996; the penal clauses of the, 534, 920  
     — **the Pharmacy**, chemists and druggists and, 31; carbolic acid and, 427  
     — **the Vaccination**, repeated prosecutions under, 778  
**Adam, Dr. J.**, forcible feeding of the insane, 575  
**Adams, Mr. P. T.**, a case of strychnine poisoning, 300  
     — **Mr. W.**, On the Surgical Treatment of Deformities, *rev.*, 23  
**Addison's disease**. See Disease  
**Address**, on Morgagni and "anatomical thought," by Professor R. Virchow, 725; on the organisation of science, by Professor Michael Foster, 727; on the growth and regeneration of the organism, by Dr. Giulio Bizzozero, 728; on the position of the State in respect to modern bacteriological research, by Dr. V. Babes, 733; on idiopathic hypertrophy of the heart and on degeneration of the heart muscle, by Dr. S. Laache, 738; on the adaptation of the organism to pathological changes, by Professor H. Nothnagel, 740; on the part played by nervous debility in the production of fever, by Professor Bouchard, 791; on the relation of chemistry to pharmacotherapy and materia medica, by Professor Stokvis, 794; on non nocere, by Dr. Jacobi, 852; on the ground substance of protoplasm and its modification by light, 853  
**Adenofibroma** recurring as scirrhus and as spindle-celled sarcoma, 1303  
**Adenoids**, nasopharyngeal, choice of an anæsthetic for the removal of, 108, 171, 228; the finger nail in removal of, 895, 1064  
**Adenoma** of the body of the uterus, 1244; of the portio vaginalis uteri forming a depressed sore or ulcer, 1306  
**Adrenal**, supernumerary, 859  
**Adulteration** of food, 1227  
**Advertisement**, an old, 1343  
**Advertisements**, in the lay press, 374; "reading matter," 391; lying, 426; quack, the responsibility of journalism, 760; nostrum, 770; quack, Lord Rosebery on, 1040  
**Advertising**, dental, 148; for help by a sufferer, 338; by dentists, a warning, 1203  
**Advice**, medical. See Medical  
**Æro-therapeutics** or the Treatment of Lung Diseases by Climate, Dr. C. T. Williams, *rev.*, 1308  
**Africa**, our new protectorates, their climatology and health conditions, 877  
     — **West**. See West Africa  
**Agnew, Dr. D. H.**, the memorial to, 1081  
**Agaphia**, case of, 907  
**Agreements** to purchase practice, 895  
**Ague**, the prevention and cure of by opium, 102, 437  
**Air**, of schools, 95, 986, 1168, 1288; liquid, the scientific uses of, 283; dirty and dirty streets, 1264; hot, the local application of, 1310, 1448  
**Airthrey**, the mineral wells of, 1400  
**Alabaster** and another v. Harness, 496, 1281  
**Allassio** as a health resort, 339  
**Albumen** in urine, new tests for, 228  
**Albuminuria**, post-scarlatinal, is it infectious? 1116; and life assurance, 1324  
**Alcohol**, in infancy and childhood, 283; opium or bang? 320; in enteric fever, 521; in work-houses, 777, 1203; the budget and, 871, 875; past attitude of the medical profession in, 1288  
**Alcoholism**, repression of in Switzerland, 529; discussion on at Rome, 798; and insanity, 1187  
**Aldershot**, scarlet fever in, 1203  
**Alexander, Dr. A.**, death of, 1000  
     — **Dr. W.**, puerperal fever, 862  
**Alexandria**, the water supply of, 1154  
**Algeria**, native doctors in, 216  
**Algiers**, typhus in, 1440  
**Allachæsthesia** or perverted localisation of sensation, 1  
**Allbutt, Professor C.**, mumps and hyperplasia of the cervical glands, 48  
**Allingham, Mr. H.**, intestinal obstruction treated by cæcotomy, enterectomy, and closure of the anus præternaturalis, 968  
**Allinson v. General Medical Council**, 495  
**Allsop, Mr. F. C.**, Induction Coils and Coil Making, *rev.*, 1131  
**Alopecia**, an unusual case of, 911  
**Althaus, Dr. J.**, On Failure of Brain Power (Encephalasthenia), its Nature and Treatment, *rev.*, 1385  
**Alvarenga Prize**, the, 504  
**Amble**, the sanitary wants of, 496  
**Amblyopia** from dinitrobenzol, 449  
**Amenorrhœa**, functional, the action of senecio-jacobæa in the treatment of, 679; and chlorosis with symptoms of brain disease, 1073, 1354  
**America**. See United States  
**Amputation** of both Hands, Application of Suitable Mechanism to a Case of, Mr. F. G. Ernst, *rev.*, 1309  
**Anæmia**, pernicious, successfully treated by arsenic, 298; parasitic and diarrhœa, 371; treatment of, 448; pernicious, at 21, 904; pernicious, bone-marrow, in the treatment of, 1172; pernicious, case of, 1302  
**Anæsthetic** for removal of naso-pharyngeal adenoids, choice of, 108, 171, 228, 861, 873, 996, 1107  
**Anæsthetics** in Poor-law practice, 167; their Uses and Administration, Dr. D. W. Buxton, *rev.*, 248; death under, 428, 985; in minor operations, 862  
**Analysis** of food and drugs, 783  
**Anastomosis**, aneurysm by, 753  
**Anatomies**, draped, 1204  
**Anatomy**, a Plea for Practical Work in, Mr. T. Cooke, *rev.*, 130; Descriptive and Surgical, Mr. H. Gray, *rev.*, 805  
**Anderson v. Gorrie**, 266, 779, 930, 944, 945, 1032, 1037, 1107  
     — **Mr. A. R.**, acute peritonitis following attempts to procure abortion, 20  
     — **Dr. E. C.**, puerperal septicaemia, 434  
     — **Mr. R. B.**, are judges above the law? 1107; the case of, 1423  
     — **Dr. T. McC.**, mediastinal tumours, 173  
**Andrew, Dr.**, testimonial to, 1381  
**Andriezen, Dr. W. L.**, the morphology, origin, and evolution of function of the pituitary body and its relation to the central nervous system, 54; a modified Golgi's method for the study of the human brain, 909  
**Aneurysm**, of the aorta and innominate artery, simultaneous ligature of carotid and subclavian arteries, 14; of the aortic valve, 128; of common femoral, digital compression, cure, 300; by anastomosis, 753; popliteal, 862; subclavian, 1070; ruptured, 1081; aortic, cases of, 1361  
**Animals**, the best method of slaughtering, 380; diseases of affecting man through food supplies, 876; living, experiments on, 1032; the slaughtering of, 1256  
**Ankle**, tuberculous disease of, 112  
**Ankylosis**, rectangular, of hip-joint, 752, 8. 8

**Annandale, Professor T.**, intracranial surgery, 365  
**Annexation**, peaceable, 927  
**Annual, Burdett's Hospital and Charities, rev.**, 863  
**Anophthalmos congenital**, case of, 681  
**Ansell v. Tait**, 998, 1003;  
**Anthrax**, results of vaccinations against, 874  
**Antidote case**, new, 248  
**Antifebrin**, the ill effects of, 85; large doses of, 681  
**Antipodes**, waterborne typhoid at, 1097  
**Antipyretics**, experiences with in the tropics, 240  
**Antipyrin**, the ill-effects of, 85; remarks on, 644  
**Antiseptics** in typhoid fever, 62, 284; action of on the influenza bacillus, 375, 552; intestinal, 870, 961  
**Antivaccinationist assertions**, the value of, 610  
**Antivaccinators**, an object lesson for, 761  
**Antivivisection**, Bishop Barry on, 43, 219  
**Antrum of Highmore**, acute inflammation of after influenza, 237, 408, 574, 681  
**Antwerp**, the exhibition at, 1198  
**Aorta**, aneurysm of the valve of, 128; abdominal, bifurcation of the, 1245  
**Aphasia**, motor without hemiplegia, 15; the left hemisphere from a case of, 635; sensory, a case of accompanied by word deafness, word blindness, and agraphia, 907  
**Apothecaries' Hall, Dublin**, and the Royal College of Surgeons in Ireland, 480  
— **Society of London**, pass-lists, 112, 223, 496, 779, 833, 946, 1184, 1443; the licentiate of, 439; examiners at, 1443  
**Appendicitis**, case of, 118; acute suppurative peritonitis due to, 354; constriction of bowel due to causing intestinal obstruction, 967  
**Appointments**, public health, 283, 339, 391; and the compensation of candidates, 616  
**Archæologia medica**, 254, 600, 867, 1141, 1382  
**Argentina**, Caesarean section in, 781  
**Arm, right**, paralysis of, 1358  
**Arm-area** in the left cortex cerebri, right brachial monoplegia and perverted sensations due to traumatic ablation of the, 400  
**Armstrong, Pharmaceutic Society v.**, 987, 997  
**Armstrong, Dr. H. E.**, on port cholera expenses, 546  
— **Dr. H. G.**, the treatment of simple oblique fracture, 995  
**Army, American**, the medical corps of the, 1055  
— **British**, promotions and appointments in medical staff of, 46, 108, 163, 220, 274, 331, 384, 440, 555, 608, 661, 719, 774, 830, 885, 943, 996, 1055, 1109, 1159, 1280, 1334, 1392, 1441; social disabilities, 46; the struggle for rights, *ib.*; the principal medical officer at Aldershot, 108; rank and titles, 108, 220, 331, 439, 608, 661, 775, 997, 1335; soldiers on furlough, 108; military surgery and the new rifle, 220; administrative management of the medical department of, 221; the medical service of 100 years ago, 254; successful candidates for commissions in the medical staff of, 275, 493; the medical department of and its difficulties, 331; fresh commissions, 331; the principal medical officer of Malta, 384; promotions and appointments in the medical reserve of, 440, 719, 830, 943, 1109, 1280, 1335, 1441; a medical combatant, 440; Lord Roberts on temperance in the, *ib.*; compounders of medicine in the medical staff corps of, 494; customary abbreviation of titles, 555; departmental reorganisation, *ib.*; venereal diseases in the, 660; a contrast, 662; administrative districts, *ib.*; the estimates for, 719; the administration of the medical department of, 760, 830, 943; examination for promotion to the rank of surgeon-major, 775, 944; civil employment for the medical staff, *ib.*; the administrative deadlock, 776, 1110; retired medical officers and the sufficiency of the army medical staff, 830; venereal diseases in the, 830, 944; over-centralising in the army medical staff, 831; dress distinctions, 886; medical officers of and sanitary work, 943; mobilisation, 944; army medical unifications *v.* regimentalism, 997; selection in the administrative ranks, 1055, 1180; mobilisation of the medical staff corps, 1055; the Tower, charge of the army medical department, *ib.*; army medical officers and sanitary work, 1055, 1224; warrant creating medical reserve, *ib.*; the medical report of for 1892, 1158; sharp practice, 1160; travelling privileges of surgeon-major-general, *ib.*; a naval and military medical society, *ib.*; personal cleanliness of the soldier, *ib.*; modified regimentalism, *ib.*; another alleged grave breach of faith, *ib.*; position of principal medical officer on a general's staff, 1224; marriage in the medical staff of, 1280; retirement,

*ib.*; training in medical field duties, 1335; medical officers of and substantive rank, 1392; the medical services in war, 1425  
**Army, French**, insanity in the, 720; hygiene in the, 770; nurses in the, 825  
— **German**, suicide in the, 831  
— **Indian**, promotions and appointments on the medical staff of, 46, 108, 163, 220, 275, 331, 384, 494, 555, 608, 661, 774, 830, 885, 943, 996, 1055, 1159, 1221, 1280, 1335, 1392, 1441; the principal medical officership of Madras, 46; pay in, *ib.*; successful candidates for commissions in the medical staff of, 275, 494; administrative changes in, 330, 720; reorganisation of the, 440; degradation of medical officers, 555, 885; effect of reorganisation in, 719; charge of native troops, 720; venereal disease in, 720, 830; and the India Office, 755, 763, 885; increase of the cadre of, 775; supersession in, 886; pensions in, 987; the Karachi incident, 1180; the native hospital corps of, 1280; notes on, 1335; army medical officers and substantive rank, 1392; the sub-medical department in, *ib.*; the presidency of mixed boards in, 1393; a medical staff corps of Eurasians, *ib.*  
— **Italian**, medical officers in the, 720  
— **Russian**, the rank question in, 720  
— **Salvation**. See *Salvation*  
— **Swiss**, medical transport in the, 886  
**Arnold, Mr. A.**, vivisection in a nutshell, 1264  
**Arnold-Forster, Mr. H. O.**, the health of the training ships, 381  
**Arran's tube**, improved form of for vaginal lavement, 919  
**Arsenic**, pernicious anæmia successfully treated by, 298; for badness of wind in horses, 839; poisoning by at Glossop, 891  
**Arterioles**, influence of the in relation to various pathological conditions, 841, 897, 982  
**Artery**, pulmonary, wound of the, 64; common femoral, digital compression, cure, 300; common carotid, effects of compression of the, 962  
**Arthritis**, rheumatoid, the atrophic phenomena of, 904  
**Artisans' dwellings**, the mortality of, 1433  
**Artists (lady)** in hospitals, 1204  
**Ascaris lumbricoides**, the prevalence of, 1063  
**Ascarides**, symptoms resembling cerebellar paralysis cured by expulsion of, 1116  
**Asepsis** in the Gynäkologie und Geburtshilfe, Dr. M. Sanger, *rev.*, 1309  
**Aseptic and septic surgical cases**, 175  
**Ashby, Dr. A.**, a pill in the trachea, 391  
**Ashton-in-Makerfield**, fever at, 610  
**Asparagus and the urine**, 1115  
**Asquith, Mr. J.** See *Home Secretary*  
**Assistants**, medical, so called, 928; qualified and the sanctity of a bond, 1157, 1342; unqualified, 1343; unqualified, the duties of, 1399  
**Association**, "After Care" for Poor Female Convalescents, etc., annual meeting of, 169  
— **Australian Medical**, formation of, 499  
— **Bradford Sanitary**, report of, 777  
— **British for the Advancement of Science**, the meeting of at Oxford, 1319  
— **British Dental**, annual meeting of, 781, 812; installation of new president, 812; reports of treasurer and secretary, *ib.*; next meeting, *ib.*; the teeth of school children, *ib.*; microscopic section, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; training in mechanical dentistry, *ib.*; annual dinner, *ib.*; demonstrations, *ib.*  
— **British Laryngological and Rhinological**, specimens, 915; cyst in larynx, *ib.*; cases, *ib.*; syphilitic laryngitis, *ib.*; the phonograph in medicine, *ib.*  
**ASSOCIATION, BRITISH MEDICAL**, rates of growth etc., of, 35; lady members of, 36; list of authors and others who have presented books to the library of, 197, 765; the influence and duties of the Branches of, 285; programme of sixty-second annual meeting, 493, 657, 767, 993, 1209, 1219, 1328, 1419; summary of accounts of Newcastle meeting, 701; the annual museum, 768, 993, 1422; financial statement for 1893, 937; in South Africa, 1041; grants for scientific research, 1031, 1104, 1218, 1271, 1327; semi-annual review of progress of, 1201; excursions, 1210  
— **Council proceedings** of the, 288, 936  
— **Parliamentary Bills Committee**, report to on State aid in relation to port cholera expenses, 79; meeting of, 865; the Gresham University, *ib.*; proposed amendment of the penal clauses of the Medical Acts, 920; the sale of proprietary medicines containing poison, 974; the use of opium in India, *ib.*; infant mortality in relation to fac-

tory labour, *ib.*; registration of midwives, *ib.*  
**ASSOCIATION, BRITISH MEDICAL, Scientific Grants Committee**, report to on aseptic and septic surgical cases, 175; notice as to grants by, 1031, 1104  
— **Therapeutic Committee**, report to on the ill effects of antipyrin, antifebrin, and phenacetin, 85  
— **Aberdeen**, Banff, and Kincardine Branch, confirmation of minutes, 716, 824; new members, 716, 824; conjoint meetings, 716; communications, 716, 824  
— **Bath and** Bristol Branch, new members, 323, 548, 824, 992; appendicitis, 323; papers and cases, 548; registration of midwives, 824; communications, 824, 992; registration of midwives, 1384; amendment of the Medical Acts, 1386; communications, *ib.*  
— **Bermuda** Branch, annual meeting, 992; election of officers, *ib.*; annual report, *ib.*; discussion, *ib.*  
— **Birmingham and Midland Counties Branch**, peritoneal hæmorrhagic cyst, 20; specimens, 21, 411, 489; papers, 21, 216, 489; new members, 40, 215, 489, 715, 1436; wound of axillary artery and division of musculo-spinal nerve, 215; Porro's operation, 216; complete separation of the shaft of the tibia from the upper epiphysis, *ib.*; trephining for middle meningeal hæmorrhage, 412; cases, 489, 915; report on specimen, 715; communications, *ib.*; meeting of, 804; cases, 1361; myxœdema treated by thyroid extract, *ib.*; cases of aortic aneurysm, *ib.*; hermaproditæ, *ib.*; pyonephrosis, *ib.*; acute primary myocarditis, *ib.*; miscellaneous, *ib.*; annual meeting of, 1436; installation of new president, *ib.*; amendment of Medical Acts, *ib.*; report of Council, 1437; pathological and clinical section, *ib.*; statement of accounts, *ib.*; votes of thanks, *ib.*; election of officers and council, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; annual dinner, *ib.*  
— **Border Counties Branch**, conjoint meeting of with the Edinburgh and Stirling, Kinross and Clackmannan Branches, 379; communications, 1153; dinner, *ib.*  
— **British Guiana** Branch, confirmation of minutes, 40, 769; election of officers, 40; communications, 40, 769; illness of the president, 769; new member, 769, 1387; resignation of the president, 1387  
— **Burma** Branch, malarial fever, 824; new member, *ib.*; audit of accounts, *ib.*; election of office bearers, *ib.*; secretary's report, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; fees to medical witnesses, *ib.*; the opium question, *ib.*  
— **Cambridge-shire and Huntingdonshire Branch**, registration of midwives, 1436; combined meeting with the South Midland Branch, 1437; president's address, *ib.*; treatment of hernia, *ib.*; treatment of acute febrile disease, *ib.*; treatment of wounds, *ib.*; the arrest of hæmorrhage in hæmophilia, *ib.*; thrombosis of lateral sinus, 1437; chronic mastitis, *ib.*; votes of thanks, *ib.*; minutes, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*; election of officers, *ib.*; autumnal meeting, *ib.*  
— **Dorset and** West Hants Branch, vote of thanks to retiring president, 1103; council and representatives, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*; next meeting, *ib.*; Midwives' Registration Association, *ib.*; amendment of the penal clauses of the Medical Act, 1104; discussion, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*  
— **Dublin** Branch, president's address, 285, 322; and the dispensary officers, 314, 322; annual meeting, 322; election of officers, *ib.*; vote of thanks to retiring president, *ib.*; representation of Branches on the Council of the Association, *ib.*; annual dinner, *ib.*; petition of *re* officers of Poor-Law Unions in Ireland Superannuation Bill, 1257  
— **Dundee and** District Branch, annual meeting of, 1272; report of council, *ib.*; election of officers, *ib.*; president's address, 1273; dinner, *ib.*  
— **East Anglian** Branch, annual meeting, 1438; report of council, *ib.*; election of council, *ib.*; by-laws, *ib.*; vote of thanks to Dr. Durrant, *ib.*; luncheon, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; angina pectoris 1439; Yar-

mouth as a health resort, *ib.*; visit to the town, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*  
ASSOCIATION, BRITISH MEDICAL, East York and North Lincoln Branch, annual meeting of, 1274; election of officers, *ib.*; the Association and the legal defence of practitioners, *ib.*; amendment of the Medical Act, *ib.*; grant, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; cases, *ib.*; specimens, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*

Eastern Provinces (South Africa) Branch, banquet of, 1041

Edinburgh Branch, joint meeting of with Stirling, Kinross, and Clackmannan and Border Counties Branches, 379

Gibraltar Branch, formation of, 656

Glasgow and West of Scotland Branch, annual meeting of, 481, 602; communications, 602; officers and council, *ib.*

Halifax (Nova Scotia) Branch, communications, 40, 323, 656; resolution, 323; report of council, 655; new member, *ib.*

Hong Kong and China Branch, farewell dinner to Deputy Inspector-General Turnbull, 536

Jamaica Branch, conformation of minutes, 992; the Mattei treatment, *ib.*

Lancashire and Cheshire Branch, the registration of midwives, 602; conformation of minutes, 1103; replies to communications from the Branch, *ib.*; report of committee on midwives' registration, *ib.*; registration of midwives, a protest, 1223

Leeward Islands Branch, annual meeting of, 603; president's address, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*; officers and council, *ib.*

Londonderry and West of Ireland Branch, officers, etc., of, 1327

Metropolitan Counties Branch, suppression of unqualified practice, 1219; annual meeting of, 1430

Metropolitan Counties Branch, Herts District, cases, 68; diagnosis and treatment of mammary cancer, *ib.*; conformation of minutes, 715; communications, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*; vote of thanks, *ib.*

Metropolitan Counties Branch, North London District, types of idiocy and imbecility, 548; votes of thanks, *ib.*

Midland Branch, registration of midwives, 1384; annual meeting of, 1385; officers and council, *ib.*; amendment of Medical Acts, *ib.*; payment of railway fares of representatives on Parliamentary Bills Committee, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; the Association and the suppression of unqualified practice, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; luncheon and dinner, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*

North of England Branch, communications, 1049; dinner, *ib.*

North of Ireland Branch, conformation of minutes, 268, 1104; death of Dr. McGuckin, 268; communications, 268, 1104; new members, 268, 1104; Midwives' Registration Association, 1104

North Wales Branch, luncheon, 881; new members, *ib.*; treasurer's report, *ib.*; registration of midwives, *ib.*; papers, *ib.*

Northern Counties of Scotland Branch, election of office bearers, 1387; jubilee of Dr. Vass, *ib.*; excursion, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*; next meeting, *ib.*

Oxford and District Branch, conformation of minutes, 268, 992; disease of middle ear, 268; new members, 268, 992; medical associations, 268; registration of midwives, *ib.*; communications, 992

Perthshire Branch, the registration of midwives, 1270; conformation of minutes, 1274; the late Dr. W. S. Irvine, *ib.*; new member, *ib.*; representative of, on Council and Parliamentary Bills Committee, *ib.*; amendment of Medical Act, *ib.*; payment of railway fares of representatives on Parliamentary Bills Committee, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*

Shropshire and Mid-Wales Branch, new members, 991;

deceased members, *ib.*; registration of midwives, *ib.*; communications, 992

ASSOCIATION, BRITISH MEDICAL, South-Eastern Branch, registration of midwives, 1384; jubilee meeting of, 1386; luncheon, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; report of council, *ib.*; financial report, *ib.*; officers and council, *ib.*; votes of thanks, *ib.*; next annual meeting, *ib.*; grants of money, *ib.*; recommendations to increase the disciplinary powers of the Association Council, 1386, 1390

South-Eastern Branch, East Kent District, the chairman for next meeting, 602; Branch representatives on Council, *ib.*; the Association and the suppression of irregular practice, *ib.*; Medical Sickness, Annuity Society, etc., *ib.*; communications, 602, 1272; registration of midwives, 1271; annual meeting of, 1272; conformation of minutes, *ib.*; accounts, *ib.*; election of honorary secretary, *ib.*; meetings for 1894-5, *ib.*; case, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*; the suppression of unqualified practice, 1277

South-Eastern Branch, West Kent District, conformation of minutes, 769, 1437; next meeting, 769, 1437; new member, 769; communications, 769, 1437; dinner, 769, 1437; re-election of honorary secretary, 1437

South-Eastern Branch, East Sussex District, registration of midwives, 1384; September meeting, 1387; communications, *ib.*

South-Eastern Branch, East and West Sussex Districts, conjoint meeting of, 1049; conformation of minutes, *ib.*; election of honorary secretary, *ib.*; typhoid fever at Worthing, *ib.*; vote of thanks, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*

South-Eastern (of Ireland) Branch, election of officers, 379; membership of Branch, *ib.*

South Midland Branch, registration of midwives, 1436; conjoint meeting with Cambridgeshire and Huntingdonshire Branch, 1437; president's address, *ib.*; treatment of hernia, *ib.*; treatment of acute febrile disease, *ib.*; treatment of wounds, *ib.*; arrest of hemorrhage in hemophilia, *ib.*; thrombosis of lateral sinus, 1436; chronic mastitis, *ib.*; vote of thanks, *ib.*; place of meeting, *ib.*; officers and council, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*

South Wales and Monmouthshire Branch, new members, 992; communications, *ib.*; midwives registration, *ib.*; the Welsh divorce case, *ib.*

South Western Branch, new members, 432; representative of the Branch at the International Medical Congress, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*

Southern Branch, annual meeting of, 1273; election of officers and council, *ib.*; next annual meeting, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; payment of railway fares of representatives on Parliamentary Bills Committee, 1274; communications, *ib.*; abuses in medical practice, *ib.*; visit to docks, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*; next year's meeting, *ib.*

South Eastern Branch, Isle of Wight District, annual meeting of, 1104; election of officers, *ib.*; president's address, *ib.*; case of viper bite, *ib.*

South Eastern Branch, South-East Hants District, registration of midwives, 1271; election of president, 1274; new members, *ib.*; donation, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*

Staffordshire Branch, cases and specimens, 19, 655, 1387; new members, 40, 655; papers, 655, 1387; registration of midwives, 1384; amendment of the Medical Acts, 1387

Stirling, Kinross, and Clackmannan Branch, conjoint meeting with Edinburgh and Border Counties Branches, 379; minutes, 715; by-laws of the Branch, *ib.*; new members, *ib.*; reminiscences of medical practice, *ib.*; vote of thanks, 716; dinner, *ib.*

Sydney and New South Wales Branch, conformation of minutes, 323, 881, 1388, 1439; new members, 323, 881, 1388, 1439; communications, 323, 1388; the library, 323; president's address, 881, 1388; statement of accounts, 881; election of officers, *ib.*; resolution, *ib.*; proposed medical dinner, 1388; the annual meeting, *ib.*; aims and policy of the Branch, 1388, 1439; medical advertising, 1439; proposed alteration of rules, *ib.*

West Somerset Branch, conformation of minutes, 824; new

member, *ib.*; the late Dr. Currie, *ib.*; pathological museum, *ib.*; Midwives' Registration Association, *ib.*; by-laws, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*

ASSOCIATION, BRITISH MEDICAL, Worcester-shire and Herefordshire Branch, annual meeting, 1439; election of president, *ib.*; communications, *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*

Association, British Medical Temperance, award of prizes of, 1163

Church Sanitary, meeting of, 32; papers read at meeting of, 228

of Fellows of the Royal College of Surgeons, meeting of committee of, 687, 888, 1217, 1314, 1371; annual meeting of, 1435

Fortarshire Medical, meeting of, 113

French Medical, annual meeting of, 700

French Medical Press, annual dinner of, 1165

German of Scientists and Medical Men, preparation for annual meeting of, 1348

des Internes, annual meeting of, 740

Irish Medical, annual meeting of, 1263

Irish Medical Schools' and Graduates', annual meeting and dinner of, 641; the chairmanship of council of, 1146; annual provincial dinner of, 1285

Life Assurance Medical Officers', first general meeting of, 312

London Clerks', the medical officers of, 687

London Sanitary Protection, annual report of, 666

Manchester Medico-Ethical, report of committee of, 281

Manchester and Salford Sanitary, report of, 777

Medical, Gironde, annual meeting of, 1440

Medico - Psychological of Great Britain and Ireland, adjourned annual meeting of, 558; annual meeting of, 1321, 1434

Metropolitan Provident Medical, summary of work of, 1148; annual meeting of, 1315

Midwives' Registration, circular letter as to objects of, 148; Dr. Rentoul on the, 272; scheme of for the registration of midwives, 1270; opinions of the Branches of the British Medical Association on, *ib.*

Police Surgeons', formation of, 1149

Royal British Nurses and Mrs. Longshore Potts, 159, 218

St. John Ambulance, the ambulance certificates of, 106; and its unpaid doctors, *ib.*; the work of, 225; at Redruth, 388; new honorary associates and honorary serving brothers of, 1397

Scottish for the Medical Education of Women, annual meeting of, 281

Associations, Prussian Medical, formation of joint sub-committee of, 1303

Associazione Freniatria Italiana, annual meeting of, 748

Asthma, renal venesection in, instant relief, uric acid in the serum, 1242; treatment of, 1399

Asylum, City and County of Bristol, annual report, 1004

City of London Lunatic, admission of paying patients to, 90

Cork District Lunatic, annual report of, 499

Essex County Lunatic, small-pox at, 536

Hanwell, improvements at, 1004

Richmond Lunatic, overcrowding of, 24

Royal, James Murray's, Perth, annual report of, 144

Waterford District Lunatic, annual report of, 720

Whittingham, the superintendentship of, 373

Asylums, the superintendents of, 373; assistant medical officers, 436, 491, 552, 605, 656, 718, 783, 827, 884, 940, 1051, 1107, 1155, 1204, 1224, 1276; lunatic nomenclature of, 703; attendants at, 949; long residence in, 952

Ataxia, spinal, 915

Athens, rabies at, 1200

Atkins, Mr. J. F., cerebellar tumour, failure of respiration, 681

Atkinson, Dr. J. M., compound depressed fracture of frontal bone, wounds of urethra and scrotum, recovery, 1359



- Atkinson, Mr. T. R., should two ligatures be placed on the cord? 187; presentation to, 683  
Atlas of Electric Cystoscopy, Dr. E. Burckhardt and Mr. E. H. Fenwick, *rev.*, 194; of Head Sections, Dr. W. Macewen, *rev.*, 303; der pathologischen Histologie des Nervensystems, Professors v. Babes and P. Blocq, *rev.*, 1026; of Clinical Medicine, Dr. B. Bramwell, *rev.*, 1026; of Diseases of the Skin, Dr. H. R. Crocker, *rev.*, 1245  
Athill, Dr. L., oil vaginal hysterectomy, 1120  
Auditory meatus, removal of an exostosis of by combined drilling and traction, 1302  
Auld, Dr. A. G., preliminary report on the suprarenal gland and the causation of Addison's disease, 1017  
Aust-Lawrence, Dr. A. E., case of complete inversion of the uterus caused by a fibroma in the fundus, spontaneous reinversion on removal of the tumour, 1243  
Australia, the prevalence and distribution of vesical calculus in, 153  
Austria, medical studies in, 1448  
Automatic writing, 37, 74, 104, 140, 198, 339  
Auvard, Dr. A., *Traité Pratique de Gynécologie*, *rev.*, 1383; *Traité Pratique d'Accouchements*, *rev.*, 1417  
Axis tractor, a, 1367 (1447)
- B.  
Baber, Dr. J., death of, 1161  
Babes, Dr. V., biographical sketch of, 696; the position of the State in respect to modern bacteriological research, 733; entero-hepatitis suppurativa, 743; Atlas der pathologischen Histologie des Nervensystems, *rev.*, 1026  
Babies, treatment of diphtheria in, 1107  
Baccelli, Professor G., biographical sketch of, 695  
Bacilli on playing cards, 269  
— of tubercle in house dust, 62  
Bacillus of influenza, action of antiseptics on, 375, 552  
— of tubercle, clinical observations on, 461  
— typhoid, demonstration of in drinking water by Parlett's method, 961  
Bacteria, staining of flagella of, 908; action of light on, 986  
Bacteriology, the position of the State in respect to modern research in, 733; a medical outlook, 820; Practical, an Introduction to Dr. W. Migula, *rev.*, 1034  
Bäumler, Professor C. G. H., sublimed sulphur as a local application in diphtheria, 459  
Baginsky, Professor, the kidneys in diphtheria, 744; Kaiser and Kaiserin Friedrich Children's Hospital in Berlin, 797  
Baillon, Mr. F. J., case of foreign body in the trachea, tracheotomy, and successful removal, 1414  
Bailey, Dr. S. H., death of, 48  
Baines, Mr. J. A., the census of India, 1891, 474  
Bakehouses of London, 372, 777, 1203; the licensing of, 557; use of underground premises as, 777; insanitary, 817, 987; sanitation in, 1339  
Baker, Mr. J. W., is cancer contagious? 1358  
— Mr. S. J., incontinence of urine, 783  
Baldy, Dr. J. M., *An American Textbook on Gynecology*, *rev.*, 1363  
Balfour, Mr. A. J., on "spooks," 263  
Ballance, Mr. C. A., two cases of wiring for fractured patella, 191  
Baltimore, types of malarial fever seen in, 854  
Bamborough Castle, proposed utilisation of as convalescent home, 768  
Banbridge, the report of the medical officer of, 446  
Sands, intestinal obstruction due to, 117, 758, 1078, 1123  
Bantock, Dr. G., treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy, 556  
Barker, Mr. A. E. J., some cases of acute intussusception in children, 345  
Barling, Mr. A. S., radical cure of hernia by Kocher's method, 857; the treatment of delirium tremens, 1231  
— Mr. H. G., peritoneal hæmorrhagic cyst, 20; treatment of peritonitis by drainage, 122; the comparative safety of suprapubic lithotomy, of lateral lithotomy and of litholapaxy in young males, 958; surgical statistics, 1149  
Barlow, Mr. J., registration of death without medical certificate, 1168  
Barnes, Surgeon-Major H. J., treatment of chyluria, 1167  
Barnesley, typhoid fever in, 610  
Barnstable and compulsory notification, 1284, 1338  
Barnwood House Hospital for the Insane, Gloucester, annual report of, 1004  
Barrack schools, 928, 1144  
Barry, Bishop. *See* Bishop
- Bartholow, Dr. R., *A Practical Treatise on Materia Medica and Therapeutics*, *rev.*, 528  
Bartlett, Mr. B. P., epidemic jaundice, 407, 660  
Barton, Dr. J. A., death of, 143  
— Dr. J. K., obituary notice of, 612  
Barwell, Mr. R., a mode of making extension in fracture of the femur, 967  
Basin, a new cheap and effective for mounting and embedding in plaster-of-paris specimen dissections of the human body, 1366  
Baskett, Mr. B., chronic hydrocephalus, drainage, temporary improvement, 63  
Bastian, Dr. H. C., diphtheria and defective drainage, 42  
Bateman, Dr. A. G., the Medical Defence Union, 43, 828; amendment of Medical Acts, 107  
Bath, cold, in typhoid fever, the technique of, 127  
Bathers, a word in season to, 1430  
Baths, water supply to, 948  
Batten, Dr. G. B., comb for the ova of pediculi, 973  
Battle, Mr. W. H., extradural hæmorrhage, 577; traumatic rupture of the common bile duct, 752; traumatic subcutaneous rupture of intestine, 967; rupture of the liver, 1024  
Bau (Der) des Menschen als Zeugnis für seine Vergangenheit, Dr. R. Wiedersheim, *rev.*, 194  
Bauzen, Dr. J., icterus neonatorum, 797  
Beadles, Mr. C., multiple new formations, 302; the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524; histological changes of the breast associated with carcinoma, 635; disease of sweat glands, 967  
Beatley, Dr. W. C., ileo-caecal intussusception in a child aged 11 months, cure after laparotomy, 911; double empyema, cure after incision and drainage, 912  
Beatty, v. Cullingworth, 829  
— Miss A. J., the Harness case, 383  
— Surgeon H. B., second attacks of scarlet fever, 575  
Beck, Mr. M., the memorial to, 480  
Becker, Mr. J., a method for obtaining hæmin crystals from bloodstains mixed with rust, 351; the position of a human body burnt but not completely destroyed by fire, 1297  
Beddoes, Dr. T. P., fee for pauper lunacy certificates, 1003  
Bedstead, the Cambridge, 1031  
Beef-powder, home-made and how to prepare it, 1250  
Beer, in jaundice, 283; pure, 918  
Behandlung weiblicher Geschlechtskrankheiten, Herr Thure Brandt, *rev.*, 131; der tuberculösen Lungenschwindsucht, Dr. A. v. Székely, *rev.*, 1308  
Behar, tree-marking in, 1322  
Behnke, Mrs. Emil, stammering, 504  
— Dr. E., Stammering, its Nature and Treatment, *rev.*, 639  
Beiträge zur Lehre von Stoffwechsel des gesunden und kranken Menschen, Dr. C. v. Noorden, *rev.*, 1030  
Belfast, drainage of the barracks at, 831  
Belgium, notification of infectious disease in, 499  
Bell, Mr. E., vivisection of dead animals, 218, 271  
Belladonna and epilepsy, 784, 896; poultice, impermeable, 918  
Benedikt, Professor M., Hypnotismus und Suggestion, *rev.*, 249, 311  
Bennett, Dr. A. H., out-patient hospital abuse, 604  
Bentley, Dr. A. J. M., *Beri-beri*, *rev.*, 303  
— Mr. R., obituary notice of, 47  
Bequests, 24, 168, 236, 241, 266, 299, 499, 664, 893, 949, 1033, 1047, 1255, 1257, 1396, 1427  
Beri-beri, Dr. A. J. M. Bentley, *rev.*, 303; in the Spanish colonies, 650; Researches Concerning its Nature and Cause and the Means of its Arrest, Drs. C. A. Pekelharing and C. Winkler, *rev.*, 863  
Berlin, special correspondence from, 41, 378, 1105, 1222, 1275, 1440; inquiry into the condition of the Charité Hospital at, 41; the medical faculty of, 458; jubilee of the Berlin Obstetrical and Gynecological Society, 1105; jubilee of Professor H. Munk, *ib.*; a dietetic experiment, *ib.*; the hygienic topography of garrison towns, 1222; appointment of prosecutor at the Urban Hospital of, 1275; the title of professor, 1440; the Pathological Institute, *ib.*  
Bermuda, honours to the medical staff in, 494  
Berry, Mr. J., dilatation and rupture of the sigmoid flexure, 301; multiple loose bodies from the knee-joint, 1081  
— Mr. J. B., removal of a bristle from the metatarsophalangeal joint of the great toe, 911  
— Mr. W., horse shoeing, 1007; the education of workhouse children, 1050
- Besnier, Dr. E., decoration of, 1304  
Bethnal Green, the workhouse of, 165  
Bevan, Dr. D., *A Manual of Practical Hygiene*, *rev.*, 639  
Bexley Heath Considered with Regard to Health, Mr. O. Sunderland, *rev.*, 1195  
Bhang, opium or alcohol? 320  
Biddle, Mr. D., dual notification and the death-rate, 1086, 1252, 1276  
Biggs, Mr. J. T., evidence of before the Royal Commission on Vaccination, 544  
Bile duct, common traumatic rupture of the, 752; common papilloma of the, 1081  
— ducts and gall bladder, surgery of, 901  
Bill, the Local Government and the constitution of the metropolitan sanitary districts, 142  
— the Local Government (Scotland) 1894; proposed scheme, etc., of, 141; conference at Edinburgh on, 251; remarks on, 1038, 1145  
— London Streets and Buildings, abstract of clauses of, 498  
— the Merchant Ship, and insecurity of life at sea, 253  
— Officers of Poor-Law Unions in Ireland, Superannuation, petition from Dublin Branch, *re*, 1257  
Billroth, Dr. T., obituary notice of, 335; the funeral of, 370; as an operator, 376; The Care of the Sick, *rev.*, 1083  
Bills, doctors', 951  
Biology and chemistry, study of in public schools, 817; works on, 1399  
Birdwood, Sir G., unveiling of bust of, 721  
Birmingham, proposed out-patient scheme at, 254; insanitary areas in, 948; hospital collection at, 1228; provident dispensaries at, 1323  
Birt, Surgeon-Captain C., award prize and gold medal of Alexander Memorial Fund, 984  
Birthday honours, 1216  
Biscuits, germ white, 919; starchless "Ne Far" meal, 973; distasteful, 1418  
Bishop Barry on antivivisection, 43, 219; and Miss Cobbe, 151; and the *Nine Circles*, 159  
Bishop Stortford, nursing, etc., at the workhouse of, 1367, 1378  
Bizzozero, Professor G., the growth and regeneration of the organism, 728  
Black, Dr. D. C., treatment of epilepsy, 13  
— Dr. W. G., sickness and mortality in the mercantile marine, 834  
— Forest, sanatoria in the, 667  
Blackheath, scarlet fever at, 1039  
Blackwood, Dr. W., great fecundity, 51  
Bladder, ruptured sacculus of following stricture, 17; female, removal of tumours of the, 127; removal of foreign body from the, 191; cast of the mucous membrane of the, *ib.*; undetected stone in the, 321, 447; resection of for recurrent epithelioma, 752; an anomalous case of stone in the in a female, 791; squamous-celled carcinoma of the, 853; sarcoma of, 916; cancer of the prostate complicated with spasmodic contraction of the, 1241  
Blake, Mr. C., influence of temperature on pharmaceutical preparations, 615  
Blaud's tabloids (sugar-coated), 583  
Blennorrhagic process, the, 746  
Blennorrhoe (Die) der Sexualorgane und ihre Complicationen, Dr. E. Finger, *rev.*, 194  
Blind, On the Instructions and Amusements of the, Dr. Guillié, *rev.*, 1308  
Blocq, Dr. P., Atlas der pathologischen Histologie des Nervensystems, *rev.*, 1026  
Blood, improvements in determining the coagulability of, 237; in defibrinated, intravenous transfusion of, 742; a simple means of preventing entrance of into the trachea in operations on the mouth, 964  
— Respiration (Catechism Series), *rev.*, 972  
— stains mixed with rust, a new method of obtaining hæmin crystals from, 351  
Bloomfield, Lady. *See* Lady  
Bloxham v. Collicie, 1276, 1333; v. Medical Defence Union, 494, 779  
Blyth, Mr. A. W., tenure of office of medical officers of health, 67; presentation to, 1372  
Board, Local Government, the new president of, 593; the general inspectors of the, 770, 884, 939, 995, 1050; and the district schools, 1266  
— Local Government for Scotland, composition of, 1314, 1317  
— of Lunacy in Scotland, the chairmanship of, 983  
— Metropolitan Asylums, the statistics of, 27; diphtheria in the hospitals of, 105; fever patients in the hospitals of, 334; the small-pox hospitals of, 594; and Tooting Bec, 611; the medical statistics of, 1155; accommodation for scarlet fever patients, 1263; and the London County Council, 1318  
— of Trade, the, and the eyesight of railway servants, 873  
"Boarding-out," quarantine by, 206

- Boards of guardians and sanitary authorities, the relations of, 442  
 — parochial, liability of for fees, 1208  
 Bodilly, Dr. R. T. H., unusual position of placenta in twin pregnancy, 340; puerperal erythema simulating scarlet fever, 574; thyroidin in teething eczema, 724  
 Body, human, the position of burnt but not completely destroyed by fire, 1297  
 Bolton, Mr. G., death of, 276  
 Bond, qualified assistants and the sanctity of a, 1157, 1343  
 Bond, Dr. F. T., heating by gas, 107  
 Dr. W. A., puerperal septicæmia, 434  
 Bonds and contracts in restraint of practice, 889  
 Bone, large piece of impacted in the larynx, 573; frontal compound depressed fracture of, 1359  
 — marrow in the treatment of pernicious anemia, 1172  
 Bones, effect of the Lee-Metford bullet on, 494, 1185  
 Bonnet, Dr. S., *Traité Pratique de Gynécologie*, rev., 918  
 Bonome, Professor, on glanders, 742  
 Boobyer, Dr., small-pox, 1244  
 Book, small-pox spread by a, 1396  
 Boot, the soldier's, 1375  
 Booth, Mr. C., the aged poor in England and Wales, 1317  
 Borelli, Professor, on rickets, 745  
 Boston, special correspondence from, 549; cessation of the epidemic of small-pox, *ib.*; no Medical Act in Massachusetts, *ib.*; the Harvard medical school, *ib.*; progress of the cremation movement, *ib.*; antiseptic midwifery at the lying-in hospital, *ib.*  
 "Botanic Dr." conviction of a, 331  
 Bottle, improved poison, 919; novel poison, 973  
 Bouchard, Professor, the part played by nervous debility in the production of fever, 791  
 Bougie, gum elastic, retention of in uterus for more than eleven months, 1187  
 Boulton, Dr. P., infant feeding, 187  
 Boulogne, sanitary exhibition at, 1266  
 Bourdin, the injuries to, 420  
 Bourne's Handy Assurance Directory, Mr. W. Schooling, rev., 583  
 Bowel, gangrenous, enterectomy for, 235; large intra-abdominal abscess caused by perforation of by foreign body, 241; constriction of after appendicitis, intestinal obstruction due to, 967  
 Bowels, albuminuric ulceration of the, 65  
 Bowers, Mr. E. D., the choice of an anæsthetic in operations for the removal of post-adenoid growths, 996  
 Bowly, Mr. A. A., pathology of rodent ulcer, 409, 526  
 Boxall, Dr. R., a new order of midwifery practitioners, 332, 491; registration of midwives, 883, 995; habitual abortion, 1024; pigmentation of cicatrix after ovariectomy performed during pregnancy, 1244; adenoma of the body of the uterus, *ib.*  
 Boyce, Dr. R., the alleged increased of cancer, 219; the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524  
 Boyd, Dr. J. W., death of, 143  
 — Mr. S., the proposed teaching university for London, 325; a tonsillotomy, 1311  
 Boys, our, and our quacks, 594; sleeplessness in, 615  
 Bradford, the small-pox hospital at, 167; small-pox and vaccination at, 1099  
 Bradshaw, Dr. T. R., affections of the right side of the heart, 1236  
 Bradshaw's Dictionary of Bathing Places and Climatic Health Resorts, rev., 1030  
 Brain, the value of the movements of the head and eyes in localisation of diseases of, 52; hypodermic injections of extract of in mental diseases, 240; gumma of, 409; abscess of, 577; the left hemisphere of from a case of aphasia, 635; Human, the Microscopical Examination of, Dr. E. Goodall, rev., 751; human, a modified Golgi's method for the study of, 909; chlorosis and amenorrhœa, with symptoms of disease of, 1073, 1354; and Spinal Cord, Pyogenic Infective Diseases of the, Dr. W. Macewen, rev., 1193  
 — Power (Encephalasthenia) on Failure of, Dr. J. Althaus, rev., 1365  
 Braithwaite, Dr. J., acute ante flexion of the uterus in the later months of pregnancy, 59; on the mode of performing the operation of ventrofixation of the uterus or hysteropexy in cases of intractable retroflexion, 1073; a case of adenoma of the portio vaginalis uteri forming a depressed sore or ulcer, 1306  
 Bramwell, Dr. B., a case of sporadic cretinism, 6; acromegaly in a giantess, 21; cancer of the spleen, 192; psoriasis treated by thyroid extract, 617; two cases of lupus treated by thyroid extract, 786; Atlas of Clinical Medicine, rev., 1026  
 Branch, Dr. W. J., tumour of lower jaw, 1243  
 Brander, Dr. T. L., large fibro-lipoma, 574  
 Brandt, Thure, *Behandlung weiblicher Geschlechtskrankheiten*, rev., 131  
 Brandy, pure grape, 1196  
 Braye, Mr. J., women sanitary inspectors, 334  
 Brazil, Dr., small white kidney, 22  
 Bread, germ, white, 919; in Aberdeenshire, 1379; new, the hygienic advantages of, 1381  
 Breast, carcinoma of with myeloids, 62; diagnosis and treatment of cancer of, 68; treatment of cancer of the, 289, 493; cancer of marrow infection, 522; histological changes of the associated with carcinoma, 635  
 Breathing, the art of, 538  
 Brentwood Schools. See Hackney  
 Brewis, Dr. N. T., *Outlines of Gynecological Diagnosis*, rev., 1131  
 Bridge v. Gibson, 1338  
 Brighton Life Table (The), Dr. A. Newsholme, rev., 70; out-patients at, 685; proposed new infectious hospital for, 1396  
 Bright's disease. See Disease  
 Brisbane, Stock institute to be established at, 499  
 Brissaud, Dr. E., *Histoire des Expressions Populaires Relatives à l'Anatomie, à la Physiologie et à la Médecine*, rev., 1194  
 Bristle, removal of from the metatarsophalangeal joint of the great toe, 911  
 Bristol, programme of meeting at, 1209, 1219  
 Bristow, Dr. H. C., sequel to a case of general paralysis of the insane at puberty, 1125  
 — Mr. L. S., *Legal Handbook for the use of Hospital Authorities*, rev., 1363  
 Britain (Greater), the leper in, 1269  
 Brixton, typhoid fever at, 1338  
 Broadbent, Sir W., the health of, 480, 535  
 Broncho-pneumonia simulating acute pulmonary tuberculosis, 58, 171  
 Bronchus, carcinoma of the, 1081  
 Bronner, Dr. H., mobilisation and massage in simple fracture, 916  
 Brook, Dr. W. F., the Soden Fund, 116; the Griffiths fund, 1052, 1115, 1231, 1287, 1342, 1448  
 Brooke, Dr. H. A. G., thyroid feeding in psoriasis, 68  
 Brown, Mr. F. L. H., public medical service, Coventry, 1392  
 — Dr. G., changes in the circulation produced by pyrexia, 21  
 — Dr. J., uncertifiable patients, 941  
 Browne, Mr. L., acute inflammation of the antrum of Highmore after influenza, 681  
 Brown-Séquard, Dr., death of, 776  
 Bruce, Dr. A., two cases of nodose periarteritis of syphilitic origin, 1025  
 — Inspector-General H. A., obituary notice of, 1111  
 — Dr. W., hospital abuse and the cheap doctor, 1332  
 Bruit, a diastolic, at the apex in the heart disease of children, 906  
 Bruno, homonymous hemianopsia, 857  
 Bryan, Mr. B., vivisection of dead animals, 271  
 — Mr. J. M., obituary notice of, 833  
 Bryant, Mr. T., intussusception of the large intestine due to a papillomatous growth, 353; extreme prolapse of the female urethra in a child, 1021  
 Bryett, Dr. T., appointed medical officer of health for Shoreditch, 927  
 Buchanan, Sir G., testimonial to, 1205  
 — Professor G., radical cure of hernia and other cases, 573  
 Bucknill, Dr., proposed recognition of services of as founder of the volunteer movement, 984  
 — Dr. J. C., lunacy law, 273  
 Buckoll, Mr. E. C., death of, 276  
 Buda-Pesth, establishment of bacteriological laboratory at, 369; Laryngological and Otolological Society at, 444  
 Budget, the and alcohol, 871, 875  
 Bullar, Mr. J. F., on lay practice, 472  
 Bullen, Mr. F. St. J., assistant medical officers in asylums, 884  
 Bullet, Lee-Metford, effect of on the bones, 494, 1185  
 — wound, self inflicted of the head, 69  
 Bulletins, medical, 26  
 Burckhardt, Dr. E., Atlas of Electric Cystoscopy, rev., 194  
 Burdett's Hospital and Charities Annual, rev., 863  
 Burial at the cross roads, 316  
 Burkett, Dr. J. C. S., unfounded charge against, 777  
 Burmah, vaccination in, 499  
 Burnett, Dr. C. H., *System of Diseases of the Ear, Nose, and Throat*, rev., 583  
 Butcher, Martin van, the advertisement of, 1343  
 Burton-Fanning, Mr. F. W., a case of chlorosis and amenorrhœa with symptoms of brain disease, 1354  
 Butcher, Dr. A. H., the cure of housemaid's knee, 340; intestinal obstruction due to band, 1078  
 Butler-Smythe, Mr. A. C., removal of a rapidly growing ovarian tumour in a patient who had recently been confined, and on whom ovariectomy had been performed previously, 1303  
 Butlin, Mr. H. T., forty-six cases of removal of one-half or the whole of the tongue with one fatal result, 785  
 Butschli, Professor O., *Investigations on Microscopic Forms and on Protoplasm*, rev., 1027  
 Butter, workhouse, 1227  
 Buxton, opening of a new pump room at, 1326  
 Buxton, Dr. D. W., *Anæsthetics, their Uses and Administration*, rev., 248  
 Byrrh tonic wine, 1085  
 By-ways of infection, 986  
 Cabbala, the medical, 155  
 Cactina, 667  
 Cade, Mr. T. C., obituary notice of, 1161  
 Caddy, Mr. D. J., cure of intussusception by rectal injection, 126  
 Cacotomy, intestinal obstruction treated by, 968  
 Cæcum, dilated, 916  
 Caen, the university festival at, 1222, 1428  
 Casarean section, in Spain, 721; in Argentina, 781; (Porro) for intra- and extruterine foetation at full term, 1019; for obstructed labour from malignant disease of the cervix uteri, 1021; in a lioness, 1344  
 Caiger, Dr., coexistence of infectious diseases, 969  
 Caird, Dr. F. M., valvular opening in abdominal wall, 21  
 Caisson disease. See Disease  
 Calculi, ureteral, 68; removal of in biliary colic, 752  
 Calculus, urethral, 68; vesical, the prevalence and distribution of in Australia, 153; suprapubic sounding for, 860; total suppression of urine due to, 960  
 Calcutta, the water supply and the health of, 596; M. Haffkine's method at, 1267, 1319, 1430  
 California, Southern, the climate of, 156; the treatment of inebriety in, 1165  
 Callan, Dr., burnt to death, 1029  
 Calvaria, sclerosis of, 409  
 Calvert, Dr. J. T., the opium question, 1224  
 — Dr. W. H., epidemic jaundice, 239, 553, 774, 895  
 Camberwell Union, epidemics at the school of, 1265  
 Campbell, Mr. C., treatment of leucocythæmia, 463; midwives' registration, 942, 1052, 1223  
 — Dr. D., united in death, 1008  
 — Mr. J., removal of tumours of the female bladder, 127  
 Camera, the Frena, 196  
 Cameron, Dr. J. S., the Infectious Diseases (Notification) Act, 607  
 — Dr. J., belladonna and epilepsy, 784  
 — Dr. M., dinner to, 444  
 Canal, Regent's, sanitary condition of, 387  
 Canalboat population, the, 165  
 Cancer, mammary, diagnosis and treatment of, 68; structure of, 69; the question of the increase of, 161, 219, 271, 382, 430; of the spleen, 192; of the breast, treatment of, 289, 493; of the rectum, Porro's operation for, 299; of breast, marrow infection, 522; discussion on at Rome, 743; Sarcoma and other Morbid Growths Considered in Relation to the Sporo-zoa, Mr. J. J. Clarke, rev., 804; the etiology of, 851; Rodent, the Healing of by Electricity, Dr. J. J. Parsons, rev., 864; and senility, 884; of the cervix uteri, early diagnosis of, 1009, 1116, 1343; of the colon and its treatment, 1024; and cancerous diseases, the Morton lecture on, 1065; and its Complications, Dr. C. E. Jennings, rev., 1129; is it contagious? 1158, 1358; of the prostate complicated with spasmodic contraction of the bladder, 1241; the heredity of, 1358; and vaccination, 1400  
 — houses and their victims, 1240, 1392  
 Cancers and the Cancer Process, A Treatise, Practical and Theoretic on, Dr. H. Snow, rev., 637  
 Candidates, appointments and the compensation of, 616

- Candles, improved sulphur fumigating, 71  
Cannes, an English fever hospital at, 781  
Cantharidin in lupus, 1275  
Cap Martin, remarks on, 52  
Carbolic acid, poisoning by, 34, 439, 929, 1165;  
and the Pharmacy Acts, 427; and chloroform,  
the use of a combination of in enteric fever,  
906, 1007  
Carbon dioxide, the treatment of intussuscep-  
tion by the generation of within the bowel,  
800  
Carbonic oxide, poisoning by, 483  
Carcinoma of breast with myeloids, 62; histo-  
logical changes of the breast associated with,  
635; the etiology of, 771; squamous-celled, of  
bladder, 858; of the neck, 968; primary of  
lung, 967; of the bronchus, 1081  
Cardiac. *See* Heart  
Cardiff, ophthalmia at the workhouse infirmary  
of, 225; the port sanitary authority of, and  
cholera expenses, 261; proposed crematorium  
at, 665  
Cards, playing, bacilli in, 269  
Carle, Professor, treatment of the pedicle in  
myomectomy, 856  
Carless, Mr., operation for ectopia vesicæ, 191  
Carline, Dr., trephining for traumatic epilepsy,  
408  
Carlyon, Dr. T. B., recurrence or relapse, 391  
Carnall, Mr. E., hospital abuse, 1333  
Carnot, President, the death and post-mortem  
examination of, 1440  
Carotid, common, successful ligature of for  
secondary hæmorrhage, 1301  
Carpenter, Dr. G., Congenital Affections of the  
Heart, *rev.*, 1309  
Carr, Dr. J. W., the starting points of tubercu-  
lous disease in children, 1022  
— Dr. T., presentation to, 557  
Carré, Mr. L. J. G., Matthew Baillie's pill, 724  
Carriage and horse-keep, cost of, 1167  
Carruthers, Dr. W. H., forcible feeding of the  
insane, 724  
Carte, Surgeon-Captain F. L., death of, 831; ob-  
ituary notice of, 889  
Carter, Dr. W., the General Medical Council  
and the registration of midwives, 1223  
Carwardine, Mr. T., a urinary saccharometer,  
1418  
Cascara jelly, 1249  
— *sagrada*, diuretic action of, 171  
Casebooks, physicians', what becomes of? 96  
Caselli, Dr., temporary laminectomy in lesions  
of the spinal cord, 857  
Casey, Dr. E., maternal small-pox, infection of  
infant after birth, 239; a case of oyster poison,  
463  
Castleisland, outbreak of fever at, 948  
Castration in enlargement of the prostate, 1052,  
1363  
Casts, urinary, the correction and preservation  
of, 969, 1356  
Cat, hydrophobia from the bite of a, 280  
Catalepsy, case of, 893  
Catarrh, chronic nasal, teucurium in, 1115  
Catechism, Series: Blood Respiration, *rev.*, 972  
Caterham, outbreak of typhoid fever at the  
barracks at, 542  
Cathcart, Mr. C. W., Descriptive Catalogue of  
the Anatomical and Pathological Specimens  
in the Museum of the Royal College of Sur-  
geons of Edinburgh, *rev.*, 470  
Catheter, passage of in prostatic disease, 392,  
560, 616, 723, 840, 895  
Catheters, the sterilisation of, 1342, 1399; septic,  
1413  
Cattle, Dr. C. H., structure of cancer, 69; on the  
etiology of cancer, 851  
Cattle, tubercle and encysted worms in, 595  
Cauter, Dr. C., Myxédème et Goitre Exophthal-  
mique, *rev.*, 1365  
Caw, Dr. M., cardiac failure in influenza, 1074  
Cayley, Dr. H., tropical abscess of the liver, 774  
— Dr. W., excision in typhoid perforation,  
578  
Cazin, Professor, on cancer, 743  
Cells of endogenous origin, 17  
Celluloid facepieces and masks, 471  
Census, figures from the, 75  
Centenarian, a, 280; a medical, 1165  
Cerebellum, cysts of the, 393; tumour of, failure  
of respiration, 681; degenerations following  
lesions of the, 554  
Cerebral. *See* Brain  
Certificate, an irregular vaccination, 163; of  
death, obligations of medical practitioners as  
to, 279  
Certificates, inquisitorial insurance, 338; medi-  
cal of the cause of death, registrars and, 338;  
of sanitary inspectors, 429; notification in  
London, 443; lunacy and workhouse medical  
officers, 686; medical, Sheriff Cowan on, 783;  
medical and school attendance, 836, 951;  
sworn, 875; medical for retention of lunatics  
in workhouses, 892; special in pauper prac-  
tice, *ib.*; sanitary for newly-built houses, 1042;  
medical, a judge on, 1232  
Chair bedstead (*invalid*), 639; consulting room,  
1342, 1447  
Chamberland, M., the results of vaccinations  
against anthrax and swine erysipelas, 874  
Champagne (*brut*), 131  
Chapman, Dr. C. W., the Sir Andrew Clark me-  
morial, 159; cancer houses and their victims,  
1302  
— Dr. P. M., the physics of the circula-  
tion, 511, 566, 629  
Charcot, M., proposed memorial to, 94, 147, 158,  
1427  
Charcot's disease. *See* Disease  
Charities, the Organisation of, Dr. D. C. Gilman,  
*rev.*, 1307  
Charles, Dr. T. C., obituary notice of, 275; result  
of inquest on, 500  
Chamlier, Dr., on rickets, 745  
Chavasse, Mr. T. F., gastrotomy, 916; sarcoma  
of bladder, *ib.*; hydronephrosis, *ib.*  
Cheever, Dr. D. W., Lectures on Surgery, *rev.*,  
1309  
Chelsea, Mr. Stansfeld at, 1207  
Cheltenham, the mineral springs of, 876, 1269  
Chemical works, report of Special Committee  
on, 33  
Chemist, the duties of a, 1096  
Chemistry and therapeutics, 201; at the Con-  
joint Board, 272; the relation of to pharmaco-  
therapy and materia medica, 794; and biology,  
study of at the public schools, 817; of the  
seventeenth century, 1232  
Chemists and druggists and the Pharmacy Acts,  
31; a warning to, 44; prescribing, 203, 987; the  
responsibility of, 428; the sale of poisons  
from the point of view of, 484  
Chesterfield, aged inmates of workhouse to be  
allowed tobacco, 893  
Cheyne, Mr. W. W., treatment of cancer of the  
breast, 289; intestinal obstruction due to con-  
striction of the bowel after appendicitis,  
967  
Chiari, Professor, pachydermia laryngis, 746  
Chicago, the medical bureau of the World's  
Fair at, 153; correspondence from, 216, 803,  
1154; health statistics of, 216; milk infection  
at, 217; Professor Sepp's gift to Newberry  
Library, *ib.*; the conviction of Prendergast,  
*ib.*; deaths of Dr. R. G. Bogue and W. M. Tan-  
quary, *ib.*; expert testimony in some recent  
cases, 603; criticisms of the press, 604; re-  
forms proposed by the Practitioners' Society,  
*ib.*; meeting of the Medico-Legal Society, *ib.*;  
the Wanderjahr, 1154; Professor Fenger, *ib.*;  
small-pox epidemic in, *ib.*; examination for  
interne, *ib.*; the pulse, *ib.*; the teaching of ob-  
stetrics, *ib.*; the Medical Society of, *ib.*; the  
New Ambulance Society, *ib.*  
Chicken, Mr. R., radical cure of hernia, 1081  
Child aged 11 months, ileo-cæcal intussuscep-  
tion in, a cure after laparotomy, 911; com-  
plete prolapse of the female urethra in a, 1021  
Child, Mr. E., amendment of the Medical Acts,  
382, 608  
Childhood, alcohol in, 263; Diseases of (Medi-  
cal), Dr. H. B. Donkin, *rev.*, 414; empyema in,  
1020  
Children, spectacled school, 151, 438; the men-  
tal and physical condition of, 153; school,  
teeth of, 318; acute intussusception in, 845,  
438; heart inflammation in, 505, 561, 623; ex-  
ceptional, 758; a diastolic bruit at the apex in  
the heart disease of, 906; an analysis of the  
cases of enteric fever in, 964; workhouse, the  
education of, 985, 995, 1050, 1107; protection of  
in France, 1008; the starting points of tuber-  
culous disease in, 1022; the testing of eye-  
sight of, 1023, 1107, 1147, 1278; country holidays  
for, 1204; defective school board, 1380; blind  
and deaf, school boards and, 1428; the mor-  
tality of, 1432  
Chinese Central Asia, Dr. H. Lansdell, *rev.*, 22  
Chipault, M. A., Etudes de Chirurgie Médul-  
laire, *rev.*, 1029  
Chirurgie des Voies Urinaires, Dr. E. Loumeau,  
*rev.*, 195  
Chlorine gas, use of in the treatment of chronic  
ulcers of the leg, 1191  
Chlorodyne, tipping of, 444; as a preparation  
of prussic acid, 230  
Chloroform, the discovery of, 31; deaths under,  
150, 649, 761, 816, 875, 985, 1063, 1060, 1150, 1265, 1323,  
1376; the Hyderabad Commission on, 363; the  
administration of clinically considered, 410;  
treatment of severe chorea by, 633; and car-  
bolic acid, the use of a combination of in  
enteric fever, 909, 1007  
Chlorosis, in males, 162; and amenorrhœa,  
with symptoms of brain disease, 1073, 1354  
Cholecystotomy, a case of, 188  
Cholera, the, at St. Petersburg, 39, 1314; statistics  
of in Germany, 39; State aid in relation to  
port expenses of, 79, 261, 546; eating the  
vibrio of 95; the value of the bacteriological  
diagnosis of, 120; and fish, 154; in Europe,  
256; extended survey for, 264; in Tenerife,  
285; contagion of, 269; in London during  
1893, 317; the nurseries of, 358, 415; metro-  
politan provisions against, 377; and the  
sanitary state of Reshe, 387; the prevention  
of, 425; waterborne, 437; the temporary sus-  
pension of the pilgrimage to Mecca as a pre-  
ventive measure against, 460; and cremation,  
539; in Constantinople, 650, 836, 968; the inter-  
national prevention of, 694; discussion on  
the prevention of at Rome, 798; the Moham-  
medans and, 815; how it is spread, 836; in  
Lisbon, 936, 991, 1036, 1315; in Russian Poland,  
936; at Rotherham in 1893, 1058; prevention of  
in India, 1093; the progress of, 1101; alleged  
outbreak of in Prussia and France, 1140; and  
soil moisture, *ib.*; and diarrhœa at Rother-  
ham, 1227; the mode of propagation of, 1231;  
the spread of, 1259; consular report of at  
Teneriffe in 1893, *ib.*; at Leghorn in 1893, 1314;  
in Russia, 1315, 1384; in Berlin, 1315; in the  
Ottoman Empire, 1315, 1384; in Germany, 1384  
Chorea, hereditary, 20; severe, treatment of by  
chloroform and morphia, 633  
Churn, the, and sanitary work, 32; response  
of to appeal for legislation for inebriates,  
1153  
— Dr. W. S., St. Bartholomew's Hospital  
Reports, *rev.*, 583  
Churton, Dr. T., abscess in the lung, 69; dila-  
tation of colon treated by washing out, *ib.*;  
treatment of severe chorea by chloroform  
and morphia, 633; treatment of delirium  
tremens, 1007; pancreatic cyst with diabetes,  
atrophy of pancreas, 1191  
Chyluria, treatment of, 1167  
Cicatrix, pigmentation of the in ovariectomy  
performed during pregnancy, 1244  
Cider and rheumatism, 115  
Cigarette, the dangers of the, 560  
Cigars and infection, 37  
Cimiez, its Health and Climate, Dr. H. E. Crook,  
*rev.*, 1030  
Circulation, changes in the produced by py-  
rexia, 21; the physics of the, 511, 566, 629  
Circumcision "specialist," a, 1043  
Cirrhosis of the liver, with especial reference  
to its occurrence in children and to the mode  
of death in cirrhosis with jaundice, 1407  
Citizen, the duties of a, 443  
City, the shooting case in the, 206; the medical  
officership of health of, 1140  
Civil Rights Defence Committee. *See* Committee  
Clark, Sir A., meeting at the Horse Guards as  
to memorial to, 140; the memorial to, 159, 761,  
872, 927, 989 (*see also* Fund); a large fee and its  
use, 210; and John Hunter, 481; meeting at  
Princes' Hall as to memorial to, 989; lessons  
of the memorial fund to, 1037; "that great,"  
1063; the portrait of, 1319; biography of, *ib.*  
— Dr. A. C., automatic writing, 37, 116  
Clark's Civil Service Annual, *rev.*, 583  
Clarke, Mr. J. J., note on some so-called cells  
of endogenous origin, 17; cyst of vas aber-  
rans, 301; Cancer, Sarcoma, and Other Morbid  
Growths considered in Relation to the Sporo-  
zoa, *rev.*, 804; myxosarcoma of the uterus,  
1080; morbid growths and sporozoa, 1158  
— Dr. J. M., remarks on cirrhosis of the  
liver with especial reference to its recurrence  
in children and to the mode of death in cir-  
rhosis with jaundice, 1407  
— Dr. W. B., death of, 687  
— Mr. W. B., horny growth on the penis,  
191  
Class longevity, 205  
Clay, Dr. C., of Manchester, proposed memorial  
to, 1278  
— Mr. J., death of, 1430  
Clayton, Dr. J. H., rupture of mucous mem-  
brane of the stomach, 634  
Clergy, the, quack medicines and, 104  
Climate in the treatment of phthisis, 560  
Clitoris, primary epithelioma of the, 1079  
Clot Bey and the Cairo Medical School, 250  
Clotiers and small-pox, 1204  
Club, Ayrshire Medical, annual meeting of, 1200  
— practice, venereal disease and delirium  
tremens in, 283  
— tariffs, 45, 51  
Clubs, maternity, and cottage nurses, 447  
Clutton, Mr. H. H., sarcoma of radius, 242  
Coagulability of the blood, improvements in  
the methods of determining, 237

Coal strike, the hospitals and, 664  
 Cobb, Mr. J. F., a plea for cremation, 171  
 Cobbe, Miss, and Bishop Barry, 151  
 Cobbett, Dr., cold as an etiological factor in diseases of the skin, 853  
 Coillana, fluid extract of, 529  
 Cocoa, pure soluble, 24; "perfect," extract of, 1310  
 Coexistence of infectious diseases, 969  
 Coghill, Dr. S., decoration of, 837  
 Cold as an etiological factor in diseases of the skin, 853  
 Coldbath Fields, sanitary state of postal order office at, 1147  
 Coldrey, Mr. R., subscriptions to fund to, 1165  
 Coleridge, Lord. *See* Lord Chief Justice  
 Coles, Mr., registration of plumbers, 798  
 Coley, Dr. F. C., a pseudo-hypertrophic family, 399  
 Colic, appendicular, 627, 773; biliary, removal of calculi in, 752  
 Colitis, ulcerative, two cases of, 128  
 College, Imperial Medical, Tientsin, progress of, 317  
 — the Livingstone, the new home and objects of, 113  
 — Malvern, diphtheria at, 700  
 — Mason, Birmingham, "founder's day" at, 483  
 — Muirhead, for Women, Glasgow, foundation of, 424  
 — Owens, Manchester, and the Manchester Royal Infirmary, 370; improvements at, 1205; the chair of chemistry and metallurgy at, 1263  
 — of Physicians, Philadelphia, the presidency of, 388  
 — Queen Margaret, Glasgow, capital grant to, 837  
 — Queen's, Belfast, appointments at, 949  
 — Royal Medical Benevolent (Epsom), the pension fund of the, 159; the chapel fund of, 550; annual meeting of, 1218; and the medical pensioners, 1265  
 — Royal, of Physicians of Edinburgh, the Freeland-Barbour Fellowship of, 424  
 — Royal, of Physicians of Ireland, the licentiates of, 315  
 — Royal, of Physicians of London, comitia of, 215, 653, 767, 999, 1111; pass lists, 273, 999; lectures at, 315; the membership of and the practice of surgery, 1008  
 — Royal, of Surgeons, Edinburgh, the Bathgate gold medal at, 49; the Royal Infirmary board of managers, 334; Descriptive Catalogue of the Anatomical and Pathological Specimens in the Museum of, Mr. C. W. Cathcart, *rev.*, 470; the Fellowship examination of, 783; pass lists, 1164  
 — Royal, of Surgeons of England, meeting of council of, 143, 385, 887; the Council and the Fellows of, 143, 155; lectures at, 209; pass lists, 385, 888, 1111, 1164, 1394; books for the first examination for the Fellowship of, 615; the proposed "Society" of, 647, 658, 694; and the new university for London, 653; the Walker prize for investigation of cancer, 664; the coming election to council of, 1141, 1146, 1206, 1322, 1376; the Erasmus Wilson lectures at, 1146; examiners at, 1394  
 — Royal, of Surgeons in Ireland, and the Apothecaries' Hall Dublin, 480; pass lists, 495, 1225; financial statement, *ib.*; the students of, 594, 648; the secretaryship of, 596, 815; candidates for council of, 1146; election of examiners, 1164, 1225; election of officers of, 1280; modification of examinations of, 1319  
 — Royal, of Veterinary Surgeons, the jubilee of, 1377  
 — University, Cardiff, appointment to Council of, 1146  
 — University, Dundee, and St. Andrews University, 334; arrangements for summer session at, 686  
 — University, Liverpool, the presidency of, 481; exhibitions at, 615; donations to library and found new chairs at, 984; the new endowed professorships, 1057, 1381  
 — University, London, lectures at, 94; lectures on archaeology at, 893  
 — University of South Wales and Monmouthshire, opening of new medical school of, 378  
 — Yorkshire, Leeds, students of at London University examinations, 41  
 Colleges, Royal, of Physicians of London, and Surgeons of England, Conjoint Examining Board of, pass lists, 111, 144, 222, 273, 778, 832, 888, 946, 999; chemistry at the examinations of, 272  
 — Royal, of Physicians and Surgeons of Edinburgh, and Faculty of Physicians and

Surgeons of Glasgow, Conjoint Examining Board of, pass lists, 274, 947, 1057  
 Colleges, Royal, of Physicians and Surgeons, Ireland, Conjoint Examining Board of, pass lists, 1225  
 Collie, Bloxhurn, 1276, 1333  
 Collier, Mr. J., multiple neuromata, 21  
 Collis, Surgeon-Major-General farewell dinner to, 997  
 Colman, Dr. W. S., hallucinations in the sane, associated with local organic disease of the sensory organs, etc., 1015  
 Colon, dilatation of treated by washing out, 69; cancer and its treatment, 1024  
 Colotomy in inguinal, an apparatus for use after, 968  
 — wound, closure of after three years, 860  
 Colour test, a, 51  
 Colyer, Mr. J. F., Diseases and Injuries of the Teeth, 356  
 Comb for the ova of pediculi, 973  
 Comby, Dr. J., relation of rickets to convulsive attacks in children, 745  
 Comma bacillus, influence of different kinds of soils on, 1126, 1140  
 Commission, Hemp Drugs, works of, 1040  
 — Hyderabad on Chloroform, letter from Prime Minister of Hyderabad on, 363, 436, 827; correspondence on, 1106  
 — Royal on Labour, the forthcoming report of, 759; and sanitation, 1059  
 — Royal on Opium, one result of the, 149; meetings of, 372; the report of, 597, 763, 981  
 — Royal on University Education in London, the report of, 206, 305, 313, 324, 485; medical aspects of the report of, 368  
 — Royal on Vaccination, the fourth report of, 431, 544  
 — Scottish Universities, the medical education of women, 1260; draft ordinance re special study in research, 1336  
 — South African Leprosy, members of and questions to be submitted to, 538  
 Commissions, instrument makers and, 115  
 Committee, Civil Rights Defence, appeal for funds by, 1423  
 — Departmental on Chemical Works, report of, 33; minutes of evidence of, 892  
 — Home Office on Factory Statistics, members of, 480  
 — on Industrial Lead Poisoning, fees to witnesses before, 43  
 — Select on Cremation, the report of, 142  
 Commodore, 615  
 Compensation to tenants for injury to health from defective sanitary arrangements, 166  
 Competition and underselling, 210, 438  
 Compression of the common carotid, effects of, 962  
 Concetti, Dr. L., treatment of diphtheria, 745  
 Conference, International Sanitary, date, etc., of, 212; delegates to, 216, 287; British representatives at, 266; meeting of, 316, 484, 536; visit of members of to the Pasteur Institute, 536; preventive measures adopted by, 694; the reservations by the British representatives at, 761; the conclusions of, 763; England and the, 881; the convention signed with Persia, 925, 933, 975  
 Congress, of Applied Chemistry, date and place of meeting of, 1340  
 — of French Alienists, date, place of meeting, and subjects of discussion at, 156  
 — German Alienists, date and place of meeting, etc., of, 1340  
 — German Surgical, date and place of meeting of, etc., 389; meeting of, 987  
 — Indian Medical, date and place of meeting, and sections of, 539; officers of, 1093; date and objects of, 1433; sectional arrangements, *ib.*  
 — Internal of German Medicine, postponement of, 389  
 — International of Applied Chemistry, date, etc., of, 168  
 — International of Hygiene and Demography, programme, etc., of, 37; tropical section at, 281; prospects, etc., of, 611; delegates to, 1135; British Committee of, 1323  
 — International Medical, address of Secretary of, 26; office for providing lodgings for visitors to, etc., 49; proposed tour to, 51; accommodation for visitors to, 227; addresses, etc., at, 265; programme, etc. of, *inset* between 420 and 421; railway facilities for the journey to, 487, 547; delegates to, 657; some officers and readers of addresses at, 695; retrospective and prospective, 705; general programme, 706; programme of amusements at,

*ib.*; inauguration of, 711; notable visitors to, 713; dates of addresses at, *ib.*; festivities at, *ib.*; opening of, *ib.*; the International, medico-hygienic exhibition at, 747; congratulations of German Emperor on success of, 748; reception in the exhibition, *ib.*; German medical men at, 749; portable military hospital, *ib.*; hospital train, *ib.*; proclamation by Syndic of Rome, *ib.*; organisation of International Pediatric Society, *ib.*; hospitality of Professor Baccelli, *ib.*; letter from Sir J. Lister to Professor Baccelli, 750; sectional organisation, *ib.*; garden party, *ib.*; excursions, *ib.*; attendance at the sections, *ib.*; proposed medical press section, 799; illuminations and entertainments, *ib.*; place of meeting of next congress, *ib.*; the invitation from Spain, 800; demonstrations, *ib.*; entertainments by English residents of Rome, *ib.*; echoes of the, 1043  
 Congress, International Medical, Section of Dermatology and Syphilography: the blenorhagic process (Touton), 748; infective fever of the blenorhagic virus (Padula), *ib.*; present position of urethroscopy (Grödfeld), *ib.*; lemon juice in the treatment of blenorhagia (Roca), *ib.*; local treatment of urethritis with a new form of syringe (Barrucco), *ib.*; new epidemic skin disease (Savill), *ib.*; the lichen group (Neisser, Malcolm Morris, etc.), *ib.*; treatment of ringworm (Eddowes), *ib.*; a new method of treating obstinate parasitic diseases of the scalp by the application of parasitocides under pressure (Abraham), *ib.*; the nature of eczema (Schwimmer, Kaposi, Breda, etc.), 797; malignant form of molluscum fibrosum (Kaposi), 798; syphilis without initial lesion (Verchère), *ib.*; microsporion (Reale), *ib.*; electrolytic epilation (Giovannini), *ib.*; idiopathic sarcoma of skin (Kaposi), 853; simple contagious ulcer (Krefting, etc.), *ib.*; syphilis (Jullien, etc.), *ib.*; cold as an etiological factor in diseases of the skin (Corbett), *ib.*  
 — International Medical, Section of Diseases of Children: presidential address, 744; discussion on diphtheria and croup (Escherich, etc.), *ib.*; treatment of diphtheria by methyl violet (Sarra), *ib.*; intubation and tracheotomy (Egidi), *ib.*; spread of diphtheria through schools (Masucci), *ib.*; treatment of diphtheria (Szilai and Guelpha), *ib.*; discussion on rickets and on its relation to spasmodic affections (Comby, etc.), 745; infantile form of general paralysis (Moussous), *ib.*; congenital myxedema (Rehn), 746; cyclical hemoglobinuria (Soltmann), *ib.*; comparative embryotic anatomy of the genito-urinary system in man and other animals (Sophie Bakunin), *ib.*; diagnostic value of indicanuria in children (Cerna), *ib.*; Kaiser and Kaiserin Friedrich's Children's Hospital (Baginsky), 797; icterus neonatorum (Bauzen), *ib.*; congenital syphilis as a cause of hydrocephalus (Titomanlio), *ib.*; vaccination in whooping-cough, (Celli), *ib.*; dinner, *ib.*  
 — International Medical, Section of Hygiene: quarantine, (Csatary de Castar), 798; prevention of cholera, (Bocci, etc.), *ib.*; vaccination (Leoni), *ib.*; alcoholism (Fazio), *ib.*; registration of plumbers (Coles and Smith), *ib.*; visit to works on Tiber, *ib.*  
 — International Medical, Section of Internal Medicine: officers of, 742; Papers: pathology of the blood (Ziemssen), *ib.*; arsenical treatment of pernicious anemia, etc. (Warfringe), *ib.*; cold as a cause of chlorosis (Murri), *ib.*; production of jaundice by the injection of tolouol-diamine (De Luca), *ib.*; intravenous transfusion of defibrinated blood (Ziemssen), *ib.*; treatment of anemia by corrosive sublimate (Castellino), *ib.*; purpura hemorrhagica in chronic articular rheumatism (Carriero), *ib.*; gastric disturbances as a cause of chlorosis (Cantu), *ib.*; spread of infective diseases (Rager), 795; effects of removal of liver from circulation (Queirolo), *ib.*; injection of yeast (de Backer), *ib.*; influenza (Mendizabal), *ib.*; treatment of croup (Szilai), *ib.*; diagnosis and treatment of tuberculosis (Revilliod), *ib.*; immunised serum in tuberculosis (Bernheim), *ib.*; empyema (Laache and Bäumlér), *ib.*; phthisical sputa (Schrön), *ib.*; treatment of pulmonary phthisis (Grande), *ib.*; tetanus (Crisafulli), *ib.*; phthisis (Forlanini), *ib.*; aspiration syringe (Pittarelli), *ib.*; croupous pneumonia (Rivaltà), *ib.*; nasal affections in phthisis (Chaborg), *ib.*; locomotor ataxy (Carmon y Valle), *ib.*; hæmatoporphyrin in urine (Stokvis), *ib.*; thyroid in myxedema (Fraser), *ib.*; pulmonary distomiasis (Gouvea), *ib.*; tubercle in fissure of Rolando (Guerra), *ib.*; bactericidal power of

- blood (Calabresi), *ib.*; diabetes (Da Rocha and De Renzi), *ib.*; individual *v.* disease (de Giovanni), 796; biliary pigment in urine (Jolles), *ib.*; nitrate of aconitine (Tison), *ib.*; pruritus in icterus (Bouchard), *ib.*; heart measurements (Baccelli), *ib.*
- Congress, International Medical, Section of Laryngology: officers, 746; presidential address, *ib.*; pachydermia laryngis (Chiari), *ib.*; intubation (Schmiegelow), *ib.*; surgical treatment of laryngeal tuberculosis (Gouguenheim), 798; intratracheal injection of fluids (Bronner), *ib.*; endolaryngeal forceps (Dundas Grant), *ib.*
- International Medical, Section of Military Medicine and Surgery: the work of, 799
- International Medical, Section of Obstetrics and Gynaecology: symphysiotomy (Morisani and Leopold), 855; treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy (Mangiagalli and Martin), *ib.*; extirpation of large fibromyomata of the body of the uterus, 856
- International Medical, Section of Otolaryngology: officers, 747; otitic thrombosis of the lateral sinus (Moos), *ib.*; latent cerebral abscess due to ear disease (Moore), *ib.*; treatment of cholesteatoma by operation (Rhemhardt), *ib.*; auricular affections in hereditary syphilis (Gradenigo), *ib.*; fixation abscesses in otology (Calladon), *ib.*; pathogenesis of Ménière's disease (Gradenigo), *ib.*; Stäckle's operation in Ménière's disease (Avalado), *ib.*; gymnastics of the ossicles and necrosis of the cochlea (Kirchner), *ib.*; new form of ear disease (Pollitzer), *ib.*; disease of inner ear (Moos), *ib.*; injurious effect of railway signals (Grazzi), *ib.*; influence of asymmetry of the cranium on Weber's tuning-fork experiment (Corrad), *ib.*; removal of ossicles in chronic otorrhoea (Ludewig), 798; magnifying aural speculum (Dundas Grant), *ib.*
- International Medical, Section of Pathology, Papers: Glanders (Bonome), 742; pyogenic substances (Donath and Gayza Gara), *ib.*; exclusion of light in small-pox (Finssen), *ib.*; entero-hepatitis suppurativa (Babes), 743; discussion on cancer (Foa, Ruffer, etc.), 743; vaccina and small-pox (Guarnieri, Monte, Ruffer), 796; pancreas in diabetes (Hanseman), *ib.*; necrosis of the pancreas and its association with fat necrosis (Steven), *ib.*; comparative pathology of necrosis (Israel), *ib.*; the liver in infectious diseases (Roger), 797; parasites of malaria (Marchiafava, etc.), *ib.*; types of malarial fever seen in Baltimore (Hewetson), 854; degenerations following lesions of the cerebellum (Turner), *ib.*
- International Medical, Section of Surgery and Orthopaedics: cerebro-spinal surgery (Lucas-Championnière, etc.), 856; causation of intracranial abscess (Macewen), 857; autografture (Masse), *ib.*; removal of intracranial cysts (Lavista), *ib.*; division of fifth cranial nerve (D'Antona), *ib.*; craniectomy (Postempski), *ib.*; plastic operations on the skull (Sacchi), *ib.*; trephining (Zucaro), *ib.*; traumatic hæmorrhage from middle meningeal artery (Mugnani), *ib.*; gunshot wound of frontal region (Grande), *ib.*; homonymous hæmianopsia (Bruno), *ib.*; temporary laminectomy in lesions of the spinal cord (Caselli), *ib.*
- Connor, Mr. S., death of, 947
- Constantinople, cholera in, 650
- Consultants, the position of, 93, 228; and midwifery, 209, 425; and general practitioners, 1157
- Consumption, defence against, 429; the prevention of, 538
- Continent, practice on the, 951
- Contracts and bonds in restraint of practice, 869
- Cooke, Mr. T., A Plea for Practical Work in Anatomy, *rev.*, 130
- Co-operation, Nurses'. See Nurses
- Copner, Dr. L., death of from diphtheria, 1267
- Coppin, Dr. W. M. L., A Manual of Practical Hygiene, *rev.*, 639
- Cord, spinal, changes in the posterior columns of in diabetes mellitus, 398; the surgery of the and its appendages, 1345, 1401
- umbilical, should two ligatures be placed on the? 187; clip for, 1367
- vocal, epithelioma of removed by laryngotomy, 575
- Cordwery, Dr. G., laceration of abdominal wall, reciprocating vitalities, 240
- Corfield, Dr. W. H., Dwelling Houses, their Sanitary Construction and Arrangements, *rev.*, 1196
- Cork, Hospital Saturday at, 144; the union workhouse at, 443; hospital abuse in, 701; neglect of vaccination in, 1059; new hospital for, 1445
- Cornhill, Mr. J., fees for midwifery engagements, 556
- Cornil, Professor Von, cancer, 743, 744
- Cornwall, the county council of and the rural sanitary authority of Launceston, 892
- Coroner burnt to death, 1029
- Coroners and inquests, 370; rearrangement of districts in London, 650; medical, 660; the courts of, 1431
- Coroner'ship, the vacant for North-East London, 597, 648, 699, 1203; election to, 1267
- Cortex, vacuolation of nuclei in the nerve cells in the, 1075, 1343
- Cory, Dr. F. W., a penny pamphlet, 222
- Coryn, Dr. W. J., pruritus ani, 1063
- Cotterell, Mr. E., two cases of uretero-lithotomy, 1022
- Coughing, fracture of rib from, 408
- Council, General Medical. See Medical
- Councils, parish and district, 438, 484, 757
- Counsell, Dr. R. W., protection against poisoning by liniments, etc., 1084
- County Council of London and the water supply, 487, 529; the public health department of, 535; and the Metropolitan Asylums Board, 1318
- Cousins, Dr. J. Ward, aneurysm of the aorta and innominate artery, simultaneous ligation of carotid and subclavian arteries, 14; new methods of dilating the female urethra, 754; dinner to, 1095; abdominal sarcoma infiltrating abdominal wall, 1189
- Coutts, Dr. J. A., sporadic cretinism, 186; general tuberculosis, death from extensive disseminated hæmorrhage, 464
- Coventry, the public medical service of, 1312, 1392
- Covering, alleged, 446, 1007; problem, a, 1287; liability of principal to charge of, *ib.*; a question of, 1399
- Cowan, Dr. J., death of, 1001
- Cow-pox and small-pox, 172
- Craig, Dr. M., "uncertifiable patients," 827, 941
- Dr. W. Relation of Music to Language as a Theory of Development, *rev.*, 357
- Craniotomy, successful case of, 67
- Cranium, deformity of in infants, 128; osteoporosis of the vault of, 1188
- Creak, Miss E. E. M., spectacled children, 438
- Cream, sterilised, 1366
- Creameries and enteric fever, 815
- Creasote in pulmonary tuberculosis, 227; in phthisis, 340, 560
- Crédé, Professor, A Short Guide to the Examination of Lying-in Women, *rev.*, 1415
- Cree, Russell, *rev.*, 608
- Creighton, Dr. C., enteric fever in the Tees valley, 771
- Cremation, report of the Select Committee on, 142; a plea for, 171; progress of, 205; in Paris, 336, 770; and cholera, 539; involuntary legislation against, 760; in France, 837; at Manchester, 892; in Prussia, 1275
- Cretinism, sporadic, a case of, 6, 186; case of, 192; sporadic, treated with thyroid gland, 1178, 1180
- Crieff, proposed infectious diseases hospital at, 388
- Criminals and criminal anthropology, 427
- Crimp, Mr. W. S., Sewage Disposal Works, *rev.*, 1247
- Cripps, Mr. H., dangers of the long rectal tube, 51; the treatment of ovarian and extrauterine cysts communicating with the rectum, 291, 302
- Crocker, Dr. H. R., Atlas of Diseases of the Skin, *rev.*, 1245
- Crompton, Mr. D. W., death of, 834
- Crook, Dr. H. E., Cimiez, its Health and Climate, *rev.*, 1030
- Croom, Dr. J. H., on massage, 1128
- Croskey, Mr. R., The Soil in Relation to Health, *rev.*, 1028
- Croucher, Dr., presentation to, 1372
- Croudeau, Dr. J. H., placenta prævia centralis, 667
- Croup, discussion on at Rome, 744
- Crowe, Dr. W. G., the perchlorides of mercury and iron in typhoid fever, 1302
- Cruttwell, Mr. H. A., the "cheap" doctor, a word in defence, 1105
- Cuba, medical martyrs in, 157
- Cullen, Dr. W. L., epidemic jaundice and influenza, 828
- Cullingworth, Beatty, *rev.*, 829
- Culture media, a new method of preparing, 1177
- Cunningham, Dr. D. J., A Manual of Practical Anatomy, *rev.*, 1306
- Cusco, M., death of, 1001
- Cuthbert, Mr. C. F., a case of pemphigus foliaceus, 1237
- Cutlery and file trades, sanitation of, 155
- Cyst, peritoneal hæmorrhagic, 20; suppurating hydatid of liver, opened through the chest wall, 129; of vas aberrans, 301; of the cerebellum, 393; in larynx, 915; in the post-anal gut in an infant, 1081; pancreatic with diabetes, atrophy of pancreas, 1191; thyreo-glossal treated by excision, 1358
- Cysticercus in the vitreous, case of, 1242
- Cystoscopy, suprapubic, electric, 860
- Cystotomy, suprapubic, clinical lecture on, 53
- Cysts, ovarian and extrauterine communicating with the rectum, treatment of, 291, 302; congenital serous of the eyelids associated with anophthalmos and microphthalmos, 1360
- D.
- Daily Chronicle, the, on human vivisection, 1143
- Dairy, Indian, bacteriological observations in a, 181
- Dalby, Sir W. B., on auditory vertigo, 1012
- Dana, Dr. C. L., A Textbook of Nervous Diseases, *rev.*, 1362
- Danilewski, the ground substance of protoplasm and its modifications by life, 853
- D'Antona, division of fifth cranial nerve at its point of emergence, 857
- D'Arsonval, M., elected a member of the Académie des Sciences, 1371
- Dartford, proposed new cottage hospital for, 934; small-pox and vaccination at in 1893, 1003
- Darwinism and race progress, 348, 402, 459
- Davey, Mr. N. F., the ancient use of sterilised water, 724; pruritus ani, 839
- Davidson, Dr. A., Hygiene and Diseases of Warm Climates, *rev.*, 581
- Davies, Mr. D., obituary notice of, 1282
- Mr. J. D., a case of obstructed labour from malignant disease of the cervix uteri, Cæsarean section, recovery, 1021
- Dr. S., hospital Sunday and hospital abuse, 1276
- Mr. S. H., epidemic measles at Samoa, 1077
- Davies-Colley, Mr., syphilitic disease of the knee-joint, 17; an operation for the cure of cleft of the hard and soft palate, 913, 996
- Davis, Mr. W. G., death of, 276
- Davys, Dr. F. J., death of, 612
- Day nurseries, the cost of, 540
- Dead, unclaimed, the identification of, 228, 382
- Dean, Mr. H. P., acute intestinal obstruction by constricting bands, 753; a case of perforation of a chronic ulcer of the duodenum successfully treated by excision, 1014, 1022
- Death of, Professor T. Ferreira, 48; Dr. W. S. Lead, *ib.*; Dr. S. H. Bailey, *ib.*; Dr. H. Waterworth, *ib.*; Dr. A. T. Myers, 94; Dr. J. A. Barton, 143; Dr. J. W. Boyd, *ib.*; Mr. T. Gravely, *ib.*; Dr. Quinquand, 157; Dr. J. M. Marshall, 158; Dr. Dokic, 167; Dr. J. M. Turnbull, 276; Mr. E. C. Buckoll, *ib.*; Dr. F. A. Rubio, *ib.*; Mr. W. G. Davis, *ib.*; Mr. G. Bolton, *ib.*; Dr. E. F. Scougal, *ib.*; Dr. H. M. Leppington, *ib.*; Dr. G. J. Hearder, *ib.*; Dr. J. Murray, *ib.*; Dr. W. Leishman, 424; Dr. F. J. Tuohy, 441; Dr. A. Meyer, 430; Professor A. Lücke, 496; of Dr. E. H. Jacob, 537; Mr. J. H. Inman, 612; Dr. A. Dunlap, *ib.*; Dr. A. Olivier, *ib.*; Dr. C. N. Grif fiths, *ib.*; Dr. F. J. Davys, *ib.*; Dr. R. Macdonald, 664; Mr. W. Richards, *ib.*; M. H. Hérisson, 665; Dr. W. B. Clarke, 687; Dr. F. A. Thomas, 776; Dr. Juhel-Rénay, *ib.*; Dr. S. J. Moore, *ib.*; Dr. Brown-Séquard, *ib.*; Surgeon-Captain F. L. Carte, 831; Dr. F. W. Weber, 833; Dr. J. H. Rauch, 834, 1154; Mr. D. W. Crompton, *ib.*; Mr. J. H. Kimbell, *ib.*; Dr. A. Knight, *ib.*; sudden, an obscure case of, 862; Dr. H. Welch, 889; Miss Jessie F. Hatch, *ib.*; Dr. O'Meara, *ib.*; Mr. S. Connor, 947; Dr. A. Marshall, *ib.*; sudden during labour, 965; Dr. A. Alexander, 1000; Dr. J. Cowan, 1001; M. Cusco, *ib.*; Dr. A. Douglas, *ib.*; Mr. R. Lunan, *ib.*; Dr. Callan, 1029; Mr. H. Fenton, 1056; Dr. J. Workman, *ib.*; Mr. T. M. Stone, 1097; Professor Romanes, 1146; Mr. G. Ward, 1161; Dr. J. Baber, *ib.*; Dr. W. W. Leeper, 1162; Dr. A. H. Twining, 1228; Dr. A. L. Copner, 1267; Mr. R. Reece, 1283; Mr. W. Marsden, *ib.*; Dr. Sperk, 1331; Mr. F. C. Roberts, 1337; Mr. G. Howarth, *ib.*; Dr. C. Jackson, *ib.*; Dr. B. B. Malcolm, 1395; Mr. J. Clay, 1440; Dr. A. Wilson, 1443; Dr. Gundelach, *ib.*; Mr. E. J. Worth, *ib.*
- united in, 1003
- De'Ath, Mr. G. H., diphtheria and defective drainage, 106



- Death-rate, dual notification and the, 1086, 1252, 1276, 1377; small-pox, vaccination and the, 1111; of general practice, 1167
- Deaths in the profession abroad, 48, 112, 143, 224, 276, 387, 441, 496, 555, 612, 664, 776, 834, 1001, 1056, 1162, 1283, 1337, 1395, 1443; under chloroform, 150, 649, 761, 816, 875, 955, 1053, 1066, 1150, 1265, 1323, 1376; under anaesthetics, 428; from swallowing artificial teeth, *ib.*; certification of, 1031, 1042, 1148
- De Baeker, Dr., injections of yeast, 795
- Debière, M. Ch., La Moelle Epinière et l'Encéphale, *rev.*, 1028
- Debility, nervous, the part played by in the production of fever, 791
- Deck, Dr. H. O'B., a case of Raynaud's disease, 187
- Deformities, On the Surgical Treatment of, Mr. W. Adams, *rev.*, 23
- Deglutition, painful, nasal feeding in cases of, 1078
- Degrees, colonial, in the British Isles, 283; medical for London students, 434, 533
- De la Harpe, Dr., Formulaire des Eaux Minérales de la Balnéothérapie et de l'Hydrothérapie, *rev.*, 1395
- Delépine, Dr. S., the value of bacteriological diagnosis of Asiatic cholera, 120; spread of tuberculosis through the lymphatics, 525
- Delirium tremens in club practice, 283; treatment of, 1007, 1231
- Dempster, Mr. R., the influence of different kinds of soil on the comma and typhoid organisms, 1126, 1140
- Denholm, Dr., presentation to, 113
- Dent, Mr. C. T., diagnosis and operative treatment of intestinal obstruction due to bands, 117
- Dentists, advertising by, 149, 1203
- Derby, small-pox and vaccination at, 1369
- Dermatitis, exfoliativa pigmentosa, 20; iodoform, 63; universal, a case of probably a rare variety of mycosis fungoides, 1181
- Dermatologischen System auf pathologisch-anatomischer (Hebra'scher) Basis, Dr. S. Jessner, *rev.*, 639
- Dermatology of to-day, 179; relations of to general medicine, 1170
- Detention, law as to in relation to the spread of infection, 1227
- Development and Heredity (A Theory of), Dr. H. B. Orr, *rev.*, 1084
- Dewar, Professor, the scientific uses of liquid air, 283
- De Watteville, Dr. W., sublimed sulphur in diphtheria, 895
- De Wit, Mr. P. C., the Karoo district as a health resort, 1258
- Diabetes, mellitus, changes in the posterior columns of the spinal cord in, 398; the pancreas in, 796; pancreatic cyst with, 1191; a new departure in, 1349, 1404
- Diagnosis, a disputed, 891; Gynecological, Outlines of, Dr. N. T. Brewis, *rev.*, 1131
- Diarrhoea and parasitic anaemia, 371; and cholera at Rotherham, 1227
- Dick, Mr. L. H. M., the National Pension Fund for Nurses, 942
- Dickinson, Mr. G., congenital hydrocele of the neck cured by drainage and compression, 1018
- Dr. W. H., albuminuric ulceration of the bowels, 65; retirement of, 315, 376; sonnet on the retirement of, 447; proposed memorial to, 535, 783, 816; presentation to, 1380
- Dr. W. L., fibromyoma of uterus becoming sarcomatous, 16; the relation of subphrenic pyo-pneumothorax to general peritonitis when caused by perforating gastric ulcer, 283; hæmoglobinuria from muscular exertion, 1080; ruptured aneurysm, 1081
- Dickson, Dr. E. Winifred, medical women as workhouse doctors, 616, 639
- Dictionary of the Active Principles of Plants, Mr. C. E. Sohn, *rev.*, 414; of Bathing Places and Climatic Health Resorts (Bradshaw's), *rev.*, 1030; Illustrated Encyclopædic Medical, Dr. F. F. Foster, *rev.*, 1196; of Medicine, etc., Sir R. Quain, *rev.*, 1361
- Diday, Dr. P., obituary notice of, 143
- Digestion, disorders of and neurasthenia, relations between, 466
- Dilworth, Dr. T., broncho-pneumonia simulating acute pulmonary tuberculosis, 171
- Di-nitrobenzol, amblyopia from, 449
- Diphtheria and defective drainage, 42, 106, 1391; in the hospitals of the Metropolitan Asylums Board, 105; the death-rate from, 163; acetous vapour in, 188; sublimed sulphur in, 227, 459, 462, 615, 896, 1168; the prevention of, 279; in the suburbs, 372; in the house, 430; the diagnosis of by bacteriological cultures, 635; at Malvern College, 700; discussion on at Rome, 744; recurrence of, 858; certain affections of the mucous surfaces and their relations with, 860; and school life, 932, 988, 1279, 1284; discussion on at the Hunterian Society, 968; treatment of in babies, 1107; in London, 1112; as a notifiable disease, 1368; the new treatment of, 1374
- Diploma, a Chinese medical, 668
- Disclaimer, a, 391
- Disease, towels and, 319; waterborne, 477, 589; surgical, the beginnings of, 862
- Addison's, complicated with influenza, 965; the causation of, 1017
- Bright's, pregnancy and, 66; milk diet in, 636
- caisson, prevention of, 446; books on, 503
- Charcot's, specimen of, 191
- Friedreich's, two cases of, 862
- Graves's, removal of right lobe of thyroid for, 1192
- Raynaud's, a case of, 187
- Diseases, Infectious, Dr. L. C. Parkes, *rev.*, 414; infective, spread of, 795; infectious, coexistence of, 968
- Disinfection of clothes, 615
- Disinfectors, steam, 1085; eucalyptus, 1418
- Disinfectors, 551
- Dislocation by muscular action, 1168
- Dispensaries, provident, 391, 1003; the election of medical officers of, 1447
- Dispensary, portable, 248
- system, provident, experiences of the, 1088
- Dispensers, female, 951
- Diver, Dr. E., the use of chlorine gas in the treatment of chronic ulcers of the leg, 1191
- Dix, Miss G., the nurse's working day, 34
- Dixon, Surgeon-Captain A. L. H., the art of breathing, 538
- Dobson, Dr. L., recurrence of diphtheria, 888
- Doctor, a, in time of danger, 370; in contempt, 930; censured, 981; the cheap, a word in defence, 1105, 1156, 1279; the holiday of a, 1117; the cheap and hospital abuse, 1332, 1391
- Doctors and the press, 374
- Doctors' shops, 1432
- Dod's Parliamentary Companion, *rev.*, 583
- Dog, chorea and endocarditis in a, 22; phthisis in a, 999
- Dogs, tuberculosis in, 150; rabies and the duties of owners of, 646; stray in London, 949
- Dokicz, Dr., death of, 167
- Dolan, Dr. T. M., the education of workhouse children, 985, 995
- Donald, Dr. A., midwives' registration, 1052; An Introductory to Midwifery, *rev.*, 1417
- Donath, Dr. J., pyrogenic substances, 742
- Donations, 143, 236, 651, 768, 806, 852, 993, 949, 984, 1004, 1113, 1208, 1255, 1257, 1290, 1348, 1396
- Donkey, kicked by a, 1005
- Donkin, Dr. H. B., The Diseases of Childhood (Medical), *rev.*, 414
- Donovan, Dr. W., antiseptics in enteric fever, 284; passage of the catheter in prostatic disease, 392, 616, 840
- Doran, Mr. A., the treatment of bleeding and other uterine fibroids by removal of the appendages, 1233
- Dorin, Mr. A., medical coroners, 660
- Douglas, Dr. A., death of, 1001
- Dover's powder, poisoning by, 985
- Dove's shot-proof body covering, 928
- Down Brothers, Messrs., the sterilisation of catheters, 1342
- Downie, Dr. W., epithelioma of the left vocal cord removed by laryngotomy seventeen months ago, 575
- Downing Professor of Medicine, appointment of, 542, 556
- D.P.H., books for examination for, 170
- Drage, Dr. L., the sick poor at Hatfield, 1333
- Drainage, defective, diphtheria and, 42, 106, 1391; treatment of peritonitis by, 122; tuberculous meningitis cured by, 525
- Drains, combined, 891
- Dreschfeld, Mr. H. T., osteoma of the superior maxilla, epithelioma of the tongue, 61
- Dr. J., a case of acromegaly, 4; Friedreich's disease, 862; acute disseminated myelitis, 1174
- Dressing, first field, 305
- Drink, bill for in 1893, 448; habitual drunkards and the supply of, 818, 951
- Drugs, popular and unpopular, 1378
- Drunkards, habitual legislation for, 261; and the supply of drink, 818, 951
- Drunkards' exhibition, 680
- Dublin, the health of, 31, 206; charges against hospitals in, 34, 96; the water supply of, 111, 767; bequests to hospitals of by Mr. G. Taylor, 299, 721, 758, 1281, 1319; the main drainage scheme for, 424; proposed amalgamation of ophthalmic hospitals in, *ib.*; hospital Sunday fund at, 443; proposed veterinary college for, 482; the medical students of, 594, 648, 816; a new hospital for, 646
- Duckmole. See Platypus
- Duct, thyreo-glossal, persistence of, 801, 1020, 1358; distended Gartner's, associated parovarian and vaginal cysts formed from, 802
- Dudfield, Dr. E., presentation to, 1005
- Duke, Dr. A., a gynecologist's cervical plug, 305; improved form of Arran's tube for vaginal lavement, 919
- Dr. E., treatment of pruritus ani, 951
- Dr. M. P., symptoms resembling cerebellar paralysis cured by expulsion of ascarides, 1116
- Dukes, Dr. C., the education of workhouse children, 1107; On the Features which Distinguish Epidemic Rosola (Rose Rash) from Measles and Scarlet Fever, *rev.*, 1416
- Duncan, Dr. W. A., puerperal septicæmia, 435
- Dunlap, Dr. A., death of, 612
- Dunlop, Dr. J., sudden death during labour, 965
- Dunn, Mr. E. P., the proposed "Society of the Royal College of Surgeons of England," 658
- Duodenum, perforation of a chronic ulcer of treated by excision, 1014, 1022
- Durham, Mr. A. E., retirement of from surgery of Guy's, 700; farewell dinner to, 758
- Mr. H. E., persistence of the thyreo-glossal duct, 801
- Dutt, Dr. A. C., teucium in chronic nasal catarrh, 1115
- Duty, professional, the limits of, 1095
- Dwelling-Houses, their Sanitary Construction and Arrangements, Dr. W. H. Corfield, *rev.*, 1196
- Dwellings of the People (The), Mr. T. L. Worthington, *rev.*, 683; artisans, the mortality of, 1433
- Dyer, Mr. E. E., a vertical footpiece in hip-joint disease treated by extension (weight and pulley), 633
- Dysentery, is it the invariable precursor of tropical abscess of the liver? 678, 1333, 1390
- Dyspepsia, chronic, perforative peritonitis and death, 284; common forms of in women, 570, 673
- E.
- Eade, Sir P., on influenza in 1893-94, 816
- Earl of Kintore, receives LL.D. at Cambridge *honoris causa*, 556
- of Rosebery on quack advertisements, 1040
- East Thimbley, enteric fever at, 1284
- Eastes, Mr. G., retained pessary causing strangulation of the uterus, 351; poisoning by strychnine, 1244
- Eaux Minérales de la Balnéothérapie et de l'Hydrothérapie (Formulaire des), Dr. De la Harpe, *rev.*, 1365
- Eccles, Mr. A. E., the relationship between disorders of digestion and neurasthenia, 466
- Mr. W. McA., formic aldehyde as a rapid hardening reagent for animal tissues, 1124; deposit of urate of soda in the scrotum, 1361
- Eclampsia, puerperal, following lead poisoning, 682
- Ectopia vesicæ, operation for, 191; specimens of, 858; case with operation, 1077
- Eczema, vesicular, the internal treatment of, 175; washerwoman's, thyroid extract in, 633; of teething, thyroïdin in, 724; the nature of, 797
- Eddowes, Mr. W., obituary notice of, 1000
- Eden, Dr. T. W., Chelsea Hospital for Women, 312
- Edgeworth, Dr. F. H., bilateral facial paralysis due to injury by forceps at birth, 11
- Edinburgh, small-pox in, 224, 279, 334, 777, 1070, 1112, 1237, 1444; abuse of medical charities in, 265, 321; University Hall at, 942; post-graduate classes in, 1115; women doctors in, 1229
- Education of workhouse children, 985, 995, 1000, 1107
- Edwards, Dr. R., treatment of gleet, 333
- Egypt, the sanitary department of, 944; sanitation in, 1089; correspondence from, 1154
- "Eiderdon," 71
- Elbow-joint, excision of, 68
- Elder, Dr., abdominal surgery, 862
- Election, contested, the humours of a, 595
- Electrical apparatus, standard, 874
- Electricity, the danger of, 319; the treatment of infantile paralysis by, 525; in Diseases of



- Women and Obstetrics, Dr. F. H. Martin, *rev.*, 1364
- Electrolysis in naevus, 861
- Elephant with the toothache, 994
- Elephantiasis Arabum in the Southsea islands, 1186
- Elkins, Dr., general paralysis, 21
- Elliott, Mr. H., the Forest Gate school scandal, 1278
- Embolism, pulmonary, 1126
- Emerson, Mr., typhoid fever, 916
- Empyema, double, cure after incision and drainage, 912; in childhood, 1020
- Encephalocele, removal, hydrocephalus, death, 510
- Enchondroma, pelvic, 859
- Endocarditis, septic, the diagnosis of, 828; ulcerative, 862
- Enemata, scarlet rash after, 1190, 1413
- England, physical culture in, 375; treatment of inebriety in, 761
- Enterectomy for gangrenous bowel, 235
- Enteritis and membranous vaginitis, 1300
- Enterohepatitis suppurativa, 743
- Enterorrhaphy, circular, by Paul's method, 236
- Epidemics, the educational effect of, 1380
- Epileptics, idiots and, 318; New York State Colony for, 1185; a new British colony for, 1371, 1447
- Epilepsy, treatment of, 13; hyperpyrexia in, 171; traumatic, trephining for, 408; belladonna and, 784, 896; senile, 1069, 1358
- Epiphyses, injuries to the and their results, 669
- Epithelioma, of tongue, 61; of the left vocal cord, removed by laryngotomy, 575; recurrent, resection of bladder for, 752; pyoktanin in, 1024; primary, of the clitoris, 1079
- Ernst, Mr. G., on the Application of Suitable Mechanism to a case of Amputation of Both Hands, *rev.*, 1309
- Erysipelas, and its connection with washhouses, 836; swine, results of vaccinations against, 874
- Erythema, puerperal, simulating scarlet fever, 574
- Escape, a narrow, 447, 615, 840
- Escherich, Professor, on diphtheria, 744
- Esquimaux, medical observations among, 780
- Essay on the Chief Causes of Disease, Dr. C. Thomadarampall, *rev.*, 1196
- Essays on State medicine, 486
- Essentials of Minor Surgery, Bandaging and Venereal Diseases, Dr. E. Martin, *rev.*, 304; of Practice of Pharmacy, Mr. L. E. Sayre, *rev.*, 1309
- Essex, a medical officer for the county of, 1227
- Etiquette, medical, 160; and insurance, 330, 446
- Études de Chirurgie Médullaire, M. A. Chi-pault, *rev.*, 1029
- Eucalyptus disinfectant, 1418
- Eustace, Dr. M., hydatids of femur in the site of fracture, 112
- Euthanasia, electrical, 51
- Evans, Dr. C. F., poisoning by home-made wines, 447
- Dr. O. C. P., tuberculous peritonitis, 1129
- Dr. Muir, the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524
- Evatt, Surgeon-Lieutenant Colonel G., a lunacy State medical service, 1051; appointed registrar and secretary to the principal medical officer, Netley, 1159
- Eve, Mr. F. S., pathology of rodent ulcer, 410; the case of the human ostrich, 963
- Evergreens and rheumatism, 115
- Ewens, Mr. J., treatment of delirium tremens, 1007
- Examination system, the present, 162
- Executors and prescriptions, 159, 272
- Exhibition, drunkards', 680; hygienic, date and place of meeting of, 732; the international medico-hygienic, 747; at Antwerp, 1198; sanitary at Boulogne, 1266
- Exmouth, isolation at, 443
- Exostoses in the West Indian negro, 189
- Exostosis of the auditory meatus, removal of by drilling and traction, 1302
- "Experiments" on patients, 1262
- Exposure, laws as to in relation to the spread of infection, 1227
- Extension, a mode of making in fractures of the femur, 967
- Eye, rest in affections of the, 1024
- Eyelids, congenital serous cysts of the associated with anophthalmos or microphthalmos, 1360
- Eyesight, of railway servants, the Board of Trade and, 873; periodical testing of in schools, 1023, 1107, 1147, 1278
- Face, recurrent sore on, 115
- Facepieces and masks (celluloid), 471
- Facial figure and expression, 1044
- Factories, excessive infant mortality due to labour in, 148, 595
- Factory, statistic, 480; inspectors, women as, 931; labour, infant mortality in relation to, 974
- Faculty of Physicians and Surgeons, Glasgow, *conversazione* at, 482
- Fairbank, Mr. W., gets silver cross of the Order of St. John of Jerusalem, 113; compound fracture of the tibia and fibula by muscular action, 681
- Famille (La) Névropathique, Dr. Ch. Féré, *rev.*, 1248
- Family, a pseudo-hypertrophic, 399
- Farkas, Dr. E., the value of the movements of the head and eyes in the localisation of cerebral diseases, 52
- Fat necrosis, 859
- Fauna (The) of the Deep Sea, Dr. S. J. Hickson, *rev.*, 1416
- Fawcett, Mr. E., a new, cheap, and effective basin for mounting and embedding in plaster-of-paris specimen dissections of the human body, 1368
- Fazio, Dr., alcoholism, 798
- Fearnley, Mr. W., laparotomy by compound incision, 1241
- Fecundity, great, 51
- Fede, Dr. N., on rickets, 745
- Fee, a large, and its use, 210; extra for attendance on *post-partum* hemorrhage, 280; the ritual of the, 539; for fracture when the patient is subsequently removed to hospital, 663; for insurance death certificate, 895
- Feeding, artificial, in acute melancholia, 183, 522; of infants, 187; of school boys and school girls, 373; forcible of the insane, 462, 574, 607, 668, 724, 883; after abdominal section, 595; nasal in cases of painful deglutition, 1078
- Fees, substitutes and, 44; to medical witnesses, 97, 261; for notification of infectious disease, 111, 166, 388; for fracture under Poor-law, 187, 1445; insurance, 170; for medical information given to guardians, 388; special for difficult midwifery, 499; lunacy, 609; of medical witnesses in the colonies, *ib.*, for notification, medical officers of health and, 611; pauper lunacy, 892, 1003; payable to police constables, 827; in midwifery, cases where attendance is not required, 945; for *post-mortem* examinations, 998; for medical witnesses at inquests, 1053; midwifery, 1054; liability for of parochial boards, 1208; medical and veterinary, a contrast, 1223; divided 1267; operation, in club cases, 1399; for premature confinements in Poor-law practice, 1445
- Femur, a mode of making extension in fractures of the, 967; hydatids of in the seat of fracture, 1124
- Fenn, Surgeon-Major E. H., made C.B., 29
- Fenton, Mr. H., death of, 1056
- Penwick, Mr. E. H., the advantage of combining dyes with urethral injections for obstinate gleet, 12; cholesterolin cyst of kidney, 18; cast of the mucous membrane of the bladder, 161; Atlas of Electric Cystoscopy, *rev.*, 184; resection of bladder for recurrent epithelioma, 752; Thiersch-Gould operation, 860; suprapubic sounding for calculus and suprapubic electric cystoscopy, *ib.*; papillomatous growths removed from the, 661
- Dr. W. S., acute phthisis following destruction of the mucous membrane of the stomach by corrosive fluids, 129
- Féré, Dr. Ch., La Famille Névropathique, *rev.*, 1248
- Ferguson, Dr. A. H., vesico- and recto-vaginal fistulae, 1248
- Mr. J. M., uneducated and unrestricted midwives, 772
- Ferreira, Professor T., death of, 48
- Fever, waterborne, 264; the conveyance of patients suffering from, 279; waterborne, in the Trent Valley, 630; at Ashton-in-Makefield, 610; chronic intermittent, treatment of, 762; the part played by nervous debility in the production of, 791; in London, 1048
- enteric, antiseptics in, 62, 264; on the Riviera, 94; the cold-bath treatment of, 127; in the Tees Valley, 132, 541, 771; outbreak of at Thurso, 154; waterborne, 320, 819, 872; in cottage hospitals, 391; alcohol in, 521; outbreak of at Caterham barracks, 542; excision in perforation in, 578; in Barnsley, 610; thymol in, 668, 723, 783; contagiousness of, 686; at Worthing, the cost of, 815; and creameries, *ib.*; the use of a combination of carbolic acid and chloroform in, 909, 1007; some unusual cases of, 916; waterborne, in France, 928; an analysis of 24 cases of in children, 964; in a diabetic subject, 1080; waterborne, in the antipodes, 1097; and milk and water, 1112; the perchlorides of mercury and iron in, 1126, 1302; influence of different kinds of soil on the organisms of, 1126; from milk in South Lambeth, 1148; waterborne, in the United States, 1162; waterborne among officers in India, 1203; in Shildon and East Thickey, 1284; epidemic of in Ireland, 1319; milk, sewage, and, 1325; at Brixton, 1338; sewer-borne, 1339; waterborne at Nowshera, 1396
- Fever, malarial, types of seen in Baltimore, 854
- puerperal at the Liverpool Workhouse Hospital, 862
- Roman, the nature of, 598; the avoidance of, 652
- scarlet, membranous inflammation of throat during, 130; recrudescence in, 240, 391, 447, 560, 575; from milk in Glasgow, 426; puerperal, erythema simulating, 574; at Lewisham, 700, 772; from milk in Hastings, 815; at Blackheath, 1039; at Aldershot, 1203; hospital accommodation for in London, 1263
- Traumatic, The Physiology of Death from, Mr. J. D. Malcolm, *rev.*, 528
- typhus near Liverpool, 480; the diagnosis of, 597; in Liverpool, 704; in Algiers, 1440
- Fevers, Mediterranean, 1332
- Ffennell, Mr. E. B., competition and underselling, 438
- Fibroids, bleeding and other uterine, the treatment of by removal of the appendages, 1233
- Fibro- lipoma, a large, 574
- Fibroma, naso-pharyngeal, 1192
- Fibromata, uterine, intermittent contractions of in relation to diagnosis, 1023
- Fibromyoma of uterus becoming sarcomatous, 16
- Fibula and tibia, compound fracture of by muscular action, 681; and tibia, operative treatment of oblique simple fractures of in certain classes of labourers, 859, 931, 1158
- Filarial disease of the lymphatics in which a number of adult filariae were removed from the arm, 844
- Filth diseases, the war against, 320
- Finger, Dr. R., Die Blennorrhoe der Sexualorgane und ihre Complicationen, *rev.*, 194
- Fingernail, the, in removal of adenoids, 895, 1064
- Finland, leprosy in, 148; longevity in, 239
- Finlay, Dr. D. W., abscess of spleen with secondary abscess of liver, 859
- Finley, Dr. H., pernicious anaemia, 1302
- Finney, Dr., mediastinal tumour (columnar-celled cancer), 467
- Finssen, exclusion of light in small-pox, 742
- Fire at workhouse school, 1388
- Fires at London hospitals, 90
- Fish, unsound, 111; and cholera, 154; condemned, the destination of, 340
- Fisher, Dr. H., a diastolic bruit at the apex in the heart disease of children, 908
- Fistula, entero-vesical, treated by laparo-enterectomy, 405
- Fistulae, vesico- and recto-vaginal, 406
- Fitzgerald, Mr., needles for cleft palate, 1031
- Flagella of bacteria, staining of, 908
- Flaxworkers' phthisis, 1097
- Fletcher, Mr. R., novel poison bottle, 973
- Mr. T., cooking by gas, the sanitary aspect, 552
- Flood, Dr., presentation to, 1372
- Florence, the health of, 1094
- Flynn, Dr. E. F., chronic dyspepsia, perforating peritonitis, death, 284
- Foa, Professor P., on cancer, 743
- Foams, Microscopic and Protoplasm, Investigations on, Professor O. Butschli, *rev.*, 1027
- Förster, Dr. R., death of, 665
- Fotation intra- and extrauterine at full term, Caesarean section (Porro), 1019; extrauterine, 1129
- Fomites, gonorrhoeal infection by, 407
- Food, unsound, 156; seamen's, 1093; adulteration of, 1227
- Foot, the soldier's, 264; and boot, the soldier's, 1375
- Football, fatal accident at, 425, 646, 949; deaths at, 700; the dangers of, 770
- Footpiece, vertical in hip-joint disease, 633
- Forbes, Dr. C., a pipe inhaler, 1249
- Forceps, bilateral facial paralysis due to injury by at birth, 11; bullet extracting, 357
- Forearm, compound fracture of, 1129
- Forest Gate, the scandal of the schools at, 879, 995, 1048, 1264, 1278

- Foresters' Court, juvenile, 1342  
 Formations, multiple new, 302  
 Formic aldehyde as a rapid hardening agent for animal tissues, 1124  
 Forster, Arnold. *See* Arnold-Forster  
 Fosbery, Mr. W. H. S., folding chloroform inhaler, 919  
 Foster, Dr. F. F., Illustrated Encyclopædic Medical Dictionary, *rev.*, 1196  
 — Professor M., biographical sketch of, 696; the organisation of science, 727  
 — Sir W., on the education and examination of sanitary inspectors, 935  
 Fournier, Dr. A., *Traitement de la Syphilis*, *rev.*, 247  
 Fox, Dr. J. H., on diphtheria, 1128  
 — Mr. J. T., the treatment of cancer of the breast, 493  
 — Dr. T. C., the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524  
 Foxwell, Dr. A., on hæmoptysis, 849; aortic aneurysm, 1361  
 Fracture, simple, mobilisation and massage in, 916; simple oblique, treatment of 995; recent, sarcoma growing at the site of, 1125  
 Fractures, undetected of the skull, 1268  
 France, lunacy legislation in, 40; medical men in the Senate of, 147; medical hydrology in, 268; doctors of medicine in, 340; births and deaths in, 433; average duration of medical study in, 447; sanatoria for tuberculous patients in, 500; fees for graduation in medicine in, 521; mortality from tuberculosis in, 548; the degree of M.D. in, 559; the depopulation of, 649; suicide in, 721; cremation in, 837; waterborne typhoid in, 928; epidemics in, 994, 1222; protection of children in, 1008; medical students in, 1033; medical members of cabinet of, 1263; qualification to practise medicine in, 1287; epidemics in, 1331; pay wards in hospitals of, 76  
 Franchise, medical relief and the, 319  
 Francis II, the death of, a historical case of adenoid growths, 867  
 Franklin, Mr. G. C., intra- and extrauterine foetation at full term, Cæsarean section (Porro), 1019  
 Franks, Mr. K., fibrous stricture of the œsophagus treated by gastrotomy and dilatation from below, 243  
 Fraser, Mr. A., complete transposition of viscera, 1245; single and double monstrosities, 76  
 — Dr. R. M., consulting-room chair, 1447  
 — Dr. T. R., bone-marrow in the treatment of pernicious anæmia, 1172  
 Frazer, Dr. R. F., further cases of diphtheria successfully treated by the local application of sublimed sulphur, 462, 615  
 Freemasonry, the medical profession and, 1061  
 Frena camera, the, 196  
 Frenzies, phrenological, 701  
 Frère, Dr. A. H., handicraft spasm in a stone-mason, 188; puerperal septicæmia, 435  
 Freyer, Surgeon-Major P. J., 852 operations for stone in the bladder, 1294  
 Friedländer, Dr. C., Mikroskopische Technik zum Gebrauch bei medicinischen und anatomischen Untersuchungen, *rev.*, 970  
 Friedrich's disease. *See* Disease  
 Friends, save me from my, 283  
 Frog marching, 1040, 1160  
 Frogs (blue), 1205, 1287  
 Frosts, winter, 1841-1894, 820  
 Fund, Alexander memorial, prizes of, 984  
 — Andrew Clark memorial, meeting of executive committee of, 535; subscriptions to, 1093  
 — British Medical Benevolent, annual general meeting of subscribers to, 211  
 — Countess of Dufferin's, annual report of the United Kingdom Branch of, 144  
 — the Griffiths, subscriptions to, 1052, 1115, 1231, 1287, 1448  
 — Hospital Saturday, report of council of, 90; distribution of, 209  
 — Hospital Sunday, amount of, 1376, 1445  
 — Milnes Marshall Memorial, amount of subscriptions to, 1445  
 — National Leprosy, prizes offered by, 95  
 — National Pension for Nurses, annual meeting of, 666; *v.* the Record Press Limited, 829; letter from secretary of, 942  
 — the Soden, subscriptions to, 116  
 — the Tait, subscriptions to, 1036, 1115, 1168, 1231, 1287, 1340  
 — Trained Nurses Annuity, letter from Lady Bloomfield on, 942  
 Funerals, dangerous observances at, 536, 724  
 Fungus kingdom, the, 404  
 Furber, Mr. E. P., a complicated case of fracture of the base of the skull, 910  
 Furneaux, Mr. W. S., Philip's Anatomical Model, *rev.*, 471  
 Fyfe, Dr., primary carcinoma of the lung, 967  
 G.  
 Gag, a simple, 806  
 Galactorrhœa, treatment of, 895, 951, 1063  
 Gall bladder and bile ducts, surgery of, 901  
 Galloway, Dr. J., amœbic abscess of the liver, 676  
 Galton, Sir D., Healthy Hospitals, *rev.*, 22; exceptional children, 758  
 — Dr. J. C., urticaria following the eating of periwinkles, 171  
 Gamba, Professor A., on rickets, 745  
 Gamble, Major G. F., universal poison labels, 1418  
 Gamgee, Professor A., the mistaken announcement of the death of, 758; A Textbook of the Physiological Chemistry of the Animal Body, *rev.*, 1414  
 — Mr. A. G., obituary notice of, 47  
 Gangrene of lung from a syphilitic patient, 859  
 Gara, Dr. G., pyrogenic substances, 742  
 Garland, Dr. A. J., beer in jaundice, 283; creasote in phthisis, 340  
 Garrod, Dr. A. E., A Handbook of Medical Pathology for the Use of Students in the Museum of St. Bartholomew's Hospital, *rev.*, 1248  
 Garson, Dr. J. G., artificial deformities of the genitals, 302  
 Gas, cooking and heating by, 76, 107, 212, 252, 365, 504; the sanitary aspect of, 437, 552  
 — fires, 115  
 — stoves, 338, 1007; an improvement in, 1250  
 Gaskell, Dr. W. H., the Hyderabad Chloroform Commission, 436  
 Gasquet, Dr. F. A., The Great Pestilence, *rev.*, 13-2  
 Gaster, Dr. A., a case of ectopia vesicæ, with operation, 1077  
 Gay, Dr. W., a case of peripheral paralysis following varicella, 679  
 Gayton, Dr. W., the medical statistics of the Metropolitan Asylums Board, 1155  
 Geddie, Dr. D. W., gonorrhœal infection by fomites, 407  
 Gelatine, pure, 1031  
 General Council of Safe Medicine, Limited, registration of, 152  
 Genitals, artificial deformities of, 302  
 "Germ of all life," the, 392  
 Germany, degrees for medical women in, 84; the temperance movement in, 228; the medical profession, 554; lepers in, 1098; and the proposed memorial to Charcot, 1427  
 Gestation, tubal, abdominal section for, 67; ectopic, 46  
 Giantess, acromegaly in a, 21  
 Gibraltar, formation of Branch of British Medical Association at, 656; notes on its sanitary administration and its hospitals, 1033, 1089, 1132, 1288  
 Gibson, Bridge v., 1338  
 — Dr. C., obituary notice of, 947  
 — Dr. L. P., dislocation by muscular action, 1168  
 Gilbert, Dr., and the theory of magnetism, 542  
 — Dr. E. G., prophylaxis of influenza, 392  
 Gillespie, Nurse. *See* Hackney Schools.  
 Gilman, Dr. D. C., The Organisation of Charities, *rev.*, 1307  
 Girls, lead poisoning in, 334  
 Gladstone, Mr., Sir A. Clark on the retirement of, 256; the health of, 430, 542, 597, 932, 1040; the operation on, 1147, 1203, 1263  
 Gland, suprarenal, abnormal position of, 408  
 Glanders in London, 205; the diagnosis of in man and in the horse, 320; the biological action of the products of the bacillus of, 742; fine for non-notification of, 1396  
 Glands, enlarged cervical, the treatment of, 160  
 Glasgow, doctors' shops in, 44; rabies in, 424; milk scarlatina in, 426; Sir J. Lister in, 1152; small-pox in, 1162; purification of sewage works at, 1257  
 Glass, the line of force in fracture of, 439  
 Gleet, obstinate, the advantage of combining dyes with urethral injections for, 12; treatment of, 338; and gonorrhœal infection, 1007; and marriage, 1448  
 Glossop, the arsenic poisoning cases at, 891  
 Goetze, Dr. W., Illustrated Manual of Hand and Eye Training on Educational Principles, *rev.*, 972  
 Goitre, exophthalmic, first description of, 784; thyroid feeding in 839; partial thyroidectomy and tracheotomy for, 1192  
 Golgi, a modification of the method of for the study of the human brain, 909  
 Gonorrhœa, infection of by fomites, 407  
 Goodall, Dr. E., assistant medical officers in asylums, 659; The Microscopical Examination of the Human Brain, *rev.*, 751; "uncertifiable patients," 827, 941  
 Goodall, Dr. E. W., on diphtheria, 968  
 Goodridge, Dr., and the shipwreck of the *Volga*, 370  
 Goodsall, Mr., closure of colotomy wound after three years, 860  
 Gordon, Mr. C., a gigantic medical abuse, 158  
 — Dr. J., treatment of psoriasis (syphilitic) by thyroid extract, 186; a contribution to the study of piperazine, 1291  
 Gorrie, Anderson v., 266, 779, 930, 944, 945, 1032, 1037, 1107  
 Gouguenheim, Dr., surgical treatment of laryngeal tuberculosis, 798  
 Gould, Mr. A. P., removal of foreign body from the bladder, 191  
 — Dr. G. M., The Meaning and the Method of Life, *rev.*, 70  
 Gout as a Peripheral Neurosis, Dr. W. F. Wade, *rev.*, 70; of the intestines, 1413  
 Gow, Dr., vaginal secretion, 67; relation of heart disease to menstruation, 579; A Handbook of Medical Pathology for the Use of Students in St. Bartholomew's Hospital, *rev.*, 1248  
 Gowers, Dr. W. R., A Manual of Diseases of the Nervous System, *rev.*, 246; out-patient hospital abuse, 716; pernicious anæmia at, 21, 904  
 Grande Armée, a survivor of the, 1400  
 Grant, Dr. D., aspects of medical life, John Hunter, Andrew Clark, 481  
 Gravely, Mr. T., death of, 143  
 Graves's disease. *See* Disease  
 Gray v. Mackenzie, 685  
 — Dr. E., enforced feeding of the insane and others, 607  
 — Mr. H., Anatomy, Descriptive and Surgical, *rev.*, 805  
 Greek, typewritten, 1063; modern, as the language of science, 1269  
 Green, Mr. W. E., case of viper bite, 1189  
 Greenwich, the explosion at, 420; sanitary precautions at the workhouse of, 1162  
 — Observatory, new telescope for, 665  
 Greenwood, Dr. M., recurrence or relapse, 447  
 Greer, Mr. W. J., puerperal septicæmia and pemphigus neonatorum, 1241  
 Greet, Mr. W. A., acetous vapour in diphtheria, 188  
 Gribbon, Brigade-Surgeon G. C., obituary notice of, 1337  
 Grieve, Hon. R., leaves British Guiana, 1380  
 Griffith, Mr. A. H., orbital tumours, 579  
 — Mr. J., a rare form of intraocular melanoma, 1024  
 Griffiths and Gwynne-Vaughan, Gwynne-Vaughan v., 817, 828  
 — Dr. C. N., death of, 612  
 — Dr. J., ossification of the synovial membrane of the left knee-joint in a young man, 957; castration in enlargement of the prostate, 1052  
 — Mr. P. R., sarcoma growing at the site of a recent fracture, 1125; membranous vaginitis and enteritis, 1300  
 — Dr. T. D., vote of sympathy to, 949  
 Grimm, Dr., Japanese infants, 896  
 Grocers' Company, medical research scholarships of, 928  
 Gruber, Dr. J., Textbook of Diseases of the Ear, *rev.*, 754  
 Grundriss, der geburtshilflichen Operationslehre für Aerzte und Studierende, Dr. O. Herff, *rev.*, 195; der Histologie für Studierende und Aerzte, Dr. B. Rawits, *rev.*, 805; der Kinderheilkunde mit besonderer Berücksichtigung der Diätetik, Dr. O. Hauser, *rev.*, 1417  
 Guard for ear syringe, 248  
 Guardians and paid officerships, 1227  
 Guarneri, vaccinia and small-pox, 796  
 Guillié, Dr., On the Instruction and Amusements of the Blind, *rev.*, 1303  
 Gundelach, Dr., death of, 1443  
 Gunshot injuries of the upper thigh, 352, 965  
 — wound, abdominal case of, 759; of knee-joint, 912  
 — wounds, some interesting cases of, 244, 464  
 Gussenbauer, Dr. K., biographical sketch of, 1376  
 Gut, post-anal, in an infant, cyst in the, 1031  
 Guthrie, Dr., osteitis deformans, 861  
 Gwatkin, Mr. O., incised abdominal wound of intestine, recovery, 910  
 Gwynne-Vaughan v. Gwynne-Vaughan and Griffiths, 817, 828  
 Gynecology, Clinical, Dr. T. M. Madden, *rev.*, 23; Clinical and Operative, a Treatise on, M. S. Pozzi, *rev.*, 71

- Habershon, Dr. S. H., gangrene of lung from a syphilitic patient, 859; tuberculosis of the ovaries and Fallopian tubes, 966; tuberculous ulcer of the stomach, 1081
- Hackney Union, alleged cruelty at the schools of, 1232, 1321, 1378; ophthalmia at the schools of, 1258
- Haden, Sir F. Seymour, letter from, 1279
- Hæmatoma of labium obstructing delivery, 62
- Hæmin crystals, method of obtaining from blood stains mixed with rust, 351
- Hæmoglobinuria from muscular exertion, 1050
- Hæmoptysis, Dr. A. Foxwell on, 849
- Hæmorrhage, trephining for, 69; middle meningeal, trephining for, 412; extradural, 577; secondary, successful ligature of common carotid for, 1301; umbilical, 1344
- Haffkine, M., the method of anticholera inoculation of, 667, 1267, 1319, 1430
- Hagar's Well at Mecca, 1412, 1427
- Haig, Dr. A., rheumatic perityphlitis and gout of the intestines, 1413
- Haines, Surgeon-Captain H. A., rapid cure of cystic tumour of skull, 1343
- Halfpenny, long retention of in stomach, 1400
- Halifax, annual report of small-pox hospital at, 1003
- Hall, Dr. F. de H., hoarseness in life assurance, 330
- Hallucinations in the sane associated with local organic disease of the sensory organs, etc., 1015
- Hamilton, Dr. James (Chelsea), out-patient hospital abuse, 658
- Dr. James (Glasgow), doctors' shops in Glasgow, 44
- Surgeon-Colonel J. B., the prevention and cure of ague by opium, 102
- Dr. Lillian, goes to Cabul, 781
- Hammarsten, Professor O., A Textbook of Physiological Chemistry, *rev.*, 805
- Hampstead, the workhouse and its nurses, 443
- Hanau, Dr., on cancer, 744
- Hancock, Mr. E., the health of Southend-on-Sea, 1064
- Hand, the mammalian, 1067
- Handbook for Mothers, A. Miss J. H. Walker, *rev.*, 131; of Gynecology (The Students'), *rev.*, 195; Practical, of Midwifery, Dr. F. W. N. Haultain, *rev.*, 304; of Ophthalmic Science and Practice, Mr. H. E. Juler, *rev.*, 999; for Attendants on the Insane, *rev.*, 1028; of Medical Physiology for the Use of Students in the Museum at St. Bartholomew's Hospital, Drs. W. P. Herringham, A. E. Garrod, and W. J. Gow, *rev.*, 1248; The Student's of Medicine and Therapeutics, Mr. A. Wheeler, *rev.*, 1309; Legal for the Use of Hospital Authorities, Mr. L. S. Bristowe, *rev.*, 1383
- Handford, Dr. H., dermatitis exfoliativa pigmentosa, 20; ulcerative endocarditis, 862
- Hands, dirty, and frozen meat, 783
- Handwriting, sloping, 1223
- Hankin, Dr. E. H., an account of bacteriological observations in an Indian dairy, 181; Hagar's Well at Mecca, 1412, 1427
- Hanotau, M., on the objects of the cholera conference, 267
- Hanseman, the pancreas in diabetes, 796
- Harcourt, Sir W., the health of, 1040
- Harding, Dr. W., Mental Nursing, *rev.*, 972
- Hardman, Dr. W., "proprietary mixtures," 104; Cow-pox and small-pox, 172; is *ozæna* infectious? 858; a microscope matter, 1064; the heredity of cancer, 1358
- Hardwicke, Dr. W. W., consultants, 228
- Hardy, Mr. H. N., out-patient hospital abuse, 717; the Gresham University scheme, 940
- Harkin, Dr. A., obituary notice of, 112
- Harley, Dr. V., sugar as food, 171
- Harness case, *The*, 221, 277, 333, 383
- Alabaster and another v., 998, 1281
- Harris, Dr. A. C. E., an obscure case of sudden death, 862
- Dr. A. W., insanitary areas in Southampton, 892
- Dr. E., sclerosis of calvaria and gumma of brain, 409
- Dr. R. P., symphysiotomy, 578
- Dr. T., the collection and preservation of urinary casts and other organic urinary deposits, 969, 1356
- Dr. V. D., the recent election to the annual Committee of Convocation of the University of London, 1108
- Harris-Liston, Mr. L., cases of bearded women, 1190
- Harrison, Mr. R., Lectures on the Surgical Disorders of the Urinary Organs, *rev.*, 804
- Harrogate waters in bottle, 248
- Hart, Mr. E., the press, the quacks, and the public, 208; the nurseries of cholera, 358, 415
- essays on State medicine, 486; at Gibraltar, 535; on Tangier, 584, 688, 807; tea, coffee, and cocoa, 640; a French journalist on, 927; notes on Gibraltar, its sanitary administration and its hospitals, 1033, 1089, 1132
- Hart, Mrs. E., and the Irish peasantry, 770
- Hartigan, Dr. W., experiences with antipyretics in the tropics, 240
- Hartill, Mr. J. T., the powers of sanitary authorities, as to isolation and quarantine, 1334
- Hartley Wintney, the rural sanitary authority of and notification payments, 872
- Haslam, Mr., trephining for middle meningeal hæmorrhage, 412
- Haslett, Mr. W. J. H., uncertifiable patients, 942; the passage of a spoon through the alimentary tract, 1064
- Hassall, Dr. A. H., obituary notice of, 833; proposed appeal for widow of, 1398
- Hastings, the health of, 557; milk scarlatina at, 815; opening of Palace Hotel at, 949
- Hatch, Miss Jessie F., death of, 889
- Hatfield, the nursing at the workhouse of, 154, 1251, 1268, 1333
- Hatton, Mr., intracranial complications of chronic otitis media, 20
- Haultain, Dr. F. W. N., A Practical Handbook of Midwifery, *rev.*, 304
- Hauser, Dr. A., Grundriss der Kinderheilkunde mit besonderer Berücksichtigung der Diätetik, *rev.*, 1417
- Haverfordwest, the nursing at the workhouse infirmary of, 1422, 1429
- Havre, sanitation and mortality at, 881
- Haweis, Rev. Mr., on the British Institute of Preventive Medicine, 483
- Hawksley, Mr. T., treatment of incontinence of urine, 839
- Hay, Mr. E., hyperprexia in epilepsy, 171
- Dr. M., disinfection after death from phthisis, 20; and the management of the Aberdeen City Hospital, 481
- Haycraft, Dr. J. B., Darwinism and race progress, 348, 402, 459
- Hawkins, Mr. Justice, and the smells at Nottingham, 151
- Hawthorn, Mr. F. J., epidemic jaundice, 523
- Head, self-inflicted bullet wound of the 69; injury to the, 1025
- Health resorts, notes on, 75, 1258; southern, 172; South Africa, 1007, 1093
- Hearser, Dr. G. J., death of, 276
- Heart, inflammation of the in children, 505, 561, 623; relation of disease of to menstruation, 575; idiopathic hypertrophy of the and degeneration of the muscle of, 738; a diastolic *bruit* at the apex of in diseases of in children, 906; failure of in influenza, 1074; affection of the right side of the, 1236; pain in the subsequent to influenza, 1305; Congenital Affections of the, Dr. G. Carpenter, *rev.*, 1309
- Heat, sterilisation of water by, 171; dry, an apparatus for the local application of, 1310, 1448
- Heath, Mr. C., aneurysm of the common femoral, digital compression on two occasions for twelve and six and a-half hours respectively, with five days' interval, cure, 300; rectangular ankylosis of hip-joint, 752; Injuries and Diseases of the Jaws, *rev.*, 1025
- Heaton, Mr. G., melanotic sarcoma of the rectum, 858; diffuse nevus of the tongue, 916
- Hebblethwaite, Mr., tetany, 1025
- Helme, Dr. A., tubal pregnancy, 525
- Hemiplegia, the return of the knee-kerk in a tabetic patient after an attack of, 1350
- Hempson and Elgar, Messrs., The Medical Defence Union, 492; Collie v. Bloxham, Bloxham v. Collie, 1333
- Hendley, Mrs. H., Personal and Domestic Hygiene for the School and Home, *rev.*, 1083
- Henoch, Professor, decoration of, 280
- Herbalist, inquest on the child of a, 837
- Herbert, Dr. W. W., forcible feeding of the insane, 462
- Herbert Fry's Royal Guide to the London Charities, Mr. J. Lane, *rev.*, 583
- Herrf, Dr. O. v., Grundriss der geburtshilflichen Operationslehre für Aerzte und Studierende, *rev.*, 195
- Herisson, M. H., death of, 665
- Herman, Dr. G. E., pregnancy and Bright's disease, 66; early diagnosis of cancer of the cervix uteri, 1009, 1343
- Hermaphrodite, case of, 1361
- Hermaphroditism, transverse, in a male, 301
- Hermite, M., system of sewage disinfection, 96, 329, 486, 761, 1254
- Hernia, large umbilical, radical cure of, 330; radical cure of, 573, 1081; radical cure of by Kocher's method, 857; strangulated femoral, complicated with volvulus, 859; ex-
- traperitoneal vesical, 912; congenital diaphragmatic, 967
- Herringham, Dr. W. P., croupous pneumonia in London during 1893, 1012; A Handbook of Medical Pathology for the Use of Students in the Museum of St. Bartholomew's Hospital, *rev.*, 1248
- Herz, Dr. C., the health of, 150, 1290
- Heubner, Professor, on diphtheria, 744
- Heuston, Dr. F. T., entero-vesical fistula treated by laparo-enterectomy, 405
- Hewitson, Dr. J., types of malarial fever seen in Baltimore, 854
- Hewitt, Dr., on small-pox and vaccination, 834
- Hey, Mr. M., diuretic action of cascara sagrada, 171
- Hiccough, a fatal case of, 781
- Hicks, Dr. B., intermittent contractions of uterine fibromata and in pregnancy in relation to diagnosis, 1023
- Dr. E. H., creasote and climate in the treatment of phthisis, 560
- Hickson, Dr. S. J., The Fauna of the Deep Sea, *rev.*, 1416
- Highet, Dr. H. C., a case of cysticercus in the vitreous, 1242
- Highgate, the sanitary museum at, 388
- Hill, Dr. L., the effects of compression of the common carotid artery, 962
- Hind, Dr. W. H., total suppression of urine due to impacted calculus with atrophy of the other kidney from a previous similar condition, 960
- Hindle, Mr. F. T., rupture of uterus during labour, hysterectomy, 799
- Hindu medicine, a revival of, 1381
- Hip-joint, vertical footpiece in disease of, 633; rectangular ankylosis of, 752, 828
- Hirsch, Professor A., obituary notice of, 275
- Histoire des Expressions Populaires Relatives à l'Anatomie, à la Physiologie et à la Médecine, Dr. E. Brissaud, *rev.*, 1194
- Histology, Pathology, Methods of, Dr. C. v. Kahlén, *rev.*, 1417
- Hoarseness and life assurance, 207, 330
- Hobson, Dr. L. J., sale of a medical practice, 1282
- Holdall, private nurses, 196
- Holderness, Mr. W. B., inhalation of oxygen gas, 801
- Holiday, a doctor's, 1117
- Holidays, country for children, 1204
- Holland, epidemic influenza in, 599
- Mr. C. T., Lancashire and Cheshire Branch, registration of midwives, 1223
- Holloway, Dr. W. G., choice of an anæsthetic for the removal of naso-pharyngeal adenoids, 108
- Holman, Dr. C., the pension fund of the Royal Medical Benevolent College, 159; Epsom College chapel fund, 550
- Holmes, Mr. A. H., epidemic jaundice, 681
- Mr. T., the new Society of Fellows of the Royal College of Surgeons of England, 826
- Holworthy and the Notification Act, 443
- Holthoupe, Mr. E., the latest development of a gigantic medical abuse, 328
- Holwell, Mr. E. B., gleet and gonorrhoeal infection, 1007
- Homan, Dr. G., waterborne cholera, 437
- Home for consumptive patients, 895; convalescent at Leeds, memorial wing of the, 1380
- Industry and infection, 1149
- Office committee on factory statistics, members of, 480
- Secretary the and dangerous occupations, 701
- Hong Kong, the medical staff mess at, 555, 1109; the epidemic of plague at, 1326, 1383, 1436, 1440
- Honours, birthday, 1216
- Hooker, Dr., puerperal septicæmia, 435
- Hoops, Mr. H. L., presentation to, 605
- Hopgood, Mr. T. F., contagious ophthalmia in schools, 482
- Hopps, Rev. J. P., automatic writing, 104
- Hopwood, Mr., the fiasco of, 33
- Hornsey, the local board of and sewer gas, 948
- Horrocks, Mr. W., excision of intestine for malignant disease, circular enterorrhaphy by Paul's method, 236; anal tags, 916
- Horse beef, 172
- keep and carriage, cost of, 1167
- Horse-shoeing, 1007
- Horses, arsenic for badness of wind in, 839
- Horsley, Mr. V., dinner to at Sheffield, 665
- Hospital at home, a, 1102, 1288
- Aberdeen City, the management of, 481
- Addenbrooke's, donation to funds of, 143; new by laws, etc., for, 495; the work of, 1041
- Chalmers', Edinburgh, the matroncy of, 280

Hospital, Charing Cross, festival dinner of, 1164  
for Children, Shadwell, festival dinner  
of, 1080  
Christ's, proposed grants in aid of  
education of pupils of, 336; sanitary reorgan-  
isation of, 699  
City, Aberdeen, resident medical offi-  
cer for, 1355  
City Fever, Edinburgh, extension of,  
1227  
for Consumption and Diseases of the  
Chest, Brompton, changes in the staff of, 1322  
for Consumption and Diseases of the  
Chest, North London, festival dinner of, 1240  
Coombe, Dublin, the scandal at, 427  
Dental of London, annual meeting of,  
666  
Dental (National), opening of, 500  
for Diseases of the Chest, City of  
London, fire at, 90  
for Diseases of the Ear, Throat, and  
Skin, Sheffield, annual meeting of, 443  
Ear, Glasgow, annual report of, 1164  
for Epilepsy and Paralysis, changes  
in staff of, 1161  
Eye, Ear, and Throat, Cork, report of,  
664  
Eye, Bristol, number of beds in, 1287  
Fever, Cork, annual report of, 720  
Fever, Edinburgh, accidental poison-  
ing at, 148  
German, Dalston, special general  
court of, 1058; Baron Schröder and, 1116  
Guy's, report of the institution for  
Trained Nurses at, 599; endowment of five  
new beds at, 1113  
Johns Hopkins, the Reports of, *rev.*,  
1364, 1417  
Kaiser und Kaiserin Friedrichs in  
Berlin, 797  
King's College, festival dinner of,  
1060; the difficulties of, 1148  
Lansdowne at Udaipur, opening of, 837  
Lock, London, annual dinner of, 949  
London, changes in staff of, 700  
Longmore for Incurables, Edinburgh,  
annual meeting of, 312  
Metropolitan, post-graduate course  
at, 837, 1004; festival dinner of, 976  
Ophthalmic, Western, freeing of, 90  
Philadelphia, Reports of Drs. C. K.  
Mills and J. W. Walk, *rev.*, 583  
Queen's, Birmingham, donations for  
improving operating theatre at, 1091; the out-  
patient system at, 1147  
Royal Free, fire at, 90; the rebuilding  
of, 664  
Royal for Sick Children, Edinburgh,  
appointments at, 893  
St. Andrews, Northampton, paying  
and assisted patients at, 144  
St. Bartholomew's, The Reports of,  
Dr. W. S. Church and Mr. W. J. Walsham,  
*rev.*, 583; the library of and its catalogue,  
758  
St. George's, memorial to John Hunter  
at, 481  
St. Mary's, festival dinner of, 1250  
St. Mary's, Manchester, munificent  
offer to, 985  
St. Thomas's, dedication of altar and  
cross in chapel of, 683; additions to the  
medical school of, 984; new medical school  
at, 1263; fatal accident at, 1324  
Samaritan Free, festival dinner of,  
1340  
for Sick Children (Evelina), the  
Pharmacopœia of, *rev.*, 972  
for Sick Children, Great Ormond  
Street, festival dinner of, 1113  
Southern, Manchester, munificent  
offer to, 985  
Sunday, 1275, 1319; and hospital abuse,  
1276; *conversazione*, 1323  
Tulloch Memorial, description of, 922  
University College, annual dinner of,  
1357  
Western Ophthalmic. *See* Hospital,  
Ophthalmic  
for Women, Chelsea, sanitary state of,  
316, 382, 480, 550, 597, 607, 648, 871; annual meet-  
ing of governors of, 1377; festival dinner of,  
1428  
for Women and Children, City and  
County of Cork, annual report of, 1058  
and Dispensary, French, annual din-  
ner in aid of funds of, 336  
and Dispensary, Sheffield, the rebuild-  
ing fund of, 1113  
Hospitals, Healthy, Sir D. Galton, *rev.*, 22; the  
out-patient question, 30, 41, 102, 158, 217, 270,  
327, 604, 658, 716, 771, 825, 840, 882, 932, 939;

infectious, the construction of, 49; cottage,  
or district nurses, 141; isolation, payments  
in, 147; reform of, 172; aerial conveyance of  
small-pox from, 243, 411; new *versus* the ex-  
tension of old for London, 314, 368; field, 384;  
suburban isolation, 498, 593, 663, 1059; infec-  
tious, the medical officership of, 499; the  
medical staff of, 503; metropolitan fever, the  
medical staff of, 590; and the coal strike, 664;  
and clinics of Rome, 767; temporary, the cost  
of, 876; infectious, the cost of, 892; alleged  
abuses in, 1043, 1096; infectious, literature of,  
1063; reckless attacks on, 1098; Sir E. Sieve-  
king on the out-patient departments of, 1169;  
lady artists in, 1204  
House sanitation, 666  
of Commons, health in the, 481  
Housemaid's knee, accidental cure of, 187, 283,  
340  
House-surgeons, the appointment of, 482  
Houses, newly built, sanitary certificates for,  
1042; cancer and their victims, 1240  
Hovell, Mr. T. M., removal of an exostosis of  
the auditory meatus by combined drilling and  
traction, 1302  
Howard, John, unveiling of statue of, 699  
Howarth, Mr. G., death of, 1337  
Howden, Dr. J. C., Index Pathologicus, etc.,  
*rev.*, 1365  
Howe, fever on board the, 147  
Huggard, Dr. W. R., home made beef powder  
and how to prepare it, 1250  
Hughes, Dr. A. D., presentation to, 460  
Humphreys, Mr. R., proposed new order of  
midwifery practitioners, 382, 491; registration  
of midwives, 883, 995  
Hungary, Pasteurism in, 150; preventive vac-  
cination in, 1004  
Hunter, John, and Sir Andrew Clark, 481; me-  
morial to at St. George's Hospital, *ib.*; pre-  
sentation of medallion of to Hunterian So-  
ciety, 758  
Dr. W., bacterial poisons, 18  
The Brothers William and John, Dr. G.  
R. Mather, *rev.*, 917  
Hutchinson, Dr. C. F., Cap Martin, 52  
Mr. J., school ophthalmia, 242, 329,  
579; pathology of rodent ulcer, 410; the clinical  
museum of, 1446  
Mr. J. jun., abdominal section for  
acute intestinal obstruction due to multiple  
hydatid cysts, removal of the cysts, recovery,  
65; deformity of the shoulder girdle, 634; in-  
juries to the epiphyses and their results, 669;  
acute intestinal obstruction due to constrict-  
ing bands, 753  
Mr. P. S., obituary notice of, 1443  
Hydatids of femur in the site of fracture, 1124  
Hyderabad, opium in, 199; letter from the  
Prime Minister of on the Hyderabad Chlo-  
roform Commission in, 363. *See also* Commis-  
sion  
Hydrocele, congenital of the neck cured by  
drainage and compression, 1018  
Hydroceles of the neck, 1193  
Hydrocephalus, chronic, drainage, temporary  
improvement, 63; congenital syphilis as a  
cause of, 797  
Hydrology, medical, in France, 268  
Hydronephrosis, aberrant renal vessels as a  
cause of, 859; case of, 916  
Hydrophobia from the bite of a cat, 280; Dr.  
Dalles on, 771; rabies and, 1090  
Hygiene and Public Health, A Treatise on, Dr.  
T. Stevenson and Mr. S. F. Murphy, *rev.*, 469,  
1246; and Diseases of Warm Climates, Dr. A.  
Davidson, *rev.*, 581; in university local ex-  
aminations, 607; Personal and Domestic for the  
School and Home, Mrs. H. Hendley, *rev.*, 1083  
Hyperidrosis, treatment of, 1400  
Hypnotism, the Use of to the First Degree as a  
Means of Modifying or of Completely Eliminat-  
ing a Fixed Idea, Dr. Sturges, *rev.*, 972  
Hypnotism and Suggestion, Professor M.  
Benedikt, *rev.*, 249, 311  
Hypodermic case, a new pocket, 973; an aseptic  
portable, 1030  
Hysterectomy, abdominal, with treatment of  
the pedicle by the intraperitoneal method,  
125; for rupture of uterus during labour, 299;  
vaginal, 1120; vaginal, special instruments  
for, 1311  
I.  
Icecream, not milk, 320  
Iceland, medical mission as to leprosy in, 200;  
leprosy in, 1191  
Ices, street, 1427  
Icterus neonatorum, 797  
Identification of the unclaimed dead, 228; an-  
thropometric, 697  
Idiots and epileptics, 318

Iles, Dr., presentation to, 26  
Ilkeston, opening of new hospital at, 544  
Illingworth, Dr. C. R., puerperal septicæmia,  
434; treatment of pruritus ani, 651; hospital  
abuse, 1276  
Illustrations of Pathological Anatomy with Des-  
criptive Text, Drs. A. Kast and Th. Rumpel,  
*rev.*, 1028  
Impetigo (frozen meat), pyococci in, 607  
Inanition, Professor Tarnier on, 538  
Income, estimate of for taxation, 1063  
tax, deductions from, 51, 783, 1231;  
abatment of, 160; assessment of, 1007  
Index Catalogue of the Library of the Surgeon-  
General's Office, United States Army, the four-  
teenth volume of, 1136; Pathologicus, etc., Dr.  
J. C. Howden, *rev.*, 1365  
India, use of opium in, 25, 99, 116, 138, 250, 309,  
364, 553, 974; high mortality in the prisons of,  
144, 339; the sanitary condition of the prisons  
of, 154; the sanitary outlook in, 202; the lepers  
of, 205; sanitary work in, 280; the 1891 census  
of, 474; the Hemp Drugs Commission in, 499;  
the subordinate medical service in, *ib.*; vac-  
cination in the Central Provinces, *ib.*; the  
civil medical service in, 651; venereal disease  
in, 720, 830; graphic representation of statis-  
tics, 924; proposed Pasteur Institute for, 1004;  
influenza in, 1060; quackery in, *ib.*; preven-  
tion of cholera in, 1093; the army hospital  
corps in, 1109; the real want of, 1150; water-  
borne typhoid amongst officers in, 1203; dona-  
tion towards Pasteur Institute in, 1228; hypo-  
dermic injections of strychnine in snake bite  
*ib.*  
Office, the, and the Indian Army Medical  
Service, 755, 763  
Induction Coils and Coil Making, Mr. F. C. All-  
sop, *rev.*, 1131  
Industries, dangerous, 366  
Inebriates, criminal responsibility of, 149, 439;  
treatment of in Switzerland, 932; response of  
the church for appeal for legislation for, 1163;  
legislation for in Natal, 1396  
Inebriety, reputed cures for, 312; treatment of  
in England, 761; a coroner on, 874; treatment  
of in California, 1165  
Infancy, alcohol in, 263  
Infant, infection of with small-pox by mother  
after birth, 239; nephrectomy for malignant  
tumour in an, 354; cyst in the post-anal gut in  
an, 1081  
Infants, cranial deformity in, 128; excessive  
mortality of, due to factory labour, 148, 595,  
974; feeding of, 187; Japanese, 896; scurvy in,  
1439  
Infection, and red tape, 210; the by-ways of, 986  
and home industry, 1149  
Infirmaries, provincial nursing and adminis-  
tration of, 1197, 1251, 1311, 1323, 1367, 1378, 1422,  
1429  
Infirmary, General, Leeds, ladies hospital fund  
for, 646; resident posts at, 1005  
Royal, Aberdeen, the funds of, 144  
Royal, Edinburgh, annual meeting  
of contributors to funds of, 90; the elections  
to the managing board of, 148, 261, 334, 370, 537;  
and the public press, 207; appointments at,  
721, 781; and small-pox, 1004  
Royal, Liverpool, the out-patient  
department at, 646  
Royal, Manchester, the Owens Col-  
lege, 370  
Royal Sea Bathing, appeal for funds  
for, 1164  
Inflammation (L'), Dr. M. Letulle, *rev.*, 971  
Influenza, the epidemic of, 31; and the Medical  
Sickness Society, 77; the infection of, 96; the  
prophylaxis of, 161, 227, 392; the prevention  
of, 171. acute inflammation of the antrum of  
Highmore after, 237, 408, 574, 681; in North  
America, 339; in Italy, 444; epidemic in Hol-  
land, 599; epidemic jaundice and, 828; Sir P.  
Eade on, 846; Addison's disease complicated  
with, 966; in India, 1060; cardiac failure in,  
1074; purpura hæmorrhagica with pemphigus,  
probably induced by, 1191; pain of the heart,  
etc., subsequent to, 1305  
bacillus. *See* Bacillus  
Inhabited house duty, assessments to, 503  
Inhaler, improved gas and ether, 806; folding  
chloroform, 919  
Inman, Mr. J. H., death of, 612  
Inquest, or public inquiry, 207; on a herbalist's  
child, 837  
Inquests, the holding of, 1228  
Insane, forcible feeding of the, 462, 574, 607, 668,  
724, 883  
Insanity, the Morison lectures on, 316, 481; of  
district medical officers, 1059; alcoholism  
and, 1187; and overwork among operatives,  
1344

- Inspectors, factory.** See *Factory Sanitary*
- Inspectorships, med.** 1, 170
- Institut Pasteur, anti-bio vaccinations at,** 819
- Institute, British, of Preventive Medicine, progress, etc., of,** 493; opposition to in England and India, 928, 949; and Mr. Berridge's legacy, 949; meeting in opposition to at Chelsea, 1207
- of Certificated Sanitary Inspectors, annual report of, 558; annual meeting of, 721
- of Chemistry, the presidency of, 535
- Sanitary, lectures on meteorology in relation to hygiene, 816; annual report of, 837; preliminary programme of congress of, 1148
- Institution, Cambridge Provident Medical, annual report of,** 702
- Liverpool Medical, meeting of, 244, 302, 412, 527, 637, 803; cases, 862; an obscure case of sudden death, *ib.*; puerperal fever, *ib.*; and Mr. Puzey, 875; presentations to, 892
- Royal, lectures at, 167
- Instrument makers and commissions, 115**
- Insurance, etiquette and,** 330, 446
- Intestine, excision of for malignant disease, 286; large, intussusception of the, due to a papillomatous growth, 353; strangulated resection and immediate suture of, 577; wound of recovery, 910; large, tuberculous ulceration of the, 966; traumatic subcutaneous rupture of, 967; laparotomy for rupture of suture of gut, recovery, 1355**
- Intestines, gout of the, 1413**
- Intubation of the larynx in the adult, 746**
- Intussusception, cure of by rectal injections, 126; acute, in children, 345, 438; of the large intestine due to a papillomatous growth, 353; the treatment of by generating carbon-dioxide within the bowel, 800; ileocaecal in a child aged 11 months, cure after laparotomy, 911**
- Inverkeithing, the medical officership of, 489**
- Iodine, a note on the mode of action of, 1307**
- Iodoform, dermatitis from, 63**
- Ipecacuanha, sine emetina tabloids, 806**
- Ireland, site for proposed hospital for consumptives in, 430, 499; vaccination in, 443, 1162, 1227; the summer drill season in, 1280; epidemic of typhoid in, 1319**
- Dr. W. W., automatic writing, 74
- Iris, tubercle of the, 1023**
- Iron and the perchlorides of mercury in typhoid fever, 1126**
- Irving, Dr. J., trephining for hæmorrhage, 69**
- Isaacs, Major, on the construction of roads and streets, 875**
- Isdell, Dr. F., puerperal septicæmia, 435**
- Isle of Man, fever hospitals in, 334**
- Isolation of disease, 892; powers of sanitary authorities as to, 1135, 1334; of pauper infectious cases, 1227**
- Israel, Dr. O., comparative pathology of necrosis, 796**
- Italy, the medical profession in, 52; influenza in, 444; suppression of universities in, 613**
- J.
- Jackson, Mr. A., the Committee on Industrial Lead Poisoning, 43**
- Dr. C., death of, 1337
- Dr. J. H., a clinical study of a case of cyst of the cerebellum, 393; retirement of from staff of London Hospital, 700; a further note on the return of the knee-jerk in a tabetic patient after an attack of hemiplegia, 1350
- Jackson-Harmsworth, polar expedition, the surgery of, 1321**
- Jacob, Dr. E. H., the sanitary aspect of cooking by gas, 437; death of, 537; obituary notice of, 611**
- Jacobi, Dr. A., biographical sketch of, 696; on non nocere, 852; treatment of diphtheria in babies, 1107**
- Jacobs, Dr., treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy, 856**
- Jacques de Coctier, 318**
- Jaffé, Dr., congenital diaphragmatic hernia, 967**
- Japan, female medical practitioners in, 616; medical matters in, 784; infants in, 896**
- Jarrow, notification of measles at, 930**
- Jaundice, epidemic, 239, 407, 463, 522, 553, 660, 681, 774, 828, 895, 1063, 1122; beer in, 283; and emotional disturbance, 896; the mode of death in cirrhosis with, 1407**
- Jaw, lower, tumour of the, 1243**
- Jaws, Injuries and Diseases of, Mr. C. Heath, rev., 1025**
- Jejunum, traumatic rupture of without external injury, 1077**
- Jelly, cascara, 1249**
- Jenner, Dr. E., the relics of at the Bristol Exhibition, 72, 261; exhibition of in London, 646**
- Jennings, Dr. C. E., transfusion and saline intravenous injection, 162; Cancer and its Complications, rev., 1129; special instruments for vaginal hysterectomy, 1311**
- Jessett, Mr. F. B., uncertifiable patients, 772; what constitutes unsoundness of mind? 885; needle for ligaturing the broad ligaments in vaginal hysterectomy, 1085; polypoid growths in uterus, 1192**
- Jessner, Dr. S., Ein dermatologisches System auf pathologisch-anatomischer Hebra'scher Basis, rev., 639**
- Jessop, Mr. T. R., appendicular colic, 627**
- Jewett, Dr. C., Outlines of Obstetrics, rev., 131**
- Jews, death-rate of at Manchester, 1207**
- Jex-Blake, Dr. S., medical missionaries, 159**
- John of Vigo, his English translator and bookseller, 1141; the copy of in the library of the Royal Medical and Chirurgical Society, 1231; the value of the work of, 1342**
- Johnson, Sir G., diphtheria and defective drainage, 42; the influence of the arterioles in relation to various pathological conditions, 841, 897**
- Jolly, Dr. R., obituary notice of, 1337; the funeral of, 1395**
- Mr. S. B., scarlet fever at Lewisham, 772
- Jolly, Mr. F. W., a case of amenorrhœa with brain symptoms, 1354**
- Jones, Dr. E. L., chlorosis, 162**
- Dr. H. M., rest in eye affections, 1024
- Dr. L., the electrical treatment of infantile paralysis, 525; paralysis of the sternomastoid and trapezius and right side of face, 861; electrolysis in nævus, *ib.*
- Mr. R., intestinal obstruction due to occlusion of the ileum by pressure band, operation, recovery, 1123
- Mr. R. A., the health of Southend-on-Sea, 1064
- Mr. S. E., successful ligature of common carotid for secondary hæmorrhage from internal maxillary, transfusion of saline solution, 1301
- Jordan, Mr. J. F., a successful case of Porro's operation for cancer of the rectum, 299**
- Jottings, American, 169, 225, 500, 613, 1061, 1228, 1397, 1446**
- Journalism, the responsibilities of, 116; of the future and the "superior person," 145; the responsibilities of as to pocket advertisements, 760**
- Judge, malicious conduct of a, 1156; on medical certificates, 1232**
- Judges, are they above the law? 1037, 1107, 1156, 1377**
- Juhel-Rénoy, Dr., death of, 776**
- Juler, Mr. H. E., A Handbook of Ophthalmic Science and Practice, rev., 969**
- Jurors, deaf, dumb, and dead, 1007**
- K.
- Kahlden, Dr. C. v., Methods of Practical Histology, rev., 1417**
- Kanthack, Dr., actinomycosis in the human subject, 128; pathology of rodent ulcer, 409, 524**
- Kaposi, the nature of eczema, 797; idiopathic sarcoma of skin, 853**
- Kaputine, 1115**
- Karkeek, Mr. P. Q., a new pocket hypodermic case, 973**
- Karoo District, the, as a health resort, 1258**
- Kast, Dr. A., Illustrations of Pathological Anatomy with Descriptive Text, rev., 1028**
- Katarrh (Der venerische) dessen Pathologie und Therapie, Dr. E. Lang, rev., 194**
- Kearney, Dr. W. B., resolution of respect to, 1445**
- Kebbell, Dr. W., obituary notice of, 47**
- Kedzie, Professor R. C., the line of force in the fracture of glass, 439**
- Keegan, Brigade-Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel, surgical statistics, 1149**
- Keele, Dr. G. T., the Tait fund, 1115, 1168, 1231, 1287, 1340**
- Keen, Dr. W. W., the treatment of enlarged cervical glands, 160**
- Keetley, Mr. C. B., rectangular ankylosis of hip-joint, 828; operation for undescended testes, 860**
- Keighley, small-pox near, 1003; small-pox and vaccination at, 1210**
- Keith, Dr. G. E., an ovarian tumour growing with great rapidity, 1413**
- Kelly's London Medical Directory, sixth issue of, 408**
- Kelynack, Dr. T. N., A Contribution to the Pathology of the Vermiform Appendix, rev., 527**
- Kerr, Dr. J., medical certificates and school attendance, 951**
- Dr. N., past attitude of the medical profession on alcohol, 1288
- Kershaw, Mr. R., stammering, 504**
- Keser, Dr. J., broncho-pneumonia simulating acute pulmonary tuberculosis, 58**
- Kicked by a donkey, 1008**
- Kidd, Dr. F. W., an encephalic monster, 915**
- Kidney, cholesterol cyst of, 18; small white, 22; aberrant vessels of as a cause of hydronephrosis, 859; atrophy of, 960**
- Kimbell, Mr. J. H., death of, 834**
- Kimberley, hospital management in, 1228**
- Kindergarten system, the and modern languages, 537**
- Kingdom, Mr. E. C., recognition and treatment of strabismus, 20**
- Kingsley on opium in malaria, 560**
- Kingzett, Mr. C. T., the action of antiseptics on the influenza bacillus, 552**
- Kingzett's sulphurgators, 1418**
- Kintore, Earl. See Earl**
- Kirk, Dr. R., death under chloroform, 1053; venesection in renal asthma, instant relief, uric acid in the serum, 1242**
- Klein, Dr., the prevention of cholera, 425**
- Knee, housemaid's, accidental cure of, 187, 283, 340; excision of part of dislocated semilunar fibro-cartilage of, 578**
- Knee-jerk, return of in a tabetic patient after an attack of hemiplegia, 1350**
- Knee-joint, syphilitic disease of the, 17; gunshot wound of, 911; left, ossification of the synovial membrane of in a young man, 957; multiple loose bodies from the, 1081**
- Kneipp, Father, the patients of, 545**
- Knight, Dr. A., death of, 834**
- Knowledge, the tree of, 1266**
- Kocher, radical cure of hernia by the method of, 827**
- Kölliker, Dr. A. v., decoration of, 84**
- Koettlitz, Dr. R., presentation to, 1165**
- Koumiss, ptomaine, poisoning by, 1331**
- Krankheiten (Die) der Mundhöhle, des Rachens, und des Kehlkopfes, Dr. A. Rosen berg, rev., 471; (Die) der Nase, etc., Dr. Zarniko, rev., 1131; (Die) der oberen Luftwege, Dr. M. Schmidt, rev., 1247**
- L.
- Laache, Dr. S., biographical sketch of, 696; idiopathic hypertrophy of the heart and degeneration of the heart muscle, 738**
- Labels, universal poison, 1418**
- Labium, hæmatoma of obstructing delivery, 62**
- Labour, rupture of uterus during, hysterectomy, 299; sudden death during, 965; obstructed, Cæsarean section for, 1021**
- Lacing (tight), 1320**
- Ladies. See Women**
- Lady Bloomfield, the Trained Nurses Annuity Fund, 942**
- Laffan, Surgeon-Major R. C. K., and the Egyptian sanitary department, 944**
- Lake, Mr. R., removal of right lobe of thyroid for Graves's disease, 1192**
- Lamps, paraffin, fires caused by, 760**
- Lancaster, Mr. S. le C., the Griffiths fund, 1052, 1115, 1231, 1287, 1342, 1448**
- Landau, Professor, treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy, 856**
- Landlords, the liability of as to insanitary houses, 951**
- Lane, Mr. J., Herbert Fry's Royal Guide to the London Charities, rev., 383**
- Mr. W. A., multiple epitheliomatous growths developing in psoriasis, 354; general acute suppurative peritonitis due to appendicitis, *ib.*; biliary colic, removal of calculi, 752; operative treatment of oblique simple fractures of the tibia and fibula in certain classes of labourers, 859, 931, 1158
- Lang, Dr. E., Der venerische Katarrh dessen Pathologie und Therapie, rev., 194**
- Language, a universal, wanted, 598**
- Lansolin, legal decision as to the patent of, 874**
- Lansdell, Dr. H., Chinese Central Asia, rev., 22**
- Laparo-enterectomy, entero-vesical fistula treated by, 405**
- Laparotomy, successful for ileo-caecal intussusception in a child aged 11 months, 911; by compound incision, 1241; for ruptured intestine, suture of gut, recovery, 1355**
- Laryngitis, syphilitic, 915, 1244**
- Laryngotomy for epithelioma of the left vocal cord, 575**
- Larynx, large piece of bone impacted in, 573; cyst in, 915; tertiary syphilis of the, 1025; lupus of, 1192; doubtful malignant disease of treated by thyrotomy and radical removal of the growths, *ib.***



- Lattay, Dr. W., ventilation, 668; umbilical hæmorrhage, 1344
- Launceston, the rural sanitary authority of and the Cornwall County Council, 892
- Lavista, Professor, intracranial surgery, 857
- Law as to "detention" and "exposure" in relation to the spread of infection, 1227
- Lawless, Dr. G. R., forcible feeding of the insane, 668
- Lawrence, Rev. F., the papers read at the Church Sanitary Association meeting, 228
- Lawrence-Hamilton, Mr. J., the destination of condemned meat and fish, 340; dirty hands and frozen meat, 783; seafarers' imperishable fresh food, 1342
- Lawrie, Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel E., opium in the Hyderabad State, 199; reappointed residency surgeon at Hyderabad, 388; the Hyderabad Chloroform Commission, 827, 1106
- Dr. M., total extirpation of the uterus, 59
- Lawson, Inspector-General R., obituary notice of, 386
- Lay practice, 472
- Lay of the scavenger cell, 952
- Lead, Dr. W. S., death of, 48
- Lead, poisoning by, a suggestion, 156; in urine, colorimetric test for, 227; compulsory notification of poisoning by, 262; in girls, 334; poisoning by in New South Wales, 499, 601; poisoning by fumes of, 540; puerperal eclampsia following, 682; in public water supplies, 1372; poisoning by, and careless workpeople, 1432
- processes scheduled as dangerous, 165
- LEADING ARTICLES:—Metropolitan Asylum Board statistics, 27; an antivivisectionist failure, 28; medical fortunes, 91; poisoning by misadventure, 92; consultants, 93; "the superior person" and the journalism of the future, 145; the grant to the University of Wales, 145; studies in therapeutics, 201, 644, 870, 925; the sanitary outlook in India, 202; prescribing chemists, 203; Mrs. Anna Ruppert's skin nostrums, 204; is sewage good to drink? 257; care of the wounded in war, 258; the French Free Medical Assistance Act, 259; the new scheme for a teaching university for London, 313; new hospitals *versus* the extension of old hospitals for London, 314, 368; the Dublin Branch and the dispensary offices, 314; the medical aspects of the new university scheme, 367; the unqualified assumption of medical titles, 368; the medical schools and the new university, 421; State aid in poisoning, 422; antiseptic midwifery, 423; water-borne disease, 477, 589; medicine in the new university, 479; degrees for London medical students, 533; the penal clauses in the Medical Acts, 534; the Public Health Department of the London County Council, 535; an academic quinquennate, 589; the medical staff of the metropolitan fever hospitals, 590; why do we drink sewage? 592; the regulation of London buildings, 643; the "third estate," 644; anthropometrical identification, 697; Regina v. Sherrard, 698; the army medical service and the India office, 755; the legal responsibility of medical men, *ib.*; parish and district councils, 757; the International Medical Congress, Rome, 813; the plight of the hospitals, 814; bonds and contracts in restraint of practice, 869; patent medicine and proprietary poisons, 870; the Paris International Cholera Conference, 925; ignorance in England and India, 926; the first report of the Opium Commission, 981; the arterioles in disease, 982; abuses in medical practice, 983; lessons of the Andrew Clark memorial, 1037; a great wrong, are judges above the law? *ib.*; the Local Government (Scotland) Bill, 1038, 1145; lessons from Leicester small-pox epidemic, 1091; experiments on living animals, 1092; notification questions, *ib.*; the *Daily Chronicle* on human vivisection, 1143; barrack schools, 1144; our semi-annual review, 1201; the discipline of the General Medical Council, 1261; "experiments" on patients, 1262; the aged poor question, men and not measures, 1317; the Local Government Board for Scotland, *ib.*; the London County Council and the Metropolitan Asylums Board, 1318; the future of the barrack schools, 1373; the new treatment of diphtheria, 1374; the soldier's foot and boot, 1375; work-house management and inspection, 1425; the medical services in war, *ib.*
- Leamington, report of provident dispensary at, 1003
- Leask, Dr. H. L. G., recrudescence in scarlet fever, 240
- Leavesden, outbreak of diphtheria at the schools at, 932, 986, 1277
- Leclerc, M. M., on the medical profession in England, 265
- Lecture, the Croonian of the Royal Society, 543; the Morton on cancer and cancerous diseases, by Mr. S. G. Shattock, 1065
- Lectures, the Lettsomian on peritonitis, by Mr. F. Treves, 229, 341, 454, 516; on the Comparative Pathology of Inflammation, Dr. E. Metchnikoff, *rev.*, 247; the Morison on insanity, 316, 481; the Milroy on Darwinism and race progress, by Dr. J. B. Haycraft, 348, 402, 459; free sanitary at Pudsey, 500; the Lumleian on heart inflammation in children, by Dr. O. Sturges, 505, 561, 623; the Goulstonian on the physics of circulation, by Dr. P. M. Chapman, 511, 566, 629; the Ingleby on the common forms of dyspepsia in women, by Dr. R. Sandby, 570, 673; on the Surgical Disorders of the Urinary Organs, Mr. R. Harrison, *rev.*, 804; Clinical on Recent Surgery, Mr. A. T. Norton, *rev.*, 1246; on Surgery, Dr. D. W. Cheever, *rev.*, 1309; the Croonian on a new departure in diabetes, by Dr. F. W. Pavy, 1349, 1404; Clinical on Medicine and Surgery, *rev.*, 1416
- Ledlie, Dr. A., a narrow escape, 447, 840
- Leech, Dr. P., gangrenous abscess in the lung, 69; primary epithelioma of the clitoris, 1079
- Leeds, special correspondence from, 41; Christ-mas festivities at, 41; the Notification Act in, 149, 374; ladies' hospital fund for, 646; the royal visit to, 1340; memorial wing of the convalescent home at, 1380
- Lee-Metford rifle, *See* Rifle
- Leeper, Dr. R. J., sublimed sulphur in diphtheria, 227
- Dr. W. W., death of, 1162
- Lees, Dr. D. B., the treatment of pericarditis, 717
- Leg, novel treatment of oblique simple fractures of the, 859, 931; use of chlorine gas in the treatment of chronic ulcers of, 1191
- Legislation, merchant shipping, 821
- Legislators, classes for, 1205
- Lehmann's Medicin Hand-Atlanden, *rev.*, 1416
- Leicester, small-pox and vaccination at, 30, 990; the "system" at, 165; report of provident dispensary at, 1003; small-pox quarantine and isolation at in 1893, 1047; lessons from the small-pox epidemic at, 1091
- Leishman, Dr. W., death of, 424; obituary notice of, 496
- Leith, small-pox at, 49, 165, 224, 279, 334, 1003, 1059, 1112, 1206, 1284, 1444; and the Notification Act, 94; new fever hospital for, 377
- Lemonade, antimalarial, 1231
- Lentaigne, Mr., popliteal aneurysm, 862
- Leoni, Dr., vaccination, 798
- Leopold, Dr., symphysiotomy, 855; A Short Guide to the Examination of Lying-in Women, *rev.*, 1415
- Lepage, H. G., Précis d'Obstétrique, *rev.*, 1414
- Le Page, Dr. J. F., an axis tractor, 1367
- Lepers, Siberian, British help for, 152; of India, 205; in Germany, 1098
- Leppington, Dr. H. M., death of, 278
- Leprosy in Finland, 148; in Iceland, 200, 1191; in New South Wales, 499, 1223; in Norway, 541; and tuberculosis, 666; in Greater Britain, 1269; in Russia, 1377
- Le Riche, Mr. P. J., medical aid societies and the General Medical Council, 604
- Leslie, Dr. R., obituary notice of, 223
- L'Espine, Professor A., on rickets, 745
- Letters, subscribers', out-patients and, 1208
- Letulle, Dr. M., L'Inflammation, *rev.*, 971
- Leucoplakia, 503
- Leucocythæmia, treatment of, 463
- Leukæmia, spleno-medullary, 1123
- Lewers, Dr. A. H. N., tubal gestation successfully treated by abdominal section, 67
- Lewisham, estimated cost of new fever hospital at, 49; outbreak of scarlet fever at, 700, 772; the lunacy case of, 701, 1041, 1224, 1280
- Libel, the law of, 504
- Library of the British Medical Association, list of authors and others who have presented books to, 197, 765
- Lichen, discussion on at Rome, 746
- Liesching, Mr. C. E., Addison's disease complicated with influenza, 965; cancer of the prostate complicated with spasmodic contraction of the bladder, 1241
- Life, The Meaning and the Method of, Dr. G. M. Gould, *rev.*, 70
- assurance, and hoarseness, 207; medical examinations for, 723; special offices for medical men for, 895; and suicide, 1064; albuminuria and, 1324
- Ligaments, broad, ligature and division of the upper parts of both and the result as com-
- pared with that of removal of the appendages, 1306
- Light, exclusion of in small-pox, 447, 742; action of on bacteria, 986
- Lighting of schools, 1063, 1231
- "Limona," 71
- Liniments, protection against poisoning by, 1084
- Lioness, Cæsarean section in a, 1344
- "Lip reading," classes for teaching, 1167
- Lister, Sir J., decoration of, 261; in Glasgow, 1152; award of Albert medal to, 1427
- LITERARY NOTES:—Army Medical Staff administration, 38; Sir H. Northcote's notebooks, *ib.*; notice of life of Dr. Guttman, 100; new system of medicine, *ib.*; Hypnotism, Mesmerism, and the New Witchcraft, 142; Quain's Dictionary of Medicine, new edition of, 143, 642; Dr. A. M. Wilson on Myxœdema, 214; reminiscences of Sir A. Clark, 215; Catalogue of Dr. E. Schubert's Paracelsus library, *ib.*; New System of Surgery, edited by Mr. Treves, 378; Scientific Problems of the Future, 488; Un Coin de Bourgogne, 531; the family history of lepers, *ib.*; Memorial Address in honour of Dr. E. McDowell, 532; Handbuch der speziellen Therapie innerer Krankheiten, *ib.*; Dermatologische Zeitschrift, *ib.*; surgery now and a hundred years ago, *ib.*; the case of John Bunyan, *ib.*; El Gran Pueblo, 641; Dante and epilepsy, 642; Autobiography of Billroth, *ib.*; Sir D. Duckworth on Women, *ib.*; dangerous trades for women, *ib.*; Atlas der topographischen Anatomie, 763; Teratologia, *ib.*; Sir W. Moore on the Indian opium trade, 764; history of anal fistula, *ib.*; Dr. Strahan on female choice in marriage, *ib.*; Natural History of Plants, 979; methods and results of modern surgery, *ib.*; Les Accouchements dans les Beaux Arts, etc., *ib.*; Hermetic and Alchemic Writings of Paracelsus, 980; sketch of Paracelsus, *ib.*; morphological peculiarities of the bones of the Panjab, *ib.*; career of Andreas Vesalius, *ib.*; the Ayur-Veda Sâstra on opium, *ib.*; French treatise on fevers in Hebrew characters, 1101; origin of neoplasms in general and cancer in particular, 1102; Essai sur l'Histoire de la Rage avant le XIX<sup>e</sup> Siècle, 1142; the pathological nature of the great plague of Athens, *ib.*; manuscript volume of works of John Arderne, 1151; appropriation for the library of the Surgeon-General's office at Washington, 1218; Atlas de Laryngologie, *ib.*; Dr. O. W. Owen and the Shakspeare Bacon question, 1259; L'Italie Médico-Chirurgicale, *ib.*; the death of Francis II of France, 1316; Madame Boivin, *ib.*; Medical History of Columbus, *ib.*; the earliest exploratory laparotomy, 1383; Dr. Bartolomé Hidalgo de Agüero, *ib.*; Hoppe-Seyler's Zeitschrift, 1424; the library of the Paris Medical Faculty, *ib.*; the new French medical law, *ib.*; M. Paquelin on the origin of percussion, *ib.* (*See also* Notes)
- Litholapaxy and suprapubic and lateral lithotomy, the comparative safety of in young males, 958
- Lithotomy, suprapubic and lateral and litholapaxy, the comparative safety of in young males, 958
- Little, Dr., tuberculous pericarditis, 1128
- Littlewood, Mr. H., abscess of the lung, 69
- Liver, suppurating hydatid cyst of, opened through the chest wall, 129; removal of left lobe of for cancer, 168; pulsations in the, 192; acute yellow atrophy of the, 293; amoebic abscess of the, 676; is dysentery the invariable precursor of tropical abscess of? 678, 1333, 1390; abscess of the, 681; tropical abscess of the, 774; effects of removal of from the circulation, 795; in infectious disease, 797; rupture of the, 1024; cirrhosis of the, with especial reference to its occurrence in children, 1407
- Liverpool, the sanitary department at, 51; the medical officership of health of, 204, 266, 334; typhus fever near, 480; typhus fever in, 704; drunkenness at, 818, 951; the Sanitary Institute Congress at, 1004; insanitary house property in, 1284
- Livingstone, Dr., memorial to, 934
- Lloyd, Surgeon-Major O. E. P., gets Victoria Cross, 95, 109; presentation of Victoria Cross to, 929
- Lobsters, unsound tinned, fine for selling, 1162
- Lockwood, Mr. C. B., aseptic and septic surgical cases, 175; resection and immediate suture of intestine which had been strangulated 81 hours, recovery, 677; excision of part of dislocated semilunar fibro-cartilage of the knee, 578
- Locomotor ataxy with specimen of Charcot's disease, 191



- Löwenfeld, Dr. L., Pathologie und Therapie der Neurasthenie und Histologie, *rev.*, 917
- Logie v. Maxwell, 828
- London, post-graduate teaching in, 32, 984; a new university for, 152; glands in, 205; a teaching university for, 206, 305, 313, 324, 387, 433, 479, 485, 490, 651, 653, 692; cholera in during 1893, 317; accommodation for infectious diseases in the outer ring of, 372; the bakehouses of, 372, 777; provisions against cholera in, 377; sanitary workshops in, 424; notification certificates in, 443; the water supply for and the County Council, 487, 529, 648; the regulation of the buildings of, 643; coroners' courts and mortuaries in, 646; rearrangement of coroners' districts in, 650; the disposal of the sewage of, 700; croupous pneumonia in, in 1893, 1012; fever and small-pox in, 1048; diphtheria in, 1112; small-pox in, 1339; the death-rate of, 1428
- Longevity, class, 205; in Finland, 239
- Lord Chief Justice, the, and the Christian Knowledge Society, 205; the health of, 1326
- Mayor, the, on Hospital Sunday, 1275
- Roberts on temperance in the army, 440
- Louveau, Dr. E., Chirurgie des Voies Urinaires, *rev.*, 195
- Lovely, Mr. C. N., a case of gastric ulcer, 351
- Lubbock, Dr. E. A., jaundice and emotional disturbance, 896
- Lucas, Mr. R. C., the operation for the total suppression of urine, 1051
- Lucas-Championnière, Dr., on trephining, 856
- Lucy, Mr. R. H., a case of cholecystotomy, 188; persistent thyroglossal duct, 1358
- Lücke, Professor A., obituary notice of, 496, 554
- Lucany, action in, 648, 662
- law, 273
- State Medical Service, 1051
- Lunan, Mr. R., death of, 1001
- Lund, Professor, the beginnings of surgical disease, 892
- Lung, abscess of the, 69; gangrenous abscess of the, *ib.*; gangrene of from a syphilitic patient, 859; primary carcinoma of the, 967; right, phthisical consolidation of, 1358
- Lunn, Mr. J. R., fungating growth of penis (epithelioma?), 355; syringomyelia, 1079
- Lupus, two cases of treated by thyroid extract, 786; vulgaris, the commoner varieties of and their treatment, 1024; cantharidin in, 1275
- Lymphadenoma, treatment of, 1344
- Lymphatics, spread of tuberculosis through the, 525
- Lys, Dr. H. G., pulmonary embolism, 1123
- M.
- Maberley, Mr. H. E., abortion due to an incarcerated anteverted uterus, 408
- MacAlister, Mr. J. Y. W., John of Vigo's book on surgery, 1231
- Macallum, Dr. A. B., acute yellow atrophy of the liver, 283
- Macallum, Mr. P., presentation to, 1243
- McArdle, Mr., nephrectomy and nephrorrhaphy, 626; perforating wound of pharynx, 1128
- Macartney, Brigadier - Surgeon - Lieutenant-Colonel J., Mediterranean fevers, 1332
- MacBride, Miss R., the nursing of infectious diseases in country districts, 1343
- McCarthy, Dr., aortic aneurysms, 1361
- MacCombie, Dr. J., diphtheria in the hospitals of the Metropolitan Asylums Board, 105
- Macdonald, Dr. R., death of, 664; the will of, 1113
- Macdougall, Dr. K. B., treatment of nasal polyp, 1287
- Macewen, Dr. W., Atlas of Head Sections, *rev.*, 303; causation of intracranial abscess, 857; Pyogenic Infective Diseases of the Brain and Spinal Cord, *rev.*, 1193
- McHattie, Dr. A. G., medical etiquette, 160
- Macintyre, Dr. J., the phonograph in medicine, 915
- Mackay, Deputy-Surgeon-General G., the local application of hot air, 1443
- Mackenzie, Gray v., 685
- Dr. G. H., some clinical observations on the bacillus of tubercle, 461
- Dr. J., pulsations in the veins and liver, 192
- Sir M., the executors of, 159
- Dr. S., executors and prescriptions, 272; the nature, diagnosis, prognosis, and treatment of aural vertigo, 953
- Mackie, Dr. W., encephalocele, removal, hydrocephalus, death, 510
- MacLagan, Dr. T. J., myocarditis, 859
- MacLaren, Dr. R., appendicular colic, 773
- MacLaurin, Hon. H. N., on English sanitation, 924
- McLeod, Dr. K., nerve stretching and splitting in localised interstitial neuritis, leprosy, and otherwise, 352
- MacLeod, Dr. N., is dysentery the invariable precursor of tropical liver abscess? 673, 1399
- MacMunn, Dr. J., blenorrhagic urethral stricture in a young subject, 13; gleet and marriage, 1448
- Macnamara, Mr. N. C., a teaching university for London, 324, 433, 490
- Surgeon-Captain R. J., large doses of antifebrin, 681
- McPhedran, Dr. A., acute yellow atrophy of the liver, 283
- Macpherson, Surgeon-Captain W. G., notes on Gibraltar, 1288
- Macready, Mr., an apparatus for use after inguinal colotomy, 968
- McVail, Dr. J., acrial convection of small-pox from hospitals, 243
- McWeeney, Dr. E. J., demonstration of the typhoid bacillus in suspected drinking water, by Parietti's method, 961; spleno-medullary leukaemia, 1123
- Madden, Dr. V. M., Clinical Gynaecology, *rev.*, 23; the etiology, prevention, and treatment of puerperal septicæmia, 1215
- Madras, vaccination in, 499
- Männlicher, See Rifle
- Magenis, Dr. E., the education of workhouse children, 1050
- Magistrates, medical, 113, 124, 141, 156, 225, 245, 383, 683, 791, 876, 893, 1135, 1225, 1396
- Magnetism, the theory of, Dr. Gilbert and, 542
- Mahomed, Mr. A. G. S., assistant medical officers in asylums, 1107
- Maitland, Surgeon-Major J., a case of filarial disease of the lymphatics in which a number of adult filariae were removed from the arm, 544
- Major, Dr., pitfalls in the diagnosis of pneumonia, 1025
- Maladies du Soldat (Les), Dr. A. Marvaud, *rev.*, 470, 638
- Malakin, 305
- Malaria, opium as prophylactic against, 560
- Malcolm, Mr. J. D., nephrectomy for malignant tumour in a patient under 2 years of age, 242; The Physiology of Death from Traumatic Fever, a Study in Abdominal Surgery, *rev.*, 528
- Dr. R. B., death of, 1395
- Malingering, some points bearing on, 238
- Malinowski, Professor, on diphtheria, 745
- Malins, Dr. E., removal of uterus, ovaries, and Fallopian tubes, recovery, 1298
- Man, monkey or? 116; diseases of animals affecting through food supplies, 876
- Manchester, correspondence from, 158; the medical officership of health at, *ib.*; lectures by members of corporation of, 443; hospitals and homes in, *ib.*; the new medical officer of health for, 536; small-pox in 1893, 557; cremation at, 692; death-rate of Jews at, 1207; infantile death-rate of, 1263
- Mandrake, the, 1232
- Manglagalli, treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy, 855
- Mannheim, Dr. P., Der Morbus Gravesii, *rev.*, 1083
- Manson, Dr. P., amœbic abscess of the liver, 676; filarial disease of the lymphatics in which a number of adult filariae were removed from the arm, 844; elephantiasis Arabum in the South Sea Islands, 1178
- Mr. R. T., the Tees epidemics, 892
- Manual of Diseases of the Nervous System, Dr. W. R. Gowers, *rev.*, 246; of Practical Hygiene, Drs. W. L. Crippin and D. Bevan, *rev.*, 639; (Illustrated) of Hand and Eye Training on Educational Principles, Dr. W. Goetze, *rev.*, 972; of Bacteriology for Practitioners and Students, Dr. S. L. Schenk, *rev.*, 1130; of Practical Anatomy, Dr. D. J. Cunningham, *rev.*, 1306
- Maragliano, Professor E., biographical sketch of, 695
- Marine, mercantile, sickness and mortality in the, 884
- Marinesanitäts-Ordnung, *rev.*, 971
- Market gardening, the niceties of, 872
- Marquis, a medical, 476
- Marriage, gleet and, 1448
- Marsden, Mr. W., death of, 1283
- Marseilles, influenza at, 216
- Marshall, Dr. A., death of, 947
- Professor A. M., proposed memorial to, 421
- Professor J., memorial window to, 205
- Martin, Professor, treatment of the pedicle in myomectomy, 856
- Dr. C., painful menstruation, 863; The After Treatment of Cases of Abdominal Section, *rev.*, 970; hermaphrodite, 1361; pyonephrosis, *ib.*
- Dr. E., Essentials of Minor Surgery, Bandaging and Venereal Diseases, *rev.*, 304
- Dr. F. H., Electricity in Diseases of Women and Obstetrics, *rev.*, 1364
- Dr. E., on diphtheria, 968
- Martys, medical in Cuba, 157
- Marvaud, Dr. A., Les Maladies du Soldat, *rev.*, 470, 638
- Massachusetts, The Twenty-fourth Annual Report of the State Board of Health of, *rev.*, 471
- Massage, in simple fracture, 916; discussion on at Edinburgh Medico-Chirurgical Society, 1128, 1149
- Masse, Dr., intracranial surgery, 857
- Masticator, a, 72
- Match factories, report of special committee on, 33
- Materia Medica and Therapeutics, A Practical Treatise on, Dr. R. Bartholow, *rev.*, 528
- Mather, Dr. R., Two Great Scotsmen, the Brothers William and John Hunter, *rev.*, 917
- Maude, Mr. A., first description of exophthalmic goitre, 784
- Maxilla, superior, osteoma of, 61
- Maxillary, internal, successful ligature of common carotid for secondary hæmorrhage from, 1301
- Maxwell, Logie v., 828
- Dr. J. L., the opium question, 554
- Maynard, Surgeon-Captain, F. P., the prevention and cure of ague by opium, 438
- M.D. degrees, 446
- Mead, Dr. G. B., the London and Counties Medical Protection Society, 107, 839
- Mesles, notification of, 611, 930, 1338; the prevention of, 704; epidemic at Esmos, 1077
- Meat, unsound, 111; condensed, the destination of, 340; tuberculous, sterilisation of, 650; frozen, dirty hands and, 783
- Juice, 1085
- Mecca, temporary suspension of the pilgrimage to as a preventive measure against cholera, 460; and the pilgrimage to, the prescriptions of the Koran, 935; the pilgrims to, 1133, 1275, 1320, 1376; Hagar's well at, 1412, 1427
- Medical advice (free), 115
- assistants' so-called, 923
- Battery Company, the winding up of, 44; the carrying on of business of, 1036, 1376
- Club rules, 1084
- Council, General, the minutes, etc., of, 389, 1285; Allinson v., 495; and medical aid societies, 604; the coming meeting of, 1094; president's address, 1137; medical aid associations, *ib.*; sham degrees, 1138; certificates to midwives, *ib.*; amendment of the penal clauses, *ib.*; restoration of name, *ib.*; congratulations to Sir J. and Lady Paget, 1139, 1211; alleged covering, 1139, 1140, 1213; alleged covering of quack medical vendors, 1139; a case of advertising, 1139, 1140; case of Mr. Alabama, 1211; registration of schoolboys as medical students, *ib.*; the University of Edinburgh, *ib.*; case of Dr. H. Tibbits, *ib.*; registration of medical students by the University of Dublin, *ib.*; deficient preliminary education, 1212; the Society of Apothecaries of London, *ib.*; use of titles after removal from "Register," *ib.*; amendment of the penal clauses of the Medical Act, *ib.*; the offence of covering, *ib.*; reports of the Pharmacopœia and Finance Committees, *ib.*; D. P. H. examinations, *ib.*; reception of reports, *ib.*; appointment of committees, 1212, 1216; Conjoint Board of the Royal Colleges in Ireland, 1212; the dental curriculum, 1213; instruction in vaccination, *ib.*; the Conjoint Board of the Royal College of Surgeons and Apothecaries Hall in Ireland, 1213, 1214; preliminary examination, 1215; students' registration, 1216; dental representatives, *ib.*; advertising dentists, *ib.*; and the registration of midwives, 1223; the discipline of the, 1261; and the Weekly Times and Echo, 1287
- Fortunes, 91
- men, liability of to disabling accidents, 139; the legal responsibility of, 755, 1445
- missionaries, See Missionaries
- officer, district, insanity of, 1059; tenure of office of, 1163; legal claim for appointment as, 1163
- officers, district, salaries of, 948; and police cases, *ib.*
- officers of health, the salaries of, 49, 663; tenure of office of, 67; reports of, *ib.*; county, 166, 227, 1431; duties of under Notification Act,

279, 372, 663; qualifications of a, 686, 1228; duties of, 778, 1444; and the establishment of trades, 836; notification by, 1040

**Medical officers.** Poor-law, censure of by committee of board of guardians, 166; tenure of office of, *ib.*; and lunacy certificates, 686

Register, effect of erasure from, 1231

relief and the franchise, 319

witnesses before magistrates, 97

**Medicated Baths in the Treatment of Skin Diseases.** Dr. F. L. Phillips, *rev.*, 1130

**Medicin Hand-Atlanden, Lehmann's, rev., 1416**

**Medicine and Politics,** 116; the beginnings of, 1044; general relations of dermatology to, 1170; Hindu, the revival of, 1381

**Medicines containing poison, the sale of,** 372, 974; patent and proprietary poisons, 870; harmless, 1397

**MEDICO-ETHICAL.**—Advertisement by handbill, 45; the use of indigenous drugs, *ib.*; notification of partnership, *ib.*; the title of physician and of surgeon, *ib.*; the clergy and professional remuneration, *ib.*; medical etiquette, 109, 333; a penny pamphlet, 109, 222; homeopath and antivaccinator, 163; an erratic patient, *ib.*; sale and return, *ib.*; the puff indirect, 221; a misleading advertisement, *ib.*; meteorological reports and professional advertisement, *ib.*; the schoolmaster as advertiser, *ib.*; a six-penny dispensary, *ib.*; testimonial to lecturers, *ib.*; how are you? 277; unqualified assistants, *ib.*; advertisement of removal, *ib.*; lectures on home nursing, *ib.*; club appointments, *ib.*; temperance lectures, 333; "changing the doctor," 333, 439, 556; transfer of a practice, 333; club appointments, *ib.*; a question of procedure, *ib.*; etiquette and insurance, *ib.*; the skin and complexion, 383, 439; patents, 383, 495, 609; premature candidature, 383; unqualified assistants, *ib.*; the Lewisham Workhouse inquiry, *ib.*; toilet articles, perfumes, etc., 439; emergency substitute, *ib.*; an oversight (?), 556; middlemen's practices, 608; opposition by assistants, 609; principal and assistant, *ib.*; doctor or surgeon dentist, *ib.*; consultants and practitioners, 662, 780; starting in practice, 662; a card, 663; an unqualified "locum tenens," 719; London graduates and general practice, 719, 779; the second opinion question, 779; medical officers of health and private practitioners, *ib.*; a locum tenens as a rival practitioner, 780; doctor or surgeon dentist, 829; payment of consultant's fees, 886; a new definition of consultant, 944; a consultant (?), 945; an anxious brother, *ib.*; business and pleasure, *ib.*; a summary medical officer, 1054; an ungenerous rival, 1054, 1161, 1282; consultations and the subsequent care of patients, 1108; introduction of partner, *ib.*; cards, 1161; unqualified assistants and the question of covering, 1225; calls on new residents, *ib.*; partners, assistants, and consultations, *ib.*; the petty tradesman, 1281; a medical aid society, 1282; touting, 1336; provident societies, *ib.*; newspaper puffs and advertisements, 1393; a card and an apology, *ib.*; midwifery engagements and fees, *ib.*; unqualified assistants, 1441; the title of Dr., 1442

**MEDICO-LEGAL.**—A warning to chemists, 44; the Medical Battery Company, *ib.*; substitutes and fees, *ib.*; breach of contract not to practise, 45; club tariffs, *ib.*; a partnership question, 45, 662; Mrs. Anna Ruppert's skin tonic, 109, 163; irregular vaccination certificate, 163; manslaughter by a midwife, *ib.*; the Harness case, 221, 277, 333, 383; Tibbits v. Toye, 221; lunacy law, 222; libel action as to an insanitary house, 277; condensed milk, *ib.*; liability for fees, *ib.*; clubs and private patients, *ib.*; conviction of a "botanic Dr.," 331; prosecution by the lunacy commissioners, 332; illegal death certificates, *ib.*; alleged electric belt fraud in Liverpool, *ib.*; Tibbits v. the Morning Newspaper Publishing Company Limited, *ib.*; unqualified dental practice, 333, 383; a claim for damages for revaccination, 383; a disputed liability, *ib.*; poisoning by carbolic acid, 439; responsibility of inebriates, *ib.*; the line of force in the fracture of glass, *ib.*; the licentiates of the Society of Apothecaries, *ib.*; Bloxham v. Medical Defence Union, 494, 779; Allinson v. General Medical Council, 495; midwifery fees, 495, 556; contracts not to practise, 556, 779; action for damages for certificate of fever, nonsuit of plaintiff, 608; a most extraordinary decision, 609; lunacy fees, *ib.*; fees of medical witnesses in the colonies, *ib.*; detention in an asylum, the question of *bona fides*, action stayed, 662; maintenance of pauper fever patients, *ib.*; death certificates in cases of injury, *ib.*; who is to pay the doctor? 718; alleged suicide, *ib.*; an inquest unnecessary, 719; unqualified assistants and fees, *ib.*; the case of Dr. R. B. Anderson, 779, 944, 945; unqualified assumption of medical titles, 780; Gwynne-Vaughan v. Gwynne-Vaughan and Griffiths, 828; Logie v. Maxwell, *ib.*; the Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses v. the Record Press Limited, 829; Beatty v. Cullingworth, *ib.*; an American judge on malpractice, *ib.*; coroners and post-mortem examinations, *ib.*; illegal operations, *ib.*; a question of fees, *ib.*; irregular sale of poisons, 886; the patenting of proprietary mixtures, *ib.*; inquests at workhouses, 887; notice of cessation of contract, *ib.*; medical students as assistants, *ib.*; the rights of sanitary authorities, 944; herbalists and abortion, *ib.*; fees in midwifery cases where attendance is not required, 945; the administration of anaesthetics, *ib.*; Pharmaceutical Society v. Armon, 997; Ansell v. Tait, 998; Alabaster and another v. Harness, 998, 1281; fees for post-mortem examinations, *ib.*; medical clubs and the Truck Act, 1053; fees to medical witnesses at inquests, *ib.*; the coroner's court, *ib.*; midwifery fees, 1054; contracts in restraint of practice, 1054, 1116; allowance for sickness between partners, 1054; Steel v. Ormsby, 1108; wholesale dentistry, *ib.*; new method of treatment and the law, *ib.*; a doctor charged with fraud, *ib.*; rights of retiring partner, 1161; sale of a medical practice, 1225, 1282, 1334; Williams v. Beaumont and Duke, 1280; a Dublin will case, 1281; unsatisfactory inquests, *ib.*; patent medicines, *ib.*; an international case, *ib.*; an indiscreet coroner, 1282; jurisdiction of coroner, *ib.*; the supply of medicinal preparations, 1335; prosecutions under the Pharmacy Act, 1336; the wording of lunacy certificates, *ib.*; employers' liability, 1383; objection to vaccination, a novel plea, *ib.*; an unremunerative assistantship, *ib.*; an easy shave, 1441; action for slander against a medical man, 1442; Johannis water, *ib.*

**Mediterranean squadron, sickness in the,** 661

**Medway, proposed floating hospital on the,** 1397

**Melancholia, acute, artificial feeding in,** 183, 522

**Melanoma, intraocular, a rare form of,** 1024

**Melbourne, correspondence from,** 882, 1332, 1389; indigenous drugs and the "British Pharmacopoeia," *ib.*; the art of living in Australia, *ib.*; elections at the hospitals of, *ib.*; a half-guinea-cologist, *ib.*; want of a fever hospital at, 1332; waterborne typhoid, *ib.*; some interesting surgical cases, 1389; reorganisation of the government health department, *ib.*; distribution of the Parliamentary charitable grant and the creation of district and municipal funds, *ib.*

**Meldon, Mr. A., some interesting cases of gunshot wounds,** 244

**Meningitis, tuberculous, cured by drainage,** 525

**Meningo-myelocoele, with persistence of pre-tubular condition of the cord,** 1081

**Mensi, Dr., on rickets,** 745

**Menstruation, relation of heart disease to,** 579; painful, 863

**Mental.** See Mind

**Menzies, Surgeon J. D., thyroid extract in washerwoman's eczema and as a local application,** 633

**Mercantile marine, sickness and mortality in the,** 884

**Merchant shipping legislation,** 821

**Merchier, Dr. C., automatic writing, 198; assistant medical officers in asylums,** 1051, 1224

**Metchnikoff, Dr. E., Lectures on the Comparative Pathology of Inflammation, rev.,** 247

**Meyer, Dr. A., death of,** 480

**Michels, Dr. E., extraperitoneal vesical hernia,** 912

**Mickle, Dr. W. J., automatic writing, 198**

**Microbes of sewer air,** 1059

**Microscope, The, and How to Use It, Mr. T. C. White, rev.,** 528

matter, a, 1064

**Microscopes, students',** 1196

**Midwife, manslaughter by, a,** 163

**Midwifery, A Treatise on the Science and Practice of, Dr. W. S. Playfair, rev.,** 22; proposed new order of practitioners of, 272, 382, 435, 491, 606; antiseptic, 423; and after-visit, 446, 503; retainers, 541; The Proposed Formation of an Inferior Order of Practitioners of, Dr. R. R. Rentoul, *rev.*, 1039; An Introduction to, Dr. A. Donald, *rev.*, 1417

**Midwives, the Recorder of London on the registration of,** 98; the Lancashire and Cheshire Branch on the registration of, 602; Swiss, Congress of, 613; uneducated and unrestricted, 772; registration of, 883, 942, 974, 995, 1052, 1106, 1157, 1207, 1223, 1270, 1384

**Miers, Mr. H. A., The Soil in Relation to Health, rev.,** 1028

**Migula, Dr. W., An Introduction to Practical Bacteriology for Physicians, Chemists, and Students, rev.,** 1084

**Mikroskopische Technik, etc., Dr. C. Friedlander, rev.,** 970

**Miles, Dr. A., Surgical Ward Work and Nursing, rev.,** 970

Dr. J. F. M., the passage of the catheter in prostatic disease, 560, 723

**Militia, promotions and appointments in the medical staff of,** 163, 384, 774

**Milk, purveyors of icecream not vendors of,** 320; scarlatina from in Glasgow, 426; Sunday, 481; diet in Bright's disease, 636; scarlatina from, 815; and typhoid, 1112, 1148, 1325; sterilised, 1366

**Milks, mixed,** 262

**Millar, Dr. J., structure of cancer,** 69

**Miller, Mr. A. G., treatment of strumous disease of the extremities,** 21

Dr. R. S., a note on tubercle bacilli in house dust, 62

**Milligan, Mr. R. A., ossification of the synovial membrane of the left knee-joint in a young man,** 957

**Mills, Dr. C. K., Philadelphia Hospital Reports, rev.,** 583

**Millward, Mr. A., the Leavesden schools,** 1279

**Mind, hypodermic injections of brain extract in diseases of the,** 240; what constitutes unsoundness of, 885

**Mineral waters and the French Academy of Medicine,** 770, 1042

**Ministers of religion, are they rightly entitled to the gratuitous services of the medical profession? 546, 1053**

**Missionaries, medical,** 96, 103, 159, 219, 263, 1355

**Missionary, a Medical in Central Africa, Dr. S. T. Pruett, rev.,** 1195

**Missions, scientific,** 200, 1355

**Mivart, Dr. F. St. G., southern health resorts,** 172

**Mobilisation in simple fracture,** 916

**Moele Epinière (La) et l'Encéphale, M. Ch. Debieuvre, rev.,** 1028

**Mohammedans, the and cholera,** 815

**Molony, Dr. F., cider, evergreens, and rheumatism,** 115

Dr. J., long residence in asylums, 951

**Monkey or man? 116**

**Monoplegia, right brachial, due to traumatic ablation of the arm area in the left cortex cerebri,** 400, 896

**Monster, anencephalic,** 915; a sexless, 1168, 1343

**Moore, Mr. B., the effects of compression of the common carotid artery,** 962

Dr. J. W., the influence and duties of the Branches of the British Medical Association, 285

Dr. N., tuberculous ulceration of the large intestine, 968

Dr. S. J., the death of, 776

Mr. W. H., compound fracture of forearm, 1129

Sir W. J., the dietetic use of opium, 370; venereal disease in India, 720

**Moorhouse, Dr. J. E., paralysis of the serratus magnus and dislocation of the scapula,** 184

**Morbus Gravesii (Der) Dr. P. Mannheim, rev.,** 1083

**Morgagni and "anatomical thought,"** 725

**Morisani, Dr., symphysiotomy,** 855

**Morison, Mr. R., intestinal resection,** 272

**Morley, Professor H., obituary notice of,** 1147

**Morphine, treatment of severe chorea by,** 633; suggested antidote for, 649; preparations of as poisons, 987, 997, 1397

**Morphinomania, books on,** 1115

**Morris, Mr. E. S. G., choice of anaesthetics for the removal of adenoid vegetations from the naso-pharynx,** 228

Mr. H., nephrolithotomy and nephrotomy for the suppression of urine, 1050

Mr. M., dermatology of to-day, 179; Diseases of the Skin, *rev.*, 413; Epsom College chapel fund, 550; on lichen, 746; a case of universal dermatitis, probably a rare variety of mycosis fungoides, 1181; a case of acanthosis nigricans, 1305

**Morse, Deputy-Surgeon-General C.B., pruritus ani,** 1063

Mr. H., ruptured gastric ulcer successfully treated by abdominal section and suture, 576

- Mortality, occupation and, 253; hospital v. home, 316; of artisans' dwellings, 1433
- Mortimer, Mr. J. D., acute intussusception in children, 438
- Morton, Mr. C. A., large intra-abdominal abscess from a foreign body which had perforated the bowel, drainage and recovery, 241; persistence of the thyroglossal duct, 1020; a case of subclavian aneurysm, circulation controlled in the sac by digital pressure on the first part of the vessel, Macewen's operation, amputation at the shoulder-joint, 1070
- Moscow, special correspondence from, 380
- Mothers, A Handbook for, Miss J. H. Walker, *rev.*, 131
- Mothersole, Dr., chorea and endocarditis in a dog, 22
- Mott, Dr. F. W., multiple toxæmic neuritis, 466
- Mould Fungi, Parasitic on Man, Introduction to the Study of the, Dr. H. L. Roberts, *rev.*, 193
- Moullin, Mr. C. M., cerebral abscess, 577
- Moulvie Rafiuddin Ahmad, the Mecca pilgrims, 1133
- Moussous, Dr. A., infantile form of general paralysis, 745
- Moxham, Mr. M. C., acute inflammation of the antrum of Highmore after influenza, 408
- Münch, Dr. G. N., Die Zazaath (Lepra) der hebraischen Bibel, *rev.*, 864
- Mukhtea, the bacteriological laboratory at, 1445
- Mumps and hyperplasia of the cervical glands, 43
- Munez, Dr. M. A., prehistoric trephining in Peru, 338
- Murphy, Dr. J., a simple means of preventing the entrance of blood into the trachea during operations on the mouth, 964; removal of spleen, 933, 1039
- Mr. S. F., A Treatise on Hygiene and Public Health, *rev.*, 469, 1246
- Murray, Dr. J., death of, 276
- Murrell, Dr. W., the action of senecio jacobœa in the treatment of functional amenorrhœa, 679; St. Jacob's oil, 995
- Murtagh, Dr. T., high mortality in Indian prisons, 339
- Museum, the Clinical, 1446
- Music, Relation of to Language as a Theory of Development, Dr. W. Craig, *rev.*, 357
- Mya, Professor, mixed infection in diphtheria, 745
- Myelitis, acute disseminated, 1174
- Myers, Dr. A. T., death of, 94; obituary notice of, 223
- Myles, Dr., renal tuberculosis, 1128
- Myocarditis, three cases of, 859; acute primary, 1361
- Myomectomy, treatment of the pedicle in, 855
- Myxédème et Goitre Exophtalmique, Dr. C. Cauter, *rev.*, 1365
- Myxœdema treated by thyroid tabloids, 12; treated by thyroid extract, 1361
- Myxosarcoma of the uterus, 1080
- N.
- Nævus, electrolysis in, 861; diffuse of tongue, 916
- Nancy, opening of an anatomical institute at, 1440
- Napier, Dr. T. W. A., a new vaccinator, 1366
- Napoleon I., the mysterious malady of, 152
- Nash, Dr. J. B., the prevalence and distribution of vesical calculus in Australia, 153
- Nason, Dr. E. N., myxœdema treated by thyroid extract, 1361
- Naso-pharynx, anæsthetic in removal of growths of, 108, 171, 228, 861, 873, 996, 1107
- Natal, legislation for inebriates in, 1396
- Navy, Japanese, health of the, 1160
- Royal British, promotions and appointments in medical staff of, 46, 108, 220, 274, 331, 384, 440, 493, 555, 608, 661, 719, 774, 830, 885, 943, 996, 1054, 1109, 1159, 1224, 1280, 1334, 1392, 1441; health of the, 108; successful candidates for admission to, 1160
- Neale, Dr. R., cooking and heating by gas, 366; thymol and typhoid, 783
- Neck, carcinoma of the, 966; congenital hydrocele of cured by drainage and compression, 1018; hydroceles of the, 1193
- Necrosis, comparative, pathology of, 796; multiple insular of skin and other subjacent tissues, 1238
- Neech, Dr. J. T., treatment of pernicious anæmia, 448; galactorrhœa, 1063; is post-scarlatinal albuminuria infectious? 1116; presentation to, 1445
- Needle for ligaturing the broad ligament in vaginal hysterectomy, 1085
- Needles for cleft palate, 1031
- Negro, West Indian, exostoses or bony growths in the, 189
- Neil, Dr. J., artificial feeding in acute melan- cholia, 183, 883
- Neisser, Dr., the lichen group, 746
- Nellis, Surgeon-Captain G., gunshot injury by Lee-Metford rifle, 127
- Nephrectomy for malignant tumour in a patient under 2 years of age, 242; for malignant tumours in an infant, 354; and nephrorrhaphy, 526
- Nephrolithotomy for the suppression of urine, 1050
- Nephrorrhaphy and nephrectomy, 526
- Nephrotomy for the suppression of urine, 1050, 1304
- Nerve cells in the cortex, vacuolation of the nuclei of, 1075, 1343
- Nerves, stretching and splitting in localised interstitial neuritis leprosy or otherwise, 352
- Nervous centres, the minute division of the, 543
- system, diseases of the, 814
- Netley, prize list at, 275; professors at to be extra-regimental officers, 1147
- Neurasthenia and disorders of digestion, the relationship between, 466
- Neuritis, localised interstitial, leprosy and otherwise, nerve stretching and splitting in, 352; multiple toxic, 466; alcoholic, 966; optic, in its relation to cerebral tumour and trephining, 1360
- Neuromata, multiple, 21
- Newell, Dr. P., treatment of galactorrhœa, 895
- Newsholme, Dr. A., The Brighton Life Tables, *rev.*, 70; the question of the increase of cancer, 161, 382; occupation and mortality, 253; diphtheria in the house, 430
- New South Wales, new Medical Bill for, 144; leprosy in, 490, 1218; prevention of lead poisoning in, 499, 601; diseased animals, 664; and the Dresden Sanitary Conference, 1060; the ethics and prospects of the medical profession in, 1067, 1095; vaccination in, 1445
- New York, Pasteurism in, 463
- State colony for epileptics, 1165
- New Zealand, medical education in, 780; friendly societies in, 1370
- Newton Abbott, pauper diet at, 111; the scandal at the workhouse of, 702, 776, 891, 1162, 1263
- Nichols, Surgeon-Major F. P., compound comminuted gunshot wound of the upper thigh, with complications, 352, 965; a case of perforative peritonitis, 1242
- Nicholson, Dr. B. F., abnormal position of supra-renal gland, 408
- Dr. H. O., leucoplakia, 503
- Nicol, Dr. J., presentation to, 280
- Nieden, Dr. A., Der Nystagmus der Bergleute, *rev.*, 1364
- Night blindness in Russia, 1342
- commodores in hotels, 339
- terrors, 51
- Nile, the supply of water from the, 78; the reservoirs of, 317, 476, 552, 978; the reservoirs of and French obstruction, 1320, 1389
- Nitrogen, the assimilation of, 1151
- Nixon, Mr. F. A., head injury, 1025
- Non nocere, Dr. Jacobi on, 852
- Noorden, Dr. C. v., Beitrage zur Lehre von Stoffwechsel des gesunden und kranken Menschen, *rev.*, 1030
- North America, influenza in, 339
- Norton, Mr., A. T., Clinical Lectures on Recent Surgery, *rev.*, 1246
- Norway, leprosy in, 541
- Nose, treatment of fetid suppuration of the, 1361
- Notes, literary, 38, 100, 142, 214, 377, 431, 488, 531, 641, 763, 823, 938, 979, 1101, 1142, 1315, 1383, 1424. (See also Literary)
- Nothnagel, Professor, biographical sketch of, 696; the adaptation of the organism to pathological changes, 740
- Notification by several practitioners, 49; of infectious disease, school attendance and, 111; of disease, 166; of workhouse infectious cases, *ib.*; by householders, *ib.*; certificate forms for, *ib.*; incorrect, liability for, 279, 328; dual, 557; of measles, 611, 930, 1338; of infectious diseases in public institutions, 777; payments for illegal decision, 872; by medical officers of health, 1040; dual, and the death-rate, 1086, 1252, 1276, 1377; questions on, 1092; and prevention, 1162; compulsory, and Barnstable, 1284, 1338; value of, 1339; at Portsmouth, *ib.*
- Notifications, plural, 647; provisions of new Bill for, 1208
- Notter, Brigade-Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel, the examination of surgeons-captain for promotion, 944
- Nottingham, Mr. Justice Hawkins and the smells at, 151
- Nowshera, waterborne typhoid at, 1396
- Nugent, Dr. G. P. L'E., locomotor ataxy with specimen of Charcot's disease, 191
- Nurse, the, the working day of, 34
- Nurseries, day, the cost of, 540
- Nurses, district, or cottage hospitals, 144; the training of in workhouse infirmaries, 209; village, 338, 1063; cottage, maternity clubs and, 447; male, the training of, 503, 559; the remuneration and pensioning of, 599; the work and recreation of, 760; small-pox and vaccination, 1040; wet, strike of, 1064
- (Male) Co-operation, formation of, 615
- Nurses' Co-operation, annual meeting of, 319
- Nursing at Hatfield Workhouse, 154, 1251, 1288; books on, 338, 723; in workhouses, 537; school board instruction in, 540; Mental, Dr. W. Harding, *rev.*, 972; skilled for the poor, 1004; Ophthalmic, Mr. S. Stephenson, *rev.*, 1029; and administration of provincial workhouses and infirmaries, 1197, 1251, 1268, 1311, 1323, 1367, 1378, 1422, 1429; of infectious diseases in country districts, 1343
- Nystagmus (Der) der Bergleute, Dr. A. Nieden, *rev.*, 1364
- O.
- Oath, the, in the Scotch form, 210; the "sanitary," 1430
- Obituary notice of, Hon. Dr. J. C. Phillippo, 46; Mr. R. Bentley, 47; Dr. W. Keble, *ib.*; Mr. A. G. Gamgee, *ib.*; Mr. T. M. Wilkinson, 112; Dr. F. E. Kyott, *ib.*; Dr. A. Harkin, *ib.*; Dr. P. Diday, 143; Dr. A. T. Myers, 223; Dr. H. J. Paine, *ib.*; Dr. R. Leslie, *ib.*; Dr. T. C. Charles, 275; Professor A. Hirsch, *ib.*; Dr. T. Billroth, 335; Inspector-General R. Lawson, 386; Dr. A. Stedman, *ib.*; Dr. E. Whittle, *ib.*; Dr. J. Valentine, 387; Dr. W. Willis, 441; Dr. Leishman, 496; Professor Lücke, 496, 554; Dr. E. H. Jacob, 611; Dr. J. K. Barton, 612; Mr. J. U. West, 616; Mr. H. Smith, 775; Dr. A. H. Hassall, 833; Dr. J. M. Bryan, *ib.*; Surgeon-Captain F. L. Carte, 889; Dr. C. Gibson, 947; Mr. W. Eddowes, 1000; Dr. E. H. Vinen, 1056; Inspector-General H. A. Bruce, 1111; Professor H. Morley, 1147; Mr. T. C. Cade, 1161; Mr. D. Davies, 1282; Dr. T. Patterson, *ib.*; Dr. J. Will, 1283; Dr. R. Jolly, 1337; Brigade-Surgeon G. C. Gribbon, *ib.*; Mr. S. W. North, 1395; Mr. W. L. Underhill, 1442; Mr. D. Taylor, *ib.*; Mr. P. S. Hutchinson, 1443
- Obstetrics, Outlines of, Dr. C. Jewett, *rev.*, 131
- Obstruction, intestinal, due to bands, diagnosis and operative treatment of, 117; acute, by constrictory bands, 753; intestinal, due to constriction of the bowel from appendicitis, 967; acute intestinal, recovery, *ib.*; intestinal, treated by cæcotomy, enterectomy, and closure of anus præternaturalis, 968; intestinal, due to band, 1078; intestinal, due to occlusion of the ileum by pressure band, operation, recovery, 1123
- O'Callaghan, Mr. R., dinner to, 781
- Occupation and mortality, 253
- Occupations, dangerous, 701
- O'Connor, Dr. B., amendment of Medical Acts, 217
- Odenhal, Dr. W., Asepsis in der Gynäkologie und Geburtshilfe, *rev.*, 1309
- Esophagus, treatment of fibrous stricture of by gastrotomy and dilatation from below, 243
- Offer, a mysterious, 723
- Ogilvie, Surgeon-Lieutenant W. H., division of the scapula by a sword cut, 1242
- Ogle, Dr. C., carcinoma of the bronchus, 1081
- O'Hagan, Mr. J. J., iodoform dermatitis, 63
- Ointment, hamamelis and massage, 919
- introducer (rectal), 973
- O'Kelly, Dr. T., binaural stethoscope for auscultatory percussion, 919
- Oliver, Dr. G., treatment of psoriasis (syphilitic) by thyroid extract, 392
- Dr. J., an anomalous case of stone in the bladder in a female, 791
- Ollivier, Dr. A., death of, 612
- O'Meara, Dr., death of, 889
- Operatives, insanity and overwork among, 1344
- Ophthalmia in Poor-law schools, 96, 242, 329, 492, 579, 1156; at the Cardiff workhouse infirmary, 225; at the Hackney Union schools, 1258
- Ophthalmometer, a, 1025
- Opium, use of in India, 25, 99, 116, 138, 250, 309, 364, 553, 974; in ague, 102, 437; in the Hyderabad State, 199; in Persia, 261; bang, or alcohol? 320; and its opponents, 370; in malaria, 560; the Singapore Debating Society on, 928; preparations of as poisons, 987, 997; question, the, 1224
- Orbit, tumours of, 579; osteoma of, 1380
- Ord, Dr. W. M., the left hemisphere from a case of aphasia, 635; a doctor's holiday, 1117
- Dr. W. W., tuberculous meningitis cured by drainage, 525

Organism, the growth and regeneration of the, 728; the adaptation of to pathological changes, 740

Ormsby, Steel v., 1108

Orr, Dr. H. B., A Theory of Development and Heredity, *rev.*, 1084

Ossification of the synovial membrane of the left knee-joint in a young man, 957

Ostitis deformans, 861

Osteoma, of superior maxilla, 61; of orbit, 1360

Osteoporosis of the cranial vault, 1188

Ostrich, human, the case of, 963; another, 1431

O'Sullivan, Dr. P. T., wound of the pulmonary artery, 64

Otitis media, chronic, intracranial complications of, 20

Out-patient question, the, 30; departments, Sir E. Sieveking on, 1169

Out-patients and subscribers' letters, 1208

Ovaries, removed for recurrent peritonitis, 915; tuberculosis of, 966; uterus and Falloppian tubes, removal of, recovery, 1298

Ovariectomy performed during pregnancy, pigmentation of the cicatrix after, 1244

Ovary and tube removed for recurrent salpingitis, 915; removal of a rapidly growing tumour of, in a patient who had recently been confined and on whom ovariectomy had been performed previously, 1303

Overwork and insanity among operatives, 1344

Owen, Dr. I., a teaching university for London, 325

— Dr. R., sea sickness in pregnancy, 503

— Sir R., subscriptions to the memorial to, 29; model of statue to, 928

Oxford Museum, The, Dr. T. D. Acland and Mr. J. Ruskin, *rev.*, 245

Oxygen gas, inhalation of, 801; the True Position of as a Restorative in Carbonic Acid Poisoning, Dr. W. E. Thomson, *rev.*, 864; for inhalation, 1342

Oysters, poisoning by, 463

Ozema, is it infectious? 858

P.

Pachydermia laryngis, 746

Pachymeningitis hæmorrhagica, 1081

Paddington, the new medical officer of health of, 657

Padua, Pasteurism at, 420

Page, Dr. H. W., a teaching university for London, 326

Paget, Sir J., the golden wedding of, 1146

Paine, Dr. A. J., obituary notice of, 223

Paisley, proposed new infirmary in, 443; jury-men fined at, Sheriff Cowan on medical certificates, 783; another gift for, 1113

Palate, hard and soft, an operation for cure of cleft of the, 913, 996

Palatinoid and bipalatinoid, 1447

Pancreas, the, in diabetes, 796; necrosis of the and its association with fat necrosis, *ib.*; cyst of with diabetes and atrophy of, 1191

Papilloma of the common bile duct, 1081

Paralysis, bilateral facial, due to injury by forceps at birth, 11; general, 21; diphtherial, suddenly fatal owing to entrance of tea into bronchial tubes, 468; infantile, electrical treatment of, 525; peripheral, following varicella, 679; general, infantile form of, 745; of sterno-mastoid and trapezius, and of right side of face, 861; cerebellar, symptoms resembling, cured by expulsion of ascarides, 1116; general, of the insane at puberty, sequel of a case of, 1125

Parietti's method, demonstration of typhoid bacillus in drinking water by, 961

Paris, special correspondence from, 40, 101, 157, 216, 269, 323, 380, 432, 489, 548, 603, 716, 769, 825, 881, 938, 994, 1049, 1104, 1153, 1222, 1331, 1388; the examination for the post of agrégé, 40; suicides in the St. Anne Asylum, *ib.*; the baccalauréat moderne, *ib.*; poisoning and incendiarism in a hospital, *ib.*; a suit for alleged malpraxis, *ib.*; general news from, 41, 770, 882, 939, 994, 1105, 1153, 1331, 1440; abuse of hospitals in, 98; the new law concerning the notification of infectious diseases, 101; a medico-legal institute, *ib.*; the sanitary conference of January, *ib.*; medical honours, *ib.*; statue to Charcot, *ib.*; Dr. Guyot, *ib.*; the sanitation of, *ib.*; new chair of biology, 102; small-pox in, 147, 489; importation of anthrax from China, 157; murderous attack on Dr. de la Tourette, *ib.*; the Hôpital Boucicault, *ib.*; honours to medical men, *ib.*; death of Dr. Quinquaud, *ib.*; the Charcot memorial, 158; professional secrecy, 216; dangers of heating carriages by briquettes, *ib.*; hospital reform in, 269, 380; doctors and landlords, 269; hospital abuse and reform in, 223; medical men and legacies from patients, *ib.*; curious case of illegal medical practice, *ib.*; decrease of typhoid fever in, *ib.*; cholera

and other epidemic diseases in, *ib.*; cremations in, 336, 770; a question of inclusive fees, 380; disposal of refuse from, *ib.*; socialism and the sale of drugs, 432; medical students and military service, *ib.*; a discovery at the St. Louis Hospital, 433; dirt infirmities and military service, *ib.*; want of pure wine as a cause of alcoholism, *ib.*; foreign students in, *ib.*; street names in, 448; sanitation of work-shops and factories, 488; hospital staffs and administration, 490; burial versus cremation, *ib.*; a criminal's brain, *ib.*; the disposal of the sewage of, *ib.*; assistant surgeons, 548; tuberculous meat, *ib.*; the prevention of tuberculosis, *ib.*; dangerous preservative substances, *ib.*; medical students in, 557; waterborne typhoid in, 593, 603; changes in hospital accommodation, 663; the overcrowding of the medical school of, *ib.*; typhoid fever in, 716; a microbe scare, *ib.*; a hospital scandal, *ib.*; the ambulance service of, *ib.*; a royal patient, *ib.*; female students in, 750; health of, 769; overcrowding in dissecting rooms of, 825; hospital physicians and surgeons, *ib.*; medical providence, *ib.*; the drought and the water supply of, 882; the Académie de Médecine and the question of a recess, 938; a remedy for anarchism, *ib.*; mad dogs, *ib.*; dangerous dwellings, 964; proposed abolition of the Assistance Publique, *ib.*; appointment of examining juries, 1049; cemeteries from a sanitary point of view, *ib.*; the sanitation of the Seine, *ib.*; medical syndicates, *ib.*; post-mortem examination of an anarchist, 1049, 1222; typhoid epidemics and polluted water, 1104; enteritis and unboiled milk, *ib.*; the medical staff of the Bureaux de Bienfaisance, *ib.*; the Society for the Assistance of the Blind, 1105; microbes in ironclads, 1153; vaccine virus, *ib.*; medical budget for, 1893, *ib.*; proposed tax on servants, *ib.*; hospital appointments in, 1222, 1331; the bathing of lunatics, *ib.*; sterilised milk for hospital nursing, *ib.*; purulent ophthalmia in the Maternité of, 1331; sterilisation of catgut, *ib.*; actions against bone setters, *ib.*; attack on a medical man, *ib.*; the water supply of, 1382; vaccination and revaccination, 1388; typhus in, *ib.*; prevention of epizootic disease, *ib.*; lycées as volunteer bearers, *ib.*; hospital internes, *ib.*; report of the Seine Sanitation Committee, 1440; hygiene of hospitals of, *ib.*; accidents from the electric light, *ib.*; the Boucicault, *ib.*

Parish Councils. See Councils

Parke, Surgeon-Major T. H., the memorial to, 424; the statue to, 864

Parker, Dr. J., prophylaxis of influenza, 227

— Mr. R. W., strangulated femoral hernia complicated with volvulus, 859

— Mr. W. R., a gigantic medical abuse, 41, 327, 658, 825, 882; accidental cure of house-maid's knee, 283

Parkes, Dr. L. C., the prevention of consumption amongst the poor, 32; Infectious Diseases, *rev.*, 414; Chelsea Hospital for Women, 607

Parkin, Mr. A., case of thyreo-glossal cyst treated by excision, 1358

PARLIAMENT.—Glanders, 49; legislation on hours of labour, 167; habitual drunkards, 167, 663; the eyesight of seamen, 499; poisoning by carbolic acid, *ib.*; the Queen's speech, 609; new Government Bills, *ib.*; private members' Bills, 609, 775; the Local Government Act (1894), 610; the Army Hospital Corps, 663; lunatics in unlicensed houses, *ib.*; medical attendance in the Post Office, 695; quarantine, 775; medicine at the War Office, *ib.*; the Gresham University, *ib.*; London bakeries, *ib.*; anthrax, *ib.*; hop substitutes, *ib.*; the water supply of East London, 834; lunacy administration in Ireland, *ib.*; retired army medical officers, *ib.*; seaports and cholera, *ib.*; sanitary inspectors and Irish gaols, *ib.*; marking of foreign produce, 889; the clothing of the police, *ib.*; Richmond Lunatic Asylum, Dublin, *ib.*; vivisection, *ib.*; paraffin lamps, 945; the Contagious Diseases Acts, *ib.*; first aid to the injured, 946; deaths from carbolic acid, *ib.*; alleged death from vaccination, *ib.*; the Optum Commission, 998; the regulation of factories and workshops, *ib.*; alleged inaccuracies in death certificates, *ib.*; West Riding Rivers Conservancy Bill, *ib.*; insanity in England and Wales, 1056; tea drinking and insanity, *ib.*; Forest Gate schools, *ib.*; the Guards' Hospital, 1057; sanitary condition of Highland railway stations and steamboats, 1110; bovine tuberculosis, *ib.*; field hospital training in India, *ib.*; viewing the body, *ib.*; the new Factory and Workshops Bill, *ib.*; Coroners' Act (1887) Amendment Bill, *ib.*; Prevention of Cruelty to Children Bill, 1161;

alleged increase of insanity in Ireland, 1226; Tuberculosis Commission, *ib.*; pauper district schools, *ib.*; vivisection returns, *ib.*; food adulteration, 1226, 1260; the Gresham Commission, 1226; prevention of cruelty to children, 1226, 1260; Scottish Universities Commission, 1260; sight testing, *ib.*; experiments on living animals, *ib.*; cholera at Mecca, *ib.*; workhouse inmates and special hospitals, *ib.*; infectious diseases in pauper district schools, *ib.*; Nile reservoirs, 1336; death under chloroform, *ib.*; Compulsory Vaccination Abolition Bill, *ib.*; the Hospital for Incurables, Dublin, *ib.*; alleged cruelty by a nurse, 1337; the Vaccination Act, *ib.*; the housing and diet of soldiers, *ib.*; contagious diseases in the army, *ib.*; Charitable Trusts Act Amendment Bill, 1395; cholera and inoculation, *ib.*; precautions against cholera, 1443; the case of Nurse Gillespie, 1444

Parry, Mr. T. W., a gigantic medical abuse, 158

Parsons, Dr. J. I., The Healing of Rodent Cancer by Electricity, *rev.*, 864

— "Particulars if required," 951

Partridge, Surgeon-General, the opium question, 116

Pastelles, glycerine, 196

Pasteur, M., British patients for, 94, 893, 966, 1113; honours to, 216, 261; hommage à, 1304

Pasteurism, in Hungary, 150; at Padua, 420; in New York, 463; in Russia, 484; in Turkey, 665

Patella, fractured, two cases of wiring for, 191

Patenting of proprietary medicines, 886

Paterson, Dr., Airthrey mineral wells, 1400

Pathologie und Therapie der Neurasthenie und Hysterie, Dr. L. Löwenfeld, *rev.*, 917

Patients, uncertainty of, 772, 827, 941

Patmore, Mr. T., some points bearing on malingerer, 238

Patterson, Dr. T., obituary notice of, 1282

Paul, Mr. F. T., enterectomy for gangrenous bowel, 235; circular enterorrhaphy by the method of, 236; pathology of rodent ulcer, 409, 524

Pauperism, the terrors of, 702, 776, 891, 929

Paupers, cruelty to, 929; isolation of infectious cases of, 1227

Pavy, Dr. F. W., The Physiology of the Carbohydrates, etc., *rev.*, 1194; on a new departure in diabetes, 1439, 1404

Pavone, Dr., on rickets, 745

Payment, of notification accounts, 948; for police calls, 1231

Payne, Dr. J. F., the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524

Pean, Dr., extirpation of large fibromyomata of the body of the uterus, 856

— Mr. J. B., Local Government Act, 1894, *rev.*, 1417

Pearse, Surgeon-Captain, the trial of, 719

Pekelharig, Dr. C. A., Beriberi, Researches concerning its Nature and Cause and the Means of its Arrest, *rev.*, 863

Peliosis rheumatica, 1080

Pellagra (klinische und anatomische Studien über die), Dr. F. Tuczek, *rev.*, 1082

Pemberton, Mr. O., on "viewing the body," 647

Pemphigus, acute purpura hæmorrhagica with, probably induced by influenza, 1191; foliaceous, a case of, 1237; neonatorum and puerperal septicæmia, 1241

Penberthy, Professor, pernicious anæmia and diarrhoea, 371

— Dr. W., forcible feeding of the insane, 574

Penis, horny growth on the, 191; fungating growth of (epithelioma?), 355

Pennell, Mr. T. L., brachial monoplegia, 896

Penny wash (a), 1041

Penrith, the water supply of, 1059, 1339

Pepper, Dr., and the University of Pennsylvania, 1122

Pepsin byk (liquid), 1310

Perchlorides of mercury and iron in typhoid fever, 1126, 1302

Periarteritis, nodose, of syphilitic origin, two cases of, 1025

Pericarditis, the treatment of, 717; tuberculous, 1128

Peritonitis, acute, following attempts to procure abortion, 20; treatment of by drainage, 122; the Lettsomian lectures on, 228, 341, 454, 516; general, the relation of subphrenic pyopneumothorax to when caused by gastric ulcer, 233; fatal perforating, 284; acute suppurative due to appendicitis, 354; recurrent, myomatous uteri and ovaries and appendages removed for, 915; tuberculous, 1129; perforative, a case of, 1242

Perityphilitis, rheumatic, a case of, 1289 and gout of the intestines, 1413

- Periwinkles, urticaria following the eating of, 171, 228
- Persia, opium in, 261; the cholera convention with, 925, 933, 975
- Peru, prehistoric trephining in, 338
- Pessary, retained, causing strangulation of the uterus, 351; retained, 463
- Pestilence, the great, 1382
- Petit, Dr. F., *Traité pratique de Gynécologie*, rev., 618
- Pfeiffer, Dr. E., Wiesbaden as a Health Resort, rev., 357
- Pharmaceutical preparations, influence of temperature on, 615; American, 1249
- Pharmacists, the responsibility of, 428
- Pharmacopœia of the Evelina Hospital for Sick Children, rev., 972; British, revision of, 1199; British, Squire's Companion to, Messrs. P. W. and A. H. Squire, rev., 1307
- Pharmacy, substitution in, 392
- Pharynx, perforating wound of, 1128; lupus of, 1192; sequel to case of obscure ulceration of in a case of arrested pulmonary tuberculosis of lung and pharynx, 20
- Phenacetin, the ill-effects of, 85
- Phenosail, 1365
- Philadelphia, correspondence from, 269, 323, 770; epidemic of influenza at, 323; post-graduate teaching in, 771
- Phillips, Dr. S. R., assistant medical officers in asylums, 606
- Philip's Anatomical Model, Mr. W. S. Furneaux, rev., 471
- Phillippo, Hon. Dr. J. C., obituary notice of, 46
- Phillips, Dr. F. L., the internal treatment of vesicular eczema, 175; liability for alleged incorrect notification, 328; defect in the Infectious Diseases (Notification) Act, 551; pyococci in frozen meat impetigo, 607; Medicated Baths in the Treatment of Skin Diseases, rev., 1130
- Philpots, Mr. H., galactorrhœa, 951
- Mr. J. R., transfusion and saline intravenous injection, 162
- Phonograph, the, in medicine, 915
- Phosphorus, laws as to preparations of in Germany, 171
- Phrenological frenzies, 701
- "Phthisin" crystals, 1151
- Phthisis, disinfection after death from, 30; acute, following destruction of the mucous membrane of the stomach by corrosive fluids, 129; creasote in, 340; climate and creasote in the treatment of, 560; The Open-air Treatment of, Dr. W. Bezly Thorne, rev., 805; in a dog, 969; flaxworkers', 1097
- Physical culture in England, 375; disabilities and the public services, 1377
- Physiology, or clinical medicine, 220, 283; of the Carbohydrates, etc., Dr. F. W. Pavy, rev., 1194; Advanced, Mr. J. Thornton, rev., 1248
- Picrocarmine, staining with, 115
- Pieroz, Dr., microscopic appearances of the blood in chronic malaria and the treatment of such affections by a new remedy, 762
- Piersol, Dr. G. A., *Textbook of Normal Histology*, rev., 971
- Pill, in the trachea, 284, 391; Matthew Baillie's, 615, 724
- Pills, coated, 248
- Pinkerton, Surgeon-Major-General J., appointed honorary physician to the Queen, 983, 1027
- Pinnock, Dr. R. D., radical cure of large umbilical hernia, 330
- Pipe inhaler, a, 1249
- Piperazine, a contribution to the study of, 1291
- Pitt, Dr. N., aberrant renal vessels as a cause of hydronephrosis, 859; supernumerary adrenal, *ib.*; fat necrosis, *ib.*; on diphtheria, 968
- Pituitary body, the morphology, origin, and evolution of function of, 54; Virchow's psammoma of the, with remarks as to the function of, 1351
- Placenta prævia centralis, 667
- Placenta, unusual position of in twin pregnancy, 840; abnormal in twin pregnancy, 784
- Plaster, an electro-magnet, 392
- Plasters, drawing and healing, 1096
- Platypus, poisoned wounds produced by, 1332
- Playfair, Dr. W. S., *A Treatise on the Science and Practice of Midwifery*, rev., 22
- Pleurisy, case of caused by the pneumococcus and with constitutional symptoms resembling those of pneumonia, 465
- Plimmer, Mr. H. G., researches on vaccinia and variola, 1412
- Plowright, Dr. C. B., the fungus kingdom, 404
- Plug, a gynecologist's, cervical, 305
- Plumbers, registration of, discussion on at Rome, 798; registration of, 836
- Plumbing and Drainage Works, Defects in, Dr. F. Vacher, rev., 1417
- Pneumococcus, pleurisy caused by, 465
- Pneumonia, among the troops at Quetta, 944; croupous in London in 1893, 1012; pitfalls in the diagnosis of, 1025
- Poison, within the meaning of the Pharmacy Act, 371
- Poisoning, by carbolic acid, 34, 439, 929, 1165; by misadventure, 92, 97, 208, 250, 293, 388; accidental at the Edinburgh Fever Hospital, 148; by lead, a suggestion, 156; by strychnine, 300, 1244; State aid in, 422, 492; by home-made wines, 447; by oysters, 463; by carbonic oxide, 483; chronic, by lead fumes, 540; arsenical, 836; by Dover's powder, 985; by liniments, protection against, 1084
- Poisons, bacterial, 18; the sale of from a chemist's point of view, 484; the sale of, 593; irregular sale of, 886; regulation of the sale of, 1115
- Police calls, payment for, 1231, 1339
- Policlinico Umberto I, 713, 751
- Politics and medicine, 116
- Politzer, Dr., *Textbook of Diseases of the Ear*, rev., 754
- Polypi, nasal, treatment of, 1287, 1342
- Poole, Dr. K. W., treatment of tapeworm, 391
- Poor, the aged in England and Wales, Mr. C. Booth on, 1317
- Poor Law, the and its abuses, 984; practice, the perils of, 1338
- Poore, Dr., enteric fever in a diabetic subject, 1086
- Population, a vanishing, 1008
- Pork, unwholesome, 268
- Pork's operation for cancer of the rectum, 299
- Port Isaac, the water supply of, 988
- Porter, Dr. C., notes and queries on small-pox, 185
- Portsmouth, compulsory notification at, 1339
- Portugal, suicide in, 1447
- Postempiski, craniectomy, 857
- Post-graduate teaching in London, 32, 984
- Potassium permanganate as an antidote for morphine, 649
- Potter, Stevenson v., 648, 662
- Dr. G. W., out-patient hospital abuse, 771, 939
- Potts, Mrs. Longshore, and the Royal British Nurses' Association, 159, 218
- Power, Mr. D'Al., a case of tar cancer, 17; cyst in the post-anal gut in an infant, 1081; cancer houses and their victims, 1240
- Poynder, Surgeon-Major G. F., are ministers of religion rightly entitled to the gratuitous services of the medical profession? 1053
- Pozzi, Dr. S., *A Treatise on Gynecology, Clinical and Operative*, rev., 71; made officer of the Legion of Honour, 801
- Practice, lay, 472; purchase of, 783; Continental, 951; medical, a suggested remedy for existing abuses in, 977, 983; unqualified, the suppression of, 1277
- Practitioners, general, consultants and, 1157
- Pratt, Dr., lacerated wound of upper third of the thigh, 861
- Précis de Médecine Opératoire Obstétricale, Dr. S. Remy, rev., 131; d'Obstétrique, M.M. Ribemont-Dessaignes and G. Lepage, rev., 1414
- Pregnancy and Bright's disease, 66; twin, unusual position of placenta in, 340; sea sickness in, 503; tubal, 525; alleged ovarian, 615; twin with abnormal placenta, 784; ruptured tubal, 915; pigmentation of the cicatrix in ovariectomy performed during, 1244
- Premises, insanitary, liability for, 224
- Prescription book, a, 1249
- forms, the issue of, 503
- Prescriptions, select and pharmaceutical notes, 38, 1200; executors and, 159, 272
- Presentation, to Dr. Hies, 26; Dr. A. Purkiss, 45; Dr. Denholm, 113; Dr. A. W. Acheson, 175; Dr. A. W. Shepherd, 444; Dr. A. D. Hughes, 460; Dr. T. Carr, 557; Dr. M. Treston, *ib.*; Dr. A. Ritchie, 557, 768; Dr. W. Walker, *ib.*; Dr. H. L. Hoops, 605; Mr. T. R. Atkinson, 683; Mr. W. J. Spence, 754; Dr. J. S. Taylor, 868; Dr. R. Duffield, 1005; Dr. J. Skeen, 1123; Dr. R. Koettlitz, 1165; Sir G. Buchanan, 1205; Dr. McCallum, 1243; Dr. E. Rice, 1244; Dr. Croucher, 1372; Dr. Flood, *ib.*; Mr. A. W. Blyth, *ib.*; Dr. W. H. Dickinson, 1380; Dr. F. S. Toogood, 1388; Dr. J. T. Neech, 1445
- Press, the, quacks and the public, 206; doctors and, 374
- Prevention and notification, 1162
- Priestley, Mr. J., some remarks on erysipelas and its connection with washhouses, 836
- Princess of Wales, the health of, 90
- Prison system, our, 703
- Prisons, our, are they a failure? 773
- Pritchard, Mr. W. B., phthisis in a dog, 969
- Prize, the Gaskell, the examination for, 1060
- Prize, the Walker for the investigation of cancer, regulations for, 664
- essays, 500, 612, 812, 1396
- Prizes, award of, 283
- Probationers at children's hospitals, 446
- Profession, the dental in the United Kingdom, 377
- the medical in England, M. M. Leclerc on, 265; are ministers of religion rightly entitled to the gratuitous services of? 548, 1053; the medical and Freemasonry, 1061; in New South Wales, the ethics and prospects of, 1067
- Proposal, a cool, 425
- "Proprietary mixtures," 104
- Prosecution for exposing infectious patients, 48
- Prosecutions, repeated, under the Vaccination Acts, 778
- Prostate, passage of the catheter in disease of, 392, 560, 616, 723, 840, 895; castration in enlargement of, 1052, 1353; cancer of the, complicated with spasmodic contraction of the bladder, 1241
- Prota soup powder, 919
- Protoplasma, the ground substance of and its modifications by life, 853
- Providence, medical, 984
- Pruen, Dr. S. T., *A Medical Missionary in Central Africa*, rev., 1195
- Pruritus ani, treatment of, 839, 893, 1063
- Prussia, cremation in, 1275
- Psammoma (Virchow's) of the pituitary with remarks as to the function of that structure, 1351
- Pseudo-hypertrophic family, a, 399
- Psoriasis, treatment of by thyroid extract, 13, 617; thyroid feeding in, 68; syphilitic, treatment by thyroid extract, 186, 392; multiple epitheliomatous growths developing in, 354
- Psychiatric in Würzburg von 1883 bis 1893, Dr. C. Rieger, rev., 195
- Ptomaine poisoning by koumiss, 1331
- Puberty, sequel to a case of general paralysis of the insane at, 1125
- Public Health and Demography, Dr. E. F. Willoughby, rev., 23; health of English towns, 48, 110, 165, 224, 280, 334, 387, 441, 498, 557, 610, 685, 777, 835, 890, 948, 1002, 1058, 1112, 1162, 1226, 1283, 1338, 1395, 1444; health of Scotch towns, 48, 111, 165, 224, 280, 334, 387, 441, 498, 557, 610, 685, 777, 836, 891, 948, 1003, 1058, 1112, 1162, 1226, 1284, 1338, 1395, 1444; English urban mortality, 109, 835; the true death-rates of London districts, 164, 889; zymotic mortality in London, 278, 1001; the Registrar-General's quarterly return, 279, 1001; appointments in, 283, 339, 391; English urban mortality in 1893, 441; the death-rates of London sanitary districts for 1893, 497; Problems of, Dr. J. F. J. Sykes, rev., 864; digest of statistics pertaining to, 1115; the Registrar-General's report, 1283
- Pudsey, free sanitary lectures at, 500
- Pullar gas stove, the, 1007
- Pulsations in the veins and liver, 192
- Pulse, high tension of and auditory vertigo, 1190
- Punjab, female practitioners for, 1060
- Purkiss, Dr. A., presentation to, 45
- Purpura hæmorrhagica with acute pemphigus, probably induced by influenza, 1191
- Puzey, Mr. C., and the Liverpool Medical Institution, 875
- Pye-Smith, Dr. P. H., the relations of dermatology to general medicine, 1170
- Mr. R. J., proposed Society of the Fellows of the Royal College of Surgeons of England, 774
- Pyococci in frozen meat impetigo, 607
- Pyrogenic substances, 742
- Pyoktanin in epithelioma, 1024
- Pyonephrosis, case of, 1361
- Pyo-pneumothorax, subphrenic, the relation of to general peritonitis when caused by gastric ulcer, 233
- Pyozone, 529
- Quack medicines and the clergy, 104
- Quackery, a new phase of, 154; in India, 1060
- Quacks, the press and the public, 208; our boys and our, 594; Dr. Jenner and Lady Morgan on, 895
- Quain, Sir R., *A Dictionary of Medicine*, etc., rev., 1361
- Quarantine relative to infectious disorders, 187, 338; by "boarding out" 206; absurdities of, 596; discussion on at Rome, 798; the fallacy of, 929; powers of sanitary authorities as to, 1135, 1634
- officers, international, appointment of, 927
- Quetta, pneumonia among the troops at, 944
- Queirolo, effects of removal of the liver from the circulation, 795



Quill, Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel R. H., the use of a combination of carbolic acid and chloroform in enteric fever, 909, 1007

Quincke, Dr. H., Ueber Tag und Nacht-harn, *rev.*, 864

Quinè, Dr., an improved poison bottle, 919

Quinquaud, Dr., death of, 157

Quinton, Dr. R. F., are our prisons a failure? 773

R.

Rabies, in Glasgow, 424; and the duty of dog owners, 846; and hydrophobia, 1090; at Athens, 1200

Race progress, Darwinism and, 348, 402, 459

Radius, sarcoma of, 212

Railton, Dr. T. C., sporadic cretinism treated by administration of thyroid gland, 1180; a case of congenital rickets, 1299

Railway servants, the eyesight of and the Board of Trade, 873

Rake, Dr. B., the opportunities for research in Trinidad, 287; leprosy and tuberculosis, 666

Ralfe, Dr., milk diet in Bright's disease, 636

Ramage, Dr. C., a case of congenital anophthalmos, 681

Ramon y Cajal, Professor, the career of, 374; the Croonian lecture of, 543; receives Sc.D. honoris causa at Cambridge, 556

Randall, Mr. M., peliosis rheumatica, 1080

Ranger, Mr. A. W. G., Salvationist shelters and infectious diseases, 162

Ranke, Professor, Behring's serum in diphtheria, 745

Rankin, Dr. W., epidemic jaundice, 1122

Ransom, Dr. W. B., the prognosis and treatment of actinomycosis, 61; tumour of the spinal dura mater, 395; spinal ataxy, 915

Rash, scarlet, after enemata, 1190, 1413

Rates, medical club, 1094

Rathbone, Mr. W., Riviera health resorts: Allassio, 339

Rations, supply of for district pauper patients, 663

Ratton, Dr. J. J. L., prophylaxis of influenza, 227

Ratray, Dr. A. M. T., dangerous funeral observances, 724

Rauch, Dr. J. H., death of, 834, 1154

Raven, Mr. T. F., myxedema treated by thyroid tabloids, 12

Rawits, Dr. B., Grundriss der Histologie für Studierende und Aerzte, *rev.*, 805

Raynaud's disease. *See* Disease

Record Press Limited, National Pension Fund for Nurses v., 829

Rectal ointment introducer, 973

Rectum, Porro's operation for cancer of, 299; melanotic sarcoma of the, 858

Recurrence or relapse? 391, 447, 560, 616, 667, 1116

Redfern, Professor, presentation to, 929

Redmond, Dr. C. S., the air of schools, 1168, 1288; the lighting and ventilation of schools, 1231

Redruth, St. John Ambulance Association at, 388

Red tape, infection and, 210

Reece, Mr. R., death of, 1283

Regent's Canal, sanitary condition of, 387

Reger, Dr., spread of infective diseases, 795

Regina v. Sherrard, 698

"Registers," the Dentists', summary of, 377

"Registers," the, for 1894, 545

Registrars and medical certificates of the cause of death, 338

Registration of death without medical certificates, 1042

— of midwives, 883, 942, 974, 995, 1052, 1106, 1157, 1207, 1223, 1270, 1384

— of plumbers, 798, 836

Reid, Dr. J., decoration of, 927

— Dr. T. W., prevention of the entrance of blood into the trachea, 1343

Reinhardt, Dr. A. H., undetected stone in the bladder, 447

Relapse or recurrence? 391, 447, 560, 616, 667, 1116

Relief, parochial medical, 30

Remedies, secret, the sale of, 372; the composition of, 1097

Remfry, Dr., ligature and division of the upper part of both broad ligaments and the result as compared with that of removal of the appendages, 1306

Removal of infectious cases, 891

Rémy, Dr. S., Précis de Médecine Opératoire Obstétricale, *rev.*, 131

Renal. *See* Kidney

Renaudot, T., unveiling of statue to, 1095

Renshaw, Dr. H. S., nasal feeding in cases of painful deglutition, 1078; multiple insular

necrosis of skin and other subjacent tissues, 1238

Renton, Dr. J. C., notes of abdominal surgical cases, 124

Rentoul, Dr. R. R., proposed new order of midwifery practitioners, 272, 435, 606; The Proposed Formation of a New Order of Midwifery Practitioners, *rev.*, 1030

Reports of the Johns Hopkins Hospital, *rev.*, 1364

Resection, intestinal, 273

Resht, cholera and the sanitary state of, 387

Respirators, white lead, 171

Responsibility, pharmaceutical, 428

Rest in eye affections, 1024

Retainers, midwifery, 541

Retina, treatment of detachment of the, 848

Returns of sickness, 1376

Revision (A) of the Adult Cestodes of Cattle, Sheep, and Allied Animals, *rev.*, 1309

Revolver accidents, 558

Rheumatism, cider, evergreens and, 115

Rib, fracture of from coughing, 408

Ribemont-Dessaignes, M.A., Précis d'Obstétrique, *rev.*, 1414

Riberi prize, the, 504

Richards, Mr. W., death of, 664

Richardson, Mr. T. A., two cases of abdominal section, 523

Richmond, Dr. J., the staining of the flagella of bacteria, 908

Rickets, discussion on at Rome, 745; congenital, a case of, 1299

Ridley, Mr. G. W., ileo-cæcal intussusception in a child aged 11 months, cure after laparotomy, 911; double empyema, cure after incision and drainage, 912

— Mr. N. C., some points in the histology of trachoma, 1360

Rieger, Dr. C., Der Psychiatrie in Würzburg von 1883 bis 1893, *rev.*, 195

Rifle, Lee-Metford, gunshot injury by, 127; Männlicher, wounds produced by, 152; military surgery and the, 223

Rio de Janeiro, an English surgeon at, 317; hospital for lepers at, 639; deaths from yellow fever at, 665

Ritchie, Dr. A., presentation to, 557

River pollution and water supply, 1339

Riviera, the, typhoid on, 94

Roads, the construction of, 875

Roberts, Lord. *See* Lord

— Mr. F. C., death of, 1337

— Mr. H. C., accidental cure of housemaid's knee, 187

— Mr. H. J., recurrence or relapse? 447

— Dr. H. L., Introduction to the Study of Mould Fungi Parasitic on Man, *rev.*, 193

Robertson, Dr. G., quarantine relative to infectious disease, 338

Robson, Mr. A. W. M., abdominal hysterectomy with treatment of the pedicle by the intraperitoneal method, 125; the surgery of the gall bladder and bile ducts with brief notes of 78 cases, 901

Roche, Mr. A., epidemic jaundice, 522

Roger, Dr., the liver in infectious disease, 797

Rogers, Dr. B. M. H., an unusual case of alopecia, 911

Rolleston, Dr. H. D., carcinoma of the neck, 966; papilloma of the common bile duct, 1081

Romanes, Professor, the death of, 1146; the funeral of, 1225

Rome, the hospitals and clinics of, 707; medical protection in, 1301

Rorie, Dr. J., automatic writing, 140

Rorke's Drift, the defence of, 373, 482

Rosebery, Lord. *See* Earl

Rosenberg, Dr. A., Die Krankheiten der Mundhöhle des Rachens und des Kehlkopfes, *rev.*, 471

Roseola (Epidemic), the Features which distinguish (it) from Measles and from Scarlet Fever, Dr. C. Dukes, *rev.*, 1416

Rotherham, cholera at in 1893, 1058; cholera and diarrhoea at, 1227

Routh, Dr. C. H. F., medical missionaries, 103, 219; the conservative treatment of diseases of the uterine appendages, 914

Rovigno, the marine zoological station at, 872

Rowley, Mr. O. F., long retention of halfpenny in stomach, 1400

Rubio, Dr. F. A., death of, 276

Ruffer, Dr. A., on cancer, 744; researches on variola and vaccinia, 1412

Rumboll, Mr. S., an improved gas and ether inhaler, 806

Rumpel, Dr. Th., Illustrations of Pathological Anatomy, with descriptive text, *rev.*, 1028

Ruppert, Miss A., the skin tonic of, 109, 163, 204

Ruskin, Mr. J., The Oxford Museum, *rev.*, 245

Russel, Dr. J. C., artificial feeding in acute melancholia, 522

Russell v. Cree, 608

— Dr. J. S. R., pernicious anæmia successfully treated by arsenic, 298; a clinical study of a case of cyst of the cerebellum, 393

— Dr. J. W., hereditary chorea, 20

— Dr. W. J., biographical notice of, 699

Russia, antirabic vaccinations in, 210; medical congress in, 433; Pasteurism in, 484; the medical profession in, 837; medical education for women in, 1177; compulsory use of metric system of weights, etc., in prescriptions, etc., in, 1229; night blindness in, 1342; a leper colony in, 1367

Ryall, Mr. E. C., rectal ointment introducer, 973

Ryan, Mr. R. P., hypodermic injection of brain extract in mental diseases, 240

Ryan-Tenison, Mr. E. H., a gigantic medical abuse, 102

Ryle, Dr. R. J., acute inflammation of the antrum in influenza, 574

Ryott, Dr. F. E., obituary notice of, 112

S.

Saccharometer, a urinary, 1418

Saddles, pneumatic cycle, 1249

Sailors, the teeth of, 262

St. Albans, nursing, etc., at the workhouse of, 1311, 1323

St. Jacob's oil, 995

St. Petersburg, correspondence from, 1331, 1440; awards in the hygienic exhibition, 1441; new chairs in the Army Medical Academy, *ib.*; conference of Livonian physicians, *ib.*

St. Saviour's, Southwark, the sanitary condition of, 611

Salaries of health officers, 49, 165

Saline intravenous injections and transfusion, 162

— solution, transfusion of in secondary hæmorrhage from internal maxillary, 1301

Salpingitis, recurrent, ovary and tube removed for, 615

Salt, Mr. C. E., University Hall, Edinburgh, 942

Salters Company, the, and scientific research, 1147, 1279

Salvation Army, the shelters of and infectious diseases, 162

Samoa, epidemic measles at, 1077

Sanatoria for tuberculous patients in France, 500

Sandford, Dr. A., tubercle of the iris, 1023; intracranial abscess arising from caries of the sphenoidal cells, *ib.*

Sanger, Mr. C. R., on arsenical poisoning, 836

Sanger, Dr. M., Asepsis in der Gynäkologie und Geburtshilfe, *rev.*, 1309

Sanitary appointments, the tenure of, 1042

— authorities and Boards of guardians, the relations of, 447; powers of as to isolation and quarantine, 1135, 1334

— inspectors, the status of, 388; the certification of, 429; the tenure of office of, 891; the education and examination of, 935

Sanitation, English, an Australian sanitarian on, 824; and the Labour Commission, 1059; in Egypt, 1089; a victory for, 1314

— Sunday, date of, 557

Sanitor, 1418

Sansom, Dr. A. E., the diagnosis of septic endocarditis, 828; purpura hæmorrhagica, with periphig, probably induced by influenza, 1191; a review of cases manifesting pain at the heart or morbid acceleration of the heart's contractions (tachycardia) subsequently to influenza, 1305

Sarcoma, multiple of subcutaneous tissue, 20; of radius, 242; idiopathic of skin, 853; melanotic of rectum, 858; of bladder, 916; growing at the site of recent fracture, 1125; abdominal, infiltrating abdominal wall, 1189; spindle-celled cystic or adeno-fibroma occurring in, 1303

Saundby, Dr. R., a gigantic medical abuse and its remedy, 327, 381; common forms of dyspepsia in women, 570, 673

Savage, Mr. T. J., the Lewisham lunacy case, 1224; Bloxham v. Collie, 1276

Savill, Dr. T. D., new epidemic skin disease, 746, 1431

Saxony, qualification for practice in, 559

Sayre, Mr. L. E., Essentials of Practice of Pharmacy, etc., *rev.*, 1309

Scapula, dislocation of, 184; division of the by a sword cut, 1242

Scarlet fever and scarlatina. *See* Fever

Scavenger cell, the lay of the, 952

Schacht, Dr., ectopic gestation, 67

Schenck, Dr. S. L., Manual of Bacteriology for Practitioners and Students, *rev.*, 1130

Schmidt, Dr. M., Die Krankheiten der oberen Luftwege, *rev.*, 1247

Schmiegelow, Professor, intubation of the larynx in the adult, 746



- Schofield, Dr. A. T., hygiene in university local examinations, 607; complete inversion of uterus in a primipara, 633  
Scholarships, medical research, 923  
School, attendance at and notification of infectious disease, 111  
— of Medicine for Women, Edinburgh, new scholarships at, 204  
— of Medicine for Women, London, and St. Andrews University, 1111; distribution of prizes at, 1427  
Schooling, Mr. W., Bourne's Handy Assurance Directory, *rev.*, 583  
Schools, air of, 95, 986, 1168, 1288; Poor-law, ophthalmia in, 96, 242, 329, 492, 579, 1156; closure of on advice of health officer, 167; the exclusion system at, 777; public, study of biology and chemistry at, 811; Poor-law barrack, 928, 1144, 1206; periodical testing of eyesight in, 1023, 1107, 1147; lighting and ventilation of, 1063, 1231; barrack, epidemics at, 1265; district and the Local Government Board, 1266; barrack, the future of, 1373; Mr. Shaw Lefevre and a general inquiry into, 1429  
Schrön, Professor, on cancer, 744  
Science, the organisation of, 727  
Scirrhus, cystic or adeno-fibroma occurring as, 1303  
Scotland, "medical practitioners" in, 207; small-pox in, 1325, 1396, 1430, 1444; the medical schools of, 1391; powers for dealing with refractory local authorities in, 1434  
Scott, Dr. A., cancer houses and their victims, 1302  
Seagal, Dr. E. F., death of, 276  
Scorum, wound of, 1359; deposit of urate of soda in the, 1361  
Scurvy in infants, 1439  
Sea sickness in pregnancy, 503  
Seamen, the food of, 1093  
Searle, Mr. H. J., ophthalmia in Poor-law schools, 1156  
Seborrhæa psoriasiformis, case of, 60  
Sedbergh, the cost of small-pox at, 1320  
Sells, Dr. H. T., urticaria following the eating of periwinkles, 228  
Semon, Dr. F., acute inflammation of the antrum of Highmore after influenza, 237; lupus of larynx and pharynx, 1192; doubtful malignant disease of the larynx treated by thyrotomy and radical removal of the growths, *ib.*; sequel to a case of obscure ulceration of pharynx in a case of arrested pulmonary tuberculosis of lung and pharynx, *ib.*; gets title of professor, 1427  
Senecio jacobæa, the action of in the treatment of functional amenorrhæa, 679  
Senility, cancer and, 884  
Senior, Surgeon E. W., at Rio de Janeiro, 317  
Senkintan, or "thousand gold medicine," 77  
Senn, Dr. N., Syllabus of Lectures of the Practice of Surgery, *rev.*, 303  
Sensation, perverted localisation of, 1  
Septicæmia, puerperal, treatment, etc., of, 434; puerperal, and pemphigus neonatorum, 1241; puerperal, the etiology of, prevention and treatment of, 1245  
Serratius magnus, paralysis of, 184  
Servetus (Michael), proposed memorial function for, 1005  
Service, Mr. R. M., gleet and gonorrhæal infection, 1007  
Services, the public, physical disabilities and, 1377  
Sewage, the Hermite system of disinfection of, 96, 329, 496, 761, 1254; works on the disposal of, 227; is it good to drink? 257; why do we drink? 592; on a great scale, 700; Treatment and Disposal for Cities, etc., Dr. T. Wardle, *rev.*, 916; Disposal Works, Mr. W. S. Crimp, *rev.*, 1247; purification works at Glasgow, 1257; and typhoid fever, 1325  
Sewer air, microbes of, 1059  
Sewers, flushing of, the Hermite system, 329; the ventilation of, 1112, 1163, 1395  
Shadwell, Mr. St. C. B., on diphtheria, 1127  
Shafting, revolving, dangers of, 389  
Shattock, Mr. S. G., the left hemisphere from a case of aphasia, 635; ectopia vesicæ, 858; the Morton lecture on cancer and cancerous diseases, 1065; meningo-myelocoele with persistence of prepubertal condition of the cord, 1081  
Shaw Lefevre, Mr., and a general inquiry into schools, 1429  
Sheen, Dr. A., midwives registration, 1106, 1157; cheap doctors, their defences, 1279  
Sheffield, special correspondence from, 41; Christmas at the hospitals of, 41; death of a nursing sister, *ib.*; alcoholic poisoning, *ib.*; lady medical officer at, 893; opening of medical and surgical home for paying patients at, 1206; tobacco at the workhouse of, 1268  
Sheild, Mr. A. M., diagnosis and treatment of mammary cancer, 65  
Shelly, Dr. C. E., the feeding of schoolboys and schoolgirls, 373  
Shepherd, Dr. A. W., presentation to, 444  
Sherrard, Regina *v.*, 698  
Shildon, enteric fever at, 1234  
Ship surgeons, 559  
Shipping on the Thames, medical inspection of, 557  
Ships, training, health of the, 318, 331; merchant, medical scale for, 1376  
Shooter's Hill, the proposed fever hospital at, 165  
Shooting case, the, in the City, 203  
Shops, doctors', 1432  
Shore, Dr. L. E., the Hyderabad Chloroform Commission, 436  
Shoreditch, the medical officership of health for, 536; model dwellings in, 1339  
Short, Dr. T. S., sarcoma, 20  
Shorthand in medicine, 1445  
Shotproof body covering (Dowe's), 928  
Shoulder girdle, deformity of the, 634  
Shuttleworth, Dr., idiots and epileptics, 318; types of idiocy and imbecility, 548  
Siberia, British help for the lepers of, 152  
Sick, the Care of the, Dr. Th. Billroth, *rev.*, 1083  
Sickness returns, 1376  
Sievcking, Sir E., on our out-patient departments, 1169  
Sigmoid flexure, dilatation and rupture of, 301  
Silcock, Mr. A. Q., acute intestinal obstruction, operation, recovery, 967  
Simpson, Mr. G., pruritus ani, 839  
Sinclair, Mr. G. G., twin pregnancy, abnormal placenta, 784  
Singapore, Debating Society, and opium, 928  
Siphon trap, new use for a, 663  
Sissons, Mr. W. H., made deputy-lieutenant, 168  
Skæ, Dr. F. M. T., vacuolation of the nuclei of the nerve cells in the cortex, 1075  
Skeen, Dr. J., presentation to, 1123  
Skin, diseases of, treated by thyroid gland, 66; Diseases of the, Mr. M. Morris, *rev.*, 413; idiopathic sarcoma of the, 853; cold as an etiological factor in diseases of the, *ib.*; and other subjacent tissues, multiple necrosis of, 1238; new epidemic disease of, 1431  
Skull, a complicated case of fracture of the base of the, 910; undetected fractures of the, 1268; rapid cure of cystic tumour of, 1343  
Slade-King, Dr. E. J., notification by householders, 166  
Slaughtering of animals, 1256  
Sleeplessness in boys, 615  
Sloan, Dr. A. T., small-pox, 21; self-inflicted bullet wound of the head, 69  
Smale, Mr. M., Diseases and Injuries of the Teeth, *rev.*, 356  
Small-pox, case of, 21; and vaccination at Leicester, 30, 990; at Leith, 49, 165, 224, 279, 334, 1003, 1059, 1112, 1206, 1284, 1444; vaccination and, 94, 165, 279, 426, 498, 685, 834, 836, 1003, 1046, 1099, 1210, 1369; the epidemic of, 165, 388, 443, 610, 836; and cow-pox, 172; notes and queries on, 185; at Edinburgh, 224, 279, 334, 777, 1059, 1112, 1227, 1444; maternal, infection of infant after birth, 239; aerial convection of from hospitals, 243, 411; exclusion of light in, 447, 742; the cost of epidemics of, 498, 1320; at the Essex County Lunatic Asylum, 536; in Manchester in 1893, 557; isolation, 594; postal transmission of, 613; Dr. Thresh on the spread of, 646; the diagnosis of, 685; at Whitlington, 762, 924; and vaccinia, 796; prevention of, 836; at Wyke, illegal quarantine, *ib.*; and vaccination in 1893, 878; and its own death warrant, 948; at West Ham, 1003; near Keighley, *ib.*; vaccination and nurses, 1040; in London, 1048, 1339; an outbreak of, vaccination and revaccination, 1076; vaccination and the death-rate, 1111; in Glasgow, 1162; clothiers and, 1204; occurrences, recent, 1227; Dr. Boobyer on, 1244; prevention of, statistics misused, 1324; in Scotland, 1325, 1396, 1430, 1444; in Dublin, 1339; spread of by tramps, 1379; spread by a book, 1396; the isolation of, 1444; at Willenhall, *ib.*  
Smith, Dr. A., ovary and tube removed for recurrent salpingitis, 915; ruptured tubal pregnancy, *ib.*  
— Dr. F. C., bronchopneumonia simulating acute pulmonary tuberculosis, 171  
— Mr. F. J., appendicitis, 128  
— Mr. H., obituary notice of, 775  
— Mr. H. A., new antidote case, 248; a simple gag, 806  
— Mr. J. Greig, so-called spontaneous disappearance of solid abdominal tumours with three cases, 190  
— Dr. J. L., a new method of preparing culture media, 1177  
Smith, Miss L. G., appointed inspector under the Infant Life Protection and Shop Hours Act, 893  
— Mr. P., periodical testing of eyesight in schools, 1023, 1278  
— Dr. S. C., the prevention of consumption, 538  
— Dr. T., sporadic cretinism treated with thyroid gland, 1178  
— Dr. W. K., registration of plumbers, 798  
Smoke, abatement of by private initiative, 873  
Smyly, Dr. W. J., myomatous uteri and ovaries and appendages removed for recurrent peritonitis, 915  
Smyth, Surgeon-Lieutenant W. J., epilepsy in old age, 1358  
Snell, Dr. S. H., an outbreak of small-pox, vaccination and revaccination, 1076  
— Mr. S., amblyopia from di-nitrobenzol, 449; children's eyesight, 1107; osteoma of orbit, 1360; congenital serous cysts of the eyelids associated with anophthalmos or microphthalmos, *ib.*  
Snow, Dr. H., breast carcinoma with myeloids, excision, followed by two recurrences, cure, 62; the treatment of breast cancer, marrow infection, 522; A Treatise, Practical and Theoretic, on Cancers and the Cancer Process, *rev.*, 637; "cystic" or "adenofibroma" recurring as scirrhus or spindle celled sarcoma, 1003  
Soap, disinfectant coal tar, 71; lanoline pine tar, 583; germicide, 1310  
— Liniment, alkaline, 338  
Société d'Autopsie, Mutuelle, notes on, 604  
Societies, medical aid, 383; medical aid and the General Medical Council, 604; medical aid and assurance, 1287; friendly in New Zealand, 1370  
Society of Anesthetists, meeting of, 444, 721  
— of Apothecaries. See Apothecaries  
— Berlin Aquarium, the marine zoological station of, 872  
— Chemical, the Fellowship of, 446  
— Clinical of London, acute phthisis following destruction of the mucous membrane of the stomach by corrosive fluids, 129; suppurating hydatid cyst of liver opened through the chest wall, *ib.*; case of membranous inflammation of throat during scarlet fever, 130; endosteal sarcoma of radius, 242; nephrectomy for malignant tumour in a patient under 2 years of age, *ib.*; cases, 242; nephrectomy for malignant tumour in an infant, 354; multiple epitheliomatous growths developing in psoriasis, *ib.*; general acute suppurative peritonitis due to appendicitis, *ib.*; fungating growth of penis (epitheliomatous?), 355; multiple toxæmic neuritis, 466; diphtheritic paralysis suddenly fatal owing to entrance of tea into bronchial tubes, *ib.*; living specimens, 467, 967; cerebral abscess, 577; extradural hæmorrhage, *ib.*; excision of part of a dislocated semilunar fibrocartilage of the knee, 578; excision in typhoid perforation, *ib.*; resection of bladder for recurrent epithelioma, 752; rectangular ankylosis of hip-joint, *ib.*; biliary colic removal of calculi, *ib.*; traumatic rupture of the common bile duct, *ib.*; aneurysm by anastomosis, 758; pelvic enchondroma, 859; strangulated femoral hernia complicated with volvulus, *ib.*; myocarditis, *ib.*; abscess of spleen with secondary abscess in liver, *ib.*; operative treatment of oblique simple fractures of the tibia and fibula in certain classes of labourers, *ib.*; a mode of making extension in fractures of the femur, 967; intestinal obstruction due to constriction of the bowel after appendicitis, *ib.*; acute intestinal obstruction, operation, recovery, *ib.*; syringomyelia, 1079; enteric fever in a diabetic subject, 1080; hæmoglobinuria from muscular exertion, *ib.*; peliosis rheumatica, *ib.*; report of council and list of officers, 1166; the use of chlorine gas in the treatment of chronic ulcers of the leg, 1191; pancreatic cyst, with diabetes, atrophy of pancreas, *ib.*; purpura hæmorrhagica, with acute pemphigus probably induced by influenza, *ib.*  
— Clinical, Manchester, meeting of, 193, 527  
— Cremation, Paris, annual meeting of, 770  
— Dermatological, German, the fourth congress of, 168  
— Dermatological of Great Britain and Ireland, first meeting and officers, etc., of, 875; presidential address of, 1170; the congress of, 1204, 1267  
— Epidemiological, bacterial poisons, 18; aerial convection of small-pox from hospitals, 243, 411; meeting of, 526; certain affections of the mucous surfaces and their relation with diphtheria, 860; coexistence of infectious diseases, 969  
— of Fellows of the Royal College of

Surgeons, proposed formation of, 647, 658, 694; 774; formation of, 821; formation of branch of in Manchester, 1113; issue of circular by, 1217

Society, Gynecological, American, Transactions of the, *rev.*, 1364

Gynecological, British, annual dinner of, 225; meeting of, 683; the conservative treatment of diseases of the uterine appendages, 914; polypoid growth in uterus, 1192; conservative treatment of diseases of the uterine appendages, *ib.*

Harveian of Edinburgh, meeting of, 694

Harveian of London, list of officers, 113; annual meeting of, 178; meeting of, 358, 467, 580, 754, 802; the Harveian lectures of, 424; diseases of the nervous system, 914; habitual abortion, 1024; cancer of the colon and its treatment, *ib.*; syphilitic laryngitis, 1244; pigmentation of cicatrix after ovariectomy performed during pregnancy, *ib.*; poisoning by strychnine, *ib.*; adenoma of the body of the uterus, *ib.*

Hunterian, meeting of, 192, 412, 665, 802; annual meeting and list of officers of, 500; presentation of medalion of Hunter to, 758; cases, 914; diphtheria, 968, 1127

Laryngological of London, annual meeting and list of officers of, 168; meeting of, 468, 637; honorary members of, 476; the choice of the anæsthetic in operations for the removal of post-nasal adenoid growths, 861, 873; cases, 1192; removal of right lobe of thyroid for Graves's disease, *ib.*; lupus of pharynx and larynx, *ib.*; doubtful malignant disease of the larynx treated by thyrotomy and radical removal of the growths, *ib.*; sequel to a case of obscure ulceration of the pharynx in a case of arrested pulmonary tuberculosis of lung and pharynx, *ib.*

Laryngological, South German, formation of, 1225

Life Saving, objects of, 1324

Medical, Berlin, statistics of, 388

Medical, Cambridge, chronic ulcers of the leg, 1192; inversion of uterus, *ib.*; partial thyroidectomy and thyrotomy for goitre, *ib.*; specimens, *ib.*

Medical, Fyde, annual meeting of, 211

Medical, Kidderminster, meeting of, 527; extrauterine foetation, 1129; compound fracture of forearm, *ib.*; tuberculous disease of ankle, *ib.*; tuberculous peritonitis, *ib.*

Medical, of London, cases of diseases of the skin treated with thyroid gland, 66; removal of foreign body from the bladder, 191; two cases of wiring for fractured patella, *ib.*; horny growth on the penis, *ib.*; cast of the mucous membrane of the bladder, *ib.*; operation for ectopia vesicæ, *ib.*; treatment of suppurating ovarian and extrauterine cysts communicating with the rectum, 302; artificial deformities of the genitals, *ib.*; the administration of chloroform, clinically considered, 410; list of officers of, 501; the electrical treatment of infantile paralysis, 525; tuberculous meningitis cured by drainage, *ib.*; anniversary dinner of, 613; the diagnosis of diphtheria by bacteriological cultures, 635; milk diet in Bright's disease, 636; acute intestinal obstruction by constricting bands, 753; operation for undescended testes, 860; closure of colotomy wound after three years, *ib.*; Thiersch-Gould operation, *ib.*; suprapubic sounding for calculus and suprapubic electric cystoscopy, *ib.*; papillomatous growth removed from the urethra, 861; paralysis of the sterno-mastoid and trapezius and right side of face, *ib.*; electrolysis in nevus, *ib.*; osteitis deformans, *ib.*; traumatic subcutaneous rupture of intestine, 967; an apparatus for use after inguinal colotomy, 968; intestinal obstruction treated by cœcotomy, enterectomy, and closure of the anus præternaturalis, *ib.*; the starting points of tuberculous disease in children, 1022; operation for perforated ulcer of the duodenum, *ib.*; conversazione of, 1165

Medical, Manchester, excision of elbow joint, 68; urethral calculi, *ib.*; urethral calculus, *ib.*; thyroid feeding in psoriasis, *ib.*; diagnosis of cholera, *ib.*; annual meeting of, 158; meeting of, 244, 468, 636, 803; Friedreich's disease, 862; anæsthetics, *ib.*; the beginnings of surgical disease, *ib.*

Medical, Midland, hereditary chorea, 20; specimens, *ib.*; sarcoma, *ib.*; meeting of, 245, 356, 527, 803; cases, 863; painful menstruation, 863; diffused nevus of the tongue, 916;

gastrostomy, *ib.*; sarcoma of bladder, *ib.*; hydronephrosis, *ib.*; dilated cæcum, *ib.*; paper, *ib.*

Society, Medical, Northumberland and Durham cases, 18; meeting of, 192, 412

of Medical Officers of Health, tenure of office, 67; reports of medical officers of health, *ib.*; meeting of, 244, 526

Medical Protection, London and Counties, objects and work of, 107; increase of members of, 500; the registered offices, etc., of, 556; the treasurer's report, 839; annual meeting of, 1370; dinner of, 1371

Medical, St. Petersburg, annual meeting of, 500

Medical Sickness, Annuity, and Life Assurance and influenza, 77; and the liability of medical men to disabling accidents, 139; the year's operations of, 211; meeting of executive committee of, 420, 641; quarterly general meeting of, 880; claims on account of accidents, 1095; the progress and position of, 1206

Medical, South-West London, meeting of, 24

Medical, Wigan, list of officers, etc., 334; meeting of, 581, 893, 1340, 1367; registration of midwives, 1384

Medical, Willesden and District, formation of, 604

Medical Benevolent, Birmingham, annual meeting of, 1326

Medical and Chirurgical, North London, meeting of, 683

Medico-Chirurgical, Aberdeen, meeting of, 315, 501

Medico-Chirurgical, Bradford, meeting of, 193, 356, 581; anal tags, 916; mobilisation and massage in simple fracture, *ib.*; typhoid fever, *ib.*; cases and specimens, 1025; tetany, *ib.*; pitfalls in the diagnosis of pneumonia, *ib.*; ophthalmometer, *ib.*

Medico-Chirurgical, Edinburgh, general paralysis, 21; small-pox, *ib.*; acromegaly in a giantess, *ib.*; valvular opening in abdominal wall, *ib.*; changes in the circulation produced by pyrexia, *ib.*; treatment of strumous disease of the extremities, *ib.*; cases, 68, 192, 1024; sporadic cretinism, 69; self-inflicted bullet wound of the head, *ib.*; static electricity, *ib.*; cretinism, 192; specimens, *ib.*; pulsations in the veins and liver, *ib.*; cancer of the spleen, *ib.*; intracranial surgery, 355, 467; meeting of, 803; pathological specimens, 1024; the commoner varieties of lupus vulgaris and their treatment, *ib.*; two cases of nodose periarthritis of syphilitic origin, 1025; massage, 1128

Medico-Chirurgical, Glasgow, annual meeting and list of officers, 1229

Medico-Chirurgical, Leeds and West Riding, abscess in the lung, 69; gangrenous abscess in the lung, *ib.*; trephining for hæmorrhage, *ib.*; dilatation of colon treated by washing out, *ib.*; cases, etc., 69, 1244; meeting of, 193; officers of, 1060; gastrostomy, 1244; specimens, *ib.*

Medico-Chirurgical, Nottingham, dermatitis exfoliativa pigmentosa, 20; recognition and treatment of strabismus, *ib.*; acute peritonitis following attempts to procure abortion, *ib.*; specimens, 69, 1081; structure of cancer, 69; meeting of, 193, 245, 412, 469, 636, 804; abdominal surgery, 862; ulcerative endocarditis, *ib.*; spinal ataxy, 915; cases, 1081; the radical cure of hernia, 1069; small-pox, 1244

Medico-Chirurgical, St. Petersburg, inaugural meeting of, 1340

Medico-Chirurgical, Sheffield, meeting of, 192, 244, 412, 527, 804; cases, 862, 1025; specimens, 1025; officers of, 1060

Medico-Chirurgical, West Kent, meeting of, 893, 929

Medico-Chirurgical, West London, specimens, 67; successful cases of craniotomy, *ib.*; tubal gestation successfully treated by abdominal section, *ib.*; ectopic gestation, *ib.*; meeting of, 302, 527, 803; rupture of the liver, 1024; rest in eye affections, *ib.*; pyoktanin in epithelioma, *ib.*; annual dinner of, 1229; treatment of fetid suppuration of the nose, 1361; deposit of urate of soda in the scrotum, *ib.*; miscellaneous cases, *ib.*; paper, *ib.*

National Health, the lectures of, 147, 208, 373; annual meeting of, 988; distribution of prizes, etc., of, 1322

Obstetrical, Edinburgh, the Transactions of the, *rev.*, 195

Obstetrical of London, specimens, 66, 1023, 1306; pregnancy and Bright's disease, 66;

vaginal secretion, 67; list of officers, etc., 281; annual meeting of, 389; symphysiotomy, 578; associated parovarian and vaginal cysts formed from a distended Gärtner's duct, 802; acardiac foetus, 1023; intermittent contraction of uterine fibromata, and in pregnancy in relation to diagnosis, *ib.*; ligature and division of the upper parts of both broad ligaments, and the results as compared with that of removal of the appendages, 1306; a case of adenoma of the portio vaginalis uteri, forming a depressed sore or ulcer, *ib.*

Society, Obstetrical and Gynecological, Glasgow, meeting of, 245

Obstetrical and Gynecological, North of England, midwives' registration, 1052

Odontological of Great Britain, list of officers of, 168

of Otolaryngology and Laryngology (French), subjects of discussion at annual meeting of, 543

Ophthalmological of the United Kingdom, school ophthalmia, 242, 329, 579; orbital tumours, 579; cases and specimens, 580; periodical testing of eyesight in schools, 1023; tubercle of the iris, *ib.*; intracranial abscess from caries of the sphenoidal cells, *ib.*; a rare form of intraocular melanoma, 1024; card specimens, 1024, 1360; optic neuritis in its relation to cerebral tumour and trephining, 1360; some points in the histology of trachoma, *ib.*; osteoma of orbit, *ib.*; congenital serous cysts of the eyelids associated with anophthalmos or microphthalmos, *ib.*

Pathological, of London, fibromyoma of uterus becoming sarcomatous, 16; a case of tar cancer, 17; note on some so-called cells of endogenous origin, *ib.*; ruptured sacculus of bladder following stricture, *ib.*; syphilitic disease of the knee-joint, *ib.*; cholesterol cyst of kidney, 18; card specimens, 18, 129, 302, 1081; appendicitis, 128; two specimens of cranial deformities of infants, *ib.*; actinomycosis in the human subject, *ib.*; aneurysm of the aortic valve, *ib.*; two cases of ulcerative colitis, *ib.*; dilatation and rupture of the sigmoid flexure, 301; cyst of vas aberrans, *ib.*; transverse hermaphroditism in a male, *ib.*; multiple new formations, 302; sclerosis of calvaria and gummæ of brain, 409; pathology of rodent ulcer, 409, 524; deformity of the shoulder girdle, 634; histological changes of the breast associated with cancer, 635; the left hemisphere from a case of aphasia, *ib.*; squamous-celled carcinoma of the bladder, 858; microscopic sections of the skin after Thiersch's grafts, *ib.*; melanotic sarcoma of the rectum, *ib.*; ectopia vesicæ, *ib.*; aberrant renal vessels as a cause of hydronephrosis, 859; gangrene of lung from a syphilitic patient, *ib.*; supernumerary adrenal, *ib.*; fat necrosis, *ib.*; tuberculous ulceration of the large intestine, 966; tuberculosis of the ovaries and Fallopian tubes, *ib.*; carcinoma of the neck, *ib.*; alcoholic neuritis, *ib.*; primary carcinoma of lung, 967; disease of sweat gland, *ib.*; congenital diaphragmatic hernia, *ib.*; list of officers of, 1060; report on morbid growths, 1080; myxosarcoma of the uterus, *ib.*; tuberculous ulcer of the stomach, 1081; ruptured aneurysm, *ib.*; multiple loose bodies from knee-joint, *ib.*; carcinoma of the bronchus, *ib.*; papilloma of the common bile duct, *ib.*; pachymeningitis hæmorrhagica, *ib.*; meningo-myelocèle with persistence of pretubular condition of the cord, *ib.*; cyst in the postanal gut in an infant, *ib.*

Pathological, of Manchester, multiple neuromata, 21; chorea and endocarditis in a dog, 22; small white kidney, *ib.*; card specimens, *ib.*; meeting of, 302; tubal pregnancy, 525; scurvy rickets, *ib.*; spread of tuberculosis through the lymphatics, *ib.*; specimens, 526; case of phthisis in a dog (bull terrier), 969; the collection and preservation of urinary casts and other organic urinary deposits, *ib.*; lymphadenoma, *ib.*

Pharmaceutical of Great Britain v. Armson, 987, 997; annual dinner of, 1165

Pharmaceutical of Ireland, prosecution by, 113

for Promoting Christian Knowledge and the Lord Chief Justice, 205

Registered Nurses', formation of, 1229

for the Relief of Widows and Orphans of Medical Men, meeting of Court of Directors of, 245, 868; annual general meeting of, 1285

Royal, conversazione of, 988; candidates for admission to, 1090; ladies conversazione at, 1321

Society Royal Edinburgh, meeting of, 280, 539, 1229; rise and progress of anthropology, 1067

Royal Medical Benevolent Fund of Ireland, annual meeting of, 1285

Royal Medical and Chirurgical, albuminuric ulceration of the bowels, 65; abdominal section for acute intestinal obstruction due to multiple hydatid cysts, removal of the cysts, recovery, *ib.*; so-called spontaneous disappearance of solid abdominal tumours, with three cases, 190; nerve stretching and splitting, or localised interstitial neuritis, leprosy or otherwise, 352; intussusception of the large intestine due to a papillomatous growth, 353; list of officers, etc., 444; case of pleurisy caused by the pneumococcus, and with constitutional symptoms resembling those of pneumonia, 465; the relationship between the disorders of digestion and neurasthenia, 466; annual meeting of, 545; report of council, *ib.*; treasurer's report, *ib.*; the late Sir Andrew Clark, *ib.*; votes of thanks, *ib.*; installation of president, 576; ruptured gastric ulcer successfully treated by abdominal section and suture, *ib.*; resection and immediate suture of intestine which had been strangulated 81 hours, recovery, 577; persistence of the thyroglossal duct, 801; suprapertitoneal vesical hernia, 912; an operation for the cure of cleft of the hard and soft palate, 913; case of extreme prolapse of the female urethra in a child, 1021; two cases of utero-lithotomy, 1022; the influence of different kinds of soil on the comma and typhoid organisms, 1126; a review of cases manifesting pain at the heart, or morbid acceleration of the heart's contractions (tachycardia) subsequently to influenza, 1305; a case of acanthosis nigricans, *ib.*

Royal Meteorological, donation to in aid of research, 225; exhibition of instruments, 815; lectures on meteorology in relation to hygiene, 816

Royal Microscopical, meeting of, 1113, 1228

Singapore Debating. *See* Singapore

for the Study of Inebriety, Dr. Lansdell at, 389; annual meeting of, 804

Surgical, Russian Pirogoff, annual meeting of, 1340

Zoological, lectures of, 1005

Sodium caffeine sulphonate as a diuretic, 1241

Sohn, Mr. C. E., Dictionary of the Active Principles of Plants, *rev.*, 414

Soil, The, in Relation to Health, Messrs. H. A. Miers and R. Crosskey, *rev.*, 1028; influence of different kinds of on the comma and typhoid organisms, 1126, 1140

Soldiers, the feet of, 264; the foot and boot of, 1375

Solly, Mr. E., prevention of the entrance of blood into the trachea, 1343

Soltman, on diphtheria, 745

Somerset, Mr. E., fracture of rib from coughing, 408

Southam, Mr. F. A., on suprapubic cystotomy, 53; urethral calculus, 68

Southampton, unsanitary areas in, 892; small-pox and vaccination at, 1369

Southend, the sanitary state of, 557, 1064

Southwark, an unsanitary area in, 224

South Africa, health resorts in, 1007, 1093

South Lambeth, milk typhoid in, 1148

Soya, Japanese, 23

Spain, clinical teaching in, 168; Cæsarcan section in, 741; sanitary reform in, 1311

Spasm, handicraft, in a stonemason, 188

Spatula (tongue) antiseptic, 806

"Special" treatment, 153

Speculum, modified aural, 248; self-retaining aural, 973

Speech, defective, teacher for boy with, 723; and voice training in, 1060, 1167

Spence, Mr. W. J., presentation to, 754

Spencer, Mr. W. G., the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524

Spender, Dr. J. K., the atrophic phenomena of rheumatoid arthritis, 904

Sperk, Dr., death of, 1331

Sphenoidal cells, intracranial abscess arising from caries of the, 1023

Spicer, Dr. S., treatment of foetid suppuration of the nose, 1361

Spinal cord. *See* Cord

Spine, tumour of the dura mater of, 395; curvature of the, 573

Spleen, cancer of the, 192; abscess of the with secondary abscesses in the liver, 859; removal of, 983, 1039

"Spooks," Mr. Balfour on, 263

Spoon, passage of a through the alimentary tract, 1064

Sporozoa, morbid growths and, 1158

Squadron, the Mediterranean, sickness in, 427

Squire, Dr. B., treatment of psoriasis by thyroid extract, 13

Squire, Messrs. P. W. and A. H., Squire's Companion to the "British Pharmacopœia," *rev.*, 1307

Stack, Mr. J. J., amendment of the Medical Acts, 382

Staining of the flagella of bacteria, 908

Stallard, Dr. P., anæsthetics, 862

Stammering, the cure of, 426, 504; its Nature and Treatment, Dr. E. Behnke, *rev.*, 639

Stanley, Dr. D., dilated cæcum, 916; acute primary myocarditis, 1361

Stansfeld, Mr., at Chelsea, 1207

State, the, the position of in respect to modern bacteriological research, 733

— aid in relation to cholera expenses, 79

— medicine, essays on, 486

Statistics, surgical, 1149

Staveley, Mr. W. H. C., scarlet rash after enemata, 1413

Stawell, Dr. J. C., free medical advice, 115

Steam disinfecter, 1085

Steamboat, Thames ambulance, 1003

Stedman, Mr. A., obituary notice of, 386

Steel v. Ormsby, 1108

Stephen, Dr. G. C., a contribution to the technique of the cold bath treatment in typhoid fever, 127

Stephenson, Mr. S., Ophthalmic Nursing, *rev.*, 1029

Stethoscope, binaural for auscultatory percussion, 919

Steven, Dr. J. L., necrosis of the pancreas and its association with fat necrosis, 796

Stevenson v. Potter, 648, 662

— Mr. N., brilliant teeth, 895

— Dr. T., A Treatise on Hygiene and Public Health, *rev.*, 469, 1246

— Brigade-Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel W. F., bullet-extracting forceps, 357; note on an injury caused by the Lee-Metford bullet, 1185

Stewart, Dr. A., experiences of the provident dispensary system, 1088

— Dr. T. G., perverted localisation of sensation or allæsthesia, 1

— Mr. W. R., a self-retaining aural speculum, 973

Stiles, Dr. C. W., A Revision of the Adult Cestodes of Cattle, Sheep, and Allied Animals, *rev.*, 1309

Stirling, Dr. S., seborrhœa psoriasiformis, 60

Stockport, the water supply of, 1320

Stokvis, Professor, biographical sketch of, 696; the relation of chemistry to pharmacotherapy and materia medica, 794

Stomach, pistol-shot wound of the, operation, recovery, 63; dilatation of with enteroptosis, 126; acute phthisis following destruction of the mucous membrane of by corrosive fluids, 129; dilatation of the as a cause of death, 240; acute dilatation of the, 522; rupture of mucous membrane of, 634; tuberculous ulcer of the, 1081; long retention of halfpenny in, 1400

Stone, undetected in the bladder, 321, 447; in the bladder in a female, an anomalous case of, 791; in the bladder, 852; operations for, 1294

Stone, Mr. J. H., Local Government Act, 1894, *rev.*, 1417

— Mr. T. M., death of, 1097; the late, 1165

Stonemason, handicraft spasm in a, 188

Stoney, Dr. R., the passage of the catheter in prostatic disease, 895

Storey, Dr. W. F., choice of an anæsthetic for removing nasopharyngeal adenoids, 171

Storia della Teratologia, Dr. C. Taruffi, *rev.*, 1307

Strabismus, recognition and treatment of, 20

Strachan, Mr. H., bony overgrowths or exostoses in the West Indian negro, 189

Stradling, Dr. A., blue frogs and viper bites, 1287

Strahan, Dr. S. A. K., assistant medical officers in asylums, 940

Strange, Dr. A., assistant medical officers in asylums, 827, 1277

Streets, dangers of the, 759; the construction of, 875; dirty and dirty air, 1264

Stretchers, an improved for hospital, ambulance, and military use, 24

Stretton, Mr. J. L., extrauterine foetation, 1129; tuberculous disease of ankle, *ib.*

Strophanthus, remarks on, 925

Stroud, antivaccination tactics at, 610

Strumous disease of the extremities, treatment of, 21

Strychnine, poisoning by, 300, 1244

Sturge, Dr. H. H., puerperal septicæmia, 435

Sturges, Dr. O., on heart inflammation in children, 505, 561, 623

Sturgis, Dr., the Use of Hypnotism to the First Degree as a Means of Modifying or of Completely Eliminating a Fixed Idea, *rev.*, 972

Substitution in pharmacy, 392

Suckling, Dr. C. W., scarlet rash after enemata, 1190

Suez Canal, sanitary regulations for, 480

Sugar as food, 171

Suggestion, a legal, 339

Suicide, in France, 721; life assurance and, 1094; in Portugal, 1447

Sulphugators, Kingzett's, 1418

Sulphur (sublimed), in diphtheria, 227, 459, 462, 615, 896, 1168

Summers, cold and warm winters, 703

Sunderland, Mr. O., Bexley Heath Considered with Regard to Health, *rev.*, 1195

Supervisors, supervising the, 1428

Suprarenal gland, preliminary report on, 1017

Surgeons, certifying factory, conference at Home Office about, 429

Surgery, Syllabus of Lectures of the Practice of, Dr. N. Senn, *rev.*, 303; intracranial, discussion on at the Edinburgh Medico-Chirurgical Society, 355, 467; life saving, 1253, 1312

Surgical Ward Work and Nursing, Dr. A. Miles, *rev.*, 970

Sutherland, Dr. C. J., the identification of the unclaimed dead, 382

— Dr. J. F., responsibility of inebriates, 439

Sutherlandshire, the county council of and its medical officer, 1226; sanitary condition of, 1396

Sutton, Mr. J. B., nephrectomy for malignant tumours in an infant, 354; excision in typhoid perforation, 578; cancer of the colon and its treatment, 1024; Tumours Innocent and Malignant, their Clinical Features and Appropriate Treatment, *rev.*, 1082

Sutures, silkworm gut, 227

Swann, Dr. A., qualified assistants and the sanctity of a bond, 1157

Sweat glands, disease of, 967

Sweden, revision of Pharmacopœia in, 388

Switzerland, the medical profession in, 280; suppression of alcoholism in, 529; treatment of inebriates in, 932; medical practice in, 1063, 1231; medical students in, 1164

Sword cut, division of the scapula by a, 1242

Sydney, sewerage and disposal of sewage in, 620

Sykes, Dr. J. F. J., Public Health Problems, *rev.*, 864

Sykes-Ward, Dr. A., retention of gum elastic bougie for more than eleven months in the uterus, 1187

Syme, Mr. W. S., case of phthisical consolidation of right lung, with paralysis of right arm, 1358

Symonds, Mr. C. J., squamous-celled carcinoma of bladder, 858

Symons, Mr. G. J., meteorological instruments, 901

Symphorol (sodium caffeine sulphonate) as a diuretic, 1241

Symphysiotomy, 578; discussion on at Rome, 855

Sympson, Dr. E. M., senile epilepsy, 1069

Syphilis (Traitement de la), Dr. A. Fournier, *rev.*, 247; congenital as a cause of hydrocephalus, 797; discussion on at Rome, 853; tertiary of the larynx, 1025

Syringe, a pure aluminium hypodermic, 71; nasal ointment, 1310

Syringomyelia, case of, 1079

Syrups, soothing, 32

System of Diseases of the Ear, Nose, and Throat, Dr. C. Burnett, *rev.*, 583

Székelly, Dr. A. von, Die Behandlung der tuberculösen Lungenschwindsucht, *rev.*, 1308

T.

Tabloids, 304; Bland's sugar-coated, 583; ipecacuanha sine emetina, 806

Tacey, Dr. D., treatment of tapeworm, 446

Tag-und Nacht-harn (Ueber), Dr. H. Quincke, *rev.*, 864

Tags, anal, 916

Tait, Ansell v., 998, 1036

— Mr. L., alleged ovarian pregnancy, 615; the late Dr. Charles Clay of Manchester, 1278; septic catheters, 1413

Tangier as a winter station, 76; Mr. Ernest Hart on, 584, 688, 807

Tapeworm, treatment of, 391, 446

Tar cancer, a case of, 17

Tarnier, Professor, on inanition, 538

Taruffi, Dr. C., Storia della Teratologia, *rev.*, 1307

Tatham, Dr., farewell dinner to, 207

Taylor, Dr. D., obituary notice of, 1442

— Dr. J., diseases of the nervous system, 914; further note on the return of the knee-

- jerk in a tabetic patient after an attack of hemiplegia, 1350; optic neuritis in its relation to cerebral tumours and trephining, 1360
- Taylor, Dr. J. S., the sanitary department at Liverpool, 51; presentation to, 568
- Mr. S. J., the choice of an anæsthetic in operations upon adenoid vegetations, 1107
- Tea, entry of into bronchial tube causing fatal diphtherial paralysis, 466; coffee and cocoa, 640; tabloids of, 723; in Tibet, 1063
- Tees, enteric fever in the valley of the, 132, 541, 771, 892
- Teeth, our sailors', 262; of school children, 318; Diseases and Injuries of the, Mr. M. Smale, *rev.*, 356; artificial, death from swallowing, 426; brilliant, 895
- Teovan, Mr. A., antiseptics in typhoid fever, 62
- Teignmouth, the proceedings of the local board of, 537
- Temperature, influence on pharmaceutical preparations, 615
- Tenants, compensation to for injury to health due to defective sanitary arrangements, 166
- Teneriffe, cholera in, 265; consular report of cholera in in 1893, 1259
- Tennessee, Dr. H., *Traité Clinique de Dermatologie, rev.*, 684
- Testis, undescended, operation for, 860
- Tetanus antitoxin, 1004
- Tetany, case of, 1025
- Teurium, in chronic nasal catarrh, 1115
- Textbook, of Diseases of the Ear, Dr. J. Gruber, *rev.*, 754; of Diseases of the Ear, Dr. Politzer, *rev.*, *ib.*; of Physiological Chemistry, Professor O. Hammersten, *rev.*, 805; of Normal Histology, Dr. G. A. Fiersol, *rev.*, 871; of Nervous Diseases, Dr. C. L. Dana, *rev.*, 1362; an American of Gynecology, Dr. J. M. Baldy, *rev.*, 1363; of the Physiological Chemistry of the Animal Body, Dr. A. Gamgee, *rev.*, 1414
- Thames, medical inspection of shipping on the, 557; ambulance steamboat on the, 1003
- Thamodampillay, Dr. C., An Essay on the Chief Causes of Diseases and their Prophylactic and Preventive Treatment, *rev.*, 1196
- Therapeutics, studies in, 201, 644, 870
- Thèses de Paris, 97
- Thibet, tea in, 1063
- Thigh, upper, compound comminuted gunshot wound of the with complications, 352, 965; lacerated wound of upper third of the, 861
- Thin, Dr. G., pathology of rodent ulcer, 410
- Thomas, Dr. D., on inebriety, 874
- Dr. F. A., death of, 776
- Mr. J. L., right brachial monoplegia and perverted sensations due to traumatic ablation of the arm area in the left cortex cerebri, recovery, 400
- Mr. W. T., ruptured intestine from accident, laparotomy, suture of gut, recovery, 1355
- Thompson, Sir H., offers £5,000 for new telescope for Greenwich observatory, 665
- Mr. J., tumour of the spinal dura mater, 395
- Dr. M., successful case of craniotomy, 67
- Thomson, Dr. G. C., chlorosis and amenorrhœa with symptoms of brain disease, 1073
- Dr. J., cretinism, 192
- Dr. W. E., The True Position of Oxygen as a Restorative in Carbonic Acid Poisoning, *rev.*, 864
- Thorburn, Dr. W., on the surgery of the spinal cord and its appendages, 1345, 1401
- Thorne, Dr. R. Thorne, the Mecca pilgrims, 1275
- Thorne, Dr. W. Bezly, The Open-air Treatment of Phthisis as practised at Falkenstein in the Taunus Mountains, Germany, *rev.*, 805
- Thornton, Mr. J., Advanced Physiology, *rev.*, 1248
- Thorpe, state of the old river at, 498
- Thresh, Dr., the spread of small-pox, 646
- Throat, membranous inflammation of during scarlet fever, 130
- Thunderer, the, scarlet fever on, 1320
- Thursfield, Dr. W. N., epidemic of jaundice, 522
- Thurso, outbreak of enteric fever at, 154
- Thymol in typhoid, 668, 723, 783
- Thyroid gland, myxœdema treated by tabloids of, 12; treatment of psoriasis by extract of, 13, 186, 617; diseases of skin treated by, 66; feeding in psoriasis, 68; extract of in washer-woman's eczema and as a local application, 833; two cases of lupus treated by extract of, 716; feeding on, 818; feeding on in exophthalmic goitre, 839; sporadic cretinism treated by, 1173, 1180; removal of right lobe of for Graves's disease, 1192; myxœdema treated by extract of, 1361
- Thyroidectomy, partial, for goitre, 1192
- Thyroidin in teething eczema, 724
- Thyrotomy, doubtful malignant disease of the larynx treated by, 1192
- Tibbits v. Toye, 221; *v.* the Morning Newspaper Publishing Company, Limited, 332
- Tibia and fibula, compound fracture of by muscular action, 681; and fibula, operative treatment of oblique simple fractures of in certain classes of labourers, 859, 931, 1158
- Tilbury, proposed cottage hospital for, 732
- Tilden, Dr. W. A., chemistry at the conjoint board, 272; appointed professor of chemistry at College of Science, South Kensington, 871
- Tinning and hollow ware trade, the, 1444
- Things of our wasters, 1098
- Titles, medical, unqualified assumption of, 1115
- Titomanlio, Dr. A., congenital syphilis as a cause of hydrocephalus, 797
- Toe, great, removal of bristle from metatarsophalangeal joint of, 911
- Todd, Mr. A., acute dilatation of the stomach, 522
- Tomes, Sir J., the golden wedding of, 444
- Tomkins, Mr. H. H., a case of sensory aphasia accompanied by word deafness, word blindness, and agaphia, 907
- Toms, Mr. F. W., the "cheap" doctors, a word in defence, 1105
- Tongue, epithelioma of, 61; 46 cases of removal of one-half or the whole of the with one fatal result, 785; biting the, 820; diffuse nævus of, 816
- "Tonic," the new, 446
- Tonsillotomy, 1311
- Toogood, Dr. F. S., presentation to, 1388
- Tooth, Dr. H., actinomycosis in the human subject, 128; two cases of ulcerative colitis, *ib.*; alcoholic neuritis, 968
- Toothbrush, death in the, 594
- Tooting, the new fever hospital at, 77, 611; the cost of the, 1162
- Touting forms, 503
- Touton, Dr., the blenorraghic process, 745
- Towels and disease, 319
- Towlson, Dr. H. J., the prevention of influenza, 171
- Toxins, intestinal, 985
- Toye, Tibbits v., 222
- Trachea, pill in the, 284, 391; a simple means of preventing the entrance of blood into the in operations on the mouth, 964, 1343; case of foreign body in the, tracheotomy, successful removal, 1414
- Tracheotomy for goitre, 1192
- Trachoma, some points in the histology of, 1360
- Train, catching the, 703
- Training ships, the health of the, 318, 381
- Traité, Clinique de Dermatologie, Dr. H. Tenneson, *rev.*, 684; Pratique de Gynécologie, Drs. S. Bonnet and P. Petit, *rev.*, 918; Pratique de Gynécologie, Dr. A. Auvard, *rev.*, 1263; Pratique d'Accouchements, Dr. A. Auvard, *rev.*, 1417
- Traitement, Chirurgical des Abces du Foie des Pays Chauds, Dr. G. Zancarol, *rev.*, 1130
- Tramps, spread of small-pox by, 1379
- Transactions of the Edinburgh Obstetrical Society, *rev.*, 195; of the American Gynecological Society, *rev.*, 1364
- Transfusion and saline intravenous injection, 162
- Traps, intercepting, 1112, 1163, 1395
- Trasbot, Professor, on cancer, 743
- Tray, a universal, 639
- Tree of knowledge, the, 1266
- marking in Behar, 1322
- Trent, waterborne fever in the valley of the, 530
- Trephining, for hæmorrhage, 69; prehistoric in Peru, 388; for traumatic epilepsy, 408; for middle meningeal hæmorrhage, 412; Dr. Lucas-Championnière's on, 856
- Treston, Dr. M., presentation to, 557
- Treves, Mr. F., on peritonitis, 229, 341, 454, 516
- Trinidad, the opportunities for research in, 287
- Tropics, experiences with antipyretics in the, 240
- Truss, linked, a new form of, 1418
- Tube, long rectal, dangers of, 51
- Tubercle, and encysted worms in cattle, 595; of the iris, 1023
- bacilli. See Bacilli.
- Tuberculosis, acute pulmonary, broncho-pneumonia simulating, 58, 171; in dogs, 150; in 1892-3, 205; pulmonary, creasote in, 227; compulsory notification of, 269; debate on the prevention of by the Philadelphia County Medical Society, *ib.*; general, death from extensive disseminated hæmorrhage, 464; spread of through the lymphatics, 526; and leprosy, 666; bovine, the suppression of, 770; the prevention of in man, recommendations of the Philadelphia Pathological Society, *ib.*;
- diagnosis and treatment of, 795; laryngeal, surgical treatment of, 798; of Fallopian tubes, 966; the starting points of in children, 1022; bovine, the diagnosis of, 1098; renal, 1128; in domestic pets, 1204
- Tubes, Fallopian, tuberculosis of, 966
- Tuček, Dr. C. L., automatic writing, 339
- Tuček, Dr. F., Klinische und anatomische Studien über die Pellagra, *rev.*, 1082
- Tuke, Dr. J. B., the Morison lectures on insanity, 316, 481
- Tuley, Dr. H. E., treatment of incontinence of urine, 951
- Tumour, of the spinal dura mater, 395; mediastinal, 467; of cerebellum, failure of respiration, 681; of lower jaw, 1243; ovarian, rapidly growing, removal of from a woman who had recently been confined and on whom ovariectomy had been performed previously, 1303; cystic of skull, rapid cure of, 1343; ovarian, growing with great rapidity, 1413
- Tumours, of the female bladder, the removal of, 127; mediastinal, 173; solid abdominal, so-called spontaneous disappearance of, 180; orbital, 579; Innocent and Malignant, Mr. J. B. Sutton, *rev.*, 1082
- Tunis, opening of Pasteur Institute at, 1413
- Turkey, Dr. F. J., death of, 441
- Turkey, medical women in, 528; Pasteurism in, 965; hospitals and bacteriological station in, 1171
- Turnbull, Deputy-Inspector-General A., dinner to, 536; gunshot wound of knee-joint, 912
- Dr. M. J., death of, 276
- Turner, Dr. A., degenerations following lesions of the cerebellum, 854
- Dr. D., a note on the mode of action of iodine, 1301
- Dr. G., on diphtheria, 969
- Mr. G. R., aneurysm by anastomosis, 753; pelvic enchondroma, 859
- Turton, Mr. J., retained pessary, 463
- Tweedy, Dr. H. C., dilatation of the stomach with enteropneosty, 126
- Twining, Dr. A. H., death of, 1228
- Tyn-y-Coed, the convalescent home at, 147
- Typhoid bacillus. See Bacillus
- fever. See Fever, enteric
- Typhus fever. See Fever
- Tyson, Dr. W. J., suppurating hydatid cyst of liver opened through the chest wall, 129
- "cure," the, 839
- U.
- Udaipur, opening of the Lansdowne Hospital at, 837
- Uganda, the climatology and health conditions of, 877
- Ulcer, gastric, case of, 351; rodent, pathology of, 408; ruptured gastric successfully treated by abdominal section and suture, 576; perforated of duodenum, operative treatment of, 1014, 1022; tuberculous of the stomach, 1081
- Ulceration, tuberculous of large intestine, 966
- Ulcers of the leg, chlorine gas in the treatment of, 1191
- Underhill, Mr. W. L., obituary notice of, 1442
- Underselling, competition and, 210, 438
- Ung. hamamelidis, 919
- Uniao Medica, revival of, 554
- Union Belfast Students', fête of, 1207
- Hospital Chaplains', anniversary meeting of, 444
- Medical Defence, objects and work of, 43; progress of, 225; new members, 388; the lawsuits of 492; Bloxham v., 494, 779; opposition to report of Council of, 608; in East Anglia, 613; address of secretary of, 828; special meeting of, 1035
- United States of America, treatment of inebriety in, 448; the medical profession in, 616; the drink question in, 667; suppression of unlicensed practice in, 1113; waterborne typhoid in the, 1162
- Unity, want of, 604
- Universities, Swiss, students in, 500; German, students in, 572; Italian, suppression of, 613; Scottish, research fellowships in, 1111
- University of Aberdeen, election to the court of, 147; lady students and bursaries, 334; honorary degrees at, 557; the extension of, 1321; meeting of university court of, 1394
- of Adelaide, students of at Cambridge University, 273
- of Berlin, the chair of children's diseases in, 167; the chair of the history of medicine at, 665; the professorship of internal medicine in, 1263
- of Bonn, new hygienic laboratory at, 248
- of Buda-Pesth, the rector magnificus of, 1445

University, of Calcutta, the M.D. degree of, 838  
of Cambridge, chemical department, 143; pathological chemistry, *ib.*; appointments, 143, 273, 1057, 1394; physiological psychology at, 168; experimental physics, 222; agricultural physiology, *ib.*; degrees, 222, 334, 440, 556, 664, 998, 1110, 1163, 1225, 1260, 1336, 1393; the Downing professorship of medicine at, 264, 273, 333, 542, 556; students of the University of Adelaide at, 273; matriculation, *ib.*; Shuttleworth scholarship, *ib.*; post-graduate study and new degrees, 333; Rede lecturer, 440; examiners in medicine and surgery, 440, 946, 1260; electoral board, 495; honorary degrees at, 556, 1057, 1110; M.B. examinations, 556; midwifery, 610; delegates, *ib.*; electors, *ib.*; Natural Science Club, *ib.*; Linacre Lectureship, *ib.*; examinations for medical and surgical degrees, 664; diploma in public health, 664, 1163, 1260; pass lists, 946, 998, 1057, 1393; pharmacology and the Downing professorship of medicine at, 998; anatomical department, 1110, 1163; zoological stations, 1110; pharmacology, 1225; pathology, *ib.*; St. John's College, 1394  
of Charkoff, new clinical buildings for, 434; students at, 490  
of Durham, pass lists, 887, 946, 1110  
of Edinburgh, degrees, etc., at, 111; meeting of university court of, 440, 1443; honorary degrees at, 536; scholarships and prizes, 686; pass lists, 778, 887, 1163; the summer session at, 999; candidates for final examination for M.B. and C.M., 1225  
of Fez, antiquity of, 1269  
of Glasgow, the chair of midwifery at, 98; pass lists, 832; the chair of pathology at, 1427  
Gresham, report of commission on, 305, 313, 485; medical aspects of the scheme for, 368; and the medical schools, 421, 433, 1205; medicine in, 479, 490; an academic quinquennate, 589; and the Royal Colleges, 593, 651, 653; the "faculty of arts" in, 647; and convocation of the University of London, 692, 818, 819, 831; report to Parliamentary Bills Committee on, 865, 940  
of Helsingfors, new institute for hygiene in, 979  
of Krakau, the rectorship of, 1427  
of London, meeting of convocation of, 143, 831; the medical degrees of, 152; appointment to the senate of, 204; pass lists, 384, 1225; surgery at, 428; books for State medicine examination of, 559; the old and the new, 651, 692, 819, 1042; convocation of and the Gresham University, 818, 831; representatives of senate to confer with convocation, 927; business of convocation at annual meeting, 999; annual meeting of convocation of, 1045, 1046; meeting of graduates of, 1045; joint meeting of senate and annual committee, 1046; the recent election to the annual committee of convocation of, 1106; the reconstitution of, 1321, 1429; opposition to the reconstruction scheme of, 1394  
of Montpellier, chair of microbiology at, 280  
of Moscow, the 139th anniversary of, 388  
of Oxford, the Welsh anatomical prize, 384; alteration of regulations, 556; examinations at, 686, 778; Radcliffe travelling fellowship, 1163; notes from, 1225  
of Pennsylvania and Dr. Pepper, 1122  
of Philadelphia, the growth of, 1096  
of Rome, the chair of physiology at, 280; teaching in diseases of children at, 1049  
of Rostock, the professorship of hygiene in, 837  
Royal of Ireland, new Fellows and examiners at, 440; pass lists, 1057; the calendar of, 1260  
of St. Andrews and University College, Dundee, 334; pass lists, 778; the conferring of medical degrees by, 832; and the London School of Medicine for Women, 1111  
of Strassburg, the chair of surgery in, 1310  
of Utrecht, students at, 168  
of Sydney, graduates in medicine at, 1445  
Victoria, pass lists, 666; the chair of zoology at, 1225; the Vice-Chancellorship of, 1260; the growth of, *ib.*  
of Vienna, the chair of surgery at, 767, 1113, 1203, 1309; the chair of ophthalmology at, 1113  
of Wales, the grant to the, 146; meeting of university court of, 816, 1321  
Urate of soda, deposit of in the scrotum, 1361  
Uretero-lithotomy, two cases of, 1022

Urethra, blenorrhagic stricture of, in a young subject, 13; female, new method of dilating the, 754; papillomatous growths removed from the, 861; female, complete collapse of, in a child, 1021; wound of, 1359  
Urine, violet odour of, 51; colorimetric test for lead in, 227; new tests for albumen in, 228; treatment of incontinence of, 783, 839, 951; total suppression of, due to calculus, 960, 1051; nephrotomy and nephrolithotomy for the suppression of 1050; and asparagus, 1115; suppression of, treated by nephrotomy, 1304  
Urticaria following the eating of periwinkles, 171, 228  
Uteri, myomatous and appendages removed for recurrent peritonitis, 915  
Uterus, fibromyoma of becoming sarcomatous, 16; acute inflexion of in the later months of pregnancy, 59; total extirpation of, *ib.*; rupture of during labour, hysterectomy, 299; retained pessary causing strangulation of the 351; incarcerated ante-flexed, abortion due to, 408; complete inversion of in a primipara, 633; extirpation of large fibromyomata of the body of, 856; the conservative treatment of diseases of the appendages of, 914, 1192; early diagnosis of cancer of the cervix of, 1009, 1116, 1343; Cesarean section for labour obstructed by malignant disease of the cervix of, 1021; intermittent contractions of in relation to diagnosis, 1023; ventrofixation of in acute retroflexion, 1073; myxosarcoma of the, 1080; retention of gum elastic bougie in for more than 11 months, 1187; polypoid growths in, 1192; inversion of, *ib.*; the treatment of bleeding and other fibroids of by removal of the appendages of, 1233; complete inversion of caused by fibroma in the fundus, spontaneous reinversion after removal of the tumour, 1243; adenoma of the body of the, 1244; ovaries, and Fallopian tubes, removal of, recovery, 1298; ligature and removal of the upper parts of both broad ligaments and the result as compared with that of removal of the appendages of, 1306; adenoma of the portio vaginalis of forming a depressed sore ulcer, 1306  
V.  
Vaccination and small-pox at Leicester, 30, 990; and small-pox, 94, 165, 279, 426, 498, 685, 834, 836, 948, 1003, 1046, 1099, 1210; successful, grants for, 167, 276, 280, 336, 433, 651, 820, 1396; degraded, 207; antirabic in Russia, 210; in Ireland, 443, 1162, 1227; in the Central Provinces, 499; in Madras, *ib.*; in Burmah, *ib.*; postponement of vaccination for, 648; default in in West Ham, 751; discussion on at Rome, 798; and small-pox in 1893, 878; the duration of protection of, 948; nurses and small-pox, 1040; neglect of in Cork, 1059; small-pox and the death-rate, 1111; a life savor, 1376; cancer and, 1400; in New South Wales, 1445  
Vaccinations against anthrax and swine erysipelas, results of, 874  
Vaccinator, public, retirement of, 892; a new, 1368  
Vaccinators, public awards of, 1227  
Vaccine tubes sent by carrier pigeons, 323  
Vaccinia and small-pox, 796; researches in, 1412  
Vacher, Dr., reports of medical officers of health, 67; Defects in Plumbing and Drainage Work, *rev.*, 1417  
Vacuolation of the nuclei of nerve cells in the cortex, 1075, 1343  
Vagina, secretion from the, 67; improved form of Arran's tube for lavement of, 919  
Vaginitis, membranous, and enteritis, 1300  
Vaillant, the remains of, 380  
Valentine, Dr. J., obituary notice of, 387  
Van dwellers, 685  
Varicella, peripheral paralysis following, 679  
Variola, researches in, 1412  
Vas aberrans, cyst of, 301  
Veeder, Dr. M. A., dilatation of the stomach as a cause of death, 240; influenza in North America, 339  
Veins, pulsations in the, 192  
Venereal disease and club practice, 283  
Venesection in renal asthma, instant relief, uric acid in the serum, 1242  
Ventilation, 663; of schools, 1063, 1231; of sewers, 1112, 1163, 1395  
Vermiform Appendix, A Contribution to the Pathology of, Dr. T. N. Kelynack, *rev.*, 527  
Vernon, Mr. A. H., a suppression of urine treated by nephrotomy, 1304  
Versailles, the water supply of, 1388  
Vertigo, aural, nature, diagnosis, prognosis, and treatment of, 953; auditory, 1012; auditory and high tension pulse, 1190  
Viali, Dr. G. B., on rickets, 745

Victoria, abolishment of health department in, 1445  
Victoria Cross, recipients of, 30  
Vienna, home for tuberculous patients in, 415  
"Viewing the body," 647  
Vignal, Madame, the Kindergarten system of teaching foreign languages, 537  
Villemain, monument to, 1445  
Vinen, Dr. E. H., obituary notice of, 1056  
Vinstal, 1365  
Vintras, Dr. L., temporary suspension of the pilgrimage to Mecca as a preventive measure against cholera, 460; abscess of the liver, 682  
Viper bite, case of, 1189  
Virchow, Dr. R., decoration of, 261, 948; on Morgagni and "anatomical thought," 725; psammoma of the pituitary of, with remarks as to the function of that structure, 1351  
"Virol," 71  
Viscera, complete transposition of, 1245  
Vistula, cholera vigilance on the, 1223  
Vitreoous, case of cysticercus in the, 1242  
Vivisection, of dead animals, 218, 271; human, the *Daily Chronicle* on, 1143; in a nutshell, 1264  
Vizetelly, Mr. E. A., the doctor's wife, 943  
Voelcker, Dr. A. F., aneurysm of the aortic valve, 128  
Voice and speech, training in, 1060, 1167  
Voisey, Dr. C. B., an improvement in gas stoves, 1250  
Volunteer Medical Staff Corps, promotion and appointments, 108, 163, 220, 275, 331, 384, 440, 494, 608, 661, 775, 830, 885, 1055, 1109, 1221, 1280, 1335, 1392, 1441; decoration of medical officers of, 440, 1280; examinations for promotions in, 1441  
— medical officers in regimental districts, 662; the women's, proposed organisation of, 758  
— movement, the originator of, 984  
W.  
Wade, Dr. W. F., Gout as a Peripheral Neurosis, *rev.*, 70  
Wadsworth, Dr. W., a narrow escape, 615  
Wage, a living, 443  
Waldo, Dr. H., motor aphasia without hemiplegia, 15; on London bakeries, 777  
Walk, Dr. J. W., Philadelphia Hospital Reports, *rev.*, 583  
Walker, Mr. A. H., hæmatoma of labium obstructing delivery, 62; recurrence or relapse? 667  
— Miss J. A., A Handbook for Mothers, *rev.*, 131  
— Dr. N., the pathology of rodent ulcer, 524; the commoner varieties of lupus vulgaris and their treatment, 1024; awarded Boylston prize, 1427  
— Dr. W., presentation to, 557  
Wallis, Mr. F. C., ruptured sacculus of bladder following stricture, 17  
— Dr. J. A., appointed commissioner in Lunacy, 98  
Walmsley, Dr. F. H., the status of asylum medical officers, 1278  
Walpole, Mr. S., and the British Postal Medical Officers Association, 34  
Walsall, small-pox and vaccination at, 1046  
Walsham, Mr. W. J., St. Bartholomew's Hospital Reports, *rev.*, 583  
Walters, Mr. J., scurvy in infants, 1439  
War, the medical services in, 1425  
Ward, Mr. G., death of, 1161  
Wardle, Dr. T., Sewage Treatment and Disposal for Cities, etc., *rev.*, 916  
Wardroper, Mr. S. E., memorial to, 1005  
Warren, Mr. C., recurrent sore on face, 115  
Warrington, the guardians of and their medical officer, 1338  
Wash, a penny, 1041  
Washbourn, Dr. J. W., membranous inflammation of throat during scarlet fever, 130; case of pleurisy caused by the pneumococcus and with constitutional symptoms resembling those of pneumonia, 465; on diphtheria, 1127  
Washhouses and erysipelas, 836  
Washington, army medical school at, 384  
Wastrels, titnings of our, 1098  
Watch, the pulsometer, 1132  
Water, sterilisation of by heat, 171; sterilised, the ancient use of, 724; demonstration of typhoid bacillus in by Parietti's method, 961; and typhoid, 1112; bacteriological examination of, 1264; in Aberdeenshire, 1379  
— supplies, public lead in, 1372  
— supply of London and the London County Council, 487, 529; and river pollution, 1339  
Watercloset flushing, cistern regulations, 48  
Waterhouse, Mr. H. F., tuberculous meningitis cured by drainage, 525



- Waters, Mr. E. E., puerperal eclampsia following lead poisoning, 682; symphorol (sodium caffeine sulphate) as a diuretic, 1241
- Waterworth, Dr. T. H., death of, 48
- Webb, Mr. G. F., a case of gastric ulcer, 351
- Weber, Dr. F. W., death of, 834
- Wedgwood, Mr. W. B., the perchlorides of mercury and iron in typhoid fever, 1126
- Weekly Times and Echo*, the, and the General Medical Council, 1287
- Weir Mitchell, Dr., "Francis Drake," 324
- Wells, polluted, 988
- Wells, Sir T. S., elected Fellow of Hungarian Academy of Sciences and foreign corresponding member of the Medico-Chirurgical Society of Bologna, 1263
- Welsford, Dr. A. G., the present state of medical practice, a suggested remedy for existing abuses, 977; the "cheap" doctor and his defence, 1156; medical and veterinary fees, a contrast, 1223
- West, Mr. J. U., obituary notice of, 686
- West Africa, the operations in, 555; a British hospital in, 923; medical officers in, 1054
- Bromwich, the board of guardians of and the stamping out of small-pox, 891
- Ham, default in vaccination in, 751; small-pox at, 1003
- Westminster, payment for public health services in, 817
- Western Australia, medical practitioners in, 1228
- Wethered, Dr., the diagnosis of diphtheria by bacteriological cultures, 635
- Wheaton, Dr., two cases of cranial deformity in infants, 128; certain affections of the mucous surfaces and their relations with diphtheria, 860
- Wheeler, Mr. A., *The Student's Handbook of Medicine and Therapeutics*, rev., 1309
- Mr. W. I., hydroceles of neck, 1193
- Wheelhouse, Mr. C. J., the health of, 30
- Wherry, Mr. G., osteoporosis of the cranial vault, 1188; inversion of uterus, 1192; partial thyroidectomy and tracheotomy for goitre, *ib.*
- Whistler, Dr., cyst of larynx, 915
- White, Mr. J., the administration of chloroform clinically considered, 410
- Mr. J. A. H., traumatic rupture of the jejunum without external injury, 1077
- Dr. J. W., castration for hypertrophy of the prostate, 1352
- Dr. S., the sanitation of the cutlery and file trades, 155
- Mr. T. C., *The Microscope and How to Use It*, rev., 528
- Dr. W. H., diphtherial paralysis suddenly fatal owing to entrance of tea into bronchial tubes, 466
- Whitehead, Mr. W., excision of elbow-joint, 68; ureteral calculi, *ib.*
- Whitehouse, Mr. C., the Nile reservoirs, 1389
- Whitstone, Surgeon-Captain C. W. H., case of gunshot wound, 464
- Whittington, small-pox at, 762, 924
- Whittle, Dr. E., obituary notice of, 386
- Whitworth, Dr. W., epidemic jaundice, 1063
- Wierdersheim, Dr. R., *Der Bau des Menschen als Zeugniß für ihre Vergangenheit*, rev., 194
- Wiesbaden as a Health Resort, Dr. E. Pfeiffer, rev., 357
- Wife, the doctor's, 872, 943
- Wightman, Mr. J. P., an analysis of twenty-four cases of enteric fever in children, 964; empyema in childhood, 1020
- Wilbe, Dr. H., diphtheria and defective drainage, 106
- Wilde, Mr. H., Dr. Gilbert and the theory of magnetism, 542
- Wilkin, Mr. G. C., the St. John Ambulance Association and its unpaid doctors, 106; choice of an anæsthetic for removing nasopharyngeal adenoids, 171, (228); out-patient hospital abuse, 771; syphilitic laryngitis, 915, 1244; pyoktain in epithelioma, 1024; the fingernail in the removal of adenoids, 1064
- Wilkinson, Mr. T. M., obituary notice of, 112
- Will, Dr. J., obituary notice of, 1283
- Willenhall, small-pox in, 1444
- Willett, Mr. E., transverse hermaphroditism in a male, 301; pathology of rodent ulcer, 409
- Dr. G., a sexless monster, 1168
- Williams, Dr. C. T., the climate of Southern California, 156; *Æro-Therapeutics*, or the Treatment of Lung Diseases by Climate, etc., rev., 1308
- Mr. J. T. C., treatment of intussusception by generating carbon-dioxide within the bowel, 800
- Mr. W. R., the question of the increase of cancer, 271; cancer and senility, 884; is cancer contagious? 1158; life-saving surgery, 1312
- Williamson, Dr. R. T., changes in the posterior columns of the spinal cord in diabetes mellitus, 398
- Willis, Dr. W., obituary notice of, 441
- Willoughby, Dr. E. F., *Public Health and Demography*, rev., 23
- Wilson, Dr. A., death of, 1443
- Mr. A. H., pistol-shot wound of the stomach, operation, recovery, 63
- Dr. W. A., pachymeningitis hæmorrhagica, 1081
- Wimbleton, a deadlock in the hospitals proposals at, 1395
- Windle, Dr. B. C. A., a teaching university for London, 326
- Windows, accidents from cleaning, 265
- Wine, effervescing sugar free, 1030; byrrh tonic, 1085
- Wines, home made, poisoning by, 447
- Winkler, Dr. C., *Beri-beri*, *Researches concerning its Nature and Cause and the Means of its Arrest*, rev., 863
- Winslow, Dr. F., uncertifiable patients, 772
- Winter frosts 1841-1894, 820
- Winters, warm, and cold summers, 703
- Withers, Mr. O., auditory vertigo and high pulse tension, 1190
- Witnesses, medical. *See Medical*
- Wolfe, Dr. J. R., treatment of detachment of retina, 848
- Wolverhampton, the workhouse nursing at, 224
- Woman, the scientific of to-day, 1322
- Women, degrees for in Germany, 84; prospects of as doctors, *ib.*; medical education of, 204; as sanitary inspectors, 334; medical as workhouse doctors, 371, 503, 616, 723, 839, 895; common forms of dyspepsia in, 570, 673; proposed education of in hygiene, 607; as official inspectors, 704, 781; as members of workhouse committees, 872; as factory inspectors, 931; medical education for in Russia, 1177; bearded, cases of, 1190; as doctors in Edinburgh, 1229; Lying-in, *A Short Guide to the Examination of*, Professors Crédé and Leopold, rev., 1415
- Wood, Mr. N., opium in ague, 103
- Dr. S. C., Tangier as a winter station, 75
- Woodall, John, the status and pay of land and sea surgeons under the early Stuarts, 600
- Woods, Dr. H., amendment of the Medical Acts, 272
- Dr. R. H., tertiary syphilis of the larynx, 1025; nasopharyngeal fibroma, 1192
- Woolcombe, Mr. W. L., a case of Virchow's psammoma of the pituitary, with remarks as to the function of that structure, 1350
- Word deafness and word blindness, case of, 907
- Workhouses, medical women as doctors of, 371, 503, 616, 723, 839, 895; nursing in, 537; the hospitals of, 776; alcohol in, 777, 1203; scandals and salaries in, 1041; provincial, nursing and administration of, 1197, 1251, 1311, 1323, 1367, 1378, 1422, 1429; the management and inspection of, 1425
- Workman, Dr. J., death of, 1056
- Workpeople, careless lead poisoning and, 1432
- Workshops, sanitary in London, 424
- World's Fair. *See Chicago*
- Worms, encysted, in cattle, tubercle and, 595
- Worrall, Dr. R., the ethics and prospects of the medical profession in New South Wales, 1067, 1095
- Worsley, Dr. R. C., pill in the trachea, 284
- Worth, Mr. E. J., death of, 1443
- Worthing, the Hermite system at, 486, 761; the health of, 759; the cost of typhoid outbreak at, 815
- Worthington, Dr. E. D., an improved stretcher for hospital, ambulance, and military use, 24
- Mr. T. L., *The Dwellings of the People*, rev., 683
- Wounded, care of the in war, 258
- Wright, Dr. A. E., certain improvements in the method of determining the condition of blood coagulability for clinical and experimental uses, 237
- Mr. H. E., *Chelsea Hospital for Women*, 550
- Writing, automatic. *See Automatic*
- Wyke, small-pox at, illegal quarantine, 836
- Wynne, Dr. J. D., recurrence or relapse? 616
- Dr. E. T., vacuolation of nuclei in cortical nerve cells, 1343
- Y.
- Yearbook of Treatment for 1894, rev., 247
- Yearsley, Mr. P. M., the fingernail in removal of adenoids, 895
- Yeast, injections of, 795
- Yeates, Surgeon-Lieutenant, R.A., dysentery and tropical liver abscess, 1333
- Yeo, Dr. I. B., a clinical demonstration on a case of rheumatic perityphlitis, 1289
- Yeomanry, promotions and appointments in medical staff of, 440, 608, 661, 775, 830, 1109
- Young, Dr. W. S., epidemic jaundice, 463
- Younge, Surgeon-Major, G. H., dysentery and tropical liver abscess, 1334
- Zule, the green, 171
- Z.
- Zakhärin, Dr., the personality, etc., of, 380; decoration of, 388
- Zancarol, Dr. G., *Traitement Chirurgical des Abscès du Foie des Pays Chauds*, rev., 1130
- Zaraath (Die) (Lepra) der hebraischen Bibel, Dr. G. N. Münch, rev., 864
- Zarniko, Dr., *Die Krankheiten der Nase*, etc., rev., 1131
- Ziemssen, Professor v., intravenous transfusion of undefibrinated blood, 742



## INDEX TO THE EPITOME FOR VOLUME I FOR 1894.

 The Figures in this Index refer to the Number of the Paragraph NOT the Page. 

## A.

Abdomen, hydramnion associated with distension of in the foetus, 303; several operations on in the same patient, 336  
Abdominal section, disorders of pregnancy after, 131; or hysterectomy for chronic disease of the appendages, 281  
Abel, duration of life of the diphtheria bacillus, 80; congenital defect of the diaphragm, 126  
Abortion, uterine and tubal, the placenta in, 345; fatal case of, 421; cancer following, 460  
Abscess, hepatic, pregnancy and, 75; of the pancreas, operation for, 108; of the spleen, 295  
Abscesses, cold, teucin in, 180  
Acetonuria, 411  
Acoustic exercises for the improvement of hearing and speech, 406  
Adamkiewicz, the mechanism of choked disc, 24  
Adenoid vegetations and the growth of children, 453  
Adler, nephrectomy for congenital hydro-nephrosis, 216  
Agricolansky, action of strychnine on the pancreas, 284  
Air, transmission of typhoid bacilli by, 370; in the veins in cases of placenta prævia, 463  
Albert, jejunosomy, 70  
Albu, influenza pneumonia, 252  
Albuminuria in pregnancy fatal to foetus, 38; induction of labour in with death of foetus, 301  
Alcohol, action of on disinfectants, 267  
Aldehoff, dulcin, 264  
Alessi, putrefactive gases as predisposing agents in typhoid infection, 450  
Alopecia areata, treatment of, 17, 186  
Amenorrhœa, electricity in, 299  
Amputation stumps, the cause and prevention of neuralgia in, 512  
Amyloid material, thionin as a stain for, 290  
— tissue, a new method of producing the iodine reaction on, 468  
Anæmia, acute, saline injections in, 19  
Anæsthesia in pelvic gynæcology, 280  
Anasarca, treatment of, 330  
Anastomosis of ureter, 277  
Aneurysms, extirpation of, 128  
Angina Ludovici, 375  
— pectoris and cardiac syphilis, 312  
Anthrax, influence of thymus and testicle juice on infection of, 209; destruction of virus of under the skin of susceptible animals, 210; treatment of in man, 246; the nuclei of spores of, 410  
Antidiphtherin, 179  
Antipyretics, two new, 60  
Anus, tuberculous ulceration of the, 107  
Aorta, compression of, 127  
Aphasia, transitory, in pneumonia, 26; of nine years' duration, partial recovery from, 215  
Aphasics, disorders of pantomime in, 293  
Apocynum cannabinum in heart disease, 502  
Apoplexy, hysterical, 415  
Appendicitis, etiology of, 149; diagnosis of, 487; surgical aspect of, 513  
Archangelo, therapeutic value of phenocol, 407  
Arcoleo, gunshot wound penetrating the brain, spontaneous cure, 377  
Arens, plate cultivations of anaërobic bacteria, 188  
Arsenic, the subcutaneous injection of, 98  
Arsenious acid, the ultimate fate of in the animal organism, 41  
Ascites, import of as a complication in ovarian cysts, 111  
Askanzay, infection by the trichina spiralis, 484  
Asphyxia neonatorum, Schultze's method of inducing respiration, 404  
Atrophy, acute yellow in childhood, 190; tabetic optic, electrical treatment of, 288; acute yellow, acute infection in pregnancy simulating, 363; hysterical muscular, 489  
Atropine in morphine poisoning, 21; and morphinism, 97  
Aubert, introduction of drugs through the skin by electricity, 387

Aufrecht, renal casts, 436  
Aural. *See* Ear

## B.

Baccelli, the compensation of combined valvular lesions, 102; intravenous injection of sublimate solution, 283  
Bacilli of cholera, staining of flagella in, 120  
— of tuberculous sputum, new method for the detection of, 331  
Bacillus of cholera, immunisation against, 391  
— diphtheriæ, duration of life of, 80; urine agar in the cultivation of, 81  
— of influenza, the detection of, 119, 141  
— of tubercle, influence of tobacco upon, 229  
— of typhoid, use of formalin in the diagnosis of, 100; resistance of to drying and their transmission by air, 370  
Bacteria, anaërobic, plate cultivations of, 188; estimation of, 208; preparation of a nutrient medium for from eggs, 289; and the saliva, 433  
Baldy, amputation of uterus as well as appendages for pelvic inflammation, 403  
Banholzer, ferratin, 136  
Banti, Paget's disease of the nipple, 413  
Baracz, turnip as a substitute for decalcified bone in intestinal surgery, 148  
Bardenheuer, excision of the mucous membrane in tubercle of the female bladder, 361  
Barnett, pancreatic cyst, 51  
Bath, the electric light, 389  
Baths, hot, the therapeutic effects of, 309  
Bauer, v., malakin, 384  
Baumüller, subluxation of the vertebral column, 420  
Bazy, absorption by the urinary bladder, 249  
Beck, congenital fistula of the neck, 339; six lithotomies performed on the same patient, 494  
Behring, the quantitative estimation of diphtheria antitoxin solutions, 436  
Bellanti, propagation of diphtherial virus, 354  
Bencke, enlargement of the thymus, 291  
Benzine, poisoning by, 395  
Berge, pathology of scarlet fever, 44  
Berger, chlorinated lime in pruritus ani, 329  
Bernasconi, elimination of phosphates in the urine in malarial fever, 437  
Bernheim, invasion of the body by cocci from the skin in eczema, 311  
Beyerinck, the demonstration of protozoa and spirilla in drinking water, 164  
Bezançon, tachycardia in pulmonary tuberculosis, 231  
Bianchi, word blindness, 509  
Bianchiui, a new treatment for diphtheria, 366  
Bier's treatment for articular tuberculosis, 317  
Binaud, trephining in spinal caries, 125  
Binnie, operative treatment of non-microcephalic idiocy, 397  
Binz, quinine in malaria, 95  
Birds, research on the hæmatozoa of, 243  
Bischoff, hysterical apoplexy, 415  
Bishop, mastoid operations, 89  
Bismuth in gastric disease, 117  
Bladder, surgical treatment of rupture of the 217; urinary, absorption by the, 249; female, excision of the mucous membrane in tubercle of the, 361  
Blagoveshtchensky, izal, 522  
Blanc, valerianate of amyl, 206  
Blindness, cortical, 273  
Bloch, hemiplegia in a child, 253  
Blood, changes in the in therapeutic treatment, 23; examination of the in sepsis, 25; relation of the density of to various morphological conditions, 146; of phthisical patients in the hectic conditions, bacteriological examination of, 165; examination of the in cases of leucocytosis, 247; nature of the germicidal constituent of the serum of, 467  
Boas, acute dilatation of the stomach, 230  
Boenneken, peroxide of hydrogen in stomatitis, 115  
Boer, the quantitative estimation of diphtheria antitoxin solutions, 446

Bogdanik, division of the cervical sympathetic in epilepsy, 31; neurectomy of the sympathetic in epilepsy, 235  
Bonaiuti, tetanus treated with antitoxic in serum, 480  
Bones, foetal fracture of during delivery, 379  
Bonnaire, hip-joint disease and marriage, 222  
Borchardt, the bacillus of influenza, 119  
Boursière, oxaluria, 434  
Bovis, angina Ludovici, 375  
Brain, the presence of lead in the and lead poisoning, 1; four cases of tumour, 32; sheep's the action of extract of on adults and children, 96; tumour of without headache or optic neuritis, 189; localisation of in epilepsy, 195; galvanisation of the, 227; gunshot wound, penetrating the, spontaneous cure, 377  
Braun, tetany in pregnancy, relation to molities ossium, 441  
Breast, inflamed, galactorrhœa in mother and child, 479  
Breech presentations, drawing down foot in, 73  
Brindel, electricity and fibroids, fatal embolism, 424  
Brissaud, cortical localisation of facial movements, 105; tumour of the restiform body, 121  
Briz, hydrochloro-sulphate of quinine, 243  
Brohl, uterus in a labial hernia in a female hermaphrodite, 342  
Brown-Séquard, paralysis of, 84; fluid injections of in ocular therapeutics, 207  
Bruns, omphalectomy, 87; the diagnosis between tumours of the cerebellum and corpora quadrigemina, 211; word blindness with right homonymous hemianopsia, 355  
Budin, infant feeding, 59  
Büttner, myoma of the female urethra, 199  
Burchardt, treatment of gonorrhœal ophthalmia, 9  
Buys, effects of removal of ovaries on uterine tissue, 459

## C.

Cæcum, resection of the, 69  
Cæsarcan section, obstruction overcome by washing out the stomach, 343  
Calculus, uterine, 56  
Canal, vertebral, hydatid in the, 169  
Cancer, complicating pregnancy, 14; uterine, 56; of the omentum, 200; uterine, inoculation and contact infection in, 258; of the testicle, 275; of the female organs, early appearance of in Japan, 324; of the ovary in a child, 380; the parasites of, 431; following abortion or childbed, 460; after ovariectomy, 461  
Canon, examination of the blood in sepsis, 25  
Cappelletti, chloralose, 464  
Capriati, electrical treatment of tabetic optic atrophy, 288  
Carbolic acid, poisoning by, 3  
Carcinoma, pyloric, resection for, 233; occurrence of living parasites in the blood and cancerous cells in cases of, 432; gastric, early diagnosis of, 470  
Cardiac. *See* Heart  
Carry, gonorrhœa in women, 113  
Castex, adenoid vegetations and the growth of children, 453  
Casts, renal, 436  
Cataract, prevention of infection of wound after operation for, 150  
Cathelineau, gastric crises, 333  
Catheter, the, in micturition in childbed, 462  
Cattani, vaccination of the horse against tetanus 500  
Cebrian, v., ichthyol, 225  
Celli, the poison of tetanus, 101  
Cellulitis, gaseous, 5  
Centanni, antirabic serum of high immunising power applicable to man, 241  
Cerebellum, diagnosis between tumours of the corpora quadrigemina, 211; tumour of in children, 394  
Cerebral. *See* Brain  
Cerebrum, effect of faradic excitation of on the respiration, 269  
Cervix uteri. *See* Uterus  
Chambrelen, pregnancy and hepatic abscess, 75

Copies of the Index to the Epitome, with Title-page, for binding in separate form, can be had on application to the Office, 429, Strand, W.C.

Chancere of the eye, diagnosis of, 196  
 Chandler, disorders of pregnancy after abdominal section, 131  
 Chantemesse, transitory aphasia in pneumonia, 26  
 Chaput, treatment of gangrenous hernia, 318  
 Charles, induction of labour in albuminuria with death of foetus, 301  
 Charrier, suppurating tube, subperitoneal laparotomy, fistula, 321  
 Chazan, hydrorrhœa gravidarum and hydrops amnii, 178  
 Chest, surgery of the, 318  
 Chilblains, digitalis in the treatment of, 158  
 Child, newborn, the stump of the funis in, 220; hemiplegia in a, 253; cancer of the ovary in a, 380; crying *in utero* during version, 382; newborn, gonorrhœa, stomatitis, and ophthalmia in, 422  
 Childbed, typhoid fever in, 55; ovariotomy after, 240; cancer following, 460; micturition in, the catheter, 461  
 Childhood, acute tuberculosis in, 67; treatment of gastric neuritis in, 78; acute yellow atrophy in, 190  
 Children, newborn, mucous stools in, 23; hernia in, 357; cerebellar tumour in, 394; jaundice from emotional disturbance in, 396; adenoid vegetations and the growth of, 453  
 Chloralose, 203, 464  
 Chlorinated lime in pruritus ani, 229  
 Chlorine gas, injection of in pulmonary cavities, 62  
 Chloroform, vinegar in sickness from, 159; strychnine as an antidote in poisoning by, 242; action of on the cardiac rhythm, 448  
 Chlorosis, etiology of, 232  
 Cholera Asiatica, intravenous injection of salt solution in, 40; experiments as to immunity from, 64; natural immunity against, 506  
 bacillus. See Bacillus  
 Chorea, etiology of, 4; chronic progressive, hereditary, 145  
 Cirrhosis of the liver, 65; pancreatic and diabetes, 62  
 Cleghorn, operative treatment of thrombosis of the lateral sinus, 359  
 Club-foot, operative treatment of, 338  
 Cnopf, indications for tracheotomy, 439  
 Cocaine, a new method for using for local anæsthesia, 418  
 Cocci from the skin in eczema, invasion of the body by, 311  
 Coccyx, dysmenorrhœa from caries of the, 133  
 Coen, acoustic exercises for the improvement of hearing and speech, 406  
 Cohn, microbes in the sputum of pertussis, 187; primary sarcoma of the suprarenal body, 400  
 Cohnheim, early diagnosis of gastric carcinoma, 470  
 Colic, splenic, 316  
 Colitis, membranous, treatment of, 22  
 Collet, cerebellar sclerosis, 47  
 Colosanti, ichthyol, 225; elimination of iron in malaria, 250  
 Condamin, ovarian cystoma and pregnancy, 110  
 Congestion, passive, the pathology of the œdema which accompanies, 332  
 Conti, acetoneuria, 411  
 Convulsions, puerperal and true epilepsy, 383; infantile, treatment of, 447  
 Cook, W., marriage, dysmenorrhœa, hysteria, 36  
 Cord, spinal, syphilis and disease of the, 49; degeneration of in experimental phosphorus poisoning, 228  
 umbilical, should two ligatures be placed on? 15; the stump of the in the newborn child, 220  
 Corpora quadrigemina and tumours of the cerebellum, diagnosis between, 211  
 Coulou, jaundice from emotional disturbance in, 396  
 Couveuse r. cradle, 442  
 Cradle r. couveuse, 442  
 Crandale, scurvy in infants, 469  
 Craniectomy for microcephalus, 454  
 Cranium, trephining in gunshot wounds of the, 374; surgery of the, 438  
 Crary, myxœdema and the thyroid treatment, 507  
 Creasote, acute poisoning by, 449  
 Crowell, acute infection in pregnancy simulating acute yellow atrophy, 363  
 Crozet, trephining in spinal caries, 125  
 Cruse, atropine in morphine poisoning, 21  
 Crying of child *in utero* during version, 382  
 Curette, the, in bleeding fibroids, 515  
 Cyst, pancreatic, 51; traumatic of the stomach wall, 171; solitary hydatid of the spleen, 256  
 Cystoma, ovarian and pregnancy, 110  
 Cysts, ovarian, import of ascites as a complication, 111; tubo-ovarian, origin of, 360

D.  
 Dana, etiology of chorea, 4  
 Dandridge, surgical treatment of pulmonary cavities, 170  
 Darquier, recurrent paralysis of the third pair of nerves, 7  
 D'Astros, cerebellar tumour in children, 394  
 Daylight, exclusion of in the treatment of small-pox, 138  
 Death under ethyl bromide, 205  
 Debedat, influence of electric stimulation upon the nutrition of muscle, 325  
 Decidua, malignant disease of, 445  
 Deciduoma, malignant, 460  
 Dehio, intravenous injection of salt solution in Asiatic cholera, 40  
 Delagenière, surgery of the chest, 318  
 Delivery, unconscious, 223; fracture of foetal bones during, 379  
 Delorme, chronic empyema, 109  
 Demons, pedunculated fibroid of the broad ligament, 177  
 De Wecker, injections of Brown-Séquard's fluid in ocular therapeutics, 207  
 Diabetes, and pancreatic, cirrhosis, 82; piperazin in, 263  
 Diakonoff, izar, 523  
 Diaphragm, congenital defect of the, 126  
 Diaphthol, 76  
 Diazo-reaction, Ehrlich's 122  
 Dickinson, R., the bimanual signs of early pregnancy, 93  
 Digitalis in the treatment of chilblains, 158  
 Dilatation, atonic gastric, treatment of, 430  
 Dimante, symphysiotomy, an objection on mechanical grounds, 516  
 Diphtheria, pyoktanin in, 16; petroleum in, 116; hemiplegia after, 314; local treatment in, 326; propagation of the virus of, 354; serum treatment of, 365; a new treatment for, 366  
 antitoxin solutions, the quantitative estimation of, 446  
 Disc, choked, the mechanism of, 24  
 Disease, Gerlier's, ocular troubles in, 213  
 Graves's, thyroidectomy in, 218; splenic pulsation in, 315; etiology of, 414  
 Paget's, of nipple, 413  
 Weil's, 144  
 Disinfectants, action of alcohol, glycerine, and olive oil on, 267  
 Disinfection by the solar rays, 351  
 Dörfler, early operation for ileus, 88  
 Doktor, the stump of the funis in the newborn child, 220  
 Drainage holes, secondary union of, 491  
 Drantzin, repeated tubal gestation, 302  
 Dropsy, of bacterial origin, 140  
 Drugs, introduction of, through the skin by electricity, 387  
 Drying, resistance of typhoid bacilli to, 370  
 Dubrisay, fatal pneumonia in infant from septic infection during birth, 514  
 Dulcin, 264, 428  
 Dungen, gaseous cellulitis, 5; idiopathic hæmorrhage of septic origin in infants, 27  
 Dunin, gastroenterostomy in cicatricial narrowing of the pylorus, 106  
 Dysentery, lysol in, 163  
 Dysmenorrhœa from caries of the coccyx, 133; treatment of, 478

E.  
 Ear, sigmoid thrombosis originating from the, 172; pyæmia secondary to disease of without sinus thrombosis, 296  
 Ebstein, the presence of lead in the brain and lead poisoning, 1  
 Eclampsia, treatment of, 153; puerperal, hepatic or renal? 475  
 Eczema, gallanol in, 63; neurotic reflex, 271; invasion of the body by cocci from the skin in, 311  
 Edebohls, diagnosis of appendicitis, 487  
 Edgren, hemiplegia after diphtheria, 314  
 Eggs, preparation of a nutrient medium for bacteria from, 289  
 Ehrlich, diazo-reaction of, 122; serum treatment of diphtheria, 365  
 Eichholz, cavernous tumour of the vulva, 58  
 Electricity in chronic rheumatism, 77; in epididymitis, 286; in tabetic optic atrophy, 288; in amenorrhœa, 299; static effect of upon metabolism, 308; influence of upon the nutrition of muscle, 325; in obesity, 368; introduction of drugs through the skin by, 387; and fibroids, fatal embolism, 424  
 Electropathy and development of tumours, 402  
 Empyema, chronic, 109  
 Endocarditis, tuberculous vegetative, 83  
 Endometritis, in pregnancy, 71; senile, 378  
 Enterectomy for rupture of the ileum, 356  
 Enteritis, perforative ulcerative, 371

Enterostomy, 274  
 Enterorrhaphy, present state of, 68  
 Epidermis, pigmentation of the, 412  
 Epididymitis, electrical treatment of, 286  
 Epilepsy, division of the cervical sympathetic in, 31; brain localisation in, 195; neurectomy of the sympathetic in, 235; true puerperal convulsions and, 383  
 Episcleritis, gummatous, 33  
 Ergot in migraine, 348  
 Eruptions, catarrhal, 168  
 Erysipelas, treatment of, 118; facial, pilocarpin in, 408  
 Erythema, puerperal, not scarlatinal, 176  
 Esmarch, v., disinfection by the solar rays, 351  
 Ether, anæsthesia from, 265  
 Ethyl bromide, death under, 205  
 Etienne, trophic disturbance in wasting palsy, 417  
 Eucalyptus inunction in measles, 287  
 Euphen, 43, 185  
 Everke, complete laceration of vagina in labour, 262  
 Ewald, Thiersch's method of skin transplantation, 236; treatment of anasarca, 330  
 Eye, diagnosis of chancre of the, 190; injections of Brown-Séquard's fluid in therapeutics of, 207; troubles of in paralytic vertigo (Gerlier's disease), 213

F.  
 Fabricius, radical cure of femoral hernia, 193  
 Face, cortical localisation of movements of, 105  
 Facial concretions in the large intestine, 503  
 Fahm, indicanuria and tuberculosis, 166  
 Federici, the diagnosis of croupous pneumonia in infants, 84  
 Fedoroff, treatment of tetanus by the serum of immunised animals, 224  
 Felsenthal, treatment of erysipelas, 118  
 Fermi, the poison of tetanus, 101; estimation of bacteria, 208  
 Ferratin, 136, 483  
 Ferraton, treatment of alopecia areata, 17  
 Fever, enteric, in pregnancy and childbed, 55; rachialgia after, 103; treatment of, 157, 503; lactophen in, 347; meningitis complicating, 416; putrefactive gases as predisposing agents of infection in, 440  
 malarial, iliac in, 99; elimination of phosphates in the urine in, 437  
 scarlet, pathology of, 44  
 Fibroid, pedunculated, of the broad ligament, 177  
 Fibroids and electricity, fatal embolism, 424; treatment of stump in hysterectomy for, 425; bleeding the curette in, 515  
 Finsen, exclusion of daylight in the treatment of small-pox, 138  
 Fishbones, vinegar for the removal of from the larynx, 266  
 Fistula, vesico-vaginal, 323; congenital of the neck, 339  
 Flagella, staining of in cholera bacilli, 120  
 Flatau, extramedian incision in laparotomy, 344  
 Fleiner, pancreatic cirrhosis and diabetes, 82  
 Foetus, albuminuria of pregnancy fatal to, 38; lymphangioma of shoulder of interfering with delivery, 237; hydramnion associated with abdominal distension in the, 303; fracture of bones of during delivery, 379  
 Formalin, use of in the diagnosis of the typhoid bacillus, 100  
 Forselles, sigmoid thrombosis of aural origin, 172  
 Fortin, cyst or "hydrocele" of Nuck's canal, 37  
 Fraenkel, A., cardiac syphilis and angina pectoris, 312  
 Frank, tapping the lateral ventricles, 511  
 Franqué, O. v., tuberculous disease of cancerous uterus, 495  
 Freudenberg, air in the veins in cases of placenta prævia, 463  
 Freyhan, Weil's disease, 144  
 Friedeberg, poisoning by lysol and phenol, 244  
 Friedeberger, hydatid in the vertebral canal, 169  
 Friedenwald, Ehrlich's diazo-reaction, 122  
 Fromaget, gummatous episcleritis, 33  
 Funis. See Cord, umbilical

G.  
 Gajkevics, hysterical œdema, 28  
 Galactorrhœa in mother and child, 479  
 Galeotti, a new method of producing the iodine reaction in amyloid tissue, 468  
 Galezowski, diagnosis of chancre of the eye, 196  
 Gall bladder and ducts, surgery of the, 255  
 stones, intestinal obstruction due to, 257; experiments on the formation of, 524  
 Gallanol in psoriasis and eczema, 63

- Galvanisation of the brain, 227  
 Gangrene, idiopathic, 191  
 Gases, putrefactive, as predisposing agents in typhoid infection, 450  
 Gastrectasis and megalo-gastria, 373  
 Gastric. *See* Stomach  
 ——— crises, 333  
 ——— juice, free hydrochloric acid in, 251  
 Gastro-enterostomy in cicatricial narrowing of the pylorus, 105  
 Gastro-intestinal disturbance in diseases of women, 10  
 Gellé, lesions of the bony casing of the auricular portion of the facial nerve, 275  
 Gendre, moisture to the thorax in diseases of the respiratory tract, 307  
 Gerhardt, syphilis and disease of the spinal cord, 49; splenic pulsation in Graves's disease, 315  
 Gerke, radical cure of hydrocele femina, 518  
 Gerler's disease. *See* Disease  
 Gestation, prolonged and foetal retention, 259; ectopic, thoracopagous twins in sac, 282; repeated tubal, 302  
 Gilbert, euphen, 43  
 Giles, laminectomy for fracture of the spine, 399  
 Giusti, tetanus treated with antitoxic serum, 480  
 Glinski, apocynum cannabinum in heart disease, 502  
 Glycerine, action of in disinfectants, 267  
 Goldscheider, treatment by tissue extracts, 426  
 Goldschmidt, acute tuberculosis in childhood, 67  
 Golgi, the morbid anatomy of rabies, 390  
 Gonnon, gallanol in psoriasis and eczema, 63  
 Gonorrhoea in women, 113  
 Gordon, ovariectomy during pregnancy, 219  
 ——— M., injection of saline solution in poisoning, 327  
 Gourlay, the proteids of the thyroid and spleen, 485  
 Gramatchikoff, influence of thymus and testicle juice on anthrax infection, 209  
 Grandin, dysmenorrhoea from caries of the coccyx, 133; child crying *in utero* during version, 382  
 Graves's disease. *See* Disease  
 Grawitz, the saliva and some bacteria, 433  
 Graziani, the venom of *naja haje*, 46  
 Grigorief, antidiphtherin, 179  
 Grimm, early appearance of cancer of the female organs in Japan, 324  
 Grube, etiology of Graves's disease, 414  
 Gruseff, puberty in cold countries, 517  
 Guaiacol, absorption of by the skin, 135; external use of as an antipruritic, 161  
 Gueniot, a simple method of plugging the vagina, 260; cradle *v. couveuse*, 442  
 Gürber, systemic effects of severe hæmorrhage, 167  
 Guinard, diaphthol, 76  
 Guinsbourg, induction of labour in tuberculosis and uncontrollable vomiting, 300  
 Gunshot wound penetrating the brain, spontaneous cure, 377  
 ——— wounds of the cranium, trephining in, 374  
 Gurrieri, degeneration of the cord in experimental phosphorus poisoning, 228  
 Gussenbauer, cancer of the ovary in a child, 380  
 Gutmann, scopolamine, 388  
 Gynecology, pelvic, anæsthesia in, 280
- H.  
 Hadra, brain localisation in epilepsy, 195  
 Hæmatoporphyrinuria after trional, 285  
 Hæmatozoa of birds, researches on, 248  
 Hæmophilia, menstruation and operation, 499  
 Hæmorrhage, idiopathic, of septic origin in infants, 27; severe, systemic attacks of, 167  
 Hæmorrhages, gastro-intestinal in the newborn, 381; pancreatic, 486  
 Hæmorrhoids, bloodless operation for, 194  
 Hallopeau, theobromine in mitral disease, 162  
 Hamburger, dropsy of bacterial origin, 140  
 Hare, galvanisation of the brain, 227  
 Harley, V., the value of sugar and the effect of smoking on muscular work, 372  
 Hartley, operative treatment of club-foot, 338  
 Hartmann, tuberculous ulceration of the anus, 107  
 Hatschek, massage in prurigo, 204  
 Head, trephining for injuries to, 490  
 Hearing and speech, acoustic exercises for the improvement of, 406  
 Heart, pregnancy and valvular disease of, 11; effect of urine, normal and pathological, on the, 45; the compensation of combined valvular lesions of, 102; disease of and labour, 112; meat peptone as a tonic to the, 349; thermal and mechanical stimulation of the, 386; action of chloroform on the rhythm of, 448; pregnancy and disease of, 498; apocynum cannabinum in disease of the, 502  
 Heidenhain, severe hiccup, 488  
 Heitler, thermal mechanical stimulation of the, 386  
 Hemianopsia, right homonymous, with word blindness, 355  
 Hemiplegia, in a child, 253; after diphtheria, 314  
 Herhold, Brown-Séquard's paralysis, 84  
 Hermaphrodite, female, uterus in labial hernia in a, 342  
 Hernia, femoral, radical cure of, 193; gangrenous, treatment of, 319; of the lung, resection, 337; labial, uterus in a female hermaphrodite, 342; in children, 357  
 Herniotomy for strangulation in infants, 440  
 Herrgott, gastro-intestinal hæmorrhages in the newborn, 381  
 Heuck, placenta prævia, turning, death from air in veins, 261  
 Hiccough, severe, 488  
 Hilbert, acute leukæmia in pregnancy, 13  
 Hildebrandt, piperazin in diabetes, 263  
 Hip, congenital luxation of the, 456  
 Hip-joint, disease of and marriage, 222  
 Hirsuties, treatment of, 20  
 Hirt, hysterical muscular atrophy, 489  
 Hodenpyl, etiology of appendicitis, 149  
 Hofmokl, aspiration of distended tubes, 341  
 Holstein, neurotic reflex eczema, 271  
 Hoppe, chronic progressive hereditary chorea, 145  
 Horing, C., pyoktanin in diphtheria, 16  
 Horse, vaccination of the against tetanus, 500  
 Huber, the bacillus of influenza, 119  
 Hürthle, the thyroid gland, 393  
 Huguet, angina Ludovici, 375  
 Humerus, dislocated, fracture of, 474  
 Hutchinson, catarrhal eruptions, 168  
 Hydatid in the vertebral canal, 169  
 Hydræmnion associated with abdominal distension in the foetus, 303  
 Hydrocele of Nuck's canal, 37; treatment of, 173; femina, radical cure of, 518  
 Hydrochloric acid (free) in the gastric juice, 251  
 Hydrochlorate of scopolamine as a mydriatic, 305  
 Hydrchloro-sulphate of quinine, 243  
 Hydronephrosis, congenital, nephrectomy for, 216  
 Hydrops amnii and hydrorrhoea gravidarum, 178  
 Hydrorrhoea gravidarum and hydrops amnii, 178  
 Hysterectomy, supravaginal, a new indication for, 35; or abdominal section for chronic disease of appendages, 281; objections to for prolapse, 304; for fibroids, treatment of stump in, 425  
 Hysteria, marriage, dysmenorrhoea, 36
- I.  
 Ichthyol in erysipelas, etc., 225  
 Idiocy, non-microcephalic, operative treatment of, 397  
 Ileum, enterectomy for rupture of, 356  
 Ileus, early operation for, 88  
 Ilkewitch, new method for detecting tubercle bacilli in sputum, 331; the nuclei of anthrax spores, 410  
 Imbert de la Touche, electrical treatment of obesity, 368  
 Immunisation against the cholera bacillus, 391  
 Immunity to infections produced by establishment of tolerance to certain drugs, 183  
 Indicanuria and tuberculosis, 166  
 Infancy, ovarian tumour in, 42  
 Infant with absence of both radii, 201; fatal pneumonia in from septic infection during birth, 514  
 Infants, idiopathic hæmorrhage of septic origin in, 27; feeding of, 59; acute rhinitis in, 66; the diagnosis of croupous pneumonia in, 85; herniotomy for strangulation in, 440; scurvy in, 469  
 Infection, mixed, in pulmonary tuberculosis, 523  
 Influenza bacillus. *See* Bacillus  
 ——— pneumonia, 252; typhosa, 272  
 Insane, peptonuria in the, 313  
 Intestine, obstruction of after ovariectomy, 174; some new methods of treating diseases of, 465; large, faecal concretion in the, 508  
 Intussusception, purpura in relation to, 8  
 Iodides in locomotor ataxy, 160  
 Iodine reaction, new method of obtaining in amyloid tissue, 468  
 Ioduridium, 42
- Iron, elimination of in malaria, 250; the absorption of, 367  
 Israel, comparative pathology of necrosis, 505  
 Israelson, lysol in obstetric practice, 39  
 Izal, 522
- J.  
 Jacket, the plaster, 398  
 Jacksch, V., lactophenin in enteric fever, 347  
 Jacoangeli, elimination of iron in malaria, 250  
 Jacobi, local treatment in diphtheria, 326; craniectomy for microcephalus, 454  
 Jacobs, puerperal septicæmia after death of foetus, protracted sequelæ, 362; abortion, death, 421  
 Jakowski, bacteriological examination of the blood of phthisical patients in the hectic condition, 165  
 Japan, early appearance of cancer of the female organs in, 324  
 Jaundice from emotional disturbance in children, 396  
 Jejunosotomy, 70  
 Johnson, strangulation of testicle, 493  
 Jolly, acute ascending paralysis, 451
- K.  
 Kahane, teucin in cold abscesses, 180; occurrence of living parasites in the blood and cancerous cells in carcinoma, 432  
 Kantorowicz, thionin as a stain for amyloid material, 290  
 Keen, four cases of cerebral tumour, 32  
 Kehrer, hydatidiform mole, 279  
 Keimeking, surgery of the trifacial nerve, 234  
 Kelly, anastomosis of ureter, 277  
 Kemmerich, meat peptone as a cardiac tonic, 349  
 Keratitis, interstitial subconjunctival injections in, 53  
 Kerez, the influence of tobacco upon the tubercle bacillus, 229  
 Khmelevsky, influence of light on pyogenic microbes, 369  
 Kidney and suprarenal tumours of the, 409  
 Kirchoff, ectopic gestation, thoracopagous twins in sac, 282  
 Kirmisson, congenital luxation of the hip, 456  
 Klein, atony of the uterus, 458  
 ——— E., staining of flagella in cholera bacilli, 120  
 ——— S., examination of the blood in cases of leucocytosis, 247  
 Kleinwacher, stricture of the female urethra, 74  
 Klemperer, G., natural immunity of against cholera, 506  
 Klevtsoff, pyoktanin in cutaneous tuberculosis, 245  
 Kobert, dulcin, 428  
 Koch, atropine and morphinism, 97  
 Kochler, death under ethyl bromide, 205  
 Kölliker, the plaster jacket, 398  
 König, the pathological history of synovial tuberculosis, 510  
 Körte, intestinal obstruction due to gall stones, 257  
 Köster, salophen, 182  
 Koettnitz, presentations of the pelvis or lower extremities and the etiology of torticollis, 90  
 Koffer, myoma simulating retroflexion of gravid uterus, hysterectomy, 155  
 Kohn, pneumomycosis aspergillana, 212  
 Kossmann, malformations of the Fallopian tube, 444  
 Kostenko, petroleum in diphtheria, 116  
 Kraurosis vulvæ, 322  
 Krause, treatment of chronic laryngitis, 457  
 Krönig, infant with absence of both radii, 201  
 Krogius, a new method of using cocaine for local anæsthesia, 418  
 Küchler, partial recovery from aphasia of nine years' duration, 215  
 Kühner, the electric light bath, 389  
 Küster, early operation in osteomyelitis, 455  
 Kurloff, the parasites of cancer, 431
- L.  
 Labour and heart disease, 112; high temperature after, 132; sloughing of cervix after, 156; induction of in tuberculosis and uncontrollable vomiting, 300; induction of in albuminuria with death of foetus, 301  
 Labusquiere, malignant deciduoma, cancer following abortion or childbed, 460  
 Lactation, psychoses of, 278  
 Lactophenin, 139; in enteric fever, 347  
 Laehr, M., abductor paralysis of the larynx, 124  
 Lagrange, F., subconjunctival injections in interstitial keratitis, 53  
 Lailler, peptonuria in the insane, 313

Laminectomy for spinal fracture, 297, 399  
 Lamy, puerperal neuritis, 57  
 Landowsky, lactophenin, 139  
 Langdon, the temperature in general paralysis of the insane, 2  
 Langerhans, carbolic acid poisoning, 3; malignant myoma of uterus, 12  
 Lannois, absorption of guaiacol by the skin, 135  
 Laparotomy, extramedian incision in, 344  
 Laroynne, secondary union of drainage holes, 491  
 Larsen, alleged ovarian pregnancy, recovery after operation, 197  
 Laryngitis, chronic, treatment of, 457  
 Larynx, abductor paralysis of the, 124; vinegar for the removal of fish bones from, 266  
 Laugier, M., unconscious delivery, 223  
 Laure, a new indication for supravaginal hysterectomy, 35  
 Lazarus-Barlow, the pathology of the oedema which accompanies passive congestion, 332  
 Lead, the presence of in the brain and lead poisoning, 1; poisoning by, 254  
 Lebedeff, ovariectomy in pregnancy, 477  
 Ledermann, resorbin a new expient, 202  
 Lediard, treatment of torticollis by open incision of the sterno-mastoid, 298  
 Legry, fatal pneumonia in an infant from septic infection during birth, 514  
 Leistikow, iodrubidium, 42; treatment of alopecia areata, 186  
 Lenti, action of alcohol, glycerine, and olive oil on disinfectants, 267  
 Le Roy des Barres, ovariectomy after childbed, 240  
 Leube, muscular rheumatism, 104; movable liver, 143  
 Leucocytosis, examination of the blood in cases of, 247  
 Leukæmia, acute, in pregnancy, 13  
 Leyden, gonorrhoeal stomatitis and ophthalmia in a newborn child, 422; treatment of peripheral neuritis, 482  
 Ligament, broad, pedunculated fibroid of the, 177  
 Light, influence of on pathogenic microbes, 369  
 Lilac in malarial fever, 99  
 Lissosier, absorption of guaiacol by the skin, 135  
 Lipinsky, puerperal erythema, not scarlatinale, 176  
 Lithotomies, six, performed on the same patient, 494  
 Liver, cirrhosis of the, 65; movable, 143; surgery of the, 473  
 Locomotor ataxy, iodides in, 160  
 Löhlein, pregnancy after ventrifixation, 320; hydatidiform mole, malignant disease of decidua, 445  
 Londe, tuberculous vegetative endocarditis, 83  
 Lopez, hernia of the lung, resection, 337  
 Lubarsch, tumours of kidney and suprarenals, 409  
 Lucas-Championnière, cranial surgery, 433  
 Lung, hernia of the lung, resection, 337  
 Lungs, injection of chlorine gas in cavities of, 62; surgical treatment of cavities in the, 170  
 Lusini, effect of urine, normal and pathological, on the heart, 45  
 Lutz, salol in phthisis, 94  
 Luxation, congenital, of hip, 456  
 Luzet, infantile therapeutics, 519  
 Lymphangioma of fetal shoulder, interfering with delivery, 237  
 Lysol, in obstetric practice, 39; in dysentery, 163; poisoning by, 244

## M.

Macaigne, infection by streptococci, 268  
 Macallum, the absorption of iron, 367  
 McBurney, fracture of dislocated humerus, 474  
 McClintock, nature of the germicidal constituent of blood serum, 467  
 Mace, inflamed breast, galactorrhœa in mother and child, 479  
 Macewen, compression of aorta, 129  
 McLean, M., vesico-vaginal fistula, 323  
 MacWilliam, action of chloroform on the cardiac rhythm, 448  
 Magnaux, sloughing of cervix after labour, recovery, 156  
 Magnus, cortical blindness, 273  
 Maillart, treatment of enteric fever, 157  
 Malakin, 384, 429  
 Malaria, quinine in, 95; elimination of iron in, 250  
 Malherbe, adenoid vegetations and the growth of children, 453  
 Man, treatment of anthrax in, 246  
 Mandry, significance of "urobilinuria" in obstetrics and gynecology, 221  
 Mangiagalli, ovariectomy, pregnancy, childbed, 443

Manley, bloodless operation for hæmorrhoids, 194  
 Maragliano, perforative ulcerative endocarditis, 371  
 Marchaud, ovarian tumours in infancy, 423  
 Marcopoulos, prolonged gestation and foetal retention, 259  
 Marfori, ferratin, 433  
 Markoe, entero-anastomosis, 274  
 Marriage, dysmenorrhœa, hysteria, 36; hip-joint disease and, 222  
 Martin, mumps, 292; kraurosis vulvæ, 322  
 Massage in prurigo, 203  
 Massen, puerperal eclampsia, hepatic or renal? 475  
 Massy, electricity in chronic rheumatism, 77  
 Mastoid, operations on the, 89  
 Matthes, bismuth in gastric disease, 117  
 Maucclair, molluscum pendulum of vulva, 114  
 Mayer, experiment on the formation of gall stones, 524  
 Measles, eucalyptus inunction in, 287  
 Meat peptone as a cardiac tonic, 349  
 Meconium, swallowing of, pneumonia and erysipelas in the newborn, 364  
 Megalogastric and gastrectasis, 373  
 Meinert, etiology of chlorosis, 232  
 Melena neonatorum, 239  
 Menge, primary tuberculous disease of the Fallopian tube, 91  
 Meningitis, complicating enteric fever, 416  
 Menstruation, hæmophilia and operation, 499  
 Mental. *See* Mind  
 Mercury, effect of treatment by on the urine, 346  
 Mering, v., two new antipyretics, 60  
 Merkel, acute yellow atrophy in childhood, 190; malakin, 429  
 Merz, treatment of rupture of the uterus, 34  
 Mesiatzeff, lilac in malarial fever, 99  
 Metabolism, effect of statical electricity upon, 308  
 Metritis, chronic, of the cervix, 129  
 Meyer, tuberculosis of the cervix, 198; treatment of the stump in hysterectomy for fibroids, 425  
 Microbes in the sputum of pertussis, 187; pathogenic, influence of light on, 369  
 Microbism, pre-existing and puerperalism, 130  
 Microcephalus, craniectomy for, 454  
 Micturition in childbed, the catheter, 462  
 Migraine, ergot in, 348  
 Migraine, 137  
 Mikulicz, Bier's treatment of articular tuberculosis, 317  
 Miller, Bier's treatment of articular tuberculosis, 317  
 Mills, disorders of pantomime in aphasias, 294  
 Mind, early symptoms of disease of, 471  
 Minnich, splenic colic, 316  
 Mitchell, Dr. Weir, studies in surface temperatures, 192  
 Moisture to the thorax in diseases of the respiratory tract, 307  
 Mole, hydatidiform, 279, 445  
 Mollities ossium, relation of tetany in pregnancy, 441  
 Molluscum pendulum of vulva, 114  
 Moncorvo, the action of sheep's brain extract on adults and children, 96  
 Monod, infection by streptococci, 268  
 Morestin, foreign body in the uterus, 175  
 Morison, acute vertebral osteomyelitis, 29  
 Morison, treatment of hirsuties, 20  
 Morphine, atropine in poisoning by, 21  
 Morphism, atropine and, 97  
 Mouth, care of the in sick persons, 427  
 Muco-enteritis in uterine disease, 497  
 Mucous membrane, excision of the in tubercle of the female bladder, 361  
 Müller, acute osteomyelitis, 6  
 Mumps, epidemic of, 292  
 Murphy, surgery of the gall bladder and ducts, 255  
 Murray, massage in prurigo, 203  
 Muscle, influence of electric stimulation on the nutrition of, 325  
 Mynter, trephining for head injuries, 490  
 Myoma, malignant of uterus, 12; simulating retroflexion of gravid uterus, 155; of the female urethra, 199  
 Myxœdema and the thyroid treatment, 507

## N.

Naja haje, the venom of, 46  
 Neck, congenital fistula of the, 339  
 Necrosis, comparative pathology of, 505  
 Neisser, the influenza bacillus, 141  
 Nephrectomy for congenital hydronephrosis, 216  
 Nerve, cervical sympathetic, division of in epilepsy, 31; trifacial, surgery of the, 234; sym-

pathetic, neurectomy of in epilepsy, 235; facial, lesions of the bony casing of the auricular portion of the, 276; trifacial, surgery of the, 376  
 Nerves (third pair) recurrent paralysis of, 7  
 Neuberger, europen, 185  
 Neumann, treatment of hydrocele, 173; microbes in the sputum of pertussis, 187; tetany in pregnancy, relation of to mollities ossium, 441  
 Neuralgia, syphilitic, 335; the cause and prevention of in amputation stumps, 512  
 Neurectomy, intracranial, 86; of the sympathetic in epilepsy, 235  
 Neuritis, puerperal, 57; gastric, treatment of in childhood, 78; diabetic, 214; peripheral, treatment of, 482  
 Neurodin, 60  
 Newborn, gastro-intestinal hæmorrhage in the, 381  
 Niebergall, treatment of wound of the common femoral vein, 30  
 Nimier, pancreatic hæmorrhages, 486  
 Nipple, Paget's disease of the, 413  
 Nolen, abscess of the spleen, 295  
 Noll, treatment of dysmenorrhœa, 473  
 Northrup, scurvy in infants, 469  
 Nové-Jussieraud, hydatidiform mole, malignant disease of decidua, 445  
 Nuck, hydrocele of the canal of, 37  
 Nuclei of anthrax spores, 410  
 Nucleo-albuminuria, 435

## O.

Obesity, electrical treatment of, 368  
 Obolenski, syphilitic neuralgia, 335  
 Obstruction, intestinal, due to gall stones, 257  
 Ocular. *See* Eye  
 Oedema, hysterical, 28; which accompanies passive congestion, the pathology of, 332; neonatorum, 353  
 Oeder, salol coating for pills, 405  
 Oefelein, europen, 185  
 Oesophagus, cicatricial narrowing of, 419  
 Ohmjelewski, chloralose, 203  
 Olive oil, action of on disinfectants, 267  
 Olivier, hæmophilia, menstruation, and operation, 499  
 Omentum, cancer of the, 200  
 Omphalectomy, 87  
 Ophthalmia, gonorrhœal, treatment of, 9; in newborn child, 422  
 Oppenheim, chronic progressive hereditary chorea, 145  
 Orloff, the curette in bleeding fibroids, 515  
 Orlovsky, sulphuretted hydrogen as a bacterial product, 142  
 Ortho-chlorophenol in tuberculous and other diseases, 520  
 Orrillard, ovarian cysts, import of ascites as a complication, 111  
 Osler, rachialgia after typhoid fever, 103; treatment of typhoid fever, 503  
 Osteomyelitis, acute, 6; acute vertebral, 29; early operation in, 455  
 Ostermann, saline infections in acute anæmia, 19  
 Ott, fecal concretions in the large intestine, 508  
 Oul, albuminuria of pregnancy fatal to fetus, 38  
 Ovaries, effect of removal of on uterine tissue, 459  
 Ovariectomy, obstruction of intestine after, 174; during pregnancy, 219, 477; after childbed, 240; pregnancy, childbed, 443; cancer after, 461  
 Ovary, cancer of the in a child, 380; tumour of in infancy, 423  
 Overlach, migranine, 137  
 Oxaluria, 434

## P.

Pässler, lead poisoning, 254  
 Paget's disease. *See* Disease  
 Palsy, wasting, trophic disturbances in, 417  
 Panas, prevention of the infection of the wound after cataract operations, 150  
 Pancreas, cyst of, 51; abscess of the, operation for, 108; action of strychnine on, 284  
 Panecki, electricity in amenorrhœa, 299  
 Pantomime disorders of in aphasias, 294  
 Paquy, cancer complicating pregnancy, 14; puerperal convulsions and true epilepsy, 383  
 Para-chlorophenol in tuberculous and other diseases, 520  
 Paralysis, general, of the insane, the temperature in, 2; recurrent of the third pair of nerves, 7; general, the relation of syphilis to, 48; Brown-Séquard's, 81; acute ascending, 451  
 Parasites, living, occurrence of in the blood and cancerous cells in cases of carcinoma, 432  
 Paratyphilitis, 270  
 Patella, congenital luxation of the, 147

Paviot, malignant deciduoma, cancer following abortion or childbed, 480  
Pel, cerebral tumour without headache, optic neuritis, 189  
Pelvis, or lower extremities, presentations of and the etiology of torticollis, 90; narrow, symphysiotomy and, 151  
Pembrey, systemic effects of severe hæmorrhage, 167  
Pental, 134  
Peptonuria, in the insane, 313; produced by medicinal substances, 385  
Peroxide of hydrogen in stomatitis, 115  
Pertussis, microbes in the sputum of, 187  
Peterson, the temperature in general paralysis of the insane, 2; the relation of syphilis to general paralysis, 48  
Petit, tuberculous vegetative endocarditis, 83  
Petroleum in diphtheria, 116  
Pfannenstiel, cancer after ovariectomy, 461  
Phenocol, therapeutic value of, 407  
Phenol, poisoning by, 244  
Phillip, pental, 134  
Phlegmon, subcutaneous, mechanical treatment of, 492  
Phosphates, elimination of in the urine in malarial fever, 437  
Phosphorus poisoning, experimental, degeneration of the cord in, 228  
Phthisis, salol in, 94; polyuria in, 452  
Piccinini, peptonuria produced by medicinal substances, 385  
Pichler, nucleo-albuminuria, 435  
Pick, fibroid uterus and cancer of the omentum, 200  
Piqué, suppurating tube, subperitoneal laparotomy, fistula, 321  
Pigmentation of the epidermis, 412  
Pilate, digitalis in the treatment of chilblains, 158  
Pilliet, the placenta in uterine and tubal abortion, 345  
Pills, salol coating for, 405  
Pilocarpin, dangers of subcutaneous injections of, 18; in facial erysipelas, 408  
Pinard, symphysiotomy and narrow pelvis, 151; alleged primary abdominal pregnancy, 338  
Piperazin in diabetes, 263  
Pituitary body, functions of the, 504  
Placenta, prævia, notes on, 54; twelve cases of, 92; turning in, death from air in veins, 261; the, in uterine and tubal abortion, 345; air in the veins in cases of, 463; adherent, 496  
Plaster jacket, the, 398  
Plate cultivations of anaërobic bacteria, 188  
Pneumonia, transitory aphasia in, 26; croupous, in infants, the diagnosis of, 85; fatal, in infant from septic infection during birth, 514  
Pneumomycosis aspergillana, 212  
Poehl, spermin, 181  
Poisoning by carbolic acid, 3; by lysol and phenol, 244; by sulphonal, 396; injection of saline solution in, 327; by benzene, 395  
Poitou-Duplessy, adherent placenta, 496  
Polyuria in phthisis, 452  
Poncet, cancer of the testicle, 275  
Pond, Thiersch's skin grafting in cases of avulsion of the scalp, 50  
Pooley, hydrochlorate of scopolamine as a mydriatic, 305  
Popoff, the subcutaneous injection of arsenic, 98  
Post, pigmentation of the epidermis, 412  
Potocki, drawing down foot in breech presentations, 73  
Prager, asphyxia neonatorum, Schultze's method of inducing respiration, 404  
Prautois, trophic disturbances in wasting palsy, 417  
Pregnancy and valvular disease, 11; acute leukæmia in, 13; cancer complicating, 14; albuminuria of fatal to fetus, 38; typhoid fever in, 55; endometritis in, 71; and hepatic abscess, 75; early, the bimanual signs of, 93; and ovarian cystoma, 110; disorders of after abdominal section, 131; in a uterine cornu, 152; alleged ovarian, recovery after operation, 197; ovariectomy during, 219, 477; alleged primary abdominal, 238; after ventrifixation, 320; acute infection in simulating acute yellow atrophy, 363; tetany in, relation of to mollities ossium, 441; and heart disease, 498  
Prioleau, puerperalism and pre-existing microbism, 130  
Protoids of the thyroid and spleen, 485  
Protozoa, demonstration of in drinking water, 164  
Prurigo, massage in, 204  
Pruritus ani, chlorinated lime in, 329  
Pryce, D., diabetic neuritis, 214  
Psoriasis, gallanol in, 63; thyroïdin in, 226

Puberty in cold countries, 517  
Puerperalism and pre-existing microbism, 130  
Pulmonary. See Lungs  
Pulsation, splenic, in Graves's disease, 315  
Purpura in relation to intussusception, 8  
Putnam, thyroidectomy in Graves's disease, 218  
Pyæmia, secondary to ear disease without sinus thrombosis, 296  
Pylorus, gastro-enterostomy in cicatricial narrowing of the, 108  
Pyoktannin, in diphtheria, 16; in cutaneous tuberculosis, 245

## Q.

Quénu, trephining in gunshot wounds of the cranium, 374  
Quinine in malaria, 95

## R.

Rabies, the morbid anatomy of, 390  
Rachialgia after typhoid fever, 103  
Radii, infants with absence of both, 201  
Ranshoff, extirpation of aneurysms, 128  
Raynaud, spontaneous fracture of ribs in a syphilitic subject, 52  
Recht, micturition in childbed, the catheter, 462  
Rectus, objections to hysterectomy for prolapse, 304  
Reineking, surgery of the trifacial nerve, 376  
Remesoff, treatment of tetanus by the serum of immunised animals, 224  
Rem-Picci, elimination of phosphates in the urine in malarial fever, 437  
Rémy, dangers of subcutaneous injections of pilocarpin, 18  
Rendu, electropathy and development of tumours, 402  
Resorbin, a new excipient, 202  
Respiration, effect of faradic excitation of the cerebrum in, 269; Schultze method of inducing in asphyxia neonatorum, 404  
Restiform body, tumour of the, 121  
Reviolod, treatment of membranous colitis, 22  
Rheumatism, hot sand baths in, 61; chronic, electricity, 77; muscular, 104  
Rhinitis, acute, in infants, 66  
Ribs, spontaneous fracture of in a syphilitic subject, 52  
Richelot, radical cure of prolapsus uteri, 72  
Riegel, megalo-gastritis and gastrectasis, 373  
Riegner, Thiersch's skin grafting in cases of avulsion of the scalp, 50  
Robb, H., anaesthesia in pelvic gynaecology, 280  
Roberts, laminectomy for spinal fracture, 297  
Robin, polyuria in phthisis, 452  
Rochet, osteoplastic operation for spina bifida, 472  
Rodionoff, walnut leaves in scrofula, 350  
Roesser, development of human uterus, 476  
Romano, the relation of the density of the blood to various morphological conditions, 146  
Rosenbach, care of the mouth in sick persons, 427  
Rosenheim, some new methods of treating diseases of the stomach and intestine, 465  
Rosenthal, poisoning by benzene, 395  
Royer, cerebellar sclerosis, 47  
Rudneff, lysol in dysentery, 163; thiol in erysipelas, 521  
Rueder, placenta prævia, 92  
Rummo, immunity to infections produced by establishment of tolerance to certain drugs, 183  
Rushmore, appendicitis, 513  
Rychlinski, trional, 328  
Rydygier, several abdominal operations on the same patient, 336

## S.

Sabolotny, immunisation against the cholera bacillus, 391  
Sacchi, toxicity of scalded or burnt tissues, 310; functions of the pituitary body, 504  
Sakharoff, researches on the hæmatozoa of birds, 248  
Saline infections in acute anæmia, 19; intravenous in Asiatic cholera, 40; in poisoning, 327  
Salinger, pilocarpin in fetal erysipelas, 408  
Saliva, the, and some bacteria, 433  
Salol in phthisis, 94; coating of for pills, 405  
Salophen, 182  
Salt. See Saline  
Salzer, ocular troubles in paralytic vertigo (Gerlier's disease), 213  
Sanarelli, destruction of anthrax virus under the skin of susceptible animals, 210  
Sand, hot baths of in rheumatism, 61  
Saprol, 184  
Sarcoma, primary, of the suprarenal body, 400

Scalp, Thiersch's skin grafting in cases of avulsion of the, 50  
Scarlet fever. See Fever  
Scharf, electrical treatment of epididymitis, 286  
Scheurle, saprol, 184  
Schild, use of formalin in the diagnosis of the typhoid bacillus, 100  
Schliep, vinegar for the removal of fish bones from the larynx, 266  
Schlosser, urine agar in the cultivation of the diphtheria bacillus, 81  
Schmidt, J., thioform, 466  
Schnitzler, Thiersch's method of skin transplantation, 236; renewed virulence of staphylococci after a long period of latency, 392  
Schon, congenital luxation of the patella, 147  
Schultze, hæmatoporphyria in after trional, 285; urethral incontinence of urine, 401; the method of for inducing respiration in asphyxia neonatorum, 404  
Schütz, melæna neonatorum, 239  
Schwabach, pyæmia secondary to ear disease without septic thrombosis, 296  
Sclerosis, cerebellar, 47  
Scopolamine, hydrochlorate of as a mydriatic, 305; effect of on the eye, 388  
Scrofula, walnut leaves in, 350  
Sée, G., muco-enteritis in uterine disease, 497  
Semet, edema neonatorum, 353  
Senator, cirrhosis of the liver, 65  
Sandler, resection of the cæcum, 69  
Senn, present state of enterorrhaphy, 68  
Sepsis, examination of the blood in, 25  
Septicæmia, puerperal, after death of fetus, protracted sequela, 362  
Serum of immunised animals, treatment of tetanus by, 224; antirabic of high immunising power applicable to man, 241; treatment of diphtheria by, 265; blood, nature of the germicidal constituent of, 467; antitoxic, tetanus, treated by, 480  
Sestini, treatment of anthrax in man, 246  
Severi, the ultimate fate of arsenious acid in the animal organism, 41  
Sheep's brain extract, the action of on adults and children, 96  
Shelly, eucalyptus inunction in measles, 287  
Shoulder, fetal, lymphangioma of interfering with delivery, 237  
Shurley, injection of chlorine gas in pulmonary cavities, 62  
Sieur, surgical treatment of rupture of the bladder, 217  
Sigmoid thrombosis of aural origin, 172  
Simanofski, ortho- and para-chlorophenol in tuberculous and other diseases, 520  
Simon, J., treatment of infantile convulsions, 447  
Sinus, lateral, operative treatment of thrombosis of, 359  
Skene, senile endometritis, 378  
Skin, absorption of guaiacol by, 135; introduction of drugs through the by electricity, 387  
— grafting, Thiersch's in cases of avulsion of the scalp, 50; Thiersch's method of transplantation of, 236  
Small-pox, exclusion of daylight in the treatment of, 138  
Smoking, effect of on muscular work, 372  
Snow, L., treatment of gastric neuritis in childhood, 78  
Sobernheim, experiments as to cholera immunity, 64  
Solar. See Sun  
Solman, resection for pyloric carcinoma, 233  
Solvieff, pregnancy and heart disease, 498  
Sozoiolod in aural and rhinological practice, 501  
Speech and hearing, acoustic exercises for the improvement of, 406  
Spencer, effect of faradic excitation of the cerebrum on respiration, 269  
Spermin, 181  
Spina bifida, osteoplastic operation for, 472  
Spine, trephining in caries of, 125; laminectomy for fracture of, 297, 399  
Spirilla, demonstration of in drinking water, 164  
Spleen, solitary hydatid cyst of the, 256; abscess of the, 295; protoids of, 485  
Sputum, of pertussis, microbes in the, 187; new method of detecting the tubercle bacilli in, 331; examination of, 352  
Ssolontzen, hot sand baths in rheumatism, 61  
Staphylococci, renewed virulence of after a long period of latency, 392  
Steffen, the saliva and some bacteria, 433  
Stepp, treatment of chronic gastric ulcer, 79  
Stern, sulphonal poisoning, 396  
Sternomastoid, treatment of torticollis by open incision of the, 298  
Stolzenburg, guaiacol, 161



Stomach, bismuth in disease of, 117; traumatic cyst of the wall of, 171; acute dilatation of the, 230; obstruction in Cæsarean section overcome by washing out the, 343; some new methods of treating diseases of the, 465  
Stomatitis, peroxide of hydrogen in, 115; gonorrhoeal in newborn child, 422  
Stools, mucous, in newborn children, 123  
Strauss, mixed infection in pulmonary tuberculosis, 523  
Streptococci, infection by, 268  
Strychnine as an antidote in chloroform poisoning, 242; action of on the pancreas, 284  
Stüblen, meningitis complicating enteric fever, 416  
Stump, treatment of in hysterectomy for fibroids, 425  
Sublimate solution, intravenous injection of, 283  
Subluxation of the vertebral column, 420  
Sugar, value of on muscular work, 372  
Sulphonal poisoning, 306  
Sulphuretted hydrogen as a bacterial product, 142  
Sun, disinfection by the rays of the, 351  
Suprarenal body, primary sarcoma of the, 400  
Suprarenals and kidney, tumours of, 409  
Surgery of the trifacial nerve, 376  
Symphysiotomy and narrow pelvis, 151; an objection to, on mechanical grounds, 516  
Syphilis, the relation of to general paralysis, 48; and disease of the spinal cord, 49; cardiac and angina pectoris, 312

## T.

Tachycardia in pulmonary tuberculosis, 231  
Tapping the lateral ventricles, 511  
Tarnier, endometritis in pregnancy, 71; labour and heart disease, 112; treatment of eclampsia, 153; uterus septus, six pregnancies, 340; swallowing meconium, pneumonia and erysipelas in the newborn, 364; fracture of fetal bones during delivery, 379  
Teichmann sozoiolol in aural and rhinological practice, 501  
Temperature, the, in general paralysis of the insane, 2; high, after labour, 132; surface, studies in, 192  
Testicle, strangulation of, 493  
Testicles, influence of juice of on anthrax infection, 209; cancer of the, 275  
Tetanus, the poison of, 101; treatment of by the serum of immunised animals, 224; complicating vaccinia, 334; treated by antitoxic serum, 480; vaccination of the horse against, 500  
Tetany in pregnancy, relation of to mollities ossium, 441  
Teucrium in cold abscesses, 180  
Theilhaber, gastro-intestinal disturbances in diseases of women, 10  
Theobromine in mitral disease, 162  
Therapeutics, infantile, 519  
Therig, paratyphitis, 270  
Thermoidin, 60  
Thiersch's skin grafting in cases of avulsion of the scalp, 50; method of skin transplantation, 236  
Thioform, 466  
Thiol in erysipelas, 521  
Thionin as a stain for amyloid material, 290  
Thomson, ergot in migraine, 348  
Thorax, moisture to the in diseases of the respiratory tract, 307  
Thorn, uterine calculus and uterine cancer, 56; inoculation and contact infection in uterine cancer, 258  
Thrombosis of the lateral sinus, operative treatment of, 359  
Thymus, influence of juice of on anthrax infection, 209; enlargement of the, 291  
Thyroid gland, notes on, 393; proteids of, 485; in myxoedema, 607  
Thyroidectomy in Graves's disease, 218  
Thyroidin in psoriasis, 226  
Tietze, cicatricial narrowing of oesophagus, 419  
Tiffany, L., intracranial neurectomy, 86  
Tillaux, chronic metritis of the cervix, 129  
Tissier, acute rhinitis in infants, 66  
Tissue extracts, treatment by, 426  
Tissues scalded or burnt, toxicity of, 310  
Tizzoni, antirabic serum of high immunising power applicable to man, 241; vaccination of the horse against tetanus, 500  
Tobacco, influence of upon the tubercle bacillus, 229  
Toms, tetanus complicating vaccinia, 334

Tonsils, treatment of tuberculosis of the, 358  
Topp, the therapeutic effect of hot baths, 309  
Torticollis, the etiology of and presentations of the pelvis and lower extremities, 90; treatment of by open incision of the sterno-mastoid, 298  
Toulouse, psychoses of lactation, 278  
Tournay, high temperature after labour, 132  
Townsend, placenta prævia, 54; hydræmion associated with abdominal distension in the foetus, 303  
Toxicity of scalded or burnt tissues, 310  
Tracheotomy, indications for, 439  
Transfusion, 481  
Trépan, should two ligatures be placed on the cord? 15  
Trephining, in spinal caries, 125; in gunshot wounds of the cranium, 374; for head injuries, 490  
Trichina spiralis, infection by, 484  
Tricomi, surgery of the liver, 473  
Trier, mechanical treatment of subcutaneous phlegmon, 492  
Trinkler, solitary hydatid cyst of the spleen, 256  
Trional, hæmatoporphyria after, 285; in sleeplessness, 328  
Truchot, effect of static electricity upon metabolism, 308  
Tschernoguboff, thyroidin in psoriasis, 226  
Tschmarke, ether anesthesia, 265  
Tube, Fallopian, primary tuberculous disease of the, 91; suppurating subperitoneal laparotomy, fistula, 321; malformation of the, 444  
Tubercle of the female bladder, excision of the mucous membrane in, 361  
Tubercle bacilli. See Bacilli  
Tuberculosis, acute, in childhood, 67; indicantia and, 166; of the cervix, 198; pulmonary, tachycardia in, 231; cutaneous, pyoktanin in, 245; induction of labour in, 300; articular, Bier's treatment of, 317; of the tonsils, treatment of, 358; pulmonary, mixed infection in, 523  
Tubes, distended, aspiration of, 341  
Tucker, Cæsarean section, obstruction overcome by washing out the stomach, 343  
Tuffier, acute uræmia in a case of uterine fibroid, 154  
Tuja, obstruction of intestine after ovariectomy, 174  
Tumour, cerebral, four cases of, 32; cavernous of the vulva, 58; of the restiform body, 121; cerebral, without headache or optic neuritis, 189; cerebellar in children, 394; ovarian in infancy, 423  
Tumours, electropathy and development of, 402; of kidney and suprarenals, 409  
Turgard, abdominal section or hysterectomy for chronic disease of appendages, 281  
Turnip as a substitute for decalcified bone in intestinal surgery, 148  
Tussau, treatment of tuberculosis of the tonsils, 358  
Twins, thoracopagus in sac in ectopic gestation, 282  
Typhoid fever. See Fever enteric

## U.

Uffelmann, the resistance of typhoid bacilli to drying and their transmission by air, 370  
Ulcer, chronic gastric, treatment of, 79  
Ulceration, tuberculous of the anus, 107  
Ullmann, mucous stools in newborn children, 123  
Uræmia, acute in a case of uterine fibroid, 154  
Ureter, anastomosis of, 277  
Urethra, female, stricture of the, 74; female, myoma of the, 199  
Urine, normal and pathological, effect of on the heart, 45; effect of mercurial treatment on, 346; urethral incontinence of, 401; elimination of phosphates in in malarial fever, 437  
— agar in the cultivation of the diphtheria bacillus, 81  
"Urobilinuria" significance of in obstetrics and gynecology, 221  
Uterus, malignant myoma of, 12; treatment of rupture of, 34; "calculus" and cancer of, 56; radical cure of prolapse of, 72; chronic metritis of the cervix of, 129; pregnancy in a cornu of, 152; acute uræmia in a case of uterine fibroid of, 154; gravid, myoma simulating retroflexion of, 155; sloughing of cervix of after labour, 156; foreign body in the, 175; tuberculosis of the cervix of, 198; fibroid,

200; inoculation and contact infection of cancer of, 258; abdominal section or hysterectomy for chronic disease of the appendages of, 281; objections to hysterectomy for prolapse of, 304; septus, six pregnancies, 340; in a labial hernia in a female hermaphrodite, 342; child crying in during version, 382; and appendages, amputation of for pelvic inflammation, 403; atony of the, 458; effect of removal of ovaries on tissues of, 459; human, development of, 476; cancerous, tuberculous disease of a, 495; muco-enteritis in disease of, 497

## V.

Vaccination of the horse against tetanus, 500  
Vaccinia, tetanus complicating, 334  
Vagina, a simple method of plugging the, 260; complete laceration of in labour, 262  
Valerianate of amyli, 206  
Vandervelde, effect of removal of ovaries on uterine tissue, 459  
Vassale, toxicity of scalded or burnt tissues, 310; functions of the pituitary body, 504  
Vaughan, nature of the germicidal constituent of blood serum, 467  
Vein, common femoral, treatment of wound of, 30  
Veins, air in the in cases of placenta prævia, 463  
Venom of naja haje, 46  
Ventricles, lateral, tapping the, 511  
Ventrifixation, pregnancy after, 320  
Vertebral column, subluxation of the, 420  
Vertigo, paralytic (Gerlier's disease), ocular troubles in, 213  
Vierhuff, purpura in relation to intussusception, 8  
Vinay, pregnancy and valvular disease, 11  
Vinegar, in chloroform sickness, 159; for the removal of fish bones from the larynx, 266  
Virus, diphtherial, propagation of, 354  
Vogt, nucleo-albuminuria, 435  
Vomiting, uncontrollable, induction of labour in, 300  
Vulva, cavernous tumour of the, 58; molluscum pendulum of, 114; kraurosis of, 322

## W.

Wagner, free hydrochloric acid in the gastric juice, 251  
Walnut leaves in scrofula, 350  
Walsh, abscess of the pancreas, operation, 108  
Warholm, vinegar in chloroform sickness, 159  
Washburn, strychnine as an antidote in chloroform poisoning, 242  
Water, drinking, demonstration of protozoa and spirilla in, 164  
Weber, spermin, 181  
Wegele, treatment of atonic gastric dilatation, 430  
Wehle, pregnancy in a uterine cornu, 152  
Weil's disease. See Disease  
Weiss, iodides in locomotor ataxy, 160  
Welandar, effect of mercurial treatment on the urine, 346  
Werner, early symptoms of mental disease, 471  
Wesener, preparation of a nutrient medium for bacteria from eggs, 289  
Wiggin, enterectomy for rupture of the ileum, 356  
Winternitz, changes in the blood in hydrotherapeutic treatment, 23  
Wirt, hernia in children, 357  
Witzel, the cause and prevention of neuralgia in amputation stumps, 512  
Wörner, influenza typhosa, 272  
Woerz, v., lymphangioma of foetal shoulder interfering with delivery, 287  
Women, gastro-intestinal disturbance in diseases of, 10; gonorrhoea in, 113  
Word blindness with right homonymous hemianopsia, 355; a case of, 509  
Wound, prevention of infection of after cataract operation, 150

## Z.

Zawadski, resection for pyloric carcinoma, 233; acute poisoning by creosote, 449  
Zedel, origin of tubo-ovarian cysts, 360  
Zeller, idiopathic gangrene, 191  
Zenenko, osteoplastic operation for spina bifida, 472  
Zenoni, examination of sputum, 352  
Ziegler, traumatic cyst of the stomach wall, 171  
Ziemssen, v., transfusion, 481

## ILLUSTRATIONS

	PAGE		PAGE
A Case of Perverted Localisation of Sensation or Allachæsthesia, Dr. T. Grainger Stewart (Four Figures) ...	2, 3	The Influence of the Arterioles in Relation to Various Pathological Conditions, Sir George Johnson (Two Figures) ...	842
A Case of Acromegaly, Dr. J. Dreschfeld ...	4	A case of "Filaria Disease" of the Lymphatics in which a number of Adult Filaria were removed from the Arm, Surgeon-Major J. Maitland and Dr. P. Manson (Three Figures) ...	845
Clinical Remarks on a Case of Sporadic Cretinism, Dr. Byrom Bramwell (Six Figures) ...	7, 8, 9, 10	Suprapubic Sounding for Calculus and Suprapubic Electric Cystoscopy, Mr. E. H. Fenwick (Two Figures) ...	860
Case of Bilateral Facial Paralysis Due to Injury by Forceps at Birth, Dr. F. H. Edgeworth (Two Figures) ...	11	An Operation for the Cure of Cleft of the Hard and Soft Palate, Mr. N. Davies-Colley (Three Figures) ...	913, 914
Myxodema Treated with Thyroid Tabloids, Mr. T. F. Raven (Two Figures) ...	12	Folding Chloroform Inhaler, Mr. W. H. S. Fosbery ...	919
Case of Aneurysm of the Aorta and Innominate Artery; Simultaneous Ligation of Carotid and Subclavian Arteries, Dr. J. Ward Cousins (Three Figures) ...	14, 15	Binaural Stethoscope for Auscultatory Percussion, Dr. T. O'Kelly ...	919
Motor Aphasia without Hemiplegia, Dr. H. Waldo ...	16	Improved Form of Arran's Tube for Vaginal Lavement, Dr. A. Duke ...	919
Myxodema Treated with Thyroid Tabloids, Mr. West (Two Figures) ...	19	Ossification of the Synovial Membrane of the Left Knee-joint in a Young Man, Dr. J. Griffiths and Mr. R. A. Milligan (Three Figures) ...	957, 958
An Improved Stretcher for Hospital, Military, and Ambulance Use Osteoma of the Superior Maxilla; Epithelioma of the Tongue, Mr. H. T. Dreschfeld (Two Figures) ...	24	A Simple Means of Preventing the Entrance of Blood into the Trachea during Operations about the Mouth, Dr. J. Murphy ...	964
Virol (Three Figures) ...	61	A Self-retaining Aural Speculum, Mr. W. R. Stewart ...	973
Improved Sulphur Fumigating Candles (Two Figures) ...	71	Rectal Ointment Introducer, Mr. E. C. Ryall ...	973
A Masticator ...	72	A New Pocket Hypodermic Case, Mr. P. Q. Karkeek ...	973
The Jenner Relics (Whole Page Illustration) ...	73	Comb for the Ova of Pediculi, Dr. G. B. Batten ...	973
The New Fever Hospital at Tooting ...	77	Preliminary Report on the Suprarenal Gland and the Causation of Addison's Disease, Dr. A. G. Auld (Two Figures) ...	1017, 1018
Senkitan or "Thousand Gold Medicine" ...	78	A Case of Congenital Hydrocele of the Neck cured by Drainage and Compression, Mr. G. Dickinson ...	1018
A Contribution to the Technique of the "Cold Bath Treatment" in Typhoid Fever, Dr. G. C. Stephen ...	127	Intra- and Extrauterine Fœtation at Full Term; Cæsarean Section (Porro), Mr. G. C. Franklin ...	1019
Enteric Fever in the Tees Valley (Two Illustrations) ...	135, 136	An Aseptic Portable Hypodermic Case, Mr. J. W. Walker ...	1031
Mediastinal Tumours, Dr. T. McCall Anderson ...	174	Needles for Cleft Palate, Mr. Fitzgerald ...	1031
Paralysis of the Serratus Magnus and Dislocation of the Scapula, Mr. J. E. Moorhouse ...	184	The Cambridge Bedstead ...	1031
Bony Overgrowths or Exostoses in the West Indian Negro, Mr. H. Strachan (Two Figures) ...	189	A Case of Subclavian Aneurysm, Mr. C. A. Morton ...	1072
The Frena Camera ...	196	On the Mode of Performing the Operation of Ventrofixation of the Uterus or Hysteropexy in Cases of Intractable Retroflexion, Dr. J. Braithwaite ...	1073
Private Nurses' Holdall ...	196	Needle for Ligaturing the Broad Ligaments in Vaginal Hysterectomy, Mr. F. B. Jessett ...	1085
Cooking and Heating by Gas (Five Figures) ...	213, 252	The Pulsimeter Watch ...	1132
Subphrenic Pneumothorax, Dr. W. L. Dickinson ...	233	Acute Disseminated Myelitis, Dr. J. Dreschfeld (Coloured Plates, etc.) ...	Between 1174 and 1175
A Note on Certain Improvements in the Method of Determining the Condition of Blood Coagulability for Clinical and Experimental Uses, Dr. A. E. Wright (Three Figures) ...	238	Case of Sporadic Cretinism treated with Thyroid Gland, Dr. Telford Smith (Two Figures) ...	1178, 1179
Large Intra-abdominal Abscess from a Foreign Body which had perforated the Bowel, Mr. C. A. Morton ...	241	A Case of Universal Dermatitis, probably a Rare Variety of Mycosis Fungoides, Mr. M. Morris (Coloured Illustrations) ...	Between 1182 and 1183
An Ear Syringe Guard, Professor Lund ...	248	Note on an Injury caused by the Lee-Metford Bullet, Brigade-Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel W. F. Stevenson ...	1185
Acute Yellow Atrophy of the Liver, Drs. A. McPhedran and A. B. Macallum (Ten Figures) ...	294, 295, 296	Elephantiasis Arabum in the South Sea Islands, Dr. P. Manson ...	1186
A Gynecologist's Cervical Plug, Dr. A. Duke ...	305	Retention of a Gum Elastic Bougie for more than Eleven Months in the Uterus, Dr. A. Sykes-Ward ...	1187
Portrait of Dr. Th. Billroth ...	335	Osteoporosis of the Cranial Vault, Mr. G. Wherry ...	1188
Darwinism and Race Progress, Dr. J. B. Hayscraft (Two Figures) ...	349	Abdominal Sarcoma infiltrating the Abdominal Wall, Dr. J. Ward Cousins ...	1189
A Method for Obtaining Hæmin Crystals from Blood Stains mixed with Rust, Mr. J. Becker ...	351	Cases of Bearded Women, Mr. L. Harris-Liston (Four Figures) ...	1190, 1191
A Case of Gastric Ulcer, Messrs. G. F. Webb and C. N. Lovely ...	352	Students' Microscopes ...	1196
Bullet-extracting Forceps ...	357	The Treatment of Bleeding and other Uterine Fibroids by Removal of the Appendages, Mr. A. Doran (Four Figures) ...	1234, 1235
The Nurseries of Cholera, Mr. E. Hart (Five Illustrations) ...	359, 362, 416, 417, 419	A Case of Pemphigus Foliaceus, Mr. C. F. Cuthbert (Two Figures) ...	1233
The Action of Antiseptics on the Influenza Bacillus ...	375	Multiple Insular Necrosis of Skin and Subjacent Tissues, Dr. H. S. Renshaw (Three Figures) ...	1239
Case of Tumour of the Spinal Dura Mater, Dr. W. B. Ransom and Mr. J. Thompson (Three Figures) ...	395, 396	Laparotomy by Compound Incision, Mr. W. Fearnley ...	1241
Changes in the Posterior Columns of the Spinal Cord in Diabetes Mellitus, Dr. R. T. Williamson (Six Figures) ...	398, 399	Removal of Tumour from Lower Jaw, Dr. W. J. Branch (Two Figures) ...	1243
A Pseudo-hypertrophic Family, Dr. F. C. Coley (Four Figures) ...	399, 400	Pneumatic Cycle Saddles ...	1249
Right Brachial Monoplegia and Perverted Sensations due to Traumatic Ablation of the Arm-area in the Left Cortex Cerebri, Mr. J. L. Thomas (Three Figures) ...	401, 402	A Pipe Inhaler, Dr. C. Forbes ...	1249
Vesico- and Recto-Vaginal Fistulae, Dr. A. H. Ferguson (Five Figures) ...	406, 407	An Improvement in Gas Stoves ...	1250
Trephining for Traumatic Epilepsy, Dr. Caroline ...	409	Eight Hundred and Fifty Two Operations for Stone in the Bladder, Surgeon-Major P. J. Freyer (Three Figures) ...	1295
The Forcible Feeding of the Insane, Dr. W. W. Herbert ...	462	The Position of a Human Body Burnt but not Completely Destroyed by Fire, Mr. J. Becker ...	1298
Celluloid Facepieces and Masks (Two Figures) ...	471, 472	Removal of Uterus, Ovaries, and Fallopian Tubes: Recovery, Dr. E. Malins, (Two Figures) ...	1298, 1299
Heart Inflammation in Children, Dr. O. Sturges (Fifteen Figures) ...	509, 510, 561, 562, 563, 564	A Case of Congenital Rickets, Dr. T. C. Rallton ...	1299
A Case of Encephalocele: Removal: Hydrocephalus: Death, Dr. W. Mackie ...	511	Removal of an Exostosis of the Auditory Meatus by Combined Drilling and Traction, Mr. T. M. Hovell ...	1302
Large Fibrolipoma, Mr. T. L. Brander ...	574	Nasal Ointment Syringe, Dr. Whistler ...	1310
Epithelioma of the Left Vocal Cord Removed by Laryngotomy, Dr. Walker Downie ...	576	A Tonsillotomy, Mr. Stanley Boyd ...	1311
The Nearest African Health Resort, Mr. E. Hart (Seventeen Figures) ...	584, 585, 586, 587, 588, 589, 590, 591, 597, 598, 599, 610, 611	A Case of Virchow's Psammoma of the Pituitary Body, with Remarks as to the Functions of that Structure, Mr. W. L. Woolcombe (Two Figures) ...	1352
Case of Psoriasis treated by Thyroid Extract, Dr. B. Bramwell (Seven Figures) ...	618, 619, 620, 621	Compound Depressed Fracture of Frontal Bone, Wounds of Urethra and Scrotum, Recovery, Dr. J. M. Atkinson ...	1359
Appendicular Colic, Mr. T. R. Jessop. Coloured Plate. Between 628 and 629	628, 629	A New Vaccinator, Dr. T. W. A. Napier ...	1366
A Vertical Footpiece in Hip-joint Disease treated by Extension (Weight and Pulley), Mr. E. E. Dyer ...	633	A New, Cheap, and Effective Basin for Mounting and Embedding in Plaster-of-paris Specimen Dissections of the Human Body (Mr. E. Fawcett (Three Figures) ...	1366
A Universal Tray ...	639	An Axis Tractor, Mr. J. F. Le Page ...	1387
Invalid Chair Bedstead, Mr. W. D. Eddowes ...	639	The Surgery of the Spinal Cord and its Appendages, Dr. A. Thorburn ...	1401
Injuries to the Epiphyses and their Results, Mr. J. Hutchinson, jun. (Four Figures) ...	670, 671	A New Departure in Diabetes, Dr. F. W. Favy (Two Figures) ...	1406
Amœbic Abscess of the Liver, Drs. P. Manson and J. Galloway ...	676	Remarks on Cirrhosis of the Liver, with special reference to its Occurrence in Children, Dr. J. Mitchell Clarke (Seven Figures) ...	1410, 1411, 1412
Officers and Readers of Addresses at the Eleventh International Medical Congress ...	Between 696 and 697	A Urinary Saccharometer, Mr. T. Carwardine ...	1418
Friezes in the Policlinico Umberto I ...	714		
The Policlinico Umberto I ...	751		
New Method of Dilating the Female Urethra, Dr. J. Ward Cousins ...	754		
A Simple Gag, Dr. H. A. Smith ...	806		
An Improved Gas and Ether Inhaler, Mr. S. Rumboll ...	806		
Two Cases of Lupus treated by Thyroid Extract, Dr. B. Bramwell ...	Between 812 and 813		

nuclei of the cells, and in this way a very beautiful differential coloration is obtained.

When vaccinia is inoculated on the skin, these parasitic bodies occur in the stratum of Malpighi, and after a few days are found at the edge of the pustule only, though they are probably present in the interior of the pustule also. Owing to the number of leucocytes and degenerated epithelium cells which obscure the picture in that situation, they are extremely difficult to recognise with certainty, whereas they stand out with extreme clearness in the protoplasm of the cell. The epithelium cells in their neighbourhood not only undergo marked degenerative changes, but also invade the connective tissue below, the whole picture greatly resembling some of the early stages of cancer. The epithelium cells, moreover, present certain inflammatory alterations which are identical with those already described by others and ourselves in cancer. One may see, for instance, all the cell inclusions, vacuolisations, etc., so often present in cancer, and which have been erroneously described as parasites by so many observers. And it may be added that appearances similar to these may be experimentally produced in epithelium cells without the intervention of any living micro-organism whatever.

We have found the same organisms in sections of skin of small-pox patients and in the pustules of the larynx and trachea. Owing to want of material, however, we have not studied them in the fresh epithelium cells of such patients, as this will require a stay in a small-pox hospital. In both diseases the leucocytes may be seen to penetrate into the epithelium cells and to take these parasitic bodies into their interior.

No conclusion can be drawn from our observations at present, and we simply wish to draw attention to the fact that in all cases of vaccinia and variola in man and in three distinct species of animals, the same parasite is met with in all; and that it differs in many particulars from the parasite of cancer.

## MEMORANDA:

### MEDICAL, SURGICAL, OBSTETRICAL, THERAPEUTICAL, PATHOLOGICAL, Etc.

#### RHEUMATIC PERITYPHLITIS AND GOUT OF THE INTESTINES.

I SHOULD like to point out, with reference to Dr. Burney Yeo's very interesting case of rheumatic perityphlitis,<sup>1</sup> that I have recorded several very similar cases under the name of gout of the intestines,<sup>2</sup> and have drawn special attention to the fact that they at once clear up under salicylate of soda. Further, my experience differs very greatly from that of the authors quoted by Dr. Yeo, as it has led me to believe that gouty perityphlitis is extremely common, or, in other words, that nearly all perityphlitis owns this origin, and that if all cases were at once treated by salicylates further troubles requiring surgical procedures would be rare.

Since I first wrote on the subject I have heard from many people of similar cases, and have seen several more myself. I have also recorded in my book a case in which salicylates cured completely in a few days a peritonitis which had been under other treatment for months with the only result that a morphine habit was added.

I have also extended the same reasoning to explain inflammations of other fibrous structures in the abdomen and pelvis, as well as to lead colic and other forms of colic, all of which react in the same way to salicylates; and in a case of pelvic cellulitis, recently under the care of one of my colleagues at the Royal Hospital for Children and Women, salicylates produced a change in the temperature chart almost identical with that in Dr. Yeo's case.

Brook Street, W.

ALEXANDER HAIG.

<sup>1</sup> BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL, June 16th.

<sup>2</sup> Practitioner, January, 1893; and Uric Acid, 2nd Edition, 1894.

A PASTEUR Institute was opened at Tunis on June 19th, by Dr. Loir, a nephew of M. Pasteur.

#### AN OVARIAN TUMOUR GROWING WITH GREAT RAPIDITY.

It is well known that tumours of the ovary sometimes grow with great rapidity, but it is seldom that increase is so rapid as was the case in a patient seen with Dr. Simpson at Tunbridge Wells on February 10th. The patient was aged 54, and, although she had not been in good health for about a year, she had noticed that the abdomen was enlarging for only two or three months. Dr. Simpson was sent for partly on account of the swelling, but principally because there was great discomfort and abdominal pain. An ovarian tumour was diagnosed, and a few days afterwards I saw the case in consultation. On that day the tumour, composed chiefly of a single cyst, extended into the abdomen to within 1 inch of the umbilicus. On vaginal examination the uterus was found to be fairly movable and in its normal position, the tumour being felt posteriorly.

The operation was performed as soon as it was convenient to the patient, on February 25th, fifteen days after the examination. Instead of barely reaching to the umbilicus, the tumour now filled the abdomen, raising the ribs on both sides. After separating parietal adhesions from the whole of the anterior surface and emptying the large cyst with the trocar, it was found that the right broad ligament was extensively opened up, and that the uterus had been drawn entirely out of the pelvis, being closely incorporated with the left side of the tumour. The enucleation was easily and rapidly effected, and a drainage tube was left in. Convalescence could not have been more easy, and Dr. Simpson removed the drainage tube at the end of forty-eight hours. The tumour weighed with its contents 27 lbs. If 5 lbs. be deducted—and this is a liberal allowance for the tumour as first seen—we find that the increase in fifteen days was 22 lbs., or almost 1½ lb. a-day.

Charles Street, W.

GEORGE E. KEITH, M.B., C.M. Edin.

#### SEPTIC CATHETERS.

As is well known, one of the troubles after all abdominal sections used to be the occurrence of acute suppurative inflammation of the bladder in cases where the catheter had to be employed. I have seen it so bad as to be nearly fatal.

It occurs so rarely now that it may be said to be banished, and the simple method of success has been to use catheters with no receptacle beyond the eye, and to keep the catheter always under water save when in use. I also have the understanding on the part of all my nurses that this complication means culpable neglect on their part, and involves summary dismissal.

Birmingham.

LAWSON TAIT.

#### SCARLET RASH AFTER ENEMATA.

IN the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL of June 2nd Dr. Suckling draws attention to the importance of excluding the possibility of a rash resembling scarlet fever being due to an aperient enema. I think this rash is often met with, not only after an enema, but after a brisk aperient has been given by the mouth in cases of chronic constipation, and also in the later stages of acute intestinal catarrh when peristalsis of the paralysed gut is again established. In all these cases indican is present in the urine, and may be separated from it in the form of indigo by Jaffé's method, that is, by adding an equal quantity of strong hydrochloric acid (free from chlorine) to the urine and then one drop of a solution of chlorinated lime.

Many theories have been advanced as to the signification of indican in the urine, but apparently all we can at present take for granted is that it does point to some intestinal irritation being present and that the absorption of some faecal constituent is going on. I regard the presence of indican as a valuable aid in the diagnosis of these doubtful rashes. Indican is rarely present in early cases of scarlet fever, and then only when the patient has been previously troubled with intestinal irritation. Another important point is that there is rarely much itching during the onset of scarlet fever rash, but the eruption in these intestinal cases is attended with intense tingling and itching, even when its character is by no means urticarial.

South Eaton Place, S.W.

W. H. C. STAVELEY, F.R.C.S.

## PROCTER SELBY HUTCHINSON, M.R.C.S.

PROCTER SELBY HUTCHINSON, whose death occurred on June 26th, at Haslemere, was born on February 4th, 1863. He was the second son of Mr. Jonathan Hutchinson, and on his mother's side the grandson of the late William West, F.R.S., of Leeds. He received his professional education at the London Hospital, and after taking his diplomas in 1884 held the post of house-surgeon there under Mr. Rivington. At the expiration of his term of office he made a year's voyage in charge of a patient, but in part also for the establishment of his own health. Having visited Australia, New Zealand, and the North American States, he returned much pleased with what he had seen but at the same time much more willing than previously to settle in practice at home. He accordingly devoted his attention to diseases of the throat, and was elected upon the staff of the Golden Square Hospital. Whilst thus engaged he wrote, in addition to several pathological papers published in the journals, a short *Manual for Students*. The latter was prepared at the request of Mr. Lewis, and formed one of his series.

He became a skilful operator on the throat and larynx, and success in practice seemed to be opening to him, when, possibly in connection with excess in hospital work, his health gave way. In the hope of restoration he abandoned his London prospects, and went out to the Western States of Canada. The first winter there was a success, and he gained considerably. Subsequently, however, whilst residing in Winnipeg, he again lost ground, and his wife's reports were such as to induce his father to beg him to return home. He reached England in the early spring of the present year, and until the last few weeks hopes were entertained that he was again on the way to recovery. The debility and emaciation which from the first had been his prominent symptoms again, however, returned, and about a fortnight ago he was obliged to take to his bed. His end came at last somewhat unexpectedly to his nurses, and probably to himself, for he had been working a spray inhaler with his own hand not five minutes before he peacefully ceased to breathe.

Procter Selby Hutchinson was a man of very considerable promise. He was proud of his profession and diligent in its cultivation. He was of a very affectionate disposition, and, although his retiring habits much narrowed his circle of friends, those who knew him loved him. He was skilful with both pen and pencil, and he possessed a fund of genial humour which made him a very pleasant companion. He bore his long illness and the disappointments it brought him with uncomplaining fortitude. He was thoughtful for others, but he had an aversion to all forms of waste, which was sometimes carried almost to excess. Those who knew him well will recognise a characteristic trait in the fact that almost the last words he spoke were half in joke to remonstrate with his nurse, who was about to light another candle, and tell her that she had but to draw the window curtains and she would see that the day had dawned. So in another sense it had for him, for within a few minutes the night which had fallen on his life was over.

DR. ALEXANDER WILSON, of Mid-Calder, who recently died of pneumonia, was born in the parish of Rayne, in Aberdeenshire, and educated at the Grammar School and University of Aberdeen. He took the degrees of M.B. and C.M. with the highest honours in 1871, and that of M.D. in 1888. For the last twenty-two years he practised in Mid-Calder and the surrounding district. His professional skill was recognised by an extensive circle of patients, and his integrity of character and kindness of heart made him respected and beloved by all with whom he was brought in contact.

WE regret to announce the death of Dr. GUNDELACH, assistant-physician to the Fondation Pereire, Paris, who has just fallen a victim to professional duty. In opening an abscess in a child he pricked his finger, and died within a few days of septicaemia. Dr. Gundelach, who was 42 years of age, was a pupil of Professor Terrier, in whose clinic he had made interesting researches. He was a strenuous worker and a practitioner devoted to his patients.

MR. E. J. WORTH, M.R.C.S.Eng., died at his residence at Millbrook, Cornwall, on June 21st, in his 60th year. The deceased had been ailing for some time, but continued his practice up to June 19th, when he suddenly became worse. He qualified as L.S.A. and M.R.C.S.Eng. in 1856, and had been in practice in Millbrook for nearly forty years.

DEATHS IN THE PROFESSION ABROAD.—Among the members of the medical profession in foreign countries who have recently passed away are Dr. Choupe, of the editorial staff of the *Bulletin Médical*, and well-known for his researches on curare, strychnine, and other poisons, aged 46; Dr. José Sanchez y Sanchez, of Madrid, one of the authors of the *Farmacopea-Formulario Universal* and *De Los Medicamentos Modernos*, aged 53; Dr. Plymmon S. Hayes, Professor of Electro-Therapeutics in the Chicago Policlinic, and author of several works on the subject which have been translated into German and French, aged 43; and Dr. John F. Monmonnier, formerly President of the Medical and Chirurgical Society of Maryland, and Professor of Physiology in the Washington University, Baltimore, aged 81.

## UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES.

## UNIVERSITY OF EDINBURGH.

A MEETING of the Edinburgh University Court was held last week, but there was no business of medical interest, save that the Court agreed to exercise the power conferred on them by Ordinance No. 18, Section 1, for graduation of women in medicine.

## SOCIETY OF APOTHECARIES OF LONDON.

The following gentlemen were appointed examiners, on Tuesday, June 19th, for the year 1894-95: J. C. Thorowgood, M.D.Lond., F.R.C.P.Lond.; F. Warner, M.D.Lond., F.R.C.P.Lond.; A. H. N. Lewers, M.D.Lond., M.R.C.P.Lond.; H. R. Crocker, M.D.Lond., F.R.C.P.Lond.; Sir H. R. Beever, Bart., M.D.Lond., M.R.C.P.Lond.; A. P. Luff, M.D.Lond., M.R.C.P.Lond.; T. V. Dickinson, M.D.Lond., L.R.C.P.Lond.; C. Y. Biss, M.D. Cantab., F.R.C.P.Lond.; A. J. Richardson, M.D.Cantab., M.R.C.P.Lond.; C. B. Lockwood, F.R.C.S.Eng.; F. G. Parsons, F.R.C.S.Eng.; P. T. B. Beale, F.R.C.S.Eng.; E. Cantley, M.D.Cantab., M.R.C.P.Lond.; H. F. Morley, D.Sc.Lond.; F. J. M. Page, B.Sc.Lond.; James Galloway, M.D.Aberd., M.R.C.P.Lond.; Harrington Sainsbury, M.D.Lond., F.R.C.P.Lond.; Andrew Clark, F.R.C.S.Eng.; W. A. Lane, F.R.C.S.Eng.; W. A. Frost, F.R.C.S.Eng.; A. T. Norton, F.R.C.S.Eng.; B. Pitts, F.R.C.S.Eng.; and B. Pollard, F.R.C.S.Eng.

PASS LIST, June, 1894. The following candidates passed in Surgery.—T. S. Biggs, Guy's Hospital; F. L. Blenkinsop, University College; M. S. Loewenthal, Wurzburg; C. A. Marrett, Charing Cross Hospital; J. P. Rennie, New York, Bellevue; and O. O. Williams, London Hospital. *Medicine, Forensic Medicine, and Midwifery*.—F. L. Blenkinsop, University College; E. Gill, St. Bartholomew's Hospital; R. H. Hayes, Guy's Hospital; M. S. Loewenthal, Wurzburg; M. H. C. Palmer, London Hospital; W. H. Richards, London Hospital; and O. O. Williams, London Hospital. *Medicine and Forensic Medicine*.—F. A. M. Flegg, St. Thomas's Hospital, and H. J. L. Wales, Guy's Hospital. *Medicine*.—E. A. Tudman, University College. *Forensic Medicine and Midwifery*.—H. Roberts, St. Mary's Hospital, and A. L. Saunders, St. Bartholomew's Hospital. *Forensic Medicine*.—F. H. Le G. Best, St. Bartholomew's Hospital; F. Clarke, St. Bartholomew's Hospital; G. G. B. Hein, St. Thomas's Hospital; and J. M. Ritchie, Birmingham. *Midwifery*.—E. B. Barber, London Hospital; W. D. Macdonald, Guy's Hospital; E. Ransome, Guy's Hospital; D. F. Roberts, Guy's Hospital; and A. P. Woolright, St. Bartholomew's Hospital. To Messrs. Blenkinsop, Clarke, Gill, Loewenthal, Marrett, Palmer, Rennie, Richards, and O. O. Williams was granted the diploma of the Society entitling them to practise Medicine, Surgery, and Midwifery.

## MEDICO-PARLIAMENTARY.

## HOUSE OF LORDS.

Precautions Against Cholera.—The EARL OF STRAFFORD said that last year, when there was a danger of cholera visiting the ports of this country, the President of the Local Government Board thought it advisable to secure the services of four experienced medical gentlemen to supplement the good work done by the permanent medical officer of the Local Government Board, Dr. Thorne Thorne, and, owing to the judicious manner in which these gentlemen applied themselves to the task, the danger of invasion was minimised and the threatened danger almost passed away. It was possible that Europe might again be visited by cholera this year, and, remembering the services previously rendered by the medical experts to whom he referred, he begged to ask whether the President of the Local Government Board had decided to retain the services for another year of the four temporary medical inspectors who were appointed in January, 1893, and whether the cholera survey of ports and inland districts successfully conducted during the past twelve months would be maintained for the present year.—Lord HAWKESBURY

formed of all outbreaks of anthrax under the order of 1892, and where the Infectious Diseases (Prevention) Act of 1890 has been adopted the health officer has the further duties, named in Section 4, as to milk supplies in relation to the public health. But apart from these, a health officer will doubtless find it his duty to have regard to any disease of the animal kingdom which can have reference to analogous disease in the human, and to this extent we should feel inclined to think that he had a real duty to perform, seeing that it is an essential portion of his office to keep himself informed of all matters threatening to affect injuriously the health of his district.

#### FEEs FOR PREMATURE CONFINEMENTS IN POOR-LAW PRACTICE.

F. S. writes: A district medical officer attends a woman on an order received from the relieving officer. She is six months' pregnant, has felt fetal movements, and is suffering from uterine hæmorrhage. After being attended for a fortnight labour sets in, and she is delivered of a dead child. Can the medical officer under these circumstances claim the fee which, under his contract with the guardians, he is allowed for attending midwifery cases?

“\* If our correspondent considers that this patient was delivered at a viable period of pregnancy, or, in other words, at a time when the child either was or might have been born alive, he is entitled to the usual midwifery fee. Delivery having taken place at or about the sixth month makes this a somewhat difficult question to decide, but as so much attendance was necessary in this case we consider the medical officer to be fairly entitled to the benefit of any doubt.

#### FEEs FOR FRACTURES.

H. E. F., a district medical officer, writes to say that, in obedience to an order given by an overseer, he attended a child with fractured arm, and on applying to the guardians for the usual fee of £1, he was informed by their clerk that they knew nothing of the case, it not having been reported to them by the overseer, and that he (the overseer) should be applied to for the fee. The medical officer referred this question to the Local Government Board, which, after very long delay, decided as follows: “That if the circumstances of the case were such as to justify the giving of the order, the guardians must pay the fee, in the same way as if the order had been given by the relieving officer.”

“\* It is very satisfactory to have this point, so often previously disputed, once more decided in favour of the medical officer. The guardians, since the decision of the Local Government Board, have paid the fee in question.

## INDIA AND THE COLONIES.

### INDIA.

The *Medical Reporter* of Calcutta states that the Bacteriological Laboratory at Muktesa, near Almorah, is making fair headway. Professor Lingard, the Government bacteriologist, and Mr. Bamber, the chemical assistant, are both there. The building is expected to cost rather under a lakh of rupees.

### VICTORIA.

HEALTH DEPARTMENT.—The Health Department has been abolished, and has been merged in the Chief Secretary's Department in order to reduce the expenditure of the State. The Board of Health will still (according to the *Australasian Medical Gazette*) be continued, as it is found to be a most useful body in carrying out sanitary reforms. Dr. Greswell, the medical officer of the Board, will act as its chairman in the place of Mr. Topp, who has been appointed principal Under-Secretary.

### NEW SOUTH WALES.

THE UNIVERSITY OF SYDNEY.—The number of graduates in medicine turned out by the University of Sydney since the foundation of its medical school to the end of 1893 was seventy-one. During the latter year 101 matriculated students, including five women, attended lectures in the medical school.

VACCINATION.—During 1893 the number of vaccinations performed in New South Wales was 2,214, of which 2,206 were successful. Of the total number, 838 were performed in Sydney and its suburbs and 1,368 in country districts. Vaccinations were performed in only sixteen country districts. In 89 districts in which there are Government vaccinators, no vaccinations were reported. The number of births registered in the Colony during 1893 was 40,212, and the vaccinations give a percentage of 5.48 of this number. In addition to the vaccinations performed by Government vaccinators, a number were performed by private practitioners, but of these no returns are submitted. The Hon. Dr. MacLaurin, in reply to the Hon. Mr. Stewart, stated in the Legislative Council on April 18th that it was not deemed advisable by the Government to deal with the subject of compulsory vaccination till the Royal Commission on Vaccination had presented its report.

Dr. I. Ashburton Thompson has been appointed Chief Medical Inspector to the New South Wales Board of Health in lieu of the position formerly held by him of Inspector to the Board of Health, now abolished. An Anti-Opium League has been formed in Sydney.

A MONUMENT to Villemin, whose name must for ever remain associated with the establishment of the contagious nature of tuberculosis as a scientific truth, will be formally unveiled on September 3rd, at Bruyères, in the Vosges. The monument is now on view in one of the Paris Salons.

## MEDICAL NEWS.

THE next Congress of the French Scientific Societies will be held in Paris on April 16th, 1895, and following days.

HOSPITAL SUNDAY FUND.—The amount of money received by the Metropolitan Hospital Sunday Fund up to Thursday evening was £35,500.

DR. JOSEPH FÓDÓR, Professor of Hygiene in the University of Buda-Pesth, has been elected Rector Magnificus of that seat of learning.

PRESENTATION.—Dr. Neech, of Tyldesley, has been presented with a handsome marble timepiece by the members of the Nook and Ginpits Ambulance Class in recognition of his services.

A NEW HOSPITAL FOR CORK.—A sum of £25,000 has been left by the late Mr. Honan, of Cork, for the purpose of founding a home for aged and infirm men, who must be of good character and Roman Catholics. The home is to be called Honan's Hospital.

DR. SIGMUND EXNER, Professor of Physiology in the University of Vienna, has been appointed Medical Referee to the Austrian Ministry of Worship and Education. Since the death of Professor Carl Langer, the anatomist, the post has been vacant. Before him it was held by the distinguished pathologist Rokitsansky.

ITALIAN DERMATOLOGICAL SOCIETY.—The Italian Society of Dermatology and Syphilography will hold its annual meeting in Rome in the latter part of October. The subjects proposed for discussion are (1) Mycological Morphology: Clinical Study and Treatment of Tricophytic Diseases; (2) Hereditary Syphilis.

THE first division of the Court of Session at Edinburgh on June 27th set aside the verdict of a jury which had found Dr. Allan, Lasswade, liable in £50 damages to a Dalkeith labourer, and ordered a new trial, on the ground that the verdict was against the weight of evidence. Lord Adam, who was the judge at the original trial, now gave the opinion that the then verdict was a most illogical one, and added that from first to last he saw no evidence that Dr. Allan undertook to attend the pursuers professionally.

SHORTHAND IN MEDICINE.—We have been asked by Dr. Gowers to state that, in order to promote the use of shorthand by medical students and practitioners, by enabling them to increase their knowledge at the same time of the art and of their profession, a small sheet of clinical teaching in lithographed phonetic shorthand has been printed. It can be obtained—price 6d., post free—from Messrs. Sir I. Pitman and Sons, 1, Amen Corner; and is also sold by Mr. H. K. Lewis, of Gower Street.

MILNES MARSHALL MEMORIAL FUND.—At a meeting of the subscribers to this fund, held at Owens College on June 25th, the Treasurer intimated that about £770 had been subscribed. It was resolved that of this sum £100 be set apart to bear interest, in order that a gold medal may be presented annually at the College athletic sports, in memory of the late Professor Marshall. The remainder of the sum will be set apart for the purchase of books to be added to the Marshall Library which has been presented to the College.

THE LATE DR. KEARNEY, OF SKIBBEREEN.—At a recent meeting of the Skibbereen guardians the following resolution was unanimously adopted: “That we adjourn this meeting of the board as a slight tribute of respect to the memory of the late Dr. W. B. Kearney, an able and worthy official of this union and a gentleman of refined feeling and charitable sentiments. Though taken away at an early age and at the beginning of a bright and prosperous career, his numerous good actions and kindly disposition towards all with whom he came in contact compensate, we are glad to say, for length of years denied him. It will, therefore, we hope, be a consolation to his family to know that our feelings on this melancholy occasion are those of the most sincere regret and heartfelt sympathy with them in their sad affliction.”



**AMERICAN JOTTINGS.**—During the last few weeks there have been three successful cases of Cæsarean section in New York, the operators being Drs. Boldt, Coe, and Dudley. In two of the cases the operation was performed for the second time. All the mothers and children were doing well at the time of report.—Nearly 400 women in the United States are graduates of schools of pharmacy, and a majority of them have charge of hospital drug rooms, or are engaged as dispensing clerks in large drug stores.—The United States Marine Hospital Service has instituted an inspection of every vessel that leaves the port of Chicago. This action is taken to prevent the spread of small-pox so prevalent in Chicago.—The new law in the District of Columbia requires the druggist to sell whisky or other liquors only on the prescription of a physician. It is said by an American paper that forgeries for obtaining drinks are becoming frequent.—At a recent meeting of the Illinois State Medical Society a resolution was adopted endorsing a proposition for an epileptic colony for the State on the Bielefeld plan. The resolution was referred to the Committee on Legislative Action, with instructions to bring the matter before the next General Assembly, and to use all proper means to have such a colony established.—In an action brought to recover damages against a physician or surgeon for malpraxis, the Appellate Court of Indiana held, in the case of *Merrill v. Pepperdine*, decided March 30th, 1894, the plaintiff may show, by himself or other witnesses, the condition of the physician or surgeon as to being intoxicated, and as to his appearance at the time the professional services were being performed.

**THE CLINICAL MUSEUM.**—Mr. Jonathan Hutchinson has issued, as a supplement to his *Archives of Surgery*, a descriptive *Catalogue* of the Clinical Museum which he has established. In an introductory note he says that the museum is to some extent an experiment, designed to show that pictorial representations of disease may be of great use in advancing our knowledge of it. A subsidiary question, which at once arose, and as to which he hopes to obtain valuable information by the experiment, is the best method of arranging the drawings. The main requirements were that the drawings should be displayed, not hidden away in portfolios; that they should be easily moved about to allow a fresh grouping when necessary; and that they should be provided with descriptions and histories, available for immediate reference. How far he has succeeded in achieving these objects can be best judged by a visit to the museum, which it is announced is open every Tuesday from 2 to 6. It is a matter of regret—a regret shared by Mr. Hutchinson himself—that an undertaking of this character is not in the hands of a public body, for there can be no question as to its utility. The Royal College of Surgeons, however, did not see its way to devote sufficient space to the adequate display of such drawings, and we must, therefore, be thankful to Mr. Hutchinson for the public spirit which he has shown in entering upon an enterprise of so great extent. It should be added that Mr. Hutchinson expresses his readiness to facilitate the copying of any drawings that he may possess. The catalogue now issued is not classified systematically, owing to difficulties found insurmountable at the present stage of the enterprise, but it will be found very useful by visitors to the museum.

### MEDICAL VACANCIES.

The following vacancies are announced:

- BOROUGH OF ILKESTON.**—Medical Officer of Health. Salary, £100 per annum. Applications and testimonials to Wright Lissett, Town Clerk, by July 5th.
- BRIGHTON, HOVE, AND PRESTON DISPENSARY.**—House-Surgeon for the parent establishment. Salary, £140 per annum, with furnished apartments, coal, gas, and attendance, but no board. Applications and testimonials to J. W. Stride, Assistant Secretary, before July 10th.
- CROYDON GENERAL HOSPITAL.**—House-Surgeon. Appointment for two years. Salary, £100 per annum, increasing £10 per annum up to £120. Applications and testimonials to the Secretary, J. Jones, by July 6th.
- DENTAL HOSPITAL OF LONDON, Leicester Square.**—Anæsthetist; must be duly registered medical practitioner. Applications and testimonials to Francis Pink, Secretary, before July 9th.
- EAST LONDON HOSPITAL FOR CHILDREN AND DISPENSARY FOR WOMEN, Glamis Road, Shadwell, E.**—Resident Medical Officer; must be registered practitioner in medicine and surgery. Salary, £80

per annum, with board and residence. Applications and testimonials to Thomas Hayes, Secretary, by July 23rd.

- LONDON HOSPITAL MEDICAL COLLEGE, Mile End.**—Senior Demonstrator of Physiology and Lecturer on Biology. Salary for the former, £150 per annum, and a proportion of fees paid for classes; and for the latter £100 per annum and class fees. Applications to Munro Scott, Warden, by July 7th.
- LONDON THROAT HOSPITAL, 204, Great Portland Street, W.**—Secretary. Salary, £55 per annum. Applications to the Chairman, Executive Committee.
- NORTH-EASTERN HOSPITAL FOR CHILDREN, Hackney Road, N.E.**—Junior House-Physician. For six months, commencing August 1st. Applications and testimonials to T. Glenton-Kerr, Secretary, 27, Clement's Lane, E.C., by July 12th.
- NORTH LONDON CONSUMPTION HOSPITAL.**—Clinical Clerks, both for In-patient and Out-patient Departments. Applications to the Secretary, Lionel F. Hill, M.A., 41, Fitzroy Square, W.
- NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE INFIRMARY AND EYE HOSPITAL, Harts-hill, Stoke-upon-Trent.**—House-Physician. Salary, £100 per annum, increasing £10 per annum at the discretion of the Committee, with furnished apartments, board, and washing. Applications to the Secretary by July 23rd.
- QUEEN CHARLOTTE'S HOSPITAL, Marylebone Road, N.W.**—Resident Medical Officer. Appointment for four months. Salary at the rate of £80 per annum, with board and residence. Applications and testimonials to Arthur Watts by July 7th.
- ROYAL LONDON OPHTHALMIC HOSPITAL, Moorfields.**—Curator, non-resident. Appointment for one year; renewable. Salary, £120 per annum. Applications to the Secretary by June 30th.
- SUNDERLAND BOROUGH LUNATIC ASYLUM.**—Medical Superintendent, doubly qualified. Salary, £350 per annum, with furnished house, board for self and wife (if married), washing, coals, light, two servants, and use of garden. Applications, endorsed "Medical Superintendent," to Fras. M. Bowey, Clerk to the Visiting Committee, Town Hall, Sunderland, by June 30th.
- UNIVERSITY COLLEGE, DUNDEE, St. Andrews University.**—Professor of Chemistry. Applications to R. N. Kerr, Secretary, by July 7th.
- UNIVERSITY OF ABERDEEN.**—Examiners in Medicine. Applications and testimonials to Robert Walker, Secretary of the University Court, on or before July 4th.
- UNIVERSITY OF EDINBURGH.**—Chemical Assistant to Professor of Physiology. Salary, £180 per annum. Applications to the Secretary of the University Court before July 1st.
- WEST DERBY UNION.**—Resident Assistant Medical Officer at Mill Road Infirmary. Salary, £100 per annum, with rations. Applications and testimonials to Harris P. Cleaver, Clerk to the Guardians, by July 10th.
- WESTMINSTER HOSPITAL, Broad Sanctuary.**—Second Dental Surgeon. Candidates must attend the House Committee on Tuesday, July 10th with testimonials.
- WESTMINSTER HOSPITAL MEDICAL SCHOOL.**—Demonstrator of Anatomy. Applications to Mr. Spencer, the Dean, before July 10th.
- WEST NORFOLK HOSPITAL, King's Lynn.**—House-Surgeon, who will also act as Secretary to the Weekly Board. Salary, £80, rising £10 annually to £100, with board, residence, and washing. Applications and copies of testimonials to S. R. Lister, Secretary, by July 7th.
- WEST RIDING ASYLUM, Wakefield.**—Two Resident Clinical Assistants. Board, furnished apartments, and attendance provided, but no salary. Appointment for six months. Applications to the Medical Director.

### MEDICAL APPOINTMENTS.

- BELL, Theodore, M.D., B.A. Dubl., M.B., B.Ch.,** appointed Medical Officer of the Warrenpoint Dispensary District, *vice* A. E. Douglas, M.D. St. And., F.R.C.S.I., deceased.
- BLAMEY, J., M.R.C.S. Eng., L.S.A.,** reappointed Medical Officer to the Workhouse of the Falmouth Union.
- CONSTANT, Frederick Charles, L.D.S.R.C.S. Eng.,** appointed Dental House-Surgeon to Guy's Hospital.
- COPE, Albert E., M.D. Durh., M.B. Lond.,** appointed Medical Officer No. 3 District, St. George's Hanover Square Union, *vice* Dr. Hunt, deceased.
- COUPLAND, W. H., L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S. Edin.,** appointed Medical Officer to the Workhouse of the Stoke-on-Trent Union.
- GARNER, J., L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S. Edin., L.F.P. & S. Glasg.,** appointed Registrar and Assistant to the Surgeon of the Down County Infirmary, Downpatrick.
- HARNETT, Alfred, L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S. Edin.,** reappointed Medical Officer of Health to the Eastleigh Local Board.
- HAYDON, Arthur George, M.D., M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P. Lond.,** appointed Physician in charge of the Electric Department of the National Hospital for Paralysis and Diseases of the Heart, Soho Square, W.
- HIND, W., M.D.,** appointed Medical Officer to the Workhouse of the Stoke-on-Trent Union.
- HOLLOWAY, W. G., M.D., B.A. Cantab., M.R.C.S. Eng.,** appointed Assistant Surgeon to the Central London Throat and Ear Hospital, Gray's Inn Road.
- MACKENZIE, W. S., L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S. Edin.,** reappointed Medical Officer of Health to the Normanton Local Board.
- MCWEIR, Dr. A.,** appointed Medical Officer for the Mortlake District of the Richmond (Surrey) Union.
- MATTHEWS, Sidney Philip, M.R.C.S. Eng., L.R.C.P. Lond.,** appointed Medical Officer to the Southwick Division of the Fareham Union and Public Vaccinator to the combined districts of Wickham and South-wick.

**MILLS**, Thomas Ingham, M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond., appointed Third House Surgeon to the Huddersfield Infirmary.  
**MOORE**, E. H., L.R.C.S.Édin., L.S.A., reappointed Medical Officer to the Workhouse of the Falmouth Union.  
**PERCIVAL**, Thomas, M.R.C.S.Eng., L.S.A., appointed Medical Officer for the Knottingley District of the Pontefract Union, *vice* T. Johnson, L.R.C.P.Édin., L.F.P.S.Glasg., resigned.  
**POOSON**, W., F.R.C.S.Eng., reappointed Medical Officer of Health for the Leeds Rural Sanitary Authority.  
**POWELL**, A. F. M., M.B., C.M.Édin., appointed Medical Officer for the First Sedgeley District of the Dudley Union.  
**STORRS**, C. S., B.A., M.B., B.C.Cantab., appointed House-Physician to the North Eastern Hospital for Children, Hackney Road, N.E.

## DIARY FOR NEXT WEEK.

### MONDAY.

**LONDON POST-GRADUATE COURSE**, Bacteriological Laboratory, King's College, W.C., 3 to 5 P.M.—Lecture: Tetanus, Rabies, and Cholera. Practical Work: Examination of Comma Bacilli, Chemical and other Tests. London Throat Hospital, Great Portland Street, 8 P.M.—Dr. Edward Woakes: Ear Diseases in Infancy and Childhood.

### TUESDAY.

**ROYAL MEDICAL AND CHIRURGICAL SOCIETY**, 8.30 P.M.—Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel Lawrie: On the Results of the Hyderabad Chloroform Commission.

**THE CLINICAL MUSEUM**, 21, Great Portland Street.—Open at 2, Lecture at 4.

### WEDNESDAY.

**POST-GRADUATE LECTURES**, Metropolitan Hospital, N.E., 5 P.M.—Dr. Haig: Anæmia.

**OBSTETRICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON**, 8 P.M.—Mr. Heape (Balfour Student at the University of Cambridge) will give a demonstration of microscopical specimens illustrating the Menstruation of *Semnopithecus Entellus*. Specimens will be shown by Dr. Remfry, Dr. Lea, and others. Dr. Remfry: Remarks on Fœtal Retroflexion; reports on a specimen showing origin of Gluteus Maximus from Occipital Bone. Dr. Giles: The Temperature after Delivery in Relation to the Duration of Labour. Dr. Herman: On the Change in Size of the Cervical Canal during Menstruation.

**POST-GRADUATE COURSE**, West London Hospital, Hammersmith Road W., 5 P.M.—Dr. Seymour Taylor: Cases of Chlorosis, etc.

### FRIDAY.

**WEST LONDON MEDICO-CHIRURGICAL SOCIETY**, West London Hospital, 8.30 P.M.—Annual general meeting. Presentation of annual report and balance-sheet. Election of officers and Council for session 1894-95. President's Valedictory Address.

**OPHTHALMOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF THE UNITED KINGDOM**, 8 P.M.—Mr. Spencer Watson: A New Operation for Trichiasis and Distichiasis. Mr. Arthur H. Benson: A Case of Asteroid Hyalitis. Dr. A. Bronner: Notes on a Case of Sympathetic Ophthalmia after Concussion of Eyeball, with no Visible External Wound. Mr. Walter Jessop: Complete Closure of Lids after (?) Diphtheritic Ophthalmia. Mr. Lawford: A Short Note on the Use of Liquor Chlori in Ocular Therapeutics.

## BIRTHS, MARRIAGES, AND DEATHS.

*The charge for inserting announcements of Births, Marriages, and Deaths is 3s. 6d., which sum should be forwarded in post-office order or stamps with the notice not later than Wednesday morning, in order to insure insertion in the current issue.*

### BIRTHS.

**EAST**.—On June 20th, at Enderley, Great Malvern, the wife of C. H. East, M.D., of a son.

**WRIGHT**.—On June 23rd, at 4, Full Street, Derby, the wife of J. Lister Wright, M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P., of a daughter.

### MARRIAGES.

**BERWICK-PENNEY**.—On June 26th, at St. John's Episcopal Church, Dumfries, by the Rev. J. R. Denham, George Berwick, M.D., of Sedburgh, Yorks, to Marion Alice, elder daughter of the Rev. Canon Penney, D.C.L., of Rothesay.

**LONG-CLARKE**.—On June 19th, at Duntessbourne Rous, Gloucestershire, by the Rev. D. Long, of Broadway, Dorset, and the Rev. F. A. Clarke, David Sanderson Long, M.D.Cantab., to Isabel Dashwood, the youngest daughter of the late Frederick Ricketts Clarke, of Taunton.

**TROUT-ABELL**.—On June 19th, at Edgbaston Old Church, Birmingham, by the Rev. F. Edwards, M.A., Joseph Henry Ensor Trout, L.R.C.P., L.R.C.S., etc., of Monument Road, Birmingham, to Helen Elizabeth, second daughter of the late John Abell, of Barton-under-Needwood, formerly of Norbury Manor, Salop.

### DEATH.

**SCOTT**.—On June 14th, at 1, St. Chad's Gardens, Headingley, Leeds, George Reynolds Schofield Scott, L.R.C.P.Lond. (late of Ripley Lodge, Wortley), eldest son of the late William Scott, M.R.C.S.E., Holbeck, Leeds.

### IN MEMORIAM.

**POULAIN**.—In gracious memory of Victor Poulain, M.D.Heild., M.R.C.S. Eng., late of 124, Fulham Road, South Kensington, June 29th, 1893.

## LETTERS, NOTES, AND ANSWERS TO CORRESPONDENTS.

**COMMUNICATIONS FOR THE CURRENT WEEK'S JOURNAL SHOULD REACH THE OFFICE NOT LATER THAN MIDDAY POST ON WEDNESDAY. TELEGRAMS CAN BE RECEIVED ON THURSDAY MORNING.**

**COMMUNICATIONS** respecting Editorial matters should be addressed to the Editor, 429, Strand, W.C., London; those concerning business matters, non-delivery of the JOURNAL, etc., should be addressed to the Manager, at the Office, 429, Strand, W.C., London.

In order to avoid delay, it is particularly requested that all letters on the editorial business of the JOURNAL be addressed to the Editor at the Office of the JOURNAL, and not to his private house.

**AUTHORS** desiring reprints of their articles published in the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL are requested to communicate beforehand with the Manager, 429, Strand, W.C.

**CORRESPONDENTS** who wish notice to be taken of their communications should authenticate them with their names—of course not necessarily for publication.

**CORRESPONDENTS** not answered are requested to look to the Notices to Correspondents of the following week.

**MANUSCRIPTS FORWARDED TO THE OFFICE OF THIS JOURNAL CANNOT UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES BE RETURNED.**

**PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT**.—We shall be much obliged to Medical Officers of Health if they will, on forwarding their Annual and other Reports, favour us with duplicate copies.

*Queries, answers, and communications relating to subjects to which special departments of the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL are devoted will be found under their respective headings.*

### ANSWERS.

**A. DE B.**—This is a matter of excise, upon which we cannot offer an opinion.

**F. W. C. AND S. E. J.**—The giving of such testimonials is contrary to professional usage, but *de mortuis nil nisi bonum*.

**CRITIC**.—We are informed that the words "palatinoid" and "bipalatinoid" were coined for purposes of registration only. The origin of the term "palatinoid" is merely that the product practically resembles the palate in shape, and is thus easily swallowed. The "bipalatinoid" is a double palatinoid, being divided by a septum of jujube for the purpose of separating two incompatible ingredients which become liberated when the envelope is dissolved in the stomach.

### THE ELECTION OF MEDICAL OFFICERS OF DISPENSARIES.

**W. J. L.**—All the dispensaries and institutions supported by voluntary contributions with which we are acquainted are governed by a regular committee and have established rules and regulations, and it is by the authority of these alone that such a question as that propounded by our correspondent could be answered correctly. It is a very usual procedure to re-elect retiring officers; but some institutions specially forbid this by their rules, so that it is quite impossible to give reliable information on this subject without knowledge of the rules of this particular dispensary.

### CONSULTING-ROOM CHAIR.

**DR. R. M. FRASER** (Belfast) writes: In reply to "Lambda's" query in the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL of June 9th, after experience and observation of several varieties of couches, I can recommend the following form: A plain couch with four stout legs, length 4 ft. 4 in., breadth 2 ft. 1 in., height 2 ft. 7 in., well stuffed with hair and covered with best American cloth. From the foot two parallel boards with depressions for heels at the end can be drawn out, and the head should not be more than 5 inches higher than the rest of the couch. The heel rest permits the tallest patient to stretch on it as well as a gynaecological examination in dorsal position, and by the low head examination in the lateral-prone position can be accomplished. The couch can be modified by a drawer at the side, divergent rests, etc. The work should be entrusted to an honest and practical tradesman. My own was made to my satisfaction by T. McGimpsey and Co., Albertbridge Road, Belfast.

### NOTES, LETTERS, Etc.

#### ERRATA.

In the description of Dr. Le Page's axis tractor published in the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL of June 23rd, p. 1367, there are two obvious printer's errors. In the thirteenth line from the end of the article read "and so pressure on the anterior brim is avoided," and in the sixth line from the end read "whilst undue force would" etc.

In the article on a new British Epileptic Colony published in the BRITISH MEDICAL JOURNAL of June 16th, p. 1371, the cost of the site for the New York Colony in the Genesee Valley should have been stated as 125,000 dollars, and the number of epileptics in New York State as 12,000. It should also have been stated that it was hoped that the British Epileptic Colony would eventually be aided by funds from public sources.

#### SUICIDE IN PORTUGAL.

**STATISTICS** published by the *Jornal das Sciencias Medicas* of Lisbon show that the number of suicides in Portugal is steadily increasing. Taking only the cases registered as suicide, it is found that in 1886 the number of such cases was 16; in 1887, 29; in 1888, 27; in 1889, 39; in 1890, 45; in 1891, 32; in 1892, 42; and in 1893, 62.